
FAIRFAX COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

JANUARY 25, 2011 
   

AGENDA 
 

  

 9:30 Done Presentations 
 

10:30 Done  Presentation of the Don Smith Award  
 

10:45 Done Presentation on the Tysons Partnership 
 

11:00 Report Accepted Report on General Assembly Activities  
 

11:15  Done Appointments to Citizen Boards, Authorities, Commissions, 
and Advisory Groups 
 

11:15 Done Items Presented by the County Executive 
 

 ADMINISTRATIVE 
ITEMS 

 

 

1 Approved Approval of Traffic Calming Measures and Installation of 
“Watch for Children” Signs as Part of the Residential Traffic 
Administration Program (Mason and Hunter Mill Districts) 
 

2 Approved 
w/amendment 

Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing to Consider 
Amending Fairfax County Code Section 82-5A (Residential 
Permit Parking Districts) Related to High School, Rail Station, 
and University Criteria 
 

3 Approved Extension of Review Periods for 2232 Review Applications 
(Mason, Springfield and Sully Districts) 
 

4 Approved Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing on the Acquisition 
of Certain Land Rights Necessary for the Construction of Zion 
Drive Road Improvements (Braddock District) 
 

5 Approved 
 

Supplemental Appropriation Resolution AS 11106 for the 
Fairfax County Economic Development Authority to Accept 
Grant Funding from the Commonwealth of Virginia – 
Governor’s Opportunity Fund for Northrop Grumman 
Corporation 
 

6 Approved Streets into the Secondary System (Hunter Mill District) 
 



FAIRFAX COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

JANUARY 25, 2011 
   
 

 ACTION ITEMS 
 

 

1 Approved Adoption of the Lower Occoquan Watershed Management 
Plan (Springfield and Mount Vernon Districts) and the 
Adoption of the Nichol Run/Pond Branch Watershed 
Management Plan (Dranesville District) 
 

2 Approved Approval for the Department of Neighborhood and Community 
Services to Donate 20 Surplus FASTRAN Buses 
 

3 Approved w/revised 
Attachment 1  

Revisions to the Water Facilities Planning Agreement 
Between the Board of Supervisors and Fairfax Water  
 

4 Approved Approval of a Parking Reduction for Parcel “C1” of Dulles 
Technology Center (Hunter Mill District) 
 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

 

1 Noted Martha Washington Library (Mount Vernon District) and 
Thomas Jefferson Library (Mason District) Receive Awards of 
Excellence from the National Association of Industrial and 
Office Properties  
 

2 Noted Annual Status Report on the Board’s Second Four-Year 
Transportation Program  
 

3 Noted Contract Award – Sequoia Section 2, Pond 1 (Sully District) 
 

11:45 Done Matters Presented by Board Members 
 

12:40 Done Closed Session 
 

 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

 

3:00 Held Annual Meeting of the Solid Waste Authority 
 

3:30 Board Decision 
deferred to 2/8/11 at 

3:30 p.m. 
 

Public Hearing on SE 2010-MA-020 (Higher Horizons Day 
Care Center, Inc.) (Mason District) 
 

3:30 Public Hearing 
deferred to 2/8/11 at 

3:30 p.m. 
 

Public Hearing on PCA 2005-PR-041 (Eskridge (E & A) LLC) 
(Providence District) 
 

3:30 Approved Public Hearing on SEA 81-L-057-02 (McDonald’s Corporation) 
(Lee District) 
 



FAIRFAX COUNTY 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

JANUARY 25, 2011 
   
 

 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
(continued) 

 

 

3:30 Public Hearing 
deferred to 2/8/11 at 

3:30 p.m. 
 

Public Hearing on SE 2010-LE-017 (Iskalo CBR LLC)  
(Lee District) 
 

4:00 Approved Public Hearing for Fairfax County’s Purchase of One Million 
Gallon Per Day of Capacity at Loudoun Water’s Broad Run 
Water Reclamation Facility 
 

4:00 Approved Public Hearing on the Sale of Two Million Gallons Per Day of 
Fairfax County’s Unused Capacity at The Upper Occoquan 
Sewage Authority’s Treatment Plant to Prince William County 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(4)



Fairfax County, Virginia 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
AGENDA 

 

     Tuesday 
     January 25, 2011 

 
 
9:30 a.m. 
 
 

WELCOME AND RECOGNITION 
 
Welcome and recognition of teachers from Songpa-Gu, Seoul, Korea, and Fairfax 
County Public Schools who participated in an academic and cultural exchange. 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
1. SPORTS/SCHOOLS PRESENTATIONS: 
 

 CERTIFICATE – To recognize James Oliver for more than 30 years of service in 
Fairfax County Public Schools.  Requested by Supervisors Frey and Herrity. 

 
 CERTIFICATE – To recognize the Chantilly High School Golf Team for winning 

the 2010 AAA Northern Region Golf Championship and senior Ji Soo Park for his 
accomplishment.  Requested by Supervisors Frey and Herrity. 

 
2. RECOGNITIONS: 
 

 CERTIFICATE – To recognize Michael Cantrell for his generosity and the Fairfax 
County Police Department Motor Squad for organizing Santa’s Ride.  Requested 
by Chairman Bulova. 

 
 RESOLUTION – To recognize Douglas Pew for his years of service on the 

Fairfax County Trails and Sidewalk Committee.  Requested by Supervisor 
Hudgins. 

 
 
 

— more — 
 

(5)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 

 CERTIFICATE – To recognize Good Shepherd Christian Academy for its efforts 
in the 2010 Kohl’s Cares program.  Requested by Supervisors Cook and Herrity. 

 
3. DESIGNATIONS: 
 

 PROCLAMATION – To designate January 2011 as Mentoring Month in Fairfax 
County.  Requested by Chairman Bulova. 

 
 PROCLAMATION – To designate February 2011 as African American History 

Month in Fairfax County.  Requested by Supervisor Bulova. 
 

 PROCLAMATION – To designate January 28, 2011, as Earned Income Tax 
Credit Awareness Day in Fairfax County.  Requested by Chairman Bulova. 

 
 
 
 
STAFF: 
Merni Fitzgerald, Director, Office of Public Affairs 
Bill Miller, Office of Public Affairs 

(6)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
10:30 a.m. 
 
 
Presentation of the Don Smith Award  
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
None.    
 
 
PRESENTED BY: 
Anita Baker, Chairperson, Employee Advisory Council (EAC) 
Judy Schambach, Group 3, EAC Representative 
 
 

(7)



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

(8)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
10:45 a.m. 
 
 
Presentation on the Tysons Partnership 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
None.    
 
 
PRESENTED BY: 
Members of the Tysons Partnership 
 

(9)



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

(10)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
11:00 a.m. 
 
 
Report on General Assembly Activities 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
None.  Materials to be distributed to the Board of Supervisors on January 25, 2011 
 
 
PRESENTED BY: 
Supervisor Jeff McKay, Chairman, Board of Supervisor’s Legislative Committee 
Anthony H. Griffin, County Executive 
 

(11)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

(12)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
11:15 a.m. 
 
 
Appointments to Citizen Boards, Authorities, Commissions, and Advisory Groups 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Appointments to be heard January 25, 2011 
An updated list will be distributed at the Board meeting. 
 
 
STAFF: 
Nancy Vehrs, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
 

(13)



  

 

                                                                  January 25, 2011 
 

 
APPOINTMENTS TO BE HEARD JANUARY 25, 2011 

(ENCOMPASSING VACANCIES PROJECTED THROUGH JANUARY 31, 2011) 
(Unless otherwise noted, members are eligible for reappointment) 

 

     
 

          
A. HEATH ONTHANK MEMORIAL AWARD SELECTION COMMITTEE   

(1 year) 
 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Clifford L. Fields 
(Appointed 1/96-1/03 
by Hanley; 1/04-1/08 
by Connolly, 2/09-
1010 by Bulova) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

At-Large 
Chairman’s 
Representative 

 Bulova At Large 
Chairman’s 

Jane W. Gwinn 
(Appointed 2/04-1/09 
by Bulova; 3/10 by 
Cook) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Braddock District 
Representative 

 Bulova Braddock 

Kerrie Wilson 
Appointed 1/10 by 
Foust) 
Term exp. 1/11 
Resigned 
 

Dranesville District 
Representative 

 Foust Dranesville 

Ronald Copeland 
(Appointed 1/05-1/10 
by Hudgins) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Hunter Mill District 
Representative 

 
 

Hudgins Hunter Mill 

Joseph Blackwell 
(Appointed 1/06-1/08 
by Kauffman, 1/09-
1/10 by McKay) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Lee District 
Representative 

Joseph Blackwell 
 

McKay Lee 

 
  
 
        (Continued on next page)

(14)

rstew5
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



January 25, 2011                         Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 2 

 

 

 
 

 
A. HEATH ONTHANK MEMORIAL AWARD SELECTION COMMITTEE   
(1 year) 
 
Continued 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Eileen J. Garnett 
(Appointed 1/03-1/10 
by Gross) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Mason District 
Representative 

 Gross Mason 

John R. Byers 
(Appointed 2/0-1/10 
by Hyland) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Mount Vernon 
District 
Representative 

 Hyland Mount 
Vernon 

Ernestine Heastie 
(Appointed 2/04-1/10 
by Smyth) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Providence District 
Representative 

Ernestine Heastie 
 

Smyth Providence 

Philip E. Rosenthal 
(Appointed 1/92-2/08 
by McConnell, 1/10 
by Herrity) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Springfield District 
Representative 

Philip Rosenthal 
 

Herrity Springfield 

VACANT 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Sully District 
Representative 

 Frey Sully 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(15)



January 25, 2011                         Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 3 

 

 

 
                     

ADVISORY SOCIAL SERVICES BOARD 
 (4 years – limited to 2 full consecutive terms) 

  
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Rebecca Geller; 
appointed 3/08 by 
McKay) 
Term exp. 9/12 
Resigned 
 

Lee District 
Representative 

 McKay Lee 

VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Sarah Wells; 
appointed 4/07 by 
Gross) 
Term exp. 9/10 
Resigned 
 

Mason District 
Representative 

 Gross Mason 

      
 
 
 

 
AFFORDABLE DWELLING UNIT ADVISORY BOARD (4 years) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Mark S. Ingrao 
(Appointed 1/03 by 
Mendelsohn; 5/05 by 
DuBois) 
Term exp. 5/09 
 

Citizen 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor  

At-Large 

VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
James Francis Carey; 
appointed 2/95-5/02 
by Hanley; 5/06 by 
Connolly) 
Term exp. 5/10 
Resigned 
 

Lending Institution 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor  

At-Large 

 
 

(16)



January 25, 2011                         Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 4 

 

 

 
 

AIRPORTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE (3 years) 
 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Robert Ackerman 
(Appointed 3/93 by 
Berger; 1/96-1/02 by 
Mendelsohn; 1/05-
1/08 by Foust) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Dranesville 
Business 
Representation 

 Foust Dranesville 

Paul Vizcaino 
(Appointed 5/09 by 
Hudgins) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Hunter Mill District 
Representative 

 Hudgins Hunter Mill 

Barbara 
Kreykenbohm 
(Appointed 1/09 by 
Gross) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Mason District 
Representative 

 Gross Mason 

 
 
 
 
 

 
ALCOHOL SAFETY ACTION PROGRAM LOCAL POLICY BOARD (ASAP) 

(3 years) 
 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Dave Sprague; 
appointed 5/07 
&10/07 by Smyth) 
Term exp. 10/10 
Resigned 
 

At-Large #5 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At Large 

   
 
 
 
 
 

(17)



January 25, 2011                         Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 5 

 

 

 
 

CELEBRATE FAIRFAX, INC. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
(1 year – limited to 6 consecutive terms) 

 
[NOTE:  In January of 2002 terms were changed to run from October 1 until September 30.  An 
asterisk (*) beside any of the following names denotes an individual who is NOT eligible for 
reappointment.] 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Kathy Hannon Cope; 
appointed 9/08&9/09 
by Hudgins) 
Term exp. 9/10 
Resigned 
 

At-Large #2 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

 
 
 
 

 
COMMISSION ON ORGAN AND TISSUE DONATION AND TRANSPLANTATION 

(4 years)  
 

Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 
 

Suzette Kern 
(Appointed 11/09 by 
McKay) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Lee District 
Representative 

 McKay Lee 

Carrie Lord Maglich 
(Appointed 12/10 by 
Hyland) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Mount Vernon 
District 
Representative 

 Hyland Mt. Vernon 

William J. Stephens 
(Appointed 9/02-1/07 
by McConnell) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Springfield 
District 
Representative 

William Stephens 
 

Herrity Springfield 

 
 
 
 
 

(18)



January 25, 2011                         Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 6 

 

 

 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ADVISORY COUNCIL (EQAC) (3 years) 
 

Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 
 

VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
David Ouderkirk; 
appointed 5/09 by 
Hudgins) 
Term exp.  1/12 
Resigned 
 

Hunter Mill 
District 
Representative 

 Hudgins Hunter Mill 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
FAIRFAX AREA DISABILITY SERVICES BOARD 

(3 years- limited to 2 full consecutive terms per MOU, after initial term) 
[NOTE:  Persons may be reappointed after being off for 3 years.  State Code requires that 
membership in the local disabilities board include at least 30 percent representation by individuals 
with physical, visual or hearing disabilities or their family members.  For this 15-member board, 
the minimum number of representation would be 5. 
 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Thomas Choman 
(Appointed 5/02 by 
Hanley; 11/04-1/08 
by Connolly) 
Term exp. 11/10 
 

At-Large Fairfax 
County 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

Ann Pimley 
(Appointed 
9/03&11/06 by Frey) 
Term exp. 11/09 
Not eligible for 
reappointment (need 
3 year lapse) 
 

Sully District 
Representative 

 Frey Sully 

 
 

 
 

(19)



January 25, 2011                         Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 7 

 

 

 
 

FAIRFAX COMMUNITY LONG TERM CARE COORDINATING COUNCIL 
  (2 years) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
 
CONFIRMATION NEEDED: 

 

 Ms. Elizabeth d’Alelio as the Advisory Social Services Board Representative 
 
 
 
 

 
HEALTH SYSTEMS AGENCY BOARD 

 (3 years - limited to 2 full terms, may be reappointed after 1 year lapse) 
 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Sarah A. John 
(Appointed 
6/04&6/07 by Smyth) 
Term exp. 6/10 
Not eligible for 
reappointment (need 
1 year lapse) 
 

Consumer #4 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

 
 
 
 
 

 
HUMAN SERVICES COUNCIL (4 years) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Henry B. Latimer; 
appointed 5/97 by 
Dix; 7/00-9/08 by 
Hudgins) 
Term exp. 7/12 
Resigned 
 

Hunter Mill District 
Representative 

 Hudgins Hunter Mill 

(20)



January 25, 2011                         Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 8 

 

 

 
 

JUVENILE AND DOMESTIC RELATIONS COURT CITIZENS ADVISORY COUNCIL 
(2 years) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Michael McClanahan 
(Appointed 12/05-
1/07 by Connolly; 
2/09 by Bulova) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

At-Large 
Chairman’s 
Representative 

 Bulova At-Large 
Chairman’s 

Patricia Smith-Solan 
(Appointed 1/08-
1/09) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Hunter Mill 
Representative 

 Hudgins Hunter Mill 

Joleane Dutzman 
(Appointed 1/10 by 
Hyland) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Mount Vernon 
District 
Representative 

 Hyland Mt. Vernon 

VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Melissa Smarr; 
appointed 6/06&1/08 
by Smyth) 
Term exp. 1/10 
Resigned 
 

Providence District 
Representative 

 Smyth Providence 

Caroline Kerns 
(Appointed 2/02-1/09 
by Frey) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Sully District 
Representative 

Caroline Kerns 
 

Frey Sully 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(21)



January 25, 2011                         Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 9 

 

 

 
 

PARK AUTHORITY (4 years) 
 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Gilbert McCutcheon 
(Appointed 5/92-12/06 
by Hyland) 
Term exp. 12/10 
 

Mount Vernon 
District 
Representative 

 Hyland Mount 
Vernon 

Harold Pyon 
(Appointed 10/07 by 
McConnell) 
Term exp. 12/10 
 

Springfield 
District 
Representative 

Harold Pyon 
 

Herrity Springfield 

 
 
 

 
ROAD VIEWERS BOARD (1 year) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Richard Bochner 
(Appointed 8/01-12/04 
by Connolly; 12/05-
12/09 by Smyth) 
Term exp. 12/10 
 

At-Large #5 
Representative 
 

Richard Bochner 
(Smyth) 
 

By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

 
 

 
SOUTHGATE COMMUNITY CENTER ADVISORY COUNCIL 

(2 years) 
 

[Note:  Committee created 3/21/05 to operate and maintain the Southgate Community Center in 
conjunction with the Department of Community and Recreation Services.] 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Patrick Kane; 
appointed 3/07-3/09 
by Hudgins) 
Term exp. 3/12 
Resigned 

Fairfax County #7 
Representative 
 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

(22)



January 25, 2011                         Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 10 

 

 

 
TENANT LANDLORD COMMISSION (3 years) 

[NOTE: Per County Code Section 12-2-1, each member of this commission must be a County resident.  Tenant 
Members:  shall be a person who, prior to the time of his/her appointment, and throughout his/her term, shall be the 
lessee of and reside in a dwelling unit.  Landlord Members:  shall be a person who owns and leases, or serves as a 
manager for four (4) or more leased dwelling units in Fairfax County or is employed by a real estate management 
firm that manages more than four (4) rental units. Citizen Members:  shall be anyone who is neither a lessee nor 
lessor of any dwelling unit in Fairfax County.] 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
H. Lillian Vogl 
(Appointed 3/10 by 
Herrity) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Citizen Member 
#1 Representative 

H. Lillian Vogl 
(Herrity) 

By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

Antonio Gomez 
(Appointed 1/05-1/02 
by Hanley; 3/05-1/08 
by Connolly) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Citizen Member 
#2 Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

Sally Liff 
(Appointed 8/04-1/08 
by Smyth) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Condo Owner 
Representative 

Sally Liff 
(Smyth) 

By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

Michael McEnearney 
(Appointed 10/09 by 
Foust) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Landlord Member 
#3 Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Mark Thomas; 
appointed 5/09 by 
Bulova) 
Term exp. 1/12 
Resigned 
 

Tenant Member #1 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

Evelyn McRae 
(Appointed 6/98-8/01 
by Hanley; 12/04-1/08 
by Connolly) 
Term exp. 1/11 
 

Tenant Member #2 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

Kevin Denton 
(Appointed 4/10 by 
Smyth) 
Term exp. 1/11 

Tenant Member #3 
Representative 

 By Any 
Supervisor 

At-Large 

(23)



January 25, 2011                         Appointments to Boards, Authorities, and Commissions 
                                                                                                                                      Page 11 

 

 

 
 

 
TRAILS AND SIDEWALKS COMMITTEE (2 years) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
VACANT 
(Formerly held by 
Kala Quintana; 
appointed 10/09-1/10 
by Bulova) 
Term exp. 1/12 
Resigned 
 

At-Large 
Chairman’s 
Representative 

 Bulova At-Large 
Chairman’s 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TREE COMMISSION (3 years) 

 
Incumbent History Requirement Nominee Supervisor District 

 
Stacey Evers 
(Appointed  3/08 by 
Gross) 
Term exp. 10/10 
 

Mason District 
Representative 

 Gross Mason 

 

(24)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
11:15 a.m. 
 
 
Items Presented by the County Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(25)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

(26)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE - 1  
 
 
Approval of Traffic Calming Measures and Installation of “Watch for Children” Signs as 
Part of the Residential Traffic Administration Program (Mason and Hunter Mill Districts) 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board endorsement of Traffic Calming measures and “Watch for Children” signs as part 
of the Residential Traffic Administration Program (RTAP). 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board endorse a traffic calming plan for 
Shelley Lane and Frost Way Road and (Attachment I) and for Cherokee Avenue, 
Chowan Avenue and Fairland Street (Attachment II) consisting of the following: 

 One Speed Hump on Shelley Lane (Mason District) 
 One Speed Hump on Frost Way (Mason District) 
 Two Speed Tables on Cherokee Avenue (Mason District) 
 One Multi-Way Stop on Cherokee Avenue (Mason District) 
 Pavement Striping on Cherokee Avenue (Mason District) 
 Two Multi-Way Stops on Chowan Avenue (Mason District) 
 No consensus for Measures on Fairland Street (Mason District)  

 
The County Executive further recommends that the Board approve a resolution 
(Attachment III) for the installation of “Watch for Children” signs on the following roads:  

 Merritt Place (Mason District) 
 Guildmore Road (Hunter Mill District) 

 
In addition, the County Executive recommends that the Fairfax County Department of 
Transportation (FCDOT) be requested to schedule the installation of the approved 
measures as soon as possible. 
 
 
TIMING: 
Board action is requested on January 25, 2011. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
As part of the RTAP, roads are reviewed for traffic calming when requested by a Board 
member on behalf of a homeowners or civic association.  Traffic calming employs the 
use of physical devices such as speed humps, speed tables, raised pedestrian 

(27)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
crosswalks, chokers, median islands, or traffic circles to reduce the speed of traffic on a 
residential street.  For Shelley Lane and Frost Way; and also for Cherokee Avenue, 
Chowan Avenue and Fairland Street, plans were developed by staff in concert with 
community representatives.  Both traffic calming plans were subsequently submitted for 
approval to residents in the ballot area from the adjacent communities.  On December 
15, 2010 (Shelley Lane and Frost Way), and on December 29, 2010 (Cherokee Avenue, 
Chowan Avenue and Fairland Street) the Department of Transportation received written 
verification from the appropriate local supervisor confirming community support. 
 
The RTAP allows for installation of “Watch for Children” Signs at the primary entrance to 
residential neighborhoods, or at a location with an extremely high concentration of 
children relative to the area, such as playgrounds, day care or community centers. In 
particular, section 33.1-210.2 of the code of Virginia provides that the Board may 
request, by resolution to the Commissioner of VDOT, signs alerting motorist that 
children may be at play nearby. FCDOT reviews each request to ensure the proposed 
sign will be effectively located and will not be in conflict with any other traffic control 
devices. On December 10, 2010 and December 21, 2010 FCDOT received written 
verification from the appropriate local supervisor’s confirming community support for the 
referenced “Watch for Children” signs. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The estimated cost of $34,000.00 is to be paid out of the VDOT secondary road 
construction budget. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment I:   Traffic Calming Plan for Shelley Lane and Frost Way 
Attachment II:  Traffic Calming Plan for Cherokee Avenue, Chowan Avenue and 
Fairland Street 
Attachment III:  Watch for Children Signs Resolution – Merritt Place, and Guildmore 
Road 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Katharine D. Ichter, Director, Fairfax County Department of Transportation (FCDOT)  
Eric M. Teitelman, Chief, Capital Projects and Operations Division, FCDOT 
Selby J. Thannikary, Chief, Traffic Operations Section, FCDOT 
William P. Harrell, Transportation Planner, FCDOT 
 

(28)



FROST WAY

WHITMAN RD

OU
TL

ET

SH
EL

LE
Y L

N

KA
Y C

T

LITTLE RIVER TPKE

WOODBINE LN

BROWNING CT

POE CT

VARSITY CT

LITTLE RIVER TPKE SERVICE RD

WOODB
UR

N R
D

CHERRY HILL WAY

LITTLE RIVER TPKE

.

Fairfax County Department of Transportation
Residential Traffic Administration Program (RTAP)

TRAFFIC CALMING PLAN
FROST WAY & SHELLEY LANE

Mason District 12/15/2010

ATTACHMENT I

TAX MAP: 59-3

Proposed Speed Hump adjacent
to 8417 Frost Way & 

Fairfax County Park Authority property

Proposed Speed Hump adjacent
to 3815 & 3818 Shelley Lane

0 200 400 600100 Feet

(29)



!"$
!"$

!"$
!"$

!"$
!"$

I395 SB

I395 NB

CH
ER

OK
EE

 AV
E

CHOWAN AVE

MONTROSE ST

FAIRLAND ST

I395 HOV SB

I395 HOV NB

8TH ST

VIR
GI

NI
A S

T

7TH ST

2ND ST

3RD ST

MA
RT

IN
 S

T

PIMA ST

NAVAHO DR

LITTLE RIVER TPKE

5TH ST

AM
PT

HIL
L D

R

EDWARDS ST

GR
AF

TO
N S

T

1ST ST

BR
AD

DO
CK

 RD

FR
AN

 P
L

6TH ST
VA

LL
EY

 ST

RE
DW

ING
 D

R

SE
MI

NO
LE

 AV
E

LIN
CO

LN
 AV

E

CH
IPP

EW
A P

L

4TH ST

HAWK VIEW LN

CHEYENNE DR

OU
TL

ET

BR
OO

KS
ID

E 
DR

I39
5 H

OV SB RAMP TO
 I39

5 S
B

I395 NB RAMP TO I395 HOV NB

ANNANDALE ST

CHIEFTAIN CIR

TAYACK PL

LEVTOV LNDG

WA
LK

WA
Y

8T
H 

CI
R

BIRDS VIEW LN

YUMA CT

SEMINOLE CT

CHEROKEE CT

OUTLET

7TH ST

8TH ST
PIMA ST

OU
TL

ET

OU
TL

ET

8TH ST

7TH ST

.

Fairfax County Department of Transportation
Residential Traffic Administration Program (RTAP)

TRAFFIC CALMING PLAN
CHEROKEE AVENUE, CHOWAN AVENUE & FAIRLAND STREET

Mason District 12/20/2010

ATTACHMENT II

TAX MAP: 72-1, 72-3

Proposed Speed Table adjacent to
4915 & 4916 Cherokee Avenue

Proposed Multi-Way Stop at the
intersection of Chowan Avenue

and Montrose Street

Proposed Pavement Striping

Proposed Multi-Way Stop at the
intersection of Cherokee Avenue

and Chowan Avenue

Proposed Multi-Way Stop
at the intersection of

Chowan Avenue
and Fifth Street

Proposed Speed Table adjacent to
5118 & 5119 Cherokee Avenue

0 400 800 1,200200 Feet

(30)



      Attachment III 
RESOLUTION 

 
FAIRFAX COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM (RTAP) 
WATCH FOR CHILDREN SIGNS 

MERRITT PLACE AND GUILDMORE ROAD 
(MASON AND HUNTER MILL DISTRICTS) 

 
 
At a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, held 

in the Board Auditorium of the Government Center in Fairfax, Virginia, on Tuesday, 
January 25, 2011, at which a quorum was present and voting, the following resolution 
was adopted: 

 
WHEREAS, “Watch for Children” signs are available to local communities as part 

of the Fairfax County Department of Transportation Residential Traffic Administration 
Program (RTAP); 

and, 
 

  WHEREAS, Section 33.1-210.2, of the code of Virginia, enables of the Code of 
Virginia enables the Board of Supervisors  to request by resolution to the Commissioner 
of the Virginia Department of Transportation, signs alerting motorist that children may 
be at play nearby: and . 

 
  WHEREAS, The Virginia Department of Transportation has indicated a 
willingness to allow installation of “Watch for Children” signs on the above streets. 
   
  NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that a “Watch for Children” signs is 
endorsed for Merritt Place and Guildmore Road;  

 
            AND FURTHER the Virginia Department of Transportation is requested to install 
the "Watch for Children" signs at the earliest possible date, and to maintain same, with 
the cost of each sign to be funded from the Virginia Department of Transportation's 
secondary road construction budget. 
          
 
       A Copy Teste: 

 
 
 

___________________ 
Nancy Vehrs 
Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

 

(31)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(32)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE - 2 
 
 
Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing to Consider Amending Fairfax County Code 
Section 82-5A (Residential Permit Parking Districts) Related to High School, Rail 
Station, and University Criteria 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board authorization to advertise a public hearing to consider a proposed amendment to 
Section 82-5A of The Code of the County of Fairfax, Virginia (Fairfax County Code), to 
include properties that are within 1,000 feet of high school, rail station, or university 
property boundaries in the Residential Permit Parking District (RRPD) criteria when 
considering petitions for restricted parking. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board authorize advertisement of a public 
hearing.  
 
 
TIMING: 
The Board should take action on January 25, 2011, to advertise a public hearing for 
February 22, 2011, at 4:00 p.m. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On November 16, 2010, the Board directed County staff to prepare an amendment to 
the RPPD Ordinance as a result of out-of-the-area vehicles that were being parked in 
portions of residential neighborhoods near universities.  The RPPD Ordinance currently 
allows for residents of properties to petition for restricted parking without requiring a 
field study and vehicle occupancy count if they are within 2,000 feet, when traversing 
along a roadway, of an official pedestrian entrance of the facility.  Since the 
aforementioned drivers of out-of-the-area vehicles are creating ad hoc walking paths to 
the facilities, the parking is occurring outside of the current parameters. 
 
The proposed amendment to 82-5A-4(a) would include properties that are within 1,000 
feet of the property boundaries of an existing or proposed high school, existing or 
proposed rail station, or existing Virginia college or university campus when 
considering petitions for restricted parking that do not require a field study and vehicle 
occupancy count. 
 

(33)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
The proposed changes to the Fairfax County Code, Chapter 82, Article 5A are shown in 
Attachment I. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The recommended changes should have minimal fiscal impact.  
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment I:  Proposed Amendment to Fairfax County Code Section 82-5A. 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Katharine D. Ichter, Director, Fairfax County Department of Transportation (FCDOT) 
Eric Teitelman, Chief, Capital Projects and Operations Division, FCDOT 
Selby Thannikary, Chief, Traffic Operations Section, FCDOT 
Maria Turner, Sr. Transportation Planner, FCDOT 
 

(34)



                                                                                                           Attachment I 
ARTICLE 5A. Residential Permit Parking Districts.99   
 
__________ 

99. For authority of the County to adopt this Chapter, see Va. Code Ann., §§ 46.2-
1220, 46.2-1222. 
 
__________ 
 
Section 82-5A-1. Purpose and intent. 

In order to reduce or prevent congestion and/or hazardous traffic conditions in 
residential areas, to protect those areas from polluted air, excessive noise, and other 
adverse environmental impacts of automobile commuting, to protect the residents of 
these areas from unreasonable burdens in gaining access to their property, to preserve 
the residential character of these areas and the property values therein, Residential 
Permit Parking Districts are created to impose on-street parking restrictions in certain 
designated areas of the County on public streets other than primary highways. (34-83-
82; 3-85-82; 38-04-82; 6-06-82; 26-07-82.) 
 
 
Section 82-5A-2. Definitions. 
 

For the purposes of this Article, the following words and phrases shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this Section, except in those instances where the context 
clearly indicates a different meaning: 

 
(a)   Block  shall mean that land abutting on two (2) sides of a street, extending to the 
rear lot lines of lots fronting on said street, Blocks shall start at an intersecting street and 
end at the next intersecting street; or the end of the street; or the boundary of any 
railroad right-of-way, park, school ground, or other significant division of a street as 
determined by the Fairfax County Department of Transportation.   
 
(b)   Block face  shall mean the land abutting one side of a block.   
 
(c)   Petition Area  means:   
 

(1)   Addresses along the blocks in the proposed Residential Permit Parking District, 
and 
(2)   Addresses which are on private streets within 100' of proposed Residential 
Permit Parking District roadways. 

 
(d)   Petitioner  means the current owner, lessee, or designated representative of the 
residents within RPPD.   
 
(e)   Proper display--Decal.  Residential Permit Parking decal shall be displayed in the 
lower left corner of the rear window of the vehicle issued to. The decal must be adhered 
to the window and may not be taped on to the window or displayed in any manner which 
may allow the transfer of the decal to another vehicle. If the vehicle does not have a rear 
window or is legally obscured (i.e. louvers), the decal may be displayed on the driver's 
side on the lower right corner of the window furthest to the rear of the vehicle. Any 

(35)



alteration of the decal (i.e. district number changed and/or serial number changed) shall 
deem the permit invalid.   
 
(f)   Proper display--Motorcycle sticker.  The Residential Permit Parking District 
motorcycle sticker shall be displayed beside the State inspection sticker and the County 
motorcycle license on the motorcycle front fork. Any alteration to the sticker (i.e. change 
to the district number and/or serial number) shall deem the permit invalid.   
 
(g)   Proper display--Visitor/sixty-day new resident/nonresident owner pass/temporary 
RPPD pass.  The Residential Permit Parking District Visitor/60 Day New 
Resident/Nonresident Owner Pass/Temporary RPPD Pass shall be displayed on the 
vehicle dashboard so that the pass and all of the information displayed on the pass is 
entirely visible through the vehicle windshield. Any alterations to the pass including 
changes to the address the pass is issued to and/or to the district number shall deem the 
pass invalid. Any obscuring of information displayed on the pass (i.e. folding under the 
address issued to) shall also deem the pass invalid.   
 
(h)   Residential area  shall mean that side of any street, road or highway adjacent to 
property: used exclusively as a residence; contained in any one of the residential (R) 
districts; or contained in the residential portion of any of the planned development (P) 
districts set forth in the Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 112 of this Code.  
  
(i)   Temporary RPPD  shall mean any RPPD created by the Board of Supervisors to 
address a short-term situation or event, such as a construction project, that may cause 
significant, short-term parking problems in surrounding residential areas. (34-83-82; 3-
85-82; 4-93-82; 31-00-82; 38-04-82; 6-06-82; 26-07-82.)   
 
(j) RPPD allowable vehicle shall mean a motor vehicle having a Gross Vehicle Weight 
Rating (GVWR) of less than twelve thousand (12,000) pounds.  This term shall not be 
deemed to include a COMMERCIAL VEHICLE as defined in 82-5-7 of this Code. 
  
(k) Virginia college or university campus shall mean a permanent public higher education 
facility that occupies land owned by the Commonwealth of Virginia. 
 
 
Section 82-5A-3. District designation. 

Residential Permit Parking Districts shall be as designated, on a block face-by-
block face basis as set forth in Appendix G of this Code. (34-83-82; 3-85-82; 38-04-82; 
6-06-82; 26-07-82.) 
 
 
Section 82-5A-4. Criteria for the establishment or modification of Districts. 
 
(a)   The Board of Supervisors may establish and expand a Residential Permit Parking 
District encompassing an area within to include petitioning properties that are within 
either 2,000 feet walking distance from the pedestrian entrances or within 1,000 feet 
from the property boundaries of an existing or proposed high school, existing or 
proposed rail station, or existing Virginia college or university campus if: 
 

(36)



(1)   The Board of Supervisors receives a petition requesting the establishment of 
such a District; 
 
(2)   Such petition contains signatures of petitioners representing at least 60 percent 
of the eligible addresses of the proposed District and representing more than 50 
percent of the eligible addresses on each block face of the proposed District or, in 
the case of private-street townhouse and multi-family dwelling units, such petition 
contains signatures representing at least 60 percent of the eligible addresses as 
defined in Section 82-5A-4.1; and 
 
(3)   The Board of Supervisors determines that at least 75 percent of the land 
abutting each block within the proposed District is developed residential. 

 
(b)   In addition, in any residential area of the County, the Board of Supervisors, upon 
receipt of a petition of petitioners representing at least 60 percent of the eligible 
addresses of a proposed District and representing more than 50 percent of the eligible 
addresses on each block face of the proposed District, may establish a Residential 
Permit Parking District upon a determination that: 
 

(1)   The proposed District contains a minimum of 100 contiguous or nearly 
contiguous on-street parking spaces, 20 linear feet in length per space (not required 
for additions to existing Districts) ; and 
 
(2)   At least 75 percent of the land abutting each block within the proposed District is 
developed residential; and 
 
(3)   At least 75 percent of the total number of on-street parking spaces of the 
petitioning blocks are occupied, and at least 50 percent of those occupied spaces 
are occupied by nonresidents of the petitioning blocks, as authenticated by a survey 
taken during the hours of peak demand as determined on a District-by-District basis. 

 
(c)   The Board of Supervisors may waive the requirement for 100 contiguous or nearly 
contiguous on-street parking spaces as set forth above if the Board finds that the 
proposed District meets the purpose and intent of this Article. 
 
(d)   The residents of an area where Residential Permit Parking District restrictions have 
been removed by the Board of Supervisors in response to a petition by the residents of 
the area may not petition to reestablish Residential Permit Parking District restrictions in 
such area until two years have passed since the Board of Supervisors enacted the 
ordinance that removed the restrictions from the area. 
 
(e)   A temporary RPPD may be created by the Board of Supervisors when a residential 
area is experiencing and/or expects to experience significant parking problems due to a 
short-term situation, such as a construction project. Short-term situations shall, at a 
minimum, be of at least six months duration. Any request(s) for a temporary RPPD shall 
be in writing from all affected homeowners associations that represent the affected 
residential area or, in cases where there are no homeowners associations representing 
an area, a written request signed by residents of at least ten residences in the proposed 
area or 60% of the affected residents, whichever is less. (34-83-82; 3-85-82; 9-95-82; 
31-00-82; 34-03-82; 38-04-82; 6-06-82; 26-07-82.) 
 

(37)



(f)   A University-Townhouse RPPD may be created by the Board of Supervisors for 
townhouse communities having a pedestrian or vehicular entrance(s) located within 
2,000 feet walking distance from the pedestrian entrances of an existing Virginia college 
or university campus, to allow parking on streets functionally classified as a local street 
by the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT).  The blocks of the local street 
qualifying for inclusion in a University-Townhouse RPPD must be located within 2,000 
feet walking distance from the pedestrian entrance of the Virginia college or university 
campus, must be abutting or adjacent to the townhouse communities included in the 
University-Townhouse RPPD, must not be part of an existing RPPD, and block faces 
must not contain residential addresses.  A University-Townhouse RPPD cannot be 
expanded or modified to include any other type of RPPD containing single-family 
dwelling units.  Any request(s) for a University-Townhouse RPPD shall be in writing from 
all affected homeowners associations that represent the affected residential area or, in 
cases where there are no homeowners associations representing an area, a written 
request signed by 60% of the affected residents. Upon receiving a written request, the 
Fairfax County Department of Transportation and VDOT shall review the proposed 
request prior to processing for approval by the Board of Supervisors. 
 
 
Section 82-5A-4.1. Residence eligibility for District inclusion. 
 

In a new, existing, or temporary Residential Permit Parking District, residences 
are considered eligible for District inclusion if: 

 
(a)   They have addresses on public streets within the District; or 
 
(b)   They have addresses on a street outside the District but their properties abut a 
street within the District; or 
 
(c)   They have addresses on a private road and their residence is within 100 feet of a 
public road within the District and that public road, in the District, provides access to the 
private road. (17-85-82; 1-88-82; 31-00-82; 38-04-82; 6-06-82; 26-07-82.) 
 
 
Section 82-5A-5. Submission requirements. 
 

Every petition, as required by Section 82-5A-4 (a), shall be submitted to the 
Department of Transportation on forms provided by the County and shall include the 
following: 

 
(a)   The legible name, address, and signature of the petitioners, one (1) signature per 
address. 
 
(b)   The hours the restricted parking is requested to be in effect. 
 
(c)   Unless otherwise waived or modified by the Board of Supervisors, the application 
fee for the establishment or expansion of a Residential Permit Parking District shall be 
$10.00 per petitioning address. Application fees shall be returned if the area fails to 
qualify for the establishment or expansion of a Residential Permit Parking District. 
 

(38)



(d)   Written requests for temporary RPPDs, as required by Section 82-5A-4(e), shall be 
submitted to the Board of Supervisors member(s) in whose district the proposed RPPD 
is located.  No petition or application fees are required for the creation or modification of 
temporary RPPDs. (34-83-82; 3-85-82; 31-00-82; 34-03-82; 38-04-82; 6-06-82; 26-07-
82.) 
 
(e)   Written requests for University-Townhouse RPPDs, as required by Section 82-5A-
4(f), shall be submitted to the Board of Supervisors member(s) in whose district the 
proposed RPPD is located.  No application fees are required for the creation of a 
University-Townhouse RPPD. 
 
 
Section 82-5A-6. Procedures for the establishment of Districts. 
 
(a)   Upon receipt of any petition or request for a temporary RPPD, the petition/request 
addresses shall be validated by the Department of Transportation using parcel 
ownership information. If it is determined that the petition/request does not meet the 
standards set forth in Section 82-5A-5 above, the application shall not be deemed to be 
accepted and shall be returned to the applicant. 
 
(b)   Upon validation of the petition/request addresses, staff shall review the application 
and conduct a parking survey if applicable, to determine if the provisions of Section 82-
5A-4 (b) are met. 
 
(c)   All proposed applications, including temporary RPPDs, which are accepted shall be 
the subject of a public hearing before the Board of Supervisors in accordance with the 
provisions below: 
 

(1)   A public notice of the proposed ordinance shall be published in a local 
newspaper having general circulation within the County in accordance with Virginia 
Code § 15.2-1427. 
 
(2)   The County shall, simultaneously with the advertisement specified in 
Paragraph (1) above, post on the land involved in any application a notice of the 
public hearing. Said notice(s) should be removed no later than seven (7) days after 
the conclusion of the last hearing to which they pertain. Said notice shall be posted 
at reasonable intervals in the proposed District. Said notice shall contain the date, 
location and time of the public hearing, a description of the application, and such 
other information as may be necessary to provide adequate identification of the 
application, and additionally, where further information on the application may be 
obtained. With the permission of the owner, said notice may be placed on private 
property if such is necessary to provide adequate posting. 
 
(3)   The County shall send written notice to all residences within the proposed 
District and in the impact area. Such written notices shall set forth the date, time, 
place and subject matter of the hearing. (34-83-82; 3-85-82; 9-95-82; 31-00-82; 38-
04-82; 6-06-82; 26-07-82.) 

 
 
Section 82-5A-7. Adoption and effective date. 

(39)



 
Upon approval by the Board of Supervisors of any Residential Permit Parking 

District, the District shall be deemed to be adopted and shall become effective in 
accordance with the following provisions: 
 
(a)   A permit shall be requested from the Virginia Department of Transportation to allow 
the placement of signs designating the restriction of parking on certain streets within the 
Virginia Secondary System of State Highways. 
 
(b)   Upon receipt of an approved permit, staff shall send notification to each address 
within the approved District. Such notification shall include: 
 

(1)   Notice that approval for the District has been given; 
 
(2)   The date upon which the District will be effective; 
 
(3)   The specific rules and regulations for the approved District, to include the hours 
when parking will be restricted; 
 
(4)   The procedures for obtaining parking permits/passes and the location of the 
County office where the permits may be obtained. (34-83-82; 3-85-82; 31-00-82; 38-
04-82; 6-06-82; 26-07-82.) 

 
 
Section 82-5A-8. Signs. 
 

All signs to designate a Residential Permit Parking District shall be erected by 
the County and shall be in conformance with the applicable Virginia Department of 
Transportation regulations and shall be of such design and character as to readily inform 
the operators of vehicles in Residential Permit Parking Districts of the existence, nature 
and requirements of the regulations pertaining to the particular District. All signs shall 
include at least the following information, from top to bottom of the sign, in the order 
listed below: 

 
(a)   Restriction or prohibition; 
 
(b)   Time of day the restriction or prohibition is applicable, if not at all hours; 
 
(c)   The days of the week applicable, if not every day; 
 
(d)   Indication that permit/pass holders are exempt; 
 
(e)   The number of the Residential Parking District. (34-83-82; 3-85-82; 38-04-82; 6-06-
82; 26-07-82.) 
 
 
Section 82-5A-9. Parking restrictions. 
 

On-street parking during specified hours in any Residential Permit Parking 
District shall be permitted only upon display of a valid parking permit or pass on an 

(40)



RPPD allowable vehicle as defined in Section 82-5A-2; provided, however, that the 
parking limitations of this Article shall not apply to vehicles owned or leased by a public 
agency, or marked service or delivery vehicles which are being used to provide services 
or make deliveries to dwellings within the designated District. 

 
In Residential Permit Parking Districts, the hours during which the regulations of 

this Article shall apply shall be as designated by the Board of Supervisors in adopting 
the District. (34-83-82; 3-85-82; 1-88-82; 31-00-82; 38-04-82; 6-06-82; 26-07-82.) 
 
 
Section 82-5A-10. Administration. 
 

The provision of this Article shall be administered by the Department of 
Transportation with all permits only available to an RPPD allowable vehicle as defined in 
Section 82-5A-2 for an address location within the Residential Permit Parking District. 

 
(a)   Permits/passes to allow parking during restricted hours of a Residential Permit 
Parking District shall be issued only in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph (b) 
below. 
 
(b)   Permits, in the form of decals, will be available from the Department of 
Transportation. Decals shall be issued for a period of up to two years, one per vehicle 
with the expiration date as set forth on the decal.  Decals may be renewed for additional 
two-year periods in the manner prescribed herein. 
 
(c)   Temporary RPPD passes shall be issued to the affected residents in the temporary 
RPPD and shall be valid for a period of two years or until the construction project or 
other situation that caused the establishment of the temporary RPPD has ended, 
whichever occurs first. Passes may be renewed if the construction project or other 
situation that caused the establishment of the temporary RPPD is still in effect. 
 
Permits/passes shall be applied for in person, by mail, or by electronic means in 
accordance with procedures established by the Department of Transportation, and shall 
be accompanied by proof of payment of Fairfax County vehicle license to validate the 
applicant's residency in the District and proof of vehicle ownership or use of a vehicle for 
which the permit is requested. Vehicles that are exempted from the requirement of a 
Fairfax County vehicle license must submit the vehicle registration and two (2) proofs of 
residency that show current residence in the district. Acceptable proofs shall consist of 
the following: 
 

(1)   Virginia driver's license. 
 
(2)   Vehicle or personal property insurance policy. 
 
(3)   Proof of payment of a security deposit or paid rent receipt. 
 
(4)   Lease or mortgage documents. 
 
(5)   Virginia voter registration. 
 

(41)



(6)   Utility bill. 
 
A new resident of a District need show only one of the proofs of residency identified in 
subsection (c) of this Section and any current vehicle registration to be issued one 60-
day nonrenewable new resident pass. Before expiration of same, the new resident shall 
comply with the provisions above in order to obtain a parking permit. 
Any person on active duty in the military service, absent from his state of residence or 
domicile solely by reason of compliance with military orders, may prove vehicle 
ownership by showing a current military identification and a current vehicle registration. 
Applications for renewal of permits/passes shall be processed in the same manner as an 
original permit application, except that an applicant who has a valid Fairfax County 
vehicle license which shows that such applicant continues to be a resident at the same 
address of the Residential Permit Parking District, may renew his or her permit/pass in 
accordance with the renewal procedures established by the Department of 
Transportation. 
 
If a current District resident purchases a vehicle, they will obtain a 60-day non- 
renewable pass to use until the temporary plates are replaced with permanent plates 
when presenting the temporary registration. 
 
(d)   Decals shall be displayed in the lower left corner of the vehicle's rear window in 
such a way as to be clearly visible (see Section 82-5A-2 (d) for proper display 
provisions). Passes shall be displayed in such a way as to be entirely visible through the 
vehicle windshield (see Section 82-5A-2 (f) for proper display provisions). 
 
(e)   Individual district permits/passes shall be identified by a different number. A valid 
permit/pass for one Residential Permit Parking District shall not entitle the permit/pass 
holder to park in any other such District. 
 
(f)   An individual who continues to reside at the same address of the Residential Permit 
Parking District, upon disposing of a vehicle with a permit decal, may obtain a new decal 
for a replacement vehicle upon presentation of a Virginia vehicle registration or Fairfax 
County vehicle license for the replacement vehicle. 
 
(g)   Decals and passes shall be removed from the vehicle upon moving from the 
District. 
 
(h)   Decals and passes shall remain the property of Fairfax County and may be revoked 
without notice and must be surrendered on demand by the County. 
 
(i)   Temporary RPPDs will be terminated by the Department of Transportation when the 
end of the construction project or other situation that caused the establishment of the 
temporary RPPD has ended. The Department of Transportation will notify the residents, 
by mail, of the termination of the temporary RPPD. (34-83-82; 3-85-82; 30-90-82; 30-95-
82; 31-00-82; 38-04-82; 6-06-82; 08-06-82; 26-07-82.) 
 
 
Section 82-5A-11. Visitor parking. 
 

(42)



(a)   A transferable visitor parking pass shall be issued upon request in accordance with 
the provisions designated by the Board of Supervisors in adopting the District. Residents 
who continue to reside at the same address and do not have a valid Fairfax County 
vehicle license may renew their visitor parking pass at the time of pass expiration, 
provided the resident submits proof of residence as prescribed in Section 82-5A-10(b), in 
accordance with the renewal procedures established by the Department of 
Transportation. 
 
(b)   Visitor passes shall not be issued to multifamily or townhouse addresses which 
have off-street parking lots provided. 
 
(c)   One additional visitor pass may be issued for a long-term medical condition that 
requires the frequent services of a health care provider in a residence within a 
Residential Permit Parking District. In order to qualify, the resident must provide a 
statement from a physician stating the need for a long-term health care provider, the 
frequency the health care provider needs to go to the residence, and the duration of the 
need for the health care provider visits.  
 
(d)   A visitor pass may only be used on an RPPD allowable vehicle as defined in 
Section 82-5A-2.  
 (34-83-82; 3-85-82; 17-85-82; 30-95-82; 31-00-82; 38-04-82; 6-06-82; 08-06-82; 26-07-
82.) 
 
 
Section 82-5A-12. Enforcement and penalties. 
 
(a)   It shall be unlawful for any person to park a motor vehicle in violation of the 
provisions of this Article. 
 
(b)   It shall be unlawful for any person to represent that they are entitled to a parking 
permit/pass when they are not so entitled, to fail to destroy a permit/pass to which they 
are no longer entitled, or to park a vehicle displaying such a permit /pass at any time 
when the user of such permit/pass is not entitled to it. 
 
(c)   It shall be unlawful for any person to represent that they are entitled to a pass when 
they are not so entitled or to park a vehicle displaying such a pass at any time when the 
user of such a pass is not entitled to it. 
 
(d)   It shall be unlawful for any person entitled to a visitor pass to allow said pass to be 
used by anyone other than a person visiting a residence in the specified Residential 
Permit Parking District. 
 
(e)   It shall be unlawful to improperly display Residential Permit Parking Decals/Passes 
pursuant to Section 82-5A-2 (d), (e) and (f). Failure to properly display decals/passes 
shall be punishable by a fine of Seventy-Five Dollars ($75.00) for each violation. 
 
 
(f)   Enforcement of Residential Permit Parking District regulations shall be under the 
jurisdiction of the Fairfax County Police Department, who shall issue citations against 
those persons who violate the provisions of this Article or the provisions of Appendix G. 

(43)



 
(g)   Violation of Paragraphs (b), (c) or (d) of this Section shall be subject to a fine of One 
Hundred Dollars ($100.00) for each violation. Violation of any other provisions of this 
Article shall be punishable by a fine of Seventy-Five Dollars ($75.00) for each violation. 
Vehicles parked in violation of these provisions may be towed at the owner's expense. 
 
(h)   The Director, Department of Tax Administration, shall collect and account for all 
uncontested payments of parking citations penalties under this Article; and any contest 
by any person of any parking citation shall be certified by said Director in writing, on an 
appropriate form, to the Fairfax County General District Court. 
 
(i)   The Director, Department of Tax Administration, shall enforce payment of delinquent 
parking citations. 
 
(j)   The Fairfax County Police Department may waive the enforcement of Residential 
Permit Parking District for the purpose of providing parking for special events. Generally, 
this waiver shall be valid for one (1) day only. In addition, the Police Department and the 
Department of Transportation shall maintain temporary vehicle exemption passes as an 
alternative to the enforcement waiver. Temporary vehicle exemption passes are 
intended to enable discretionary authority on behalf of the Police Department and the 
Department of Transportation to allow vehicles to park within restricted areas on a 
temporary basis when justified by unique circumstances. (34-83-82; 3-85-82; 1-88-82; 
31-00-82; 5-03-82; 34-03-82; 6-06-82; 26-07-82.) 
 

(44)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE – 3 
 
 
Extension of Review Periods for 2232 Review Applications (Mason, Springfield and 
Sully Districts) 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Extension of the review periods for specific 2232 Review applications to ensure 
compliance with the review requirements of Section 15.2-2232 of the Code of Virginia. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board extend the review periods for the 
following applications:  application FSA-Y03-32-1 to March 26, 2011; application  
FS-M10-65 to April 2, 2011; and application 2232-S09-26 to April 7, 2011.   
 
 
TIMING: 
Board action is required on January 25, 2011, to extend the review periods of the 
applications noted above before their expirations. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Subsection B of Section 15.2-2232 of the Code of Virginia states:  “Failure of the 
commission to act within sixty days of a submission, unless the time is extended by the 
governing body, shall be deemed approval.”  Subsection F of Section 15.2-2232 of the 
Code of Virginia states:  “Failure of the commission to act on any such application for a 
telecommunications facility under subsection A submitted on or after July 1, 1998, within 
ninety days of such submission shall be deemed approval of the application by the 
commission unless the governing body has authorized an extension of time for 
consideration or the applicant has agreed to an extension of time.  The governing body 
may extend the time required for action by the local commission by no more than sixty 
additional days.”   
 
The Board should extend the review periods for applications FSA-Y03-32-1, 
FS-M10-65 and 2232-S09-26 which were accepted for review by the Department of 
Planning and Zoning between October 27, 2010 and November 8, 2010.  These 
applications are for telecommunications facilities, and thus are subject to the State 
Code provision that the Board may extend the time required for the Planning 
Commission to act on these applications by no more than sixty additional days.  
 
 

(45)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
The review periods for the following applications should be extended: 
 
2232-S09-26  T-Mobile Northeast LLC  
   97-foot monopole/treepole 
   5110 Ox Road 
   Springfield District  
        
 
FS-M10-65  AT&T Mobility 
   Antenna collocation on existing water tower  
   7001 Cindy Lane  
   Mason District    
 
FSA-Y03-32-1 Verizon Wireless  
   Rooftop antennas  
   15000 Conference Center Drive 
   Sully District  
 
 
The need for the full time of these extensions may not be necessary, and is not 
intended to set a date for final action.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
None 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Fred R. Selden, Acting Director, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
Chris B. Caperton, Planning Division, DPZ 
Sandi M. Beaulieu, Planning Division, DPZ 

(46)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE – 4 
 
 
Authorization to Advertise a Public Hearing on the Acquisition of Certain Land Rights 
Necessary for the Construction of Zion Drive Road Improvements (Braddock District) 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board authorization to advertise a public hearing on the acquisition of certain land rights 
necessary for the construction of Project 4YP205 – Zion Drive Road Improvements, Fund 
304, Transportation Improvements. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board authorize advertisement of a public 
hearing.  
 
 
TIMING: 
Board action is requested on January 25, 2011, to provide sufficient time to advertise the 
proposed public hearing on February 22, 2011, at 4:00 p.m. for the acquisition of certain 
land rights necessary to keep this project on schedule. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The County is planning to realign Zion Drive from Windsor Hills Drive to Grovewood Way.  
The project also includes the installation of dedicated walkway, with curb and gutter, along 
both sides of Zion Drive, and storm drainage improvements.  These improvements are 
proposed to enhance safety and improve traffic flow on Zion Drive. 
 
Land rights for these improvements are required on 12 properties.  Dedications for public 
street purposes and storm drainage, sight distance, and grading and temporary construction 
easements are needed to facilitate this construction. 
 
Negotiations are in progress with several owners of these properties; however, because 
resolution of these acquisitions is not imminent, it may become necessary for the Board to 
utilize quick-take eminent domain powers to commence construction of this project on 
schedule.  These powers are conferred upon the Board by statute, namely, Va. Code Ann. 
Sections 15.2-1904 and 15.2-1905 (2008).  Pursuant to these provisions, a public hearing is 
required before property interests can be acquired in such an accelerated manner. 
 

(47)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding is available in Project 4YP205 – Zion Drive Road Improvements, Fund 304, 
Transportation Improvements.  This project is included in the FY 2011-FY 2015 Adopted 
Capital Improvement Program.  No additional funds are required at this time for land 
acquisition. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment A - Project Location Map 
Attachment B - Listing of Affected Properties 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Ronald N. Kirkpatrick, Deputy Director, DPWES, Capital Facilities 

(48)



ATTACHMENT A

-
IQ)

Jib Ln.

28 >'C
29 0

C

I0N••• 140• .."

ZION DRIVE

Project: 4YP205

Braddock District

Scope: This project consists of the re-alignment of Zion Drive (Route 654) from Windsor
Hills Drive (Route 7754) to Grovewood Way (Route 7750).

. Tax Map: 68-4 and 77-2 Scale: Not to Scale

Affected Properties:

Proposed Improvements: 11111111111

N

(49)



ATTACHMENT B 
 

LISTING OF AFFECTED PROPERTIES 
Project 4YP205 – Zion Drive Road Improvements 

 (Braddock District) 
 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) TAX MAP NUMBER 
 

1. Greater Little Zion Baptist Church 068-4-01-0042  
  
Address:   

 10185 Zion Drive, Fairfax, VA 22032 
 

2. Mason L. Jackson  068-4-01-0043 
 
Address:   
10201 Zion Drive, Fairfax, VA 22032 

 
3. Greater Little Zion Baptist Church  068-4-01-0044 
  
 Address:   
 10215 Zion Drive, Fairfax, VA 22032 

 
4. Sideburn Civic Association  068-4-01-0046 
  
 Address:   
 10255 Zion Drive, Fairfax, VA 22032 
 

5. Sideburn Civic Association, Inc.  068-4-01-0047 
  

 Address:   
 10229 Zion Drive, Fairfax, VA 22032 
 

6. Amer Al-Mudallal and Suhair Shallal Al-Mudallal 068-4-01-0054 
 
  Address:   
   10216 Zion Drive, Fairfax, VA 22032 
 

7. Octavio Crespo and Carmen Rosa Crespo  068-4-14-0027 
    (interest already acquired) 
  Address:   
   5333 Windsor Hills Drive, Fairfax, VA 22032 
 

8. Jerry H. Tsen and Ruth W. Tsen  068-4-14-0028  
    (interest already acquired) 
  Address:  
  5329 Windsor Hills Drive, Fairfax, VA 22032 

(50)



9. Yuhe Liu and Xing Pin Luo 068-4-14-0029 
  (interest already acquired) 
 Address:  
 5327 Windsor Hills Drive, Fairfax, VA 22032 
 

10. Steven D. Presing and Margaret A. Piper-Presing 068-4-21-0001 
 
 Address:  
  5299 Windsor Hills Drive, Fairfax, VA 22032  
 

11. Glen Cove Homeowners Association 077-2-03-0000-F 
  
 Address:  
 Situated on the east side of Zion Drive at Jib Lane 
  

12. William B. Allison and Judith E. Allison 077-2-21-0033 
  
 Address:  
 10200 Grovewood Way, Fairfax, VA 22032 
   

 
 

(51)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(52)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE - 5 
 
 
Supplemental Appropriation Resolution AS 11106 for the Fairfax County Economic 
Development Authority to Accept Grant Funding from the Commonwealth of Virginia – 
Governor’s Opportunity Fund for Northrop Grumman Corporation 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board approval of Supplemental Appropriation Resolution AS 11106 for the Fairfax County 
Economic Development Authority (FCEDA) to accept grant funding in the amount of 
$3,000,000 from the Commonwealth of Virginia as part of the Governor’s Opportunity Fund 
for Northrop Grumman Corporation.  This grant will assist the County with the headquarters 
relocation of Northrop Grumman Corporation.  No Local Cash Match is required.  However, 
Fairfax County must provide transportation improvements in Merrifield in the Providence 
District.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board approve Supplemental Appropriation 
Resolution AS 11106 for the FCEDA to accept grant funding in the amount of $3,000,000 to 
convey to Northrop Grumman Corporation as the state portion of this grant.  No Local Cash 
Match will be required.  Fairfax County must provide transportation improvements in 
Merrifield in the Providence District.   
 
 
TIMING: 
Board approval is requested on January 25, 2011. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Fairfax County competed with other jurisdictions for the relocation of the Northrop Grumman 
headquarters.  As part of the negotiations, the Commonwealth of Virginia supported the 
relocation of the corporation to Fairfax County, Virginia with a Governor’s Opportunity Fund 
grant.  The grant is a performance grant and a performance agreement has been executed 
to ensure, on behalf of Fairfax County and the Commonwealth of Virginia, that the projected 
growth occurs.  As part of the Governor’s Opportunity Fund grant, Fairfax County must 
provide transportation improvements relevant to the firm’s location.  Road improvements in 
Merrifield were identified to provide the match. 
 
In addition, as stated in the Performance Agreement, the Commonwealth will provide the 
following incentives.  Please note these do not pass through the County nor require a 
County match. 
 

(53)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 

 Estimated funding of $250,000 from Virginia Jobs Investment Program;  
 Estimated funding of $10,000,000 from the Virginia Economic Development Incentive 

Grant; and  
 Estimated funding of $250,000 from the Major Business Facilities Job Tax Credit.   

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:     
Funding in the amount of $3,000,000 has been provided to Fairfax County to be made 
available to Northrop Grumman Corporation for the costs of the tenant build out of the new 
headquarters facility in Merrifield, VA, as permitted by Section 2.2-115( C ) of the Virginia 
Code and as permitted by the current Governor’s Opportunity Fund statute. There is no 
Local Cash Match required.  However, Fairfax County must provide transportation 
improvements relevant to the firm’s location.  This action does not increase the expenditure 
level of Fund 102, Federal/State Grant Fund, as funds are held in reserve for unanticipated 
grant awards in FY 2011. 
 
If Northrop Grumman Corporation does not achieve its performance metrics as described in 
the Performance Agreement executed between Fairfax County and Northrop Grumman 
Corporation, then Northrop Grumman is responsible for paying that portion of the grant it did 
not achieve back to Fairfax County.  Fairfax County, in turn, will then refund to the 
Commonwealth of Virginia the funds received from Northrop Grumman Corporation.  Fairfax 
County will not be held responsible for financial shortfalls associated with performance 
metrics not met.  The FCEDA will monitor the performance metrics and will provide to the 
Office of the County Executive information annually on the number of jobs and capital 
investment achieved during that time. 
 
 
CREATION OF NEW POSITIONS: 
No positions will be created by this grant.  
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1:  Supplemental Appropriation Resolution AS 11106 
Attachment 2:  Northrop Grumman Corporation GOF Performance Agreement (w/o 
attachments) 
Attachment 3:  Notification of award from the Commonwealth of Virginia 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
David J. Molchany, Deputy County Executive 
Gerald L. Gordon, President, FCEDA 
Catherine Riley, Vice President, FCEDA 

(54)



  Attachment 1 

SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION AS 11106 
 

 
At a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, held in the 
Board Auditorium in the Government Center at 12000 Government Center Parkway, 
Fairfax Virginia on January 25, 2011 at which a quorum was present and voting, the 
following resolution was adopted: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, that in 
addition to appropriations made previously for FY 2011, the following supplemental 
appropriation is authorized and the Fiscal Planning Resolution is amended accordingly: 
 

Appropriate to: 
 

Agency: 16, Economic Development Authority $3,000,000 
Fund:  102, Federal/State Grant Fund 

 
Grant: 16004G, Governor’s Opportunity Fund Grant 

 
Reduce Appropriation to: 

 
Agency: 87, Unclassified Administrative Expenses $3,000,000 
Fund:  102, Federal/State Grant Fund 

 
Grant: 87107G, Unclassified Administrative Expenses 

 
 
Source of Funds: Commonwealth of Virginia,  $3,000,000 
  Governor’s Opportunity Fund 
    
    
 
 
 
 
A Copy - Teste: 
 
 
 
________________________________                                                   
Nancy Vehrs 
Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 

(55)



(56)

rstew5
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



(57)



(58)



(59)



(60)



(61)



(62)



(63)



(64)



(65)



(66)



0 7 A T E POD 5 U 5 1 H 8 5 S 

r-1 T i T I J P.Q-Bd793 . 901 EastByni 5! 
r iJL S i i- l-l-. J LN t'^^ RKSrnck, VtrgintB 2321B-0798 

1 Attachment 3 
VIBBMlk ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP 
P.O. Box 793 . 901 East Syni Slrsst 

January 4,2011. 

Mr. Anthony H. (jkiffin 
County Executive 
Fairfax County j 
12000 Governmejnt Center Parkway, Suite 552 
Fatefex, Virghriaj 22035 

Dear Mr. Griffin: 

local economic developers, m cooperation with the 
IJ e iLt ia l in bringing quality businesses to the Commonwealth. 

, J A+u*wnm 000 check from tiae Governor's OpportmutyFundto beusedfor 

to working with yon again in the n,ear future^ bung business to faaiax 
Tliar^ you agaif and keep np the good work. ; 

Sincerely, : / 

^ t f 0 ^ 
Jefrxey M, Andbrson 
Presideni and Qhief Executive Of5per 

(67)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(68)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE – 6 
 
 
Streets into the Secondary System (Hunter Mill District) 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board approval of streets to be accepted into the State Secondary System. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the street(s) listed below be added to the State 
Secondary System. 
 
 

Subdivision District Street 

Arrowbrook Centre 
Parcel 5 (SWM) 

Hunter Mill Centreville Road (Route 657) 
(Additional Right-of-Way (ROW) Only) 
 
Sunrise Valley Drive (Route 5320) 
(Additional ROW Only) 

 
 
TIMING: 
Routine. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Inspection has been made of these streets, and they are recommended for acceptance 
into the State Secondary System. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 – Street Acceptance Forms 
 
 
 

(69)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Michelle Brickner, Deputy Director, DPWES, Land Development Services 

(70)



Print Form 

Street Acceptance Form For Board Of Supervisors Resolution - June 2005 
FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - OFFICE 
OF THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA 
REQUEST TO THE ENGINEERING MANAGER, FOR INCLUSION OF CERTAIN 
SUBDIVISION STREETS INTO THE STATE OF VIRGINIA SECONDARY ROAD 
SYSTEM. 

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

PLAN NUMBER: 1504-SP-OI 

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. 

SUBDIVISION PLAT NAME: ArrowbrookCentre LLC Parcel 5 (SWM Site Plan) 

FAIRFAX COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
FAIRFAX, VA 

Pursuant to the request to inspect certain 
streets in the subdivisions as described, the 
Virginia Department of Transportation has 
made inspections, and recommends that same 
be included in the secondary system. COUNTY MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT: Hunter Mill 

ENGINEERING MANAGER: DJV. Purvis 

BY: A/aJte A^t/l/i**? 

FC 

DATE OF VDOT INSPECTI 

>R OFFICIAL USE ONLY 

ON APPROVAL:
 X _ Z - "I o6 I?"2̂ >V 0 

FC 

DATE OF VDOT INSPECTI 

STREET NAME 
LOCATION 

L
E

N
G

T
H

 

M
IL

E
 STREET NAME 

FROM TO L
E

N
G

T
H

 

M
IL

E
 

Centreville Road Route 657 (Additional ROW Only) 45' SW CL Sunrise Valley Drive (Route 5320) 416'SW to Section Line 0.0 

Sunrise Valley Drive Route 5320 (Additional ROW Only) 92' NW CL Centreville Road (Route 657) 272" NW to Section Line 0.0 

;NOTES:i&SaiK TOTALS: 0 

272' of Asphalt trail on North side of Centreville Road to be maintained by Fairfax County. 

(71)

rstew5
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(72)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
ACTION – 1 
 
 
Adoption of the Lower Occoquan Watershed Management Plan (Springfield and Mount 
Vernon Districts) and the Adoption of the Nichol Run/Pond Branch Watershed 
Management Plan (Dranesville District) 
 
 
ISSUE: 

 The adoption of the Lower Occoquan Watershed Management Plan. 
 The adoption of the Nichol Run/Pond Branch Watershed Management Plan. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt the Lower 
Occoquan Watershed Management Plan and the Nichol Run/Pond Branch Watershed 
Management Plan. 
 
 
TIMING: 
Routine.  Board Action is requested on January 25, 2011. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board of Supervisor’s environmental agenda, Environmental Excellence for Fairfax 
County—A 20-Year Vision, adopted in 2004, identifies the preparation of watershed 
management plans as a statement of commitment to the stormwater management 
program.  The watershed management planning process has been supported by the 
Board of Supervisors since its inception in 2003.   
 
The environmental plan provides insight and a vision for the implementation of the 
watershed management plans.  The Lower Occoquan Watershed Management Plan 
and the Nichol Run/Pond Branch Watershed Management Plan are helping to fulfill the 
vision identified by the Board.  
 
Since the late 1970s, the County has utilized watershed management plans to manage 
the planning, design, and implementation of stormwater control projects.  The initial 
planning effort projected stormwater program needs until the year 2000. 
 
Only 20 percent of the County’s streams are in good to excellent biological health 
condition based on the stream monitoring conducted between 1999 and 2009.  One of 
the primary objectives of the watershed planning initiative is to improve these 

(73)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
conditions.  In addition, the watershed plans address Fairfax County’s commitment to 
the Chesapeake Bay Program and the Cool Counties goals.   
 
Starting with the Little Hunting Creek Watershed Management Plan, the County 
embarked on a watershed planning initiative that assessed watershed needs and 
proposed improvements for the next 25 years.  The watershed planning process 
consists of 13 total plans.  The County has completed and adopted six watershed plans 
between 2004 and 2008 as part of the first round of plans to be developed.  The Lower 
Occoquan Watershed Management Plan and the Nichol Run/Pond Branch Watershed 
Management Plan are two of the remaining seven watershed plans to be completed as 
part of the second round of plans being developed.  The County’s watershed planning 
initiative is a substantial step forward in starting the process of restoring and preserving 
the County’s watersheds.   
 
The County is developing watershed management plans to help achieve the following 
aims: 
 

1. Regulatory Compliance 
These include County ordinances and policies, Virginia’s Chesapeake Bay 
Initiatives and the federal Clean Water Act.  The County has an individual 
Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permit under the Virginia 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (VPDES).  This permit requires 
the creation of watershed management plans to facilitate compliance with 
the Clean Water Act.  In addition, by developing these plans, the County is 
doing its part to fulfill Virginia’s commitment to the Chesapeake Bay 2000 
Agreement to restore the ecological health of the Chesapeake Bay 
Watershed. 

 
2. Good Stewardship of the County’s Streams 

 Fairfax County is developing watershed plans to restore and protect the 
County’s streams by identifying and addressing the specific cause of 
degradation.  Applying a top-down approach (starting at the headwaters 
and working downstream) will both restore the stream quality by reducing 
the negative effects of excess stormwater at its source and ensure a 
sustainable stream environment.  Watershed planning will also provide the 
framework to encourage and sustain community involvement in watershed 
issues 

 
3. Update to Watershed Management Plans 

The original environmental baseline and subsequent master plan for flood 
control and drainage for Lower Occoquan and Nichol Run/Pond Branch 
were completed in 1976 and 1978, respectively.  These plans 

(74)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 

recommended immediate and future projects to address many watershed 
issues through the year 2000.  By updating the plans using newer 
monitoring data, advanced modeling techniques and promoting innovative 
technology, the County will have a better understanding of the issues for 
stormwater improvement projects for the next 25 years.   
 

4. Chesapeake Bay Restoration 
 Virginia has signed agreements with other states and federal agencies to 

work toward restoring the Chesapeake Bay.  The Chesapeake 2000 
Agreement includes the goal of developing watershed plans for two-thirds 
of the Bay's watersheds by 2010.  The County has done its part to meet 
this goal by developing 13 watershed management plans, which 
encompass all 30 watersheds for the entire jurisdiction.  

 
 However, the intent of the original Chesapeake Bay 2000 agreement has 

been superseded by the May 12, 2009 Presidential Executive Order 
(#13508) and the EPA’s effort to develop a Total Maximum Daily Load 
(TMDL) or pollution diet for the Chesapeake Bay and its major tributaries 
by the end of 2010.  The TMDL will provide a regulatory framework and 
mandate for achieving specific reductions in pollutant loads for nitrogen, 
phosphorus and sediment.  The targeted load reductions are not expected 
to be available for localities until the state’s Phase II Watershed 
Implementation Plans (WIPs) are developed in the fall of 2011.    

 
Although the County’s watershed management plans will establish a 
series of projects and recommendations to achieve pollutant reductions, 
the plans were initiated between 2003 and 2007, well before development 
of the Bay TMDL started and thus is not using the TMDL reduction goals 
as endpoints.  Currently, it appears that the preliminary reduction goals 
that are being developed as part of the TMDL will be greater than the 
reductions realized from these watershed plans if all projects in the plans 
were implemented.  However, the plans provide a strong foundation and 
systematic approach for identifying and addressing sources of pollution in 
the County’s watersheds.  This will enable the County to achieve some 
degree of reductions of these TMDL pollutants in an effective and efficient 
manner. 
 
 

Public Involvement 
 
A consistent approach for public involvement was a key component of the planning 
process in support of the final watershed management plans.  Each of these plans was 

(75)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
individually supported by two levels of public involvement.  The first level consisted of 
two meetings open to the public: the Introductory and Issues Scoping Forum, where 
residents were invited to learn about watershed issues and helped to identify areas of 
concern to their community, and the Draft Plan Forum, where Fairfax County staff 
presented the draft plan to the public followed by a 30-day comment period.  The 
second level of public involvement was provided by a separate Watershed Advisory 
Group (WAG) for each plan, which met five times over the course of the development 
process.  The WAG was made up of local stakeholders who advised the planning team 
about community outreach opportunities, key issues affecting the watersheds and 
feedback on potential projects.  Additionally, internal review of the draft plan was 
conducted by various County agencies. 
 
 
Watershed Restoration Strategies 
 
The Lower Occoquan Watershed Management Plan and the Nichol Run/Pond Branch 
Watershed Management Plan offer a range of project options to reduce non-point 
source pollution and sediment in the streams, improve stream habitat and reduce 
stormwater runoff peak flows in the primary tributaries.  These types of projects include: 
 

 New/Retrofit Stormwater Management Ponds 
 Stream Restoration Projects 
 Area-Wide Drainage Improvements 
 Culvert Retrofits 
 New/Retrofit BMP/LID 
 Flood Protection/Mitigation 
 Outfall Improvements 
 Non-Structural Projects/Programs 

o Buffer restoration 
o Education and Outreach 
o Rain Barrels 
o Street sweeping 
o Dump site cleanups 

 
 
Lower Occoquan Watershed Management Plan and Nichol Run/Pond Branch 
Watershed Management Plan 
 
The Lower Occoquan Watershed Management Plan was prepared by the engineering 
firm PBS&J.  The plan provides for 83 structural and 19 non-structural stormwater 
management and improvement projects within the watershed group. The Nichol 
Run/Pond Branch Watershed Management Plan was prepared by the engineering firm 

(76)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
F.X. Browne, Inc.  This plan provides for 70 structural and 10 non-structural stormwater 
management and improvement projects within the watershed group. 
 
Hydrologic, hydraulic and water quality models were created in order to quantify the 
benefits of the proposed projects in these plans.  Based on these models, the complete 
implementation of the proposed structural projects would provide the following benefits 
to these watersheds: 
 

1) Annual reductions in pollutant loads resulting in improved stream water 
quality: [total suspended sediments (TSS), total nitrogen (TN) and total 
phosphorus (TP)]  

 

 
 
2) Reductions in peak stormwater discharges, resulting in reductions in house, 

road, and yard flooding and reductions in stream velocities and bank erosion 
 
In addition to these benefits, implementation of these plans would also achieve many 
secondary, unquantified benefits such as significant habitat improvement, reduction of 
other types of pollutants not mentioned above, reduced maintenance of certain types of 
stormwater facilities, implementation of several non-structural programs as mentioned 
above, and educational opportunities for the residents of Fairfax County. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
No direct fiscal impact will result from approval of the Lower Occoquan Watershed 
Management Plan and the Nichol Run/Pond Branch Watershed Management Plan.  
Projects and other recommendations of the plan will be initiated and funded through the 
annual budget process.  The total cost of complete implementation of the Lower 
Occoquan Plan over 25 years is estimated at $62 million.  The total cost of complete 
implementation of the Nichol Run/Pond Branch Watershed Management Plan  over 25 
years is estimated at $13 million.  It is anticipated that projects will be primarily funded 
from Fund 125, Stormwater Services, as well as from Fund 316, Pro Rata Share 
Drainage Construction. 
 
 

TSS TN TP 
(ton/yr) (lb/yr) (lb/yr)

Nichol Run/Pond Branch 192 (32%) 1,714 (8%) 433 (12%)

Lower Occoquan 1,050 (15.1%) 1,670 (2.0%) 630 (4.2%)44.2

16.6

Reduction (25-Year Plan)Land Area 

(mi2)
 Watershed Plan

(77)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1:  Copy of the Lower Occoquan Watershed Management Plan Executive 
Summary (the complete plan is available in the Clerk’s office and online at 
http://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/dpwes/watersheds) 
 
Attachment 2: Copy of the Nichol Run/Pond Branch Watershed Management Plan 
Executive Summary (the complete plan is available in the Clerk’s office and online at 
http://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/dpwes/watersheds) 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
James Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Randolph W. Bartlett, Deputy Director, DPWES 

(78)



Executive Summary  
Attachment 1 

i 
 

Executive	Summary	
The Lower Occoquan Watershed Management Plan illustrates an approach for improving the 
water resources, natural habitat and overall health of the watershed. The plan was initiated by 
Fairfax County with participation from local residents and is part of the comprehensive, 
countywide watershed planning effort. The previous watershed plans were developed in the 
mid‐1970s and intended to span a 25‐year period. Since then the practice of 
stormwater/watershed management has rapidly evolved to include newer technologies and 
innovative techniques. Also within this time period, there have been many regulatory changes 
governing water quality at the local, state and federal levels. This plan is intended as a 
management tool to be used over the next 25 years and fulfills Fairfax County‘s commitment to 
the multijurisdictional effort of improving water quality in the Chesapeake Bay. 
 
The Lower Occoquan Watershed Management Plan was developed to meet the following 
countywide watershed planning goals established by the County through intensive stakeholder 
and resident input: 

1. Improve and maintain watershed functions in Fairfax County, including water quality, 
habitat and hydrology. 

2. Protect human health, safety and property by reducing stormwater impacts. 
3. Involve stakeholders in the protection, maintenance and restoration of County 

watersheds. 
 

Background 

The Lower Occoquan watershed is a collection of several small watersheds within Fairfax 
County that drain into the Bull Run/Occoquan River System. The largest streams in the area are 
Wolf Run, Sandy Run and Giles Run. There are numerous smaller tributaries that drain directly 
into the river. Fountainhead Regional Park, Mason Neck State Park and the Mason Neck 
National Wildlife Refuge are all located in the Lower Occoquan watershed. The watershed also 
includes the Laurel Hill redevelopment area (formerly the District of Columbia Department of 
Corrections facility). 
 
All but the southern portion of the watershed is located within the Water Supply Protection 
Overlay District (WSPOD), established to protect the Occoquan Reservoir. Additionally, most of 
the northern portion is located within a Residential‐Conservation (R‐C) District, which limits 
development to large‐lot residential areas, in order to protect streams and water quality.  
Therefore, the dominant land uses in the watershed are estate residential and open space.  
Minimal new development is expected, although redevelopment of existing areas will occur in 
the watershed. The Lower Occoquan Watershed Management Plan is a tool to be used to 
maintain the water quality in the watershed and target areas for improvement. 
 

   

(79)



Executive Summary  
Attachment 1 

ii 
 

Watershed Management Areas 

Lower Occoquan watershed is divided into 10 smaller watershed management areas (WMAs).  
A WMA is a small area, approximately 4 square miles, which drains to a specific stream or 
tributary. Each WMA is then divided into smaller subwatersheds, typically 100 to 300 acres. The 
purpose of these areas is to identify specific projects or opportunities to enhance the overall 
stream conditions, as well as to serve as the basic units for watershed modeling and other 
evaluations. Lower Occoquan‘s 10 watershed management areas listed in geographical order 
from northwest to southeast are Old Mill Branch, Wolf Run, Ryans Dam, Sandy Run, Occoquan, 
Giles Run North, Mill Branch, Giles Run South, Kane Creek, and High Point. 
 

Watershed Planning Process 

In general, the watershed management planning process consists of the following steps: 
 

1. Review and synthesize previous studies and compile data. 
2. Involve public to gain input, provide education and build community support. 
3. Evaluate current watershed conditions and project stormwater runoff from present and 

ultimate development conditions. 
4. Develop candidate non‐structural and structural watershed improvement projects. 
5. Develop preliminary cost estimates, cost‐benefit analysis and prioritization of capital 

projects. 
6. Gain adoption of the final watershed management plan by the Board of Supervisors. 

 
Several indicators were identified to detect changes in the watershed. The main categories of 
indicators are watershed impact indicators, watershed source indicators and programmatic 
indicators. These indicators were first used to assess the existing conditions and the future 
conditions without plan implementation in the watershed. Next they were used to identify 
management needs and problem areas during subwatershed ranking. Finally, the indicators 
were used to prioritize projects, along with cost and feasibility. 
 
The subwatersheds were ranked by the following procedure: 
 

1. Using the watershed impact overall composite scores to identify subwatersheds that 
were potential problem areas under existing and future conditions. 

2. Applying individual source indicator scores to identify potential sources of impacts in 
downstream problem areas. 

3. Using the programmatic indicator data inventory to identify subwatersheds where 
management is most needed. 

4. Consulting available field data throughout the previous steps to confirm the results. 
 

   

(80)



Executive Summary  
Attachment 1 

iii 
 

Summary of Existing Watershed Conditions 

As a result of minimal development, large parks and open space, the overall stream habitat 
condition of the watershed is considered good to excellent. The Lower Occoquan watershed 
contains some of the highest stream quality in Fairfax County. The 2001 Fairfax County Stream 
Protection Strategy Baseline Study (SPS) gave ra ngs of ―excellent‖ to ―fair‖ for various 
streams in the watershed. The follow‐up to this study, the 2005 Fairfax County Stream Physical 
Assessment (2005 SPA) also showed that the streams in the Lower Occoquan were generally 
above average for Fairfax County. 
 
As one of many measures used to protect stream water quality, the County adopted the 
Chesapeake Bay Preservation Ordinance, which limits development on land that lies within a 
Resource Protection Area (RPA). RPAs are buffers adjacent to or near the shorelines of streams, 
rivers and other waterways that protect sensitive areas from the excessive influx of pollutants. 
The sensitive areas include tidal and non‐tidal wetlands, tidal shorelines, floodplains and 
perennial streams (waters flowing year‐round). More than 50 percent of the streams within the 
Lower Occoquan watershed lie within an RPA. 
To meet the standards of the Clean Water Act, the County and Virginia Department of 
Environmental Quality regularly monitor water quality at various locations throughout the 
watershed. Lower Occoquan had relatively few locations considered ―impaired,‖ but these 
include portions of Wolf Run, Mill Branch, Belmont Bay, Occoquan River and Occoquan Bay. A 
complete summary of watershed conditions may be found in Appendix A 
 

Project Selection 

Several types of both structural and non‐structural projects were selected for this watershed 
restoration plan. The structural projects include stream restorations, pipe daylighting, 
stormwater pond retrofits, outfall improvements, swale restorations and bioretention areas. 
The non‐structural projects include rain barrels, cisterns, street sweeping, reforestations and 
buffer restorations. 
 
Projects were proposed throughout the watershed that would help meet the County‘s goals 
and objectives. Projects to improve watershed functions were proposed in subwatersheds with 
the worst indicator scores. Additional projects were proposed throughout the watershed that 
would increase stewardship and maintain important watershed functions. Projects were 
selected by comparing the lowest scoring impact indicators to the types of proposed projects to 
ensure projects would provide the most benefit within each subwatershed. The proposed 
projects were then presented at the watershed advisory group (WAG) meetings for community 
input. This input was taken into consideration while finalizing project selection and during the 
score adjustment procedure. 
 
Following preliminary project selection, field investigations were performed for the candidate 
project sites. The purpose of the field investigations was to document site conditions, check for 

(81)



Executive Summary  
Attachment 1 

iv 
 

feasibility and take photos. The information was then compiled in a database. The information 
was used for the prioritization and to support ranking modifications. 
 
Cost estimates were generated for all project types except street sweeping, rain barrels and 
cisterns, because their costs can be widely variable. Smaller projects were grouped together 
into ―suites,‖ based on cost and loca on, to allow their costs and benefits to be compared 
more evenly to other projects. 
 

Project Prioritization 

The Lower Occoquan Watershed Management Plan implementation is divided into two priority 
phases. The first phase has a 0 – 10‐year timeframe and includes the top‐ranked 21 structural 
projects. The second phase has an 11 – 25‐year timeframe and includes all other viable 
structural projects, a total of 62 projects. The structural projects were prioritized based on five 
factors: impact indicators, source indicators, priority subwatersheds, sequencing and 
implementability. These factors were used to create prioritization scores for each project so 
that they could then be ranked. Once the projects were quantitatively ranked, they were 
qualitatively reviewed. The qualitative review involved going through every project and 
considering factors that aren‘t quantitatively considered, such as comments provided by the 
WAG group, field observations and the ability for the project to meet the County‘s goals. A best 
professional judgment adjustment was added to the initial score to determine the final score. 
 
Due to the higher quality conditions of this watershed group, there were considerably fewer 
projects in the ―priority‖, or 10‐year, group than compared to other watershed plans in the 
County. Another reason that the Lower Occoquan Watershed Plan had fewer projects was that 
part of the watershed, the Laurel Hill property, is being redeveloped. The stormwater 
management plan developed for this property is separate from the Lower Occoquan WMP. 
 
A simplified cost‐benefit analysis was performed on the structural projects in the 0 – 10‐year 
implementation plan based on a project‘s overall cost compared to its prioritization score (i.e., 
benefits). A best professional judgment adjustment based on the cost‐benefit analysis was used 
to amend the rankings where necessary, which determined the final overall ranking structural 
projects. 
 
The 19 non‐structural projects were ranked separately since they will be implemented 
concurrently with the capital improvement of the structural projects. The non‐structural 
projects were ranked using a different more qualitative method than the structural project 
ranking scheme. A detailed description of the project selection and prioritization process can be 
found in Appendix B. 
 

Project Fact Sheets 

Project fact sheet were created for all structural projects that fall into the 10‐year plan. These 
fact sheets include: basic information about location, existing conditions and proposed 

(82)



Executive Summary  
Attachment 1 

v 
 

improvements. The project fact sheets also discuss the benefits and have itemized, planning‐
level cost estimates. They are illustrated with location maps. Projects that were grouped 
together, or put into a “suite”, were combined on one fact sheet. 
 

Public Involvement 

A WAG was formed to help provide feedback from residents of the watershed. The group was 
assembled from a variety of organizations, including members of homeowners associations, 
George Mason University, and other public and private organizations. This group acted as proxy 
for their respective organizations and helped to disseminate information from the process. The 
group met with County staff and their consultants five times throughout the different stages of 
the process to provide feedback, which was an essential part of the planning and prioritization 
process. 
 
Table ES‐1‐1 provides a list of all projects proposed within Lower Occoquan watershed. This 
includes the 0 – 10‐ (10‐year) and 11 – 25‐year (25‐year) structural project groups as well as the 
non‐structural projects. 
 

Plan Costs and Benefits 

The total cost of the 0‐10‐year plan (includes 21 structural projects only) is $12 million. The 
benefits to the county are wide‐ranging. The yearly total suspended sediment load will be 
reduced by 260 tons if the 0‐10‐year plan is implemented. Nitrogen will be reduced by an 
additional 420 pounds and phosphorus will be reduced by 170 pounds annually. This represents 
a 4% reduction in sediment loads, and 1% reductions in nitrogen and phosphorus. If the 
additional 62 structural projects in the 11‐25 year plan are implemented (at a cost of $50 
million), the annual suspended sediment load will be reduced by an additional 790 tons.  
Nitrogen will be reduced by an additional 1250 pounds yearly and phosphorus by an additional 
460 pounds yearly. If the entire 0‐25 year plan (83 structural projects) is implemented, at a cost 
of $62 million, the suspended sediment load will be reduced by 1050 tons annually, and 
nitrogen and phosphorus will be reduced by 1670 and 630 pounds annually, respectively. This 
represents a 15.1% reduction in sediment, a 2.0% reduction in nitrogen, and a 4.2% reduction in 
phosphorus. Additionally, the 19 non‐structural projects will have water quality benefits as well, 
although the costs and benefits of these projects are less easily quantified. These benefits will 
help attain the goals set by the County to improve water quality in the Lower Occoquan 
watershed. 
 
The following provisions address the funding and implementation of projects and programs in 
Fairfax County watershed plans. These provisions as recommended by the Board were 
developed for the Popes Head Creek Watershed Management Plan in February 2006 and have 
been applied to the Lower Occoquan Watershed Management Plan: 
 

i. Projects and programs (both structural and non‐structural) will first undergo 
appropriate review by County staff and the Board (please see iii below) prior to 

(83)



Executive Summary  
Attachment 1 

vi 
 

implementation.  Board adoption of the Watershed Management Plan will not set 
into motion automatic implementation of projects, programs or initiatives that have 
not first been subject to sufficient scrutiny to ensure that the projects that are 
funded give the County the greatest environmental benefit for the cost.  

ii. Road projects not related to protection of streambeds or banks or water quality will 
not be funded out of the stormwater and watershed budget.  

iii. The Watershed Management Plan provides a conceptual master‐list of structural 
capital projects and a list of potential non‐structural projects for the watershed. 
Staff will, on a fiscal year basis, prepare and submit to the Board a detailed work 
plan to include a description of proposed projects and an explanation of their 
ranking, based on specific criteria. Criteria used to assemble this list will include, but 
are not limited to, cost effectiveness as compared to alternative projects, a clear 
public benefit, a need to protect public or private lands from erosion or flooding, a 
need to meet a specific watershed or water quality goal, and ability to be 
implemented within the same fiscal year that funding is provided. Staff also intends 
to track the progress of implementation and report back to the Board periodically.   

iv. Each project on the annual list of structural projects will be evaluated using basic 
value engineering cost effectiveness principles before implementation and the 
consideration of alternative structural and non‐structural means for accomplishing 
the purposes of the project will be considered before implementation. This process 
will ensure the County‘s commitment to being a fiscally responsible public entity.   

v. Obstruction removal projects on private lands will be evaluated on a case‐by‐case 
basis for referral to the Zoning Administrator and/or County Attorney for action as 
public nuisances; and otherwise to determine appropriate cost‐sharing by any 
parties responsible for the obstructions. 

 
Stream restoration projects on private lands will be evaluated to determine means for cost 
sharing by land owners directly responsible for degradation due to their land uses 
   

(84)



Executive Summary  
Attachment 1 

vii 
 

Table ES‐1‐1:  Project List ‐ Executive Summary 

Priority Structural Projects (10‐Year Implementation Plan)1 

Project #  Project Type  WMA  Location  Cost 

KC9209  Stream 
Restoration 

Kane Creek  Behind 10809 Harley Rd.  $       840,000   

MB9104  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run South 

10418 Old Colchester Rd. 
(Mason Neck West Park) 

$       240,000   

MB9105  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run South 

Across from 10555 Furnace Rd.  $       280,000   

MB9107  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run South 

10119 Giles Run Rd.  $       130,000   

MB9109  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run South 

8115 Mims St.  $       290,000   

MB9111  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run South 

9816 Richmond Hwy.  $       180,000   

MB9114  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run South 

9850 Furnace Rd. (I‐95 Landfill)  $       160,000   

MB9122  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

Behind 8605 Cross Chase Court  $       190,000   

MB9202  Stream 
Restoration 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run South 

10207 Old Colchester Rd.  $       720,000   

MB9506  BMP/LID  Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run South 

9850 Furnace Rd, Lorton (I‐95 
Landfill) 

$       110,000   

MB9510  BMP/LID  Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

9350 Crosspointe Dr. 
(Silverbrook Elementary School) 

$       220,000   

SA9201  Stream 
Restoration 

Sandy Run  Next to 8721 Birch Cliff Dr.  $       780,000   

SA9209  Stream 
Restoration 

Sandy Run  Near 10746 Beechnut Ct.  $       600,000   

SA9211  Stream 
Restoration 

Sandy Run  Behind 6901 Streamwood Pl.  $       360,000   

SA9213  Stream 
Restoration 

Sandy Run  6650 Rutledge Dr.  $       560,000   

SA9701  Outfall 
Improvement 

Sandy Run  Near 11223 Silverleaf Dr.  $       150,000   

WR9201  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  Behind 12101 Henderson Rd.  $    1,120,000   

WR9208  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  Near 12025 Seven Hills La.  $    1,050,000   

WR9209  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  12060 Rose Hall Dr.  $    1,420,000   

1 Only 10‐yr structural projects will have associated project fact sheets at the end of section 5. 

(85)



Executive Summary  
Attachment 1 

viii 
 

Priority Structural Projects (10‐Year Implementation Plan)1 

Project #  Project Type  WMA  Location     Cost 

WR9211  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  Behind 11724 Amkin Dr.  $    1,160,000   

WR9212  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  7610 Maple Branch Rd.  $    1,420,000   

Total Cost  $  11,980,000  

 

Long‐Term Structural Projects (25‐Year Implementation Plan)1 

Project #  Project Type  WMA  Location 

KC9203  Stream 
Restoration 

Kane Creek  6407 High Point Rd. (Mason Neck State Park) 

KC9204  Stream 
Restoration 

Kane Creek  6408 High Point Rd. (Mason Neck State Park) 

KC9205  Stream 
Restoration 

Kane Creek  6409 High Point Rd. (Mason Neck State Park) 

KC9208  Stream 
Restoration 

Kane Creek  Behind 10800 Harley Rd. 

KC9210  Stream 
Restoration 

Kane Creek  Across from 10417 Gunston Rd. 

MB9106  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run South 

10301 Richmond Hwy 

MB9108  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run South 

10109 Giles Run Rd. 

MB9117  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Mill 
Branch 

Behind 8940 Highgrove Ct. 

MB9119  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

Near 9300 Cardinal Forest La. 

MB9120  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

9001 Southpointe La. (Behind Cul‐de‐sac) 

MB9121  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

8850 Cross Chase Circle (William Halley 
Elementary School) 

MB9123  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

Behind 8628 Meadow Edge Terr. 

MB9124  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

Behind 9210 Cross Oaks Ct. 

MB9125  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

9350 Crosspointe Dr. (Silverbrook Elementary 
School) 

MB9205  Stream 
Restoration 

Mill Branch‐Mill 
Branch 

9751 Ox Rd (Occoquan Regional Park, Site 1) 

1 Only 10‐yr structural projects will have associated project fact sheets at the end of section 5. 

(86)



Executive Summary  
Attachment 1 

ix 
 

Long‐Term Structural Projects (25‐Year Implementation Plan)1 

Project #  Project Type  WMA  Location 

MB9206  Stream 
Restoration 

Mill Branch‐Mill 
Branch 

9751 Ox Rd. (Occoquan Regional Park, Site 3) 

MB9207  Stream 
Restoration 

Mill Branch‐Mill 
Branch 

Across street from 8932 Lorton Rd. 

MB9208  Stream 
Restoration 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

8301 Lorton Rd. 

MB9209  Stream 
Restoration 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

8300 Newby Bridge Dr.  

MB9210  Stream 
Restoration 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

8700 Laurel Crest Dr. (Laurel Hill Golf Club, Site 1) 

MB9212  Stream 
Restoration 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

8921 Cross Chase Cir. 

MB9213  Stream 
Restoration 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

8601 Cross View 

MB9502  BMP/LID  Mill Branch‐Mill 
Branch 

9751 Ox Rd. (Occoquan Regional Park, Site 5) 

MB9504  BMP/LID  Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run South 

10100 Gunston Rd. (Gunston Elementary School) 

MB9509  BMP/LID  Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

8285 Glen Eagles La. (Christ Church United 
Methodist Inc.) 

MB9511  BMP/LID  Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

8275 Glen Eagles La. (Crosspointe Swim and 
Racquet Club) 

OC9101  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Occoquan  Behind 9340 Davis Dr. 

OC9102  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Occoquan  Behind 9270 Davis Dr. 

OC9203  Stream 
Restoration 
Suite 

Occoquan  Behind 9307 Denali Way 

OC9204  Stream 
Restoration 

Occoquan  10450 Van Thompson Rd. 

OC9207  Stream 
Restoration 
Suite 

Occoquan  Behind 9035 Palmer Dr. 

OC9208  Stream 
Restoration 

Occoquan  Behind 9520 Elk Horn Rd. 

OM9201  Stream 
Restoration 

Old Mill Branch  Near 12505 Old Yates Ford Rd. (Fountainhead 
Regional Park) 

1 Only 10‐yr structural projects will have associated project fact sheets at the end of section 5. 
   

(87)



Executive Summary  
Attachment 1 

x 
 

Long‐Term Structural Projects (25‐Year Implementation Plan)1 

Project #  Project Type  WMA  Location 

OM9202  Stream 
Restoration 

Old Mill Branch  Behind 8100 Flossie La. 

OM9203  Stream 
Restoration 

Old Mill Branch  Behind 12606 Clifton Hunt La. 

OM9205  Stream 
Restoration 

Old Mill Branch  Behind 12990 Wyckland Dr. 

OM9206  Stream 
Restoration 

Old Mill Branch  Behind 12995 Wyckland Dr. 

OM9207  Stream 
Restoration 

Old Mill Branch  Behind 7859 My Way Dr. 

RD9201  Stream 
Restoration 

Ryans Dam  Near 8517 Wolf Run Shoals Rd. 

RD9202  Stream 
Restoration 

Ryans Dam  Behind 11470 Robert Stephens Dr. 

SA9101  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Sandy Run  Next to 9699 Thorn Bush Dr. 

SA9102  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Sandy Run  8120 Ox Rd. 

SA9103  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Sandy Run  Behind 7401 Wayfarer Rd. 

SA9105  Stormwater 
Pond Retrofit 

Sandy Run  Behind 7200 Ox Rd. 

SA9205  Stream 
Restoration 
Suite 

Sandy Run  Behind 10901 Henderson Rd. 

SA9206  Stream 
Restoration 

Sandy Run  Across street from 11100 Devereux Station La. 

SA9207  Stream 
Restoration 
Suite 

Sandy Run  Near 11212 Hunting Horse Dr. 

SA9208  Stream 
Restoration 

Sandy Run  10608 Daysailer Dr. 

SA9212  Stream 
Restoration 

Sandy Run  6572 Ox Rd. 

SA9214  Stream 
Restoration 

Sandy Run  6635 Rutledge Dr. 

SA9702  Outfall 
Improvement 

Sandy Run  Behind 11204 Silver Leaf Dr. 

1 Only 10‐yr structural projects will have associated project fact sheets at the end of section 5. 
   

(88)



Executive Summary  
Attachment 1 

xi 
 

Long‐Term Structural Projects (25‐Year Implementation Plan)1 

Project #  Project Type  WMA  Location 

WR9206  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  Near 7900 Wolf Run Hills 

WR9210  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  7501 Amkin Ct. 

WR9213  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  Behind 7433 Clifton Rd. 

WR9214  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  7121 Swift Run Trails Dr. 

WR9217  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  12013 Corral Dr. 

WR9218  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  11047 Lilting La. 

WR9219  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  11418 Lilting La. 

WR9220  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  11806 Yates Ford Rd. 

WR9221  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  11721 Yates Ford Rd. 

WR9222  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  11543 Lilting La. 

WR9223  Stream 
Restoration 

Wolf Run  11543 Lilting La. 

1 Only 10‐yr structural projects will have associated project fact sheets at the end of section 5. 
 

Non‐Structural Projects1 

Project #  Project Type  WMA  Location 

HP9801  Buffer 
Restoration 

High Point  Near 10709 Gunston Rd. (Gunston Hall Plantation)

MB9505  BMP/LID  Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run South 

10100 Gunston Rd. (Gunston Elementary School) 

MB9507  BMP/LID  Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

8850 Cross Chase Circle (William Halley 
Elementary School) 

MB9512  BMP/LID  Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

9350 Crosspointe Dr. (Silverbrook Elementary 
School) 

MB9801  Buffer 
Restoration 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run South 

Behind 10463 Greene Dr. 

1 Only 10‐yr structural projects will have associated project fact sheets at the end of section 5. 
   

(89)



Executive Summary  
Attachment 1 

xii 
 

Non‐Structural Projects1 

Project #  Project Type  WMA  Location 

MB9802  Buffer 
Restoration 

Mill Branch‐ Mill 
Branch 

9751 Ox Rd. (Occoquan Regional Park, Site 2) 

MB9803  Street Sweeping 
Program 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run South 

8386 Old Vicarage St. 

MB9804  Buffer 
Restoration 

Mill Branch‐ Mill 
Branch 

Next to 8936 Lorton Rd. 

MB9805  Street Sweeping 
Program 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

Near 8327 Bluebird Way 

MB9806  Buffer 
Restoration 
Suite 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

8700 Laurel Crest Dr. (Laurel Hill Golf Club, Site 1) 

MB9807  Buffer 
Restoration 
Suite 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

8700 Laurel Crest Dr. (Laurel Hill Golf Club, Site 2) 

MB9808  Street Sweeping 
Program 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

Near 8709 Lorfax Dr. 

MB9809  Street Sweeping 
Program 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

Near 9413 Eagle Glen Ter. 

MB9810  Street Sweeping 
Program 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

Behind 9105 Oak Chase Ct. 

MB9811  Buffer 
Restoration  

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

Next to 9527 Crosspointe Dr. 

MB9812  Street Sweeping 
Program 

Mill Branch‐Giles 
Run North 

Near 8409 Crosslake Dr. 

SA9801  Buffer 
Restoration 

Sandy Run  Next to 10711 Sandy Run Trail 

SA9802  Buffer 
Restoration 

Sandy Run  10600 Hunting Shire La. 

SA9803  Other  Sandy Run  Behind 6909 Heathstone Ct. 

1 Only 10‐yr structural projects will have associated project fact sheets at the end of section 5. 
 

(90)



Attachment 2 

i 
 

Executive Summary 
 

The Nichol Run and Pond Branch Watershed Management Plan presents a strategy for 
preserving healthy ecosystems and improving the streams and natural environment within the 
watersheds. This plan was initiated by Fairfax County and developed with input from residents 
of these watersheds as part of a county‐wide planning effort. 
 
Background 
 
The Nichol Run and Pond Branch watersheds are located in northern Virginia, in the northern‐
most corner of Fairfax County. Both watersheds drain directly into the Potomac River, and are 
located within the larger Chesapeake Bay watershed. 
 
In 1900 Fairfax County was largely agricultural, with dairy farming being the most important 
single industry. The population was just over 12,000. Beginning in the early 1940s, the County’s 
economy shifted from agriculture to largely commercial. After World War II the population 
grew rapidly from roughly 50,000 to 500,000. By the mid‐1990s the population of Fairfax grew 
to almost 900,000 residents, driven by technology‐based businesses which were less dependent 
on urban centers than conventional industry, resulting in suburban expansion (Fairfax County, 
2001). Today, Fairfax County is the most populous jurisdiction in Virginia as well as the 
Washington D.C. metropolitan area. The 2005 population was estimated at 1,047,500 and 
included 387,700 households (Fairfax County, 2006a). Most of the population expansion and 
associated development in Fairfax County occurred prior to the development and 
implementation of stormwater regulations that were promulgated to prevent flooding and 
protect water quality. 
 
The Nichol Run and Pond Branch Watershed Management Plan was developed in response to 
the watersheds’ continuing growth and need for updated stormwater and overall watershed 
management. This plan presents issues affecting the quality of the watersheds, builds on 
previous management efforts and presents a comprehensive strategy for mitigating and 
reducing the impacts of development. 
 
Purpose 
 
Fairfax County has developed three primary goals to guide the progress of all county watershed 
management plans in the second phase of plan development. These goals were drafted by 
Fairfax County staff based on the goals and visions conceived by the watershed steering 
committees and watershed planning teams during the completion of the initial phase of 
watershed management plans. The countywide watershed planning goals are to: 

1) Improve and maintain watershed functions in Fairfax County, including water quality, 
habitat, and hydrology. 

2) Protect human health, safety, and property by reducing stormwater impacts. 

(91)



Attachment 2 

ii 
 

3) Involve stakeholders in the protection, maintenance and restoration of county 
watersheds. 

 
The Nichol Run and Pond Branch Watershed Management Plan provides a plan of action to 
meet these goals by identifying watershed impairments, evaluating solutions for watershed 
restoration and preservation and involving a Watershed Advisory Group in plan development 
and project selection and prioritization. 
 
Existing Watershed Conditions  
 
The Nichol Run watershed was divided into four watershed management areas for watershed 
assessment purposes. Watershed management areas, or WMAs, are smaller subdivisions of a 
watershed used for planning and management purposes and typically range from two to five 
square miles in size. The Nichol Run watershed was further broken down into 29 
subwatersheds for more detailed analysis. Subwatersheds are the smallest watershed division 
used in this watershed management plan and range in size from 100 to 300 acres. The Pond 
Branch watershed was divided into four WMAs and 33 subwatersheds for watershed 
management purposes. 
 
Land use within Nichol Run and Pond Branch watersheds is primarily residential in nature with 
open space dominating the subwatersheds along the Potomac River. Low residential densities 
and high forest cover dominate the watersheds. However, few of the Resource Protection 
Areas (RPAs) within Nichol Run and Pond Branch watersheds are preserved by the County as 
open space. Resource Protection Areas are protected buffer areas established along the 
perennial streams in Fairfax County under the Chesapeake Bay Preservation Ordinance to 
improve the quality of streams and waterways draining to the Chesapeake Bay. 
 
The Fairfax County Stream Protection Strategy (SPS) program was completed in 2001 and 
included detailed biological and habitat data for six locations within Nichol Run and Pond 
Branch watersheds. All of the sites surveyed received ratings of good, with the exception of the 
Mine Run Branch in the Pond Branch Watershed which received a rating of excellent.  The 
watersheds represent some of the least degraded systems in Fairfax County.  The goal for these 
watersheds is to preserve biological integrity by taking active measures to identify and protect, 
as much as possible, the conditions responsible for the high quality of this area of the County. 
  
Fairfax County conducted a stream physical assessment (SPA) in 2005 to obtain baseline data 
for the County’s streams (CH2MHill, 2005). The streams were evaluated based on habitat 
conditions, impacts to the stream from infrastructure and problem areas, general stream 
characteristics and geomorphic classification. The overall goal of the stream assessment 
program was to provide a consistent basis for protecting and restoring the receiving water 
systems and other natural resources in Fairfax County. Approximately 14 miles of stream were 
assessed in Nichol Run watershed and approximately 17 miles of stream were assessed in the 
Pond Branch watershed. Nichol Run was given a good overall habitat rating and Pond Branch 
was given fair overall ratings. Most of the streams in both Nichol Run watershed and Pond 

(92)



Attachment 2 

iii 
 

Branch watershed are classified as Stage 3 for stream morphology and show signs of active 
erosion. Stage 3 streams are the most unstable and typically exhibit steep banks, bank failures, 
channel widening and deepening. 
 
Section 303(d) of the Clean Water Act requires a list of waters with impaired water quality for 
each state. Waters that are impaired due to human activities and pollutants require a total 
maximum daily load (TMDL) plan to restore their water quality. Once a TMDL is approved, a 
TMDL Implementation Plan is developed to restore impaired waters and maintain their 
improved water quality. A total of 0.9 miles of Mine Run Branch along the main stem and 
continuing downstream until the confluence with the Potomac River was listed as impaired for 
Escherichia coli bacteria (E. coli) in 2006. 
 
Planning Process 
 
Additional field reconnaissance was conducted to update and supplement existing Fairfax 
County GIS data so current field conditions were accurately represented. The reconnaissance 
effort included the identification of pollution sources, current stormwater management 
practices and potential restoration opportunities across the various watersheds. There are 16 
existing stormwater management facilities in the Nichol Run watershed; however, 85 percent 
of this area is untreated by any stormwater facilities. Correspondingly, there are 22 existing 
stormwater management facilities in the Pond Branch watershed, yet more than 90 percent of 
this area is without stormwater controls. 
 
Successful management of a watershed requires the assessment of the interactions between 
pollutant sources, watershed stressors, and conditions within streams and other waterbodies. 
In addition to field reconnaissance and previous watershed assessments, water quality and 
water quantity modeling was conducted for existing and forecasted future conditions. The goal 
of watershed characterization is to identify existing and potential problem areas and evaluate 
subwatershed restoration and preservation opportunities. 
 
A standardized method of subwatershed ranking was conducted as a means to provide a 
systematic method of compiling available water quality and natural resources information. 
Ranking subwatersheds based on watershed characterization and modeling results provides a 
tool for planners and managers to set priorities and identify candidate restoration and 
preservation areas. 
 
Subwatershed ranking indicators were developed to assess the condition of the environment, 
as early‐warning signals of changes in the environment, and to diagnose causes of ecological 
problems. The indicators used by Fairfax County may be grouped into the following categories: 

• Watershed Impact Indicators − Measure the extent that reversal or preven on of a 
particular watershed impact, sought by the goals and objectives, has been achieved 
(“What’s there now, and how is it doing?”). 

(93)



Attachment 2 

iv 
 

• Source Indicators − Quan fy the presence of a potential stressor or pollutant source (“Is 
there a problem, and what’s causing it?”). 

• Programmatic Indicators –After the plans are adopted, these will assess outcomes of 
resource protection and restoration activities (“What’s the County doing about the 
problem, and how is it doing?”). 

 
Watershed impact indicators and source indicators were evaluated based on existing 
conditions. Future condition metrics and scores were also evaluated for a sub‐set of predictive 
indicators and reflect the simulated conditions at ultimate build‐out based on the County’s 
Comprehensive Plan. The resulting scores from the existing condition and future without 
projects condition were used to rank subwatersheds according to their problems and needs and 
to assist with candidate project identification. 
 
Watershed Restoration Strategies 
 
Priority subwatersheds were identified based on the results of final subwatershed ranking, 
priority restoration elements from the SPA, problem areas identified during subwatershed 
characterization and field reconnaissance and input from the Watershed Advisory Group 
(WAG). General subwatershed characteristics and impairments were recorded for each priority 
subwatershed. Sources of subwatershed impairments were identified where evident and 
improvement goals/strategies were developed for each priority subwatershed. 
 
Subwatershed improvement strategies are intended to reduce stormwater impacts for 
subwatersheds. Subwatershed improvement strategies may include a variety of project types 
including new stormwater ponds, stormwater pond retrofits, low impact development retrofits, 
culvert retrofits, outfall improvements and area‐wide drainage improvements. Stream 
restoration strategies are targeted to improve habitat, to promote stable stream 
geomorphology, and to reduce in‐stream pollutants due to erosion. Non‐structural measures 
and preservation strategies can provide significant benefits by improving the water quality of 
stormwater runoff, by reducing the quantity of stormwater runoff, by improving stream and 
riparian habitat and by mitigating the potential impacts of future development. 
 
A universe of potential projects was complied as a result of these efforts. Watershed advisory 
group (WAG) members reviewed proposed candidate projects and discussed overall project 
selection methods and the location and scope of individual proposed projects. Field visits to 
candidate sites were conducted for all potential candidate structural projects to determine 
feasibility and modify project scopes based on site conditions. 
 
An initial feasibility analysis was conducted to reduce the initial list of candidate structural 
projects. Factors considered during the initial feasibility analysis included constraints identified 
during field reconnaissance, the size and scale of the projects, the location and distribution of 
projects within a subwatershed, existing stormwater treatment in the subwatershed, project 
drainage area and specific WAG member comments. Candidate projects deemed viable were 

(94)



Attachment 2 

v 
 

those which had few, if any, site constraints, would provide significant additional stormwater 
treatment to a subwatershed, and were considered to be of significant size and scope. 
 
Project Prioritization 
 
Viable structural projects were prioritized and ranked according to a standardized method 
developed by Fairfax County in order to ensure that all projects across the County could be 
compared and ranked in a County‐wide fashion. Structural projects were scored based on five 
factors: 

1. Effect on watershed impact indicators 
2. Effect on source indicators 
3. Location within priority subwatersheds 
4. Sequencing 
5. Implementability 

 
An initial ranking composite score was calculated for each project based on the weighted 
average of the five project scores described above. This score was used to determine the 
overall initial rank of each project. 
 
In addition to the quantitative project prioritization method developed by the County, WAG 
member comments, evaluation of projects in water quality modeling, cost benefit analysis and 
best professional judgment were integrated into the final project scoring and ranking. The final 
ranking scores were used to determine the priority of each project for the implementation 
process. 
 
The 36 projects ranked most beneficial comprise the 10‐year “Priority” Implementation Plan. 
The remaining 34 projects make up the 11‐25 year “Long‐Term” Implementation Plan. The 
10year projects were further analyzed with water quality modeling and a detailed cost benefit 
analysis to refine the priority ranking within the 10‐year implementation plan. 
 
Project fact sheets were created for each of the 10‐year projects and include basic information 
about the project location, a description of the project scope, project benefits, design 
considerations, itemized cost estimates and detailed project maps. Some projects contain 
multiple parts or sub‐projects; these project “suites” are summarized and contained on a single 
project fact sheet. 
 
Plan Costs and Benefits 
 
An integral element to evaluating the benefits of restoration strategies and projects is 
associated costs. Detailed cost estimates, as shown on the project fact sheets, were determined 
for structural projects in the 0‐10 year implementation phase. The total cost of the 10‐year 
implementation plan is $9 million. Associated costs for structural projects in the 11‐25 year 
implementation phase were roughly approximated based on the overall costs associated with 
similar projects in the 10 year implementation plan and are estimated at approximately $4 

(95)



Attachment 2 

vi 
 

million. Cost estimates were not calculated for non‐structural projects, as they do not require 
traditional construction measures to be implemented and may be programmatic in nature. The 
10‐year implementation plan consists of 36 total structural projects. The 11‐25 year 
implementation plan consists of 34 additional structural projects. There are 10 non‐structural 
projects identified in the plan. The total cost for all structural projects in the plan is $13 million. 
 
Implementation of all projects and restoration strategies in the 10‐year priority list will result in 
significant overall reductions in stormwater flows and pollutant loads with associated 
improvements to habitat and stream quality. Stormwater runoff volume from the 2‐year and 
10year storm events would decrease by approximately 24 percent or 0.66 inches and 14 
percent or 0.82 inches, respectively. The peak flow rates would also decrease by 34 percent, 
resulting in a reduction of 0.140 CFS per acre for the 2‐year storm event, and 27 percent or 
0.260 CFS per acre for the 10‐year storm event. Total suspended solids would be reduced by 28 
percent overall or 167 tons per year. Total nitrogen would be reduced by 5 percent or 1,113 
pounds per year, and total phosphorus would be reduced by 9 percent or 290 pounds per year. 
 
Implementation of all projects within the plan, including projects in the 25‐year implementation 
plan will result in additional reductions in stormwater flows and pollutant loads. Total 
suspended solids would be reduced by 32 percent overall or 192 tons per year. Total nitrogen 
would be reduced by 8 percent or 1,714 pounds per year and total phosphorus would be 
reduced by 12 percent or 433 pounds per year. 
 
The following provisions address the funding and implementation of projects and programs in 
Fairfax County watershed plans. These provisions as recommended by the Board were 
developed for the Popes Head Creek Watershed Management Plan in February 2006 and have 
been applied to the Sugarland Run and Horsepen Creek Watershed Management Plan: 
 

i. Projects and programs (both structural and non‐structural) will first undergo 
appropriate review by County staff and the Board (please see iii below) prior to 
implementation. Board adoption of the Watershed Management Plan will not set 
into motion automatic implementation of projects, programs or initiatives that have 
not first been subject to sufficient scrutiny to ensure that the projects that are 
funded give the County the greatest environmental benefit for the cost. 

ii. Road projects not related to protection of streambeds or banks or water quality will 
not be funded out of the stormwater and watershed budget. 

iii. The Watershed Management Plan provides a conceptual master‐list of structural 
capital projects and a list of potential non‐structural projects for the watershed. 
Staff will, on a fiscal year basis, prepare and submit to the Board a detailed work 
plan to include a description of proposed projects and an explanation of their 
ranking, based on specific criteria. Criteria used to assemble this list will include, but 
are not limited to, cost‐effectiveness as compared to alternative projects, a clear 
public benefit, a need to protect public or private lands from erosion or flooding, a 
need to meet a specific watershed or water quality goal and ability to be 

(96)



Attachment 2 

vii 
 

implemented within the same fiscal year that funding is provided. Staff also intends 
to track the progress of implementation and report back to the Board periodically. 

iv. Each project on the annual list of structural projects will be evaluated using basic 
value‐engineering cost effectiveness principles before implementation and the 
consideration of alternative structural and non‐structural means for accomplishing 
the purposes of the project will be considered before implementation. This process 
will ensure the County’s commitment to being a fiscally responsible public entity. 

v. Obstruction removal projects on private lands will be evaluated on a case‐by‐case 
basis for referral to the Zoning Administrator and/or County Attorney for action as 
public nuisances; and otherwise to determine appropriate cost‐sharing by any 
parties responsible for the obstructions. 

 
Stream restoration projects on private lands will be evaluated to determine means for cost‐
sharing by land owners directly responsible for degradation due to their land uses. 
 
Table ES.1 provides a list of all projects in the 10‐year implementation plan, the 25‐year 
implementation plan and the non‐structural projects. 
 

Table ES.l Master Project List 

Priority Structural Projects (10 Year Implementation Plan) 

Project #  Project Type  W'MA  Location  Cost 

NT9101  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Nichol Run ‐ Lower  Near the end of Jefferson 
Run Road 

$90,000.00  

NI9106 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, BMP/LID 

Nichol Run ‐ Upper 
Finger Lakes Estates 
Subdivision 

$260,000.00 

NI9111 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Nichol Run ‐ Upper 
Patrician Woods Subdivision, 
Patrician Woods Court & 
Springvale Road 

$210,000.00 

NI9113  Culvert Retrofit  Nichol – Jefferson  Near Beach Mill Road & 
Pipestem 

$40,000.00  

NI9118 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, BMP/LID 

Nichol Run ‐ Upper 
Dogwood Farm Section 2 
Subdivision 

$230,000.00 

NI9119 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, Stream 
Restoration 

Nichol Run ‐ Upper 
Near Falls Pointe Drive cul‐
de‐sac 

$330,000.00 

NI9201  Stream 
Restoration 

Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Woodleaf Subdivision  $100,000.00 

NI9202  Stream 
Restoration 

Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Spring Valley Woods 
Subdivision 

$580,000.00 

NI9401  Culvert Retrofit  Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Down Patrick Farms 
Subdivision 

$160,000.00 

PN9100 
New Stormwater 
Pond, BMP/LID 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark  Riverside Manor Subdivision  $170,000.00 

(97)



Attachment 2 

viii 
 

 

Table ES.l Master Project List 

Priority Structural Projects (10 Year Implementation Plan) 

Project #  Project Type  W'MA  Location  Cost 

PN9101  New Stormwater 
Pond 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark  Eaton Court & Eaton Park 
Road 

$80,000.00  

PN9102  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark  Near River Bend Road & Oak 
Falls Court 

$130,000.00 

PN9103 

New Stormwater 
Pond, BMP/LID, 
Stream 
Restoration 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark  Fitz Folly Farms Subdivision  $620,000.00 

PN9104  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, BMP/LID 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark  Golden Woods Subdivision  $200,000.00 

PN9105  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, BMP/LID 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark  Morison Estate Subdivision  $200,000.00 

PN9108 
New Stormwater 
Pond, BMP/LID 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Near northern Deerfield 
Court cul‐de‐sac 

$410,000.00 

PN9109 

New Stormwater 
Pond, 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, BMP/LID 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Deerfield Pond Subdivision  $280,000.00 

PN9110 
BMP/LID, 
Education 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Great Falls Elementary 
School 

$90,000.00  

PN9111 

New Stormwater 
Pond, 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, Culvert 
Retrofit, Stream 
Restoration 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Marmota Farm Subdivision  $830,000.00 

PN9112 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Near Rossmore Court cul‐de‐
sac 

$240,000.00 

PN9113  New Stormwater 
Pond 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Arnon Lake Subdivision  $100,000.00 

PN9114 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, BMP/LID 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Arnon Ridge Subdivision  $190,000.00 

PN9116 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, Culvert 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch 
Near Beach Mill Road & 
Springvale Road 

$400,000.00 

PN9117 

New Stormwater 
Pond, 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Monalaine Court & River 
Bend Road 

$360,000.00 

(98)



Attachment 2 

ix 
 

Table ES.l Master Project List 

Priority Structural Projects (10 Year Implementation Plan) 

Project #  Project Type  W'MA  Location  Cost 

PN9118 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, Culvert 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Near River Bend Road & 
Hidden Springs Road 

$130,000.00 

PN9119  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Fallswood Subdivision  $100,000.00 

PN9120  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Cornwell Farm Subdivision  $150,000.00 

PN9122 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, Stream 
Restoration 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Jackson Hills Subdivision  $490,000.00 

PN9123  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch  Near Bliss Lane & 
Commonage Drive 

$90,000.00  

PN9124  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Jackson Hills Subdivision  $80,000.00  

PN9126  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark  Squire's Haven Section 2 
Subdivision 

$250,000.00 

PN9127 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, BMP/LID 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark 
Eagon Hills & River Bend 
Estates Subdivision 

$340,000.00 

PN9200  Stream 
Restoration 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Arnon Lake Subdivision  $350,000.00 

PN9201  Stream 
Restoration 

Pond Branch 
Riverbend Knolls Subdivision 

$160,000.00 

PN9400  Culvert Retrofit  Pond Branch ‐ Clark  Potomac Forest Subdivision  $120,000.00 

Total Cost:  $9,070,000.00 

 
   

(99)



Attachment 2 

x 
 

Table ES.l Master Project List 

Priority Structural Projects (10 Year Implementation Plan) 

Project #  Project Type  W'MA  Location  Cost 

PN9101  New Stormwater 
Pond 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark  Eaton Court & Eaton Park 
Road 

$80,000.00  

PN9102  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark  Near River Bend Road & Oak 
Falls Court 

$130,000.00 

PN9103 

New Stormwater 
Pond, BMP/LID, 
Stream 
Restoration 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark  Fitz Folly Farms Subdivision  $620,000.00 

PN9104  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, BMP/LID 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark  Golden Woods Subdivision  $200,000.00 

PN9105  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, BMP/LID 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark  Morison Estate Subdivision  $200,000.00 

PN9108 
New Stormwater 
Pond, BMP/LID 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Near northern Deerfield 
Court cul‐de‐sac 

$410,000.00 

PN9109 

New Stormwater 
Pond, 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, BMP/LID 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Deerfield Pond Subdivision  $280,000.00 

PN9110 
BMP/LID, 
Education 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Great Falls Elementary 
School 

$90,000.00  

PN9111 

New Stormwater 
Pond, 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, Culvert 
Retrofit, Stream 
Restoration 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Marmota Farm Subdivision  $830,000.00 

PN9112 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Near Rossmore Court cul‐de‐
sac 

$240,000.00 

PN9113  New Stormwater 
Pond 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Arnon Lake Subdivision  $100,000.00 

PN9114 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, BMP/LID 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Arnon Ridge Subdivision  $190,000.00 

PN9116 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, Culvert 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch 
Near Beach Mill Road & 
Springvale Road 

$400,000.00 

PN9117 

New Stormwater 
Pond, 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Monalaine Court & River 
Bend Road 

$360,000.00 

 

(100)



Attachment 2 

xi 
 

Table ES.l Master Project List 

Long Term Structural Projects (25 Year Implementation Plan) 

Project #  Project Type  WMA  Location 

NI9100  New Stormwater 
Pond 

Nichol Run ‐ Lower  Near High Hill Court & Falcon Ridge Road 

NI9102  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Nichol Run ‐ Lower  Southdown Subdivision 

NI9103  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Nichol Run ‐ Lower  Near Springvale Road & Allenwood Lane 

NI9104  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Near Beach Mill Road & Springvale Road 

NI9105  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Near Beach Mill Road & Springvale Road 

NI9107  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Nichol ‐ Jefferson  Near Potowmack Street & Montpelier Road 

NI9108  New Stormwater 
Pond 

Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Mulmary Subdivision 

NI9109  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Nichol ‐ Jefferson  Near Montpelier Road & Potowmack Street 

NI9110  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Near Creamcup Lane cul‐de‐sac 

NI9112  New Stormwater 
Pond 

Nichol ‐ Jefferson  Near Richland Grove Drive & Donmore Drive 

NI9115 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, BMP/LID 

Nichol ‐ Jefferson  Near Elmview Place & Seneca Knoll Drive 

NI9116  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Near Woodland Falls Drive cul‐de‐sac 

NI9117  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Green Branch Court & Utterback Store Road 

NI9120 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, BMP/LID 

Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Near Farm Road & Utterback Store Road 

NI9200  Stream 
Restoration 

Nichol Run ‐ Lower  Great Falls Hills Subdivision 

NI9300  Culvert Retrofit  Nichol ‐ Jefferson 
Near Rich Meadow Drive & Richland Valley 

Drive 

NI9301  Stream 
Restoration 

Nichol ‐ Jefferson  Richland Meadows Subdivision 

NI9400  Culvert Retrofit  Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Springvale Knolls Subdivision 

NI9402  Culvert Retrofit  Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Martin Redmon Subdivision 

NI9403  Culvert Retrofit  Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Ross F. Rogers Subdivision 

NI9404 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, Culvert 

Retrofit 
Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Near Utterback Store Road & Wolfe Hill Lane

(101)



Attachment 2 

xii 
 

Table ES.l Master Project List 

Long Term Structural Projects (25 Year Implementation Plan) 

Project #  Project Type  WMA  Location 

NI9405  BMP/LID  Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Springvale Knolls Subdivision 

NI9500  BMP/LID  Nichol Run ‐ Lower  Near Patowmack Drive cul‐de‐sac 

PN9106  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch ‐ 
Potomac 

Riverbend Subdivision 

PN9107  Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit 

Pond Branch ‐ 
Potomac 

St. Francis Episcopal Church 

PN9121 
Stormwater Pond 

Retrofit 
Pond Branch ‐ Mine 

Run 
Jackson Hills Subdivision 

PN9125 
Stormwater Pond 
Retrofit, Culvert 

Retrofit 
Pond Branch ‐ Clark Near Walker Road & Forest Brook Lane 

PN9401  Culvert Retrofit  Pond Branch ‐ Clark Near Carrwood Road & Bell Drive 

PN9402 
Stream 

Restoration, 
Culvert Retrofit 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark
Near Potomac Ridge Road & Potomac Forest 

Drive 

PN9403  Culvert Retrofit  Pond Branch ‐ 
Potomac 

Great Falls Heights Subdivision 

PN9404  Culvert Retrofit 
Pond Branch ‐ Mine 

Run 
Great Falls Park 

PN9405  Culvert Retrofit  Pond Branch ‐ Clark Near Walker Road & Forest Brook Lane 

PN9406  New Stormwater 
Pond 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark Riverside Manor Subdivision 

PN9407  Culvert Retrofit  Pond Branch  Near River Park Drive & River Park Lane 

NI9900  Buffer 
Restoration 

Nichol ‐ Jefferson  Patowmack Farm 

NI9901  Conservation  Nichol Run ‐ Lower  Riparian Areas in Lower Reaches of Nichol 
Run 

NI9902  Buffer 
Restoration, 
Conservation 

Nichol Run ‐ Upper  Gas Line Eeasement between Patowmack 
Drive & Beach Mill Road 

PN9900  Conservation, 
Buffer 

Restoration 

Pond Branch  Riparian Areas along Headwaters of Pond 
Branch 

PN9901  Rain Barrel 
Program 

Pond Branch  Deepwoods Hollow, Riverbend Knolls, 
Riverbend Farm, Riverbend Farm Sec. 1, 
Merryelle Acres, Rector, & Falcon Ridge 

Subdivisions 

PN9902  Conservation, 
Buffer 

Restoration 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark Riparian Areas along Lower Reaches of 
Clarks Branch 

(102)



Attachment 2 

xiii 
 

Table ES.l Master Project List 

Long Term Structural Projects (25 Year Implementation Plan) 

Project #  Project Type  WMA  Location 

PN9903  Rain Barrel 
Program 

Pond Branch ‐ Clark Club View Ridge, Beach Mill Farms, Eagon 
Hills, Dogwood Hills, Riverbend Estates, 
Walker Hill Estates, & Arnon Meadow 

Subdivisions 

PN9904  Conservation, 
Buffer 

Restoration 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Riparian Areas along Headwaters of Mine 
Run Branch 

PN9905  Rain Barrel 
Program 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Jackson Hills, Great Falls Estates, Weant, 
Riverside Meadow, Potomac Meadows, 
Laylin Family Trust, John W. Hanes Jr. 
GunneU's Run Farm, Arnon Ridge, River 

Bend Forest Sec. 2, Cornwell Farm, Marmota 
Farm, Deerfield Farm & Deerfield Pond 

Subdivisions 

PN9906  Obstruction 
Removal 

Pond Branch ‐ Mine 
Run 

Cornwell Farm Subdivision 

 

(103)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(104)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
ACTION – 2 
 
 
Approval for the Department of Neighborhood and Community Services to Donate 20 
Surplus FASTRAN Buses 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board approval for the Department of Neighborhood and Community Services to donate 
20 surplus FASTRAN buses to selected applicants.  A one-time surplus of buses due to 
service reductions was made available to community-based human services providers 
through a competitive application process.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board approve the Department of 
Neighborhood and Community Services to donate 20 surplus FASTRAN buses to 
selected applicants.  
 
 
TIMING:  
Board action is requested on January 25, 2011. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On Friday, October 1, 2010, the Department of Neighborhood and Community Services 
issued a Donation Notice accepting applications for up to 20 surplus FASTRAN buses 
to be donated to selected applicants.  Surplus vehicles of this quantity were available as 
the FASTRAN fleet size necessary for current operations has been significantly reduced 
due to recent fiscal reductions.  Availability of surplus vehicles of this magnitude is thus 
considered a one-time occurrence. 
 
Applications were accepted from nonprofit organizations providing services to county 
citizens.  Up to 20 vehicles were available through this competitive process to assist 
applicants in meeting the transportation needs of human services customers.  
Specifically, the objective of this application process was to donate buses to service 
providers to overcome some of the transportation issues faced by county citizens in four 
strategic focus areas: Children’s Services, Health Access, Affordable and Stable 
Housing, and Long-Term Care.  
 
Successful applicants must meet the following requirements: 
 

(105)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 

1. Be non-religious, non-sectarian 501(c)(3) organizations providing services to 
residents as described in Code of Virginia Ann. § 15.2-953;  

2. Provide transportation services that benefit Fairfax County residents; 
3. Have the capacity to accept complete responsibility for the vehicles upon 

donation to include maintaining the vehicle, satisfying licensing and training 
requirements and providing adequate insurance for the operation of the vehicle; 
and  

4. Agree to indemnify, keep and save harmless the county. 
 
The average age and mileage of the vehicles is seven years and 125,000 miles.  No 
additional funding is included with the donations for service delivery; donations include 
only the use of one or more surplus vehicles previously used for FASTRAN services. 
 
The donation notice was sent to approximately 220 organizations via email and was 
posted on the county website.  Eighteen applicants requesting a total of 31 buses 
responded.  The selection committee, appointed by the Director of Neighborhood and 
Community Services, evaluated the applications in accordance with the criteria 
established in the donation notice application.   
 
The selection committee is recommending bus donations to the following organizations: 
 

Organization Name Purpose 

# of Buses 
to be 

Donated

Central Senior Center 
Transportation to senior center and adult day 
health care for older adults 2

Community Residences, 
Inc. 

Transportation to day program and medical 
appointments for individuals with intellectual 
disabilities and acute behavioral challenges 2

Consumer Wellness 
Center of Falls Church 

Transportation to health and mental health 
appointments and services for low income and 
homeless clients 1

ECHOworks 
Transportation for adults with disabilities who 
receive ECHOworks employment services 1

Hispanics Against Child 
Abuse and Neglect 
(HACAN) 

Transportation for at-risk youth to community 
soccer/prevention program and related 
activities 2

Inova Health System  

Transportation for Program for All-Inclusive 
Care for the Elderly clients to the PACE center 
and human services appointments 4

Jill's House 
Transportation from school to Jill’s House for 
children with intellectual disabilities 2

(106)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 

Organization Name Purpose 

# of Buses 
to be 

Donated

Northern Virginia Urban 
League 

Transportation for Fairfax Resources Mothers 
Program clients and families to medical and 
social services appointments and programs 1

Shelter House, Inc. 
Transportation for homeless families to jobs 
and human services 2

SkillSource Group, Inc., 
The 

Transportation for inmates to work release job 
sites and employment services 1

St. Coletta of Greater 
Washington 

Transportation to community outings, 
employment, and medical appointments for 
day program clients with intellectual disabilities 1

Volunteers of America 
Chesapeake 

Transportation for homeless clients to human 
services appointments and programs 1

TOTAL  20
 
The donation process will consist of the following steps: 
 

1. Notify the successful applicants of their donation. 
2. Conduct a public lottery to assign buses to successful applicants. 
3. Provide written maintenance specifications and maintenance records for the 

vehicle(s) to the recipients. 
4. Allow successful applicants the opportunity to inspect their vehicle(s) prior to 

acceptance of the donation. 
5. Remove all logos and striping identifying the vehicles as FASTRAN buses. 
6. Transfer ownership of the vehicles to the recipients.   

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 – List of Offerors 
 
 
STAFF: 
Patricia D. Harrison, Deputy County Executive 
Christopher A. Leonard, Director, Department of Neighborhood and Community Services 
Cathy Muse, Director, Department of Purchasing and Supply Management 

 

(107)



  Attachment 1 
 

List of Offerors 
 
The following organizations submitted applications for bus donations: 
 
African Women's Education/Development Partnership Forum 
Central Senior Center 
Community Residences, Inc. 
Consumer Wellness Center of Falls Church 
ECHOworks 
Ethiopian Community Development Council- African Community Center 
Hispanics Against Child Abuse and Neglect (HACAN) 
Inova Health System 
James Mott Community Assistance Program 
Jill's House 
Matthew's Center 
Northern Virginia Urban League 
Outside The Walls Ministry 
Shelter House, Inc. 
SkillSource Group, Inc., The 
South County Youth Network 
St. Coletta of Greater Washington 
Volunteers of America Chesapeake 
 
 

 
 

(108)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
ACTION - 3 
 
 
Revisions to the Water Facilities Planning Agreement Between the Board of 
Supervisors and Fairfax Water  
 
 
ISSUE: 
Revisions to the agreement between the Board of Supervisors and Fairfax Water to 
modify the types of projects which require public review under the County’s 2232 
Review process and to make minor editorial changes.    
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the 
proposed Agreement as revised and authorize the Board Chairman to sign the 
Agreement.   
 
 
TIMING: 
Routine.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At the Board of Supervisors meeting on December 7, 2010, the Board directed staff to 
review the Water Facilities Planning Agreement and bring back to the Board 
recommendations for changes.  The purpose of such changes is to include a broader 
definition of the types of water facility projects which are subject to the County’s 2232 
Review Process and to make minor editorial changes to the Agreement which was first 
created in 1977 and last revised in 1993.  Staff has provided a review of the Agreement 
and recommends that modifications be made as reflected by underlines and strikes on 
the attached copy of the Agreement. 
 
Under the Agreement, the definition of “water facility” is used to determined projects that 
are subject to the County’s 2232 Review process.  The following “routine” projects are 
not included in this definition and therefore are not subject the 2232 Review process: 
water main extensions 16-inches and smaller in diameter; the maintenance, repair and 
replacement of any water facility with a facility of substantially the same type or 
capacity; the maintenance, repair, relocation or replacement of any existing water main 
with substantially the same size of main in substantially the same location as may be 
necessitated by highway improvements or other reasons; the installation of fire 
hydrants; and the installation of pressure reducing vaults.   

(109)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
Under the proposed Agreement, the definition of “water facility” does not include the 
following types of “routine” projects: 1)  water main extensions 24-inches and smaller in 
diameter; 2) relocation or replacement of water mains with new mains no more than 50 
percent larger in diameter when necessitated by highway improvements or other 
reasons; and, 3) extension of water mains 48-inches and smaller in diameter when 
constructed substantially within the right-of-way of highway improvements in connection 
with a road improvement project.  Further, under the definition of “water facility” the term 
“pressure reducing vaults” is changed to “pressure control, meter or other vaults.”  

 
In addition to these modifications, the proposed Agreement deletes current “Part V 
Litigation” which has been deemed by counsel as unnecessary, and revises the 
definition of “water main extension” to include mains 24-inches and less in diameter 
from the current definition of 16-inches or less.  Editorial changes also are made to the 
Agreement to update references to the “Fairfax County Water Authority” to “Fairfax 
Water”, and references to “Section 15.1-456 of the Code of Virginia” to “Section 15.2-
2232.”  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None.  
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 – Water Facilities Agreement Between Board of Supervisors of Fairfax 
County, Virginia and Fairfax County Water Authority with additions and deletions noted 
as described above. 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
Fred R. Selden, Acting Director, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
Chris Caperton, Chief, Facilities Planning Branch, PD, DPZ 

(110)



 -  - 1

        ATTACHMENT 1 
 
 

WATER FACILITIES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

AND FAIRFAX COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
 

 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into as of the 28th ____day of June, 

1993, _____________, 2011 and between the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, 

Virginia (herein called the Board) and the Fairfax County Water Authority, (herein called 

the Authority Fairfax Water) and supersedes all prior agreements. 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 WHEREAS, it is the intention of the Board and the Authority Fairfax Water to 

assure the orderly and timely provision of potable water service in conformance with the 

adopted Comprehensive Plan, or parts thereof, for Fairfax County, Virginia; and  

    WHEREAS, the parties’ experience since the Water Facilities Agreement of 

1993 has shown that best management practices for normal service extensions of the 

public water system call for (1) using water mains ranging in size up to 24 inches in 

diameter for the water distribution system, particularly when needed in high-density 

urban areas; (2) replacing water mains in the existing transmission system with larger 

mains, not to exceed the diameter of the existing main by more than 50%, in order to 

accommodate projected growth; (3) using the occasion of highway improvement projects 

as a cost-effective opportunity to replace, enlarge, upgrade, and extend existing water  

mains to account for projected growth; and (4) recognizing the projects described in (1), 

(2) and (3) as normal service extensions that are routine in nature;   

 

(111)



 -  - 2

IT IS THEREFORE AGREED: 

I. (A)  “Water facility,” as used herein, shall mean and include any facility used for 

the supply, treatment, pumping, storage, transmission and distribution of water and any 

ancillary office, shop and storage yard facility located wholly or partly in Fairfax County 

but shall not include the following projects which are considered routine in nature:  the 

extension of water mains 16” 24 inches and smaller in diameter; the maintenance, repair 

or replacement of any water facility, with a facility of substantially the same type or 

capacity; the maintenance, repair, relocation or replacement of any existing water main 

with substantially the same size of main including the replacement of an existing water 

main with one that is no more than 50% larger in diameter and in substantially the same 

location as may be necessitated by highway improvements or other reasons; the extension 

of water mains 48 inches and smaller in diameter when constructed substantially within 

the right-of-way of highway improvements in connection with a road improvement 

project; the installation of fire hydrants; the installation of pressure reducing control, 

meter or other vaults; the acquisition, maintenance, repair,  replacement or improvement 

of motor vehicles and construction and maintenance of tools and equipment; and 

administrative, engineering, legal, financial and managerial investigations, studies, 

designs and reports. 

B) “Water main extension,” as used herein, shall mean and include any 

extension of a water main 16” 24 inches and smaller in diameter located wholly or partly 

in Fairfax County, but excluding water main extensions to be installed within 

subdivisions 

(112)



 -  - 3

or other developments by parties other than the Authority Fairfax Water in accordance 

with subdivision plats or site plans approved by the Board. 

 (C)   “Undertake,” as used herein, shall mean authorize or begin construction, 

or become legally or financially committed to the construction of any project or water 

main extension, including the acquisition of any interest in real property required 

therefore other than a contract of purchase which is contingent upon approval of the 

project by the Board as part of a FCWA Fairfax Water-CIP or upon approval of the 

project pursuant to Section 15.1-456 15.2-2232 of the 1950 Code of Virginia, as 

amended. 

II. Preparation and Approval of Water Facilities Capital Improvement 

Program 

 (A) The Authority Fairfax Water shall annually prepare a five year capital 

improvement program which will be submitted for consideration by the County as part of 

the Fairfax County Capital Improvement Program. 

 (B) The Board shall consider and approve or disapprove each item contained 

in the FCWA Fairfax Water-CIP.  In the event of disapproval of any item, the Board shall 

furnish to the Authority Fairfax Water within thirty days thereafter a statement of its 

reasons for such disapproval. 

III. Approvals Required for Undertaking of Water Facilities 

 (A) The Authority Fairfax Water shall not undertake any water facility unless 

said water facility has been approved by the Board as part of an FCWAFairfax Water-

CIP and unless the Authority Fairfax Water has obtained approval thereof pursuant to 

Section 15.1-456 15.2-2232 of the 1950 Code of Virginia, as amended. 

(113)



 -  - 4

 (B) In the event that the Fairfax County Planning Commission disapproves the 

undertaking of any water facility pursuant to Section 15.1-456 15.2-2232  of the 1950 

Code of Virginia, as amended, the Board, within thirty 30 days after receipt of the request 

by the Authority, shall consider an appeal of the Commission’s decision and either 

sustain or overrule said decision. 

IV. Notification of Water Main Extensions 

 (A) At least 30 days before undertaking a water main extension which is 16 24 

inches or less in diameter, the Authority Fairfax Water shall submit to the appropriate 

Board of Supervisor member(s) preliminary plans for the proposed water main extension. 

V. Litigation 

 (A) The Authority and the Board acknowledge that this Agreement is not 

intended, and shall not operate, to abrogate the legal responsibilities of the Authority  

under the Virginia Water and Sewer Authorities Act or any trust agreement under which 

the Authority has issued or may issue its evidences of debt.  In the event that performance 

by the Authority under this Agreement results in any action, suit or claim by any third 

party seeking specific performance by the Authority or damages for failure of 

performance of said obligations, the Board upon request of the Authority, shall defend 

any such action, suit or claim.  The Board shall be solely responsible and liable for any 

final judgment rendered against the Authority, its members, or its employees in any such 

action, suit, or claim. 

 (B) In the event of litigation and upon request by the Board, the Authority  

shall not undertake any project or water main extension which is the subject of such 

litigation unless and until litigation, including any appeals, has been finally resolved. 

(114)



 -  - 5

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of 

Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia, has caused 

this Agreement to be executed by its Chairman and 

its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed and attested 

by its Clerk and the Fairfax County Water Authority 

has caused this Agreement to be executed by its 

Chairman and its corporate seal to be hereunto 

affixed and attested by its Secretary-Treasurer all 

pursuant to resolutions heretofore duly adopted. 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF  FAIRFAX 
COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

 
         By: _________________________________ 
       Chairman 
(SEAL) 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
  Clerk 
 
 
     FAIRFAX COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY  
 
        By: ____________________________________ 
       Chairman 
(SEAL) 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
  Secretary-Treasurer 
 

(115)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(116)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
ACTION - 4 
 
 
Parking Reduction for Parcel “C1” of Dulles Technology Center (Hunter Mill District) 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Board approval of a 20.8 percent reduction in required parking for parcel “C1” of Dulles 
Technology Center, 13525 Dulles Technology Drive, Tax Map No. 016-3-01-0033A, 
Hunter Mill District. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board of Supervisors (Board) approve a 
parking reduction of 20.8 percent (30 fewer spaces) for parcel “C1” of Dulles 
Technology Center, 13525 Dulles Technology Drive pursuant to paragraph 4(B), 
Section 11-102 of Chapter 112 (Zoning Ordinance) of the Code of the County of Fairfax, 
Virginia, based on an analysis of the parking requirements for each use on the site and 
a parking reduction study, on condition that: 
 

1. A minimum of 114 parking spaces must be maintained on site at all times. 
 

2. The uses permitted per this parking reduction are: 
 

 16,442 GSF office 
 2,544 GSF school of special education (6 staff, 15 adult students, 53 non-

adult students) 
 13,981 GSF school of general education (25 staff, 100 k-8th grade 

students, 60 high school students) 
 

3. Classes for adult students attending a school of special education shall not be 
held between 11:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.  Classes for non-adult students attending 
a school of special education shall not begin prior to 4:00 p.m. 
 

4. The current owners, their successors or assigns of the parcel identified as Fairfax 
County Tax Map No. 016-6-01-0033A, shall submit a parking space utilization 
study for review and approval by the Board at any time in the future that the 
Zoning Administrator so requests.  Following review of that study, or if a study is 
not submitted within 90 days after being requested, the Board may rescind this 
parking reduction or require alternative measures to satisfy parking needs, which 
may include requiring all uses to comply with the full parking space requirements 
as specified in Article 11 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

(117)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 

5. All parking utilization studies prepared in response to a request by the Zoning 
Administrator shall be based on applicable requirements of The Code of the 
County of Fairfax, Virginia, and the Zoning Ordinance in effect at the time of said 
parking utilization study submission. 

 
6. Shared parking with any additional use(s) shall not be permitted without the 

submission of a new parking study prepared in accordance with the applicable 
requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and shall be subject to the Board’s 
approval. 

 
7. All parking provided shall be in accordance with the applicable requirements of 

Article 11 of the Zoning Ordinance and the Fairfax County Public Facilities 
Manual, including the provisions referencing the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA). 

 
8. The conditions of approval of this parking reduction shall be recorded in the 

Fairfax County land records in a form acceptable to the County Attorney. 
 
 
TIMING: 
Board action is requested on January 25, 2011. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The applicant is requesting a reduction in required parking to enable future leasing of 
8,764 gross square feet (GSF) of vacant space for office uses in a building located at 
13525 Dulles Technology Drive.  The building was originally constructed with two other 
comparably sized buildings as part of the Dulles Technology Center which has since 
been subdivided into three separate parcels.  This reduction request addresses only 
Building 1, which is owned in fee simple by the applicant. 
 
The building (32,967 GSF) is currently occupied by Helping Children Worldwide (10,222 
GSF) and The Auburn School (13,981 GSF) with 8,764 GSF of vacant space.  The 
existing mix of uses within the building includes office, school of special education, and 
school of general education.  The existing parking supply is 114 spaces and the existing 
uses require 112 spaces.  There are 110 spaces required by code for all of the existing 
uses plus 2 additional visitors spaces required by the Auburn School under their existing 
lease agreement.  For purposes of this reduction, the 2 additional visitors spaces will be 
treated as code required spaces because they are not available for other uses.  An 
additional 32 spaces would be required by code to serve the vacant space in the 
building parked at the general office rate.  With a total parking requirement of 144 
spaces and a supply of 114 spaces, there is a deficit of 30 spaces. 

(118)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
Helping Children Worldwide has a number of sub-tenants that operate at this location as 
part of a partnership of nonprofit organizations and other service providers that provide 
individuals and families in need with access to an integrated array of services.  The 
office uses operate during the day and training sessions, which are classified as school 
of special education uses, operate primarily during the evening with minimal overlap.  
Based on code requirements, the daytime office uses (7,678 GSF) would require 28 
parking spaces and the evening school of special education uses would require 35 
parking spaces.  The different hours of operation of the school of special education uses 
from the other uses (office and school of general education) on the site is the primary 
rationale for approval of the parking reduction.  
 
A review of the parking analysis indicates the new office use can share the available 
parking spaces with the other uses on this site based on the hourly parking 
accumulations for each of the uses on site.  Therefore, the staff supports the applicant’s 
request for a 20.8 percent parking reduction subject to the conditions listed above. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment I – Parking Utilization Study and Reduction Request w/o attachments dated 
July 29, 2010 (Revised December 7, 2010), from Michael J. Workosky and Kevin Fellin, 
Wells and Associates 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Michelle A. Brickner, Director, Land Development Services, DPWES 
 

(119)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

(120)



FTfH-PK^-OOI-l ATTACHMENT 

k^k^^ W E L L S + A S S O C I A T E S 

MEMORANDUM 

T O : Richard B. Hayes, Engineer II 
Code Analysis Division 

C C : Eileen McLane 
Zoning Administrator 
Fairfax County Department of Planning & Zoning 

FROM: Michael J. Workosky, PTP, TOPS 
Kevin R. Fellin, P.E. 

SUBJECT: 13525 Dulles Technology Drive, Herndon, Virginia 
Parking Utilization Study and Reduction Request 
Fairfax County. Virginia 
Tax Map:OI63-OI-0033A 

DATE: July 29, 2010 
Revised December 7,2010 

Introduction 

The purpose of this memorandum is to present the results of a parking utilization study and 
request a parking reduction for 13525 Dulles Technology Drive, Building I. The information 
contained in this study supports a parking reduction request of 20 percent. The Building is 
located within Parcel "C" of the greater Dulles Technology Center, as shown on Figure I. The 
property is zoned 1-4 (Medium Intensity Industrial District). 

This report represents an update to the original study dated July 29, 2010 and reflects 
comments provided by Fairfax County staff. 

The existing building currently contains approximately 32,967 Gross Square Feet (G.S.F.) and is 
served by 114 parking spaces (109 vehicle parking spaces, 5 handicap spaces) and 2 loading 
spaces. The owners of the building propose to re-tenant the space with approximately 8,764 
G.S.F. remaining vacant for future leasing. The study identifies the potential use of this existing 
vacant space as general office based on the current usage and projected parking demand of the 
building. 

1420 Spring Hill Road, Suite 600 <> McLean, Virginia 22102 • 703 / 917-6620 • Fax: 703 / 917-0739 

(121)



The building located at 13525 Dulles Technology Drive was originally constructed with two 
other comparably sized buildings that have been subdivided into three distinct parcels. This 
parking study addresses Building I only, which is owned fee simple by our client and is not 
associated with the other buildings on-site. 

The scope of this parking study was provided to Fairfax County staff in a letter dated May 10, 
2010. Although the scoping document was not formally approved, this updated report reflects 
County comments based on the initial report submission and the scope of the study. A copy of 
the scoping letter and information is contained in Attachment A. 

2 

(122)



O: \PROJECTS\4501 - 5 0 0 0 \ 4 7 S S DULLES TECH PARK\GRAPH1CS\476B RPT GRAPHICS.DWG 

Figure 1 
Site Location Map 

5 

North 

1 3 5 2 5 Dulles Technology Drive 
^ Fairfax County, Virginia 

L L B J Wel ls + A s s o c i a t e s , Inc. j 
(123)



Tenant Summary 

.Wells + Associates conducted field reviews of existing tenants on-site, as well as a review of 
County street files associated with the issuance of non-residential use permits (Non-RUP) for 
Building I. Based on a field review and information provided by the building owners, the 
following tenants/owners are located in the building as shown on Table I. Copies of the non
residential use permits are contained in Attachment B. 

Parking Provided 

The existing building is served by 114 parking spaces consisting of 109 vehicle parking spaces 
and 5 handicap spaces. In addition, there are two (2) spaces provided for loading for a total of 
116 spaces, consistent with the 2006 survey. The parking locations are shown on Figure 2. 

Fairfax County Parking Requirements 

The number of parking spaces required to serve the site were calculated based on the Fairfax 
County Zoning Ordinance, Article 11 Off-Street Parking and Loading and the approved parking 
allocated to the Auburn School. According to the Ordinance, "all required parking spaces shall 
be located on the same lot as the structure or uses to which they are accessory or on a lot 
contiguous thereto which has the same zoning classification, and is either under the same 
ownership, or is subject to arrangements satisfactory to the Director that will ensure the 
permanent availability of such spaces". 

Off-street parking may serve two or more uses; however, the total number of spaces must 
equal the sum of spaces required for each separate use. A copy of the relevant Ordinance text 
is provided in Appendix C. 

The results are shown on Table 2, and indicate that the building would require a total of 
110 spaces, 63 spaces for Helping Children Worldwide (HCW) and 49 spaces for the Auburn 
School. (Note that the Auburn School parking allocation is two (2) more spaces than the code 
requirement). 

Based on a parking supply of I 14 spaces, a surplus of two (2) spaces exists. 

4 

(124)



Table I 

13525 Dulles Technology Drive 

Tenant Summary' 1 ' 

Occupant Size Units 

Helping Chi ldren Wor ldwide 

Common Areas 3,392 G.S.F. 

Jeanie Schmidt Free Clinic 2,970 G.S.F. 

Helping Children Wor ldwide 760 G.S.F. 

Reston Interfaith 474 G.S.F. 

Just Neighbors 175 G.S.F. 

Literacy Council 134 G.S.F. 

Vecinos Unidos 132 G.S.F. 

Community Services Board 158 G.S.F. 

Vacant Office 393 G.S.F. 

Training Rooms 1,634 G.S.F. 

Subtotal H C W 10,222 G.S.F. 

(Total HCW Daytime Uses) 7,678 G.S.F. 

T h e A u b u r n School 13,981 G.S.F. 

Subtotal 24,203 G.S.F. 

Total Building Space 32,967 G.S.F. 

Difference (vacant space) 8,764 G.S.F. 

Notes: ( I ) Based on non-residential use permits. 

(2) Training space for I staff member and IS adult students. 

(3) Training space for 5 staff members and 53 elementary students. 

(4) Based on daytime uses and 81% of common space. 

(5) Allows 100 elementary/middle school students, 60 high school 

students, and 25 staff members. 

5 
Wells + Associates, Inc. 

McLean, Virginia 
(125)



Figure 2 
Parking Location Summary 

— - — Approximate Property Line 

• 13525 Dulles Technology Drive Parking 
North 

13525 Dulles Technology Drive 
Fairfax County, Virginia 

Wells + A s s o c i a t e s , Inc. 
(126)



Table 2 

13525 Dulles Technology Drive 

Parking Requirements ^ 

Parking 

Use Size Units Code Parking Required Ratio Required 

Helping Chi ldren W o r l d w i d e 

Of f i ce < 2 ) 7,678 G.S.F.. 3.6 spaces per 1,000 S.F. 28 

School Uses 6 staff 2 spaces for 3 employees 4 

15 adults 1 space per student over 16 15 

53 students 0.3 spaces per student under 16 16 

Subtotal H C W 63 

T h e A u b u r n School 13,981 G.S.F. 

Future Development Program 25 staff 1 spaces per staff member 25 

Max. Students (K-8th Grade) 100 students N o parking required -

Max. Students (High-School) 60 students 0.3 spaces per student 18 

School Visitors ( 3 ) 4 spaces (increased per agreement) 6 

Total Auburn School Parking 49 

S u m m a r y 

Total Existing Uses 112 

Existing Parking Supply 1 14 

Remainder 2 

Notes: ( I ) Based on Fairfax County Zoning Ordinance. 

(2) Assumes 81 percent of the common space to the office uses since this makes up 81 percent of the tenant space. 

(3) Based on approved parking allocation. 

7 
Wells + Associates, Inc. 

McLean, Virginia 
(127)



Helping Children Worldwide - Operating Characteristics 

Helping Children Worldwide (HCW) contains a number of sub-tenants within their space that 
include the following: 

» Jeanie Schmidt Free Clinic. 
• Reston Interfaith. 
• Literacy Council of Northern Virginia. 
• Computer CORE. 
• Vecinos Unidos. 
• Just Neighbors. 
• Community Services Board. 

The general office hours are from 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM on weekdays. There are approximately 
six (6) permanent staff members at HCW, three (3) at Reston Interfaith, one (I) at the 
Community Services Board, and a part-time (Tuesday and Thursday) employee at Just 
Neighbors. The Free Clinic has 15 to 20 staff and clients and operates four days a week with 
some support classes during the evening. 

Training sessions are provided at the Vecinos Unidos, Literacy Council/Computer CORE and 
function as a School of Special Education with activities primarily occurring during the evening. 
Some events occur between 4:00 PM and 6:00 PM on weekdays. 

Based on the building areas shown on Table I, the daytime uses utilize approximately 7,678 S.F. 
of general office space. The balance of the building space (approximately 2,544 S.F.) is used in 
the evenings. 

The Auburn School 

The Auburn School is a private school for autistic elementary through high school students. 
The core hours for school staff are from 7:30 AM to 6:30 PM, Monday through Friday. School 
hours are from 8:30 AM to 3:30 PM with after school care available. The current school 
enrollment was 15 elementary/middle school age students when the counts were collected in 
June 2010 and 21 students in December 2010. There are a total of eight (8) full-time and four 
(4) part-time staff members. 

None of the current uses are open for business on Sundays. 

8 

(128)



Parking Occupancy Counts and Hourly Distributions 

In order to assess current operating conditions, parking occupancy counts, were collected by 
Wells + Associates on Tuesday and Thursday, June 15th and 17th, and Sunday, June 13, 2010 
within the parking areas for Building 13525. Based on County comments, supplemental counts 
were collected on Wednesday, December I, 2010. The weekday counts were collected 
between the hours of 6:00 AM and 10:00 PM and on Sunday between 8:00 AM and 2:00 PM. 

The overall results for the weekdays were averaged and are shown on Table 3. These results 
indicate the peak weekday parking occupancy occurred at 11:00 AM and 12:00 PM, when a total 
of 40 spaces (or 35 percent) were occupied. Thus, a total of 74 spaces were available during 
this period. In addition, 24 spaces were occupied at 7:00 PM and relate to the evening activities 
at HCW. 

Although the counts on Sunday (shown on Table 3) reveal vehicles parked in the Building 13525 
spaces, none of these vehicles are associated with the building. They are related to the 
churches (Grace Christian Church and Heritage Fellowship Church) that currently utilize the 
adjacent buildings that use a portion of the 13525 parking. Previously collected traffic counts 
and field observations in February 2010 indicated little or no use of these spaces since they 
were rigorously restricted by church staff. 

Parking Occupancy by Use 

The entrance to HCW is on the southwest side of the building as shown on Figure I. The 
Auburn School utilized the east side adjacent to the loading docks in June 2010 when the first 
set of occupancy counts were collected, but have moved to the northwest corner of the 
building. Thus, the weekday parking for these two uses were delineated based on field 
observations and averaged as shown on Table 4. 

The results indicate that HCW has a peak midday parking occupancy of 30 spaces at 11:00 AM 
and an evening peak parking occupancy of 24 spaces at 8:00 PM when evening activities occur. 
The Auburn School has a peak weekday parking occupancy of 11 spaces at 11:00 AM and 12:00 
PM. 

Hourly Distributions 

The parking occupancy counts and the information contained in the "Shared Parking", Second 
Edition manual, published by the Urban Land Institute (ULI) were used to develop two (2) 
separate distributions for HCW. The first reflects the daytime office uses and is based on the 

9 

(129)



occupancy counts collected between 6:00 AM and 5:00 PM. The ULI percentages were used 
from 6:00 PM to 10:00 PM. 

A second HCW distribution was prepared for the evening uses and was based on the parking 
occupancy counts collected from 5:00 PM to 10:00 PM. The 4:00 PM percentage reflects the 
ULI distribution. A nominal amount of parking (five (5) percent) was assumed for all other 
hours to reflect potential employees that arrive at the building during the day. 

The parking distribution for the Auburn School was based on the delineated parking occupancy 
counts. 

These hourly distributions by use are summarized on Table 4. 

Field Observations 

Traffic operations on site were observed when the supplemental parking occupancy counts 
were collected in December 2010 at the 13525 Building related to the Auburn School 
operations. 

The school places cones in front of the entrance on the northwest corner of the building for an 
approximate 30-minute period during the morning (8:15 to 8:45) and during the evening period 
from (3:15 to 3:45) when students are dropped off and picked up at the school. Vehicles enter 
the site from Dulles Technology Drive and exit onto Sunrise Valley Drive. 

The observations indicated that the maximum queue of vehicles ranged from two (2) vehicles 
to four (4) vehicles during these periods, and that this operation did not disrupt traffic 
circulating within the site or affect the adjacent buildings since they are located south of the 
13525 Building with alternate driveways available for access. 

10 

(130)



Table 3 

13525 Dulles Technology Drive 

Existing Parking Occupancy Summary 

Parking Supply = 114 spaces 

Weekday Percent Hourly 

Sunday < 2 ) 

Percent Hourly 

Hour Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Average Occupancy Distribution Sunday < 2 ) 

Occupancy Distribution 

6:00 AM - - - - 0% 0% NA NA NA 

7:00 AM 2 - - 1 1% 3% 4 4% 5% 

8:00 AM 12 7 5 8 7% 20% 38 33% 52% 

9:00 AM 33 22 25 27 24% 68% 50 44% 68% 

10:00 AM 42 36 32 37 32% 93% 42 37% 58% 

11:00 A M 46 40 34 40 35% 100% 73 64% 100% 

12:00 PM 48 35 35 35% 100% 67 59% 92% 

1:00 PM 43 40 30 38 33% 95% 71 62% 97% 

2:00 PM 34 38 37 37 32% 93% 10 9% 14% 

3:00 PM 34 35 37 36 32% 90% NA NA NA 

4:00 PM 25 31 29 29 25% 73% NA NA NA 

5:00 PM 16 33 18 23 20% 58% NA NA NA 

6:00 PM 10 20 14 15 13% 38% NA NA NA 

7:00 PM 26 16 23 22 19% 55% NA NA NA 

8:00 PM 22 32 16 24 21% 60% NA NA NA 

9:00 PM 19 24 4 16 14% 40% NA NA NA 

10:00 PM 2 6 1 3 3% 8% NA NA NA 

Notes: (I) Based on counts collected by W+A on June 13, IS, and 17, and December I, 2010. 

(2) Parked vehices from Grace Christian Church and Heritage Fellowship Church using portions of I3S2S spaces, not from 

Building 13525 since these uses are not In operation on Sundays. 

Wells + Associates, Inc. 

McLean, Virginia (131)



Table 4 

13525 Dulles Technology Drive 

Existing Parking Occupancy Summary by Use 

Hour 

Helping Children Worldwide 

Weekday Hourly 

Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Average Distribution 

Daytlme-HCW 

Hourly 

Distribution ( 2 ) 

Evening-HCW 

Hourly 

Distribution ' 3 ) 

The Auburn School ( < l 

Weekday Hourly 

Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Average Distribution 

6:00 AM - - - - 0% 0% 0% - - - - 0% 

7:00 AM 2 - - I 3% 3% 5% - - - - 0% 

8:00 AM 9 I 4 5 17% 17% 5% 3 6 1 4 36% 

9:00 AM 19 14 21 18 60% 60% 5% 14 8 4 9 82% 

10:00 AM 27 27 26 27 90% 90% 5% 15 9 6 10 91% 

- 11:00 AM •; 32 •J-';'n :-28, 30 100% 100% 5% 17 100% 

12:00 PM 3l 27 28 29 97% 97% 5% 17 „̂ r=-.;;-v-..-'.: 11..- 100% 

1:00 PM 28 32 24 28 93% 93% 5% 15 8 6 10 91% 

2:00 PM 24 30 28 28 93% 93% 5% 10 8 9 9 82% 

3:00 PM 24 28 28 27 90% 90% 5% 10 7 9 9 82% 

4:00 PM 21 24 23 23 77% 77% 50% 4 7 6 6 55% 

5:00 PM 15 28 15 20 67% 67% 83% 1 5 3 3 27% 

6:00 PM 9 18 14 14 47% 25% 58% 1 2 - 1 9% 

7:00 PM 26 14 23 21 70% 10% 88% - 2 - 1 9% 

8:00 PM ;:V':.?S»:.22. 32 80% 7% 100% - - - - 0% 

9:00 PM 19 24 4 16 53% 3% 67% - - - - 0% 

10:00 PM 2 6 I 3 10% 1% 13% - - - - 0% 

Summary 

HCW Max. Part 

Auburn School 

ing Demand 30 spaces 

vlax. Parking Demand 11 spaces 

Notes: (I) Based on counts collected by W+A on June 13, 15, and 17, and December 1,2010. 

(2) Daytime distribution based on counts from 6:00 AM to 5:00 PM. Evening distribution based on Shared Parking methodology. 

(3) Evening distribution based on counts. 

(4) Auburn School has 8 full-time and 4 part-time employees, and 15 to 21 students in K-8th grade. 

12 
Wells + Associates, Inc. 

McLean, Virginia (132)



Forecasted Parking Required 

The forecasted parking required by Building 13525 was identified based on the current 
development program and uses, the hourly parking distributions described previously, the code 
parking requirements, and the maximum density allowed under the approved non-residential 
use permit. These are shown on Table 5 and discussed below: 

Helping Children Worldwide 

Based on code requirements, the HCW daytime office uses (7,678 G.S.F.) would require 28 
parking spaces using a parking ratio of 3.60 spaces per 1,000 G.S.F. of space. The evening uses 
(2,544 G.S.F.) would require 35 parking spaces. 

The Auburn School 

The Auburn School currently has 12 staff members and 15 to 21 students. It has an existing 
parking ratio of one (I) space per staff member and was in operation when the counts were 
collected. The school can ultimately have up to 25 staff members, 100 elementary/middle 
school students, and 60 high school students. Based on the code requirements of one (I) space 
per staff member, 0.30 spaces per student (applied to the high school age students only with 
potential drivers), and four (4) visitor spaces, a total of 47 spaces would be required. However, 
two (2) additional spaces were allocated to this use for its approval and are required by the 
tenant. Thus, a total of 49 spaces were assumed for the school. (Note that the Auburn School 
has confirmed that it expects their high school aged drivers will exhibit driving behavior similar 
to typical high schools of general education; thus, the application of the County parking rate for 
the anticipated 60 high school age students is accurate.) 

13 

(133)



Table 5 

13525 Dulles Technology Drive 

Parking Demand Rates by Use *' 

Helping Chi ldren W o r l d w i d e (Dayt ime D e m a n d ) 

Development Program (daytime uses) 7,678 G.S.F. 

Max. Parking Required (at 3.6 spaces/1000) 28 spaces 

Helping Chi ldren W o r l d w i d e (Evening D e m a n d ) 

Development Program (evening uses) 2,544 G.S.F. 

Max. Parking Required 35 spaces 

T h e Auburn School (partially occupied') 

Existing Development Program 12 full and part-t ime staff 

Max. Parking Demand 11 spaces 

Rate 0.92 spaces per staff member 

Existing Students 15 K - 8th Grade 

Future Development Program 25 full and part-t ime staff 

Max. Students 100 K - 8th Grade 

Max. Students 60 High School Age 

Parking Rate (Staf f ) ( 2 ) 1.00 spaces per staff member 

Parking Rate (Student dr ivers) ( 3 ) 0.30 spaces per student 

Parking Required (Staff) 25 spaces 

Parking Required (Students) 18 spaces 

Parking Required (V is i to rs ) ( 4 ) 6 spaces 

Total Auburn School Parking Required 49 spaces 

S u m m a r y 

Overall Site Parking Required 112 spaces 

Parking Provided 114 spaces 

Difference 2 spaces 

Notes: ( I ) Based on code requirements. 

(2) Based on code requirement for elementary/middle school. 

(3) Based on code requirement for high school. Applied to HS students only. 

(4) Based on current approval. 

14 
Wells + Associates, Inc. 

McLean, Virginia (134)



Future Parking Required - General Office 

Based on the existing occupancy counts, hourly variation, and the forecasted required parking, 
the weekday required parking was calculated assuming that the currently vacant 8,764 G.S.F. of 
space was occupied by general office uses. The hourly distribution for the vacant general office 
space was based on the "Shared Parking", Second Edition accumulation data published by the 
Urban Land Institute (ULI). 

The results are shown on Table 6, and indicate that the maximum parking required would 
occur at 11:00 AM, when a parking supply of 111 spaces (or 97 percent) of the supply would be 
required. A surplus of three (3) spaces would be available during this period indicating that 
adequate parking would be provided if the vacant space were occupied by general office uses. 

Parking Management 

Based on comments provided by County staff, a review of the existing and planned management 
of the parking serving the building was prepared. There are no formal controls for parking for 
HCW. However, HCW has informed employees to park only within spaces designated for 
their building. 

The Auburn School does not have formal written plans for parking management. However, 
school management is aware that there is a need to manage their parking demand and queuing 
needs in order to only utilize the 49 spaces allocated for their use without impacting travel 
lanes, parking spaces and other uses on the property. Given the site layout and multiple access 
locations, there appear to be alternatives to manage school traffic, should that need arise. 
Additional measures, such as buses, shuttles, or schedule changes may be considered by the 
school and could be initiated as enrollment grows to ensure that acceptable conditions 
continue to be realized. 

While the 13525 Building owners and Auburn School enjoy a good working relationship, and it 
is fully expected that should any traffic or parking issues arise that the school would address 
them, the building owners are obligated by lease agreement to provide 49 parking spaces for 
Auburn's use without conditions other than what was approved per the June 23, 2009 
memorandum (see Attachment D). The executed lease was contingent on the approval of the 
Auburn School occupancy permit and the approved County parking plan (Attachment D) that 
did not require potential future traffic mitigation measures. The building owners will continue 
to interact with the school and monitor operations over time. 

15 

(135)



Reduction Requested 

According to Section 11-102 of the Zoning Ordinance, all required parking spaces shall be 
located on the same lot as the structure or uses to which they are accessory or on a lot 
contiguous thereto which has the same zoning classification, and is either under the same 
ownership, or is subject to arrangements satisfactory to the Director that will ensure the 
permanent availability of such spaces. However, Paragraph 4 provides for a reduction in the 
number of off-street parking spaces required to serve two or more uses when the applicant has 
demonstrated to the Board's satisfaction that fewer spaces are required due to the hourly 
parking accumulation characteristics of the uses and such reduction will not adversely affect the 
site or the adjacent area. 

Therefore, assuming a general office land use as shown on Table 7 and based on Sections I I-
102-1.A and B and I I-I02-4.B, an approximate 21 percent reduction (or 30 fewer spaces) from 
the Zoning Ordinance requirement of 144 spaces is requested. 

16 

(136)



Table 6 

13525 Dulles Technology Drive 

Forecasted Parking Demand Summary 

H C W Daytime Parking Required 28 spaces 

H C W Evening Parking Required 35 spaces 

The Auburn School 49 spaces 

Vacant Space as Office 32 spaces 

Parking Provided 114 spaces 

Hour 

Ho 

H C W 

Daytime ( l > 

Lirly Dlstribut 

H C W 

Evening ' 2 ) 

on 

A. School 

P 

H C W 

Daytime 

rklng Requlr 

H C W 

Evening 

ed 

A. School 

Subtotal 

Current Uses 

Office 

Hourly 

Distribution < 3 ) 

Vacant Office 

Parking Req. 

Overall 

Totals 

Percent 

Utilization 

Surplus/ 

Shortfall 

6:00 A M 0% 0% 0% - - - - 3% 1 1 1% 113 

7:00 A M 3% 5% 0% 1 2 - 3 30% 10 13 11% 101 

8:00 A M 17% 5% 36% 5 2 18 25 75% 24 49 43% 65 

9:00 A M 60% 5% 82% 17 2 41 60 95% 31 91 80% 23 

10:00 A M 90% 5% 9 1 % 26 2 45 73 100% 32 105 92% 9 

11:00 AM 100% , - .v5%:-:,;:::; • 100% 28 79 100% w , * 3 2 - I I I 97% •..;>3. 

12:00 PM 97% 5% 100% 28 2 49 79 90% 29 108 95% 6 

1:00 PM 93% 5% 9 1 % 27 2 45 74 90% 29 103 90% 11 

2:00 PM 93% 5% 82% 27 2 41 70 100% 32 102 89% 12 

3:00 PM 90% 5% 82% 26 2 41 69 100% 32 101 89% 13 

4:00 PM 77% 50% 55% 22 18 27 67 90% 29 96 84% 18 

5:00 PM 67% 83% 27% 19 30 14 63 50% 16 79 69% 35 

6:00 PM 25% 58% 9% 7 21 5 33 25% 8 41 36% 73 

7:00 PM 10% 88% 9% 3 31 5 39 10% 4 43 38% 71 

8:00 PM 7% 100% 0% 2 35 - 37 7% 3 40 35% 74 

9:00 PM 3% 67% 0% 1 24 - 25 3% 1 26 23% 88 

10:00 PM 1% 13% 0% 1 5 - 6 1% 1 7 6% 107 

Notes: (I) Daytime distribution based on counts from 6:00 AM to 5:00 PM. Evening distribution based on Shared Parking, Second Edition manual. 

(2) Evening distribution based on counts. 

(3) Based on Shared Parking, Second Edition manual, published by the Urban Land Institute. 

17 
Wells + Associates, Inc. 

McLean, Virginia (137)



Table 7 

13525 Dulles Technology Drive 

Parking Reduction Calculation 

Building Use Spaces Required 

Helping Chi ldren Wor ldwide 

Code Parking Required 63 spaces 

T h e A u b u r n School 

Code Parking Required 49 spaces 

V a c a n t Space as G e n e r a l Office 

Code Parking Required 32 spaces 

Total Parking Required 144 spaces 

Parking Provided 114 spaces 

Difference (parking reduction) (30) spaces 

Percent Difference (parking reduction) - 2 1 % 

18 
Wells + Associates, Inc. 

McLean, Virginia 
(138)



Conclusions 

The results of this parking assessment are summarized below: 

1. The results of the parking analysis for 13525 Dulles Technology Drive indicate that 
assuming the existing vacant space of 8,764 G.S.F. is occupied by general office uses, the 
maximum parking required would be 111 spaces. Based on the existing parking supply 
of 114 spaces, a surplus of three (3) spaces would exist. This indicates that the parking 
demand associated with occupancy of this vacant space can be adequately 
accommodated. Therefore, a parking reduction of 30 spaces (or 21 percent) is 
requested. 

2. The current peak weekday parking demand for Building 13525 occurs at 11:00 AM and 
12:00 PM, when a total of 40 spaces (or approximately 35 percent) of the 114 space 
parking supply is occupied. While there are some vehicles parked in these areas on 
Sunday, they are not associated with the 13525 uses. 

3. Based on County parking code requirements the forecasted parking required for the 
daytime uses of Helping Children Worldwide would require 28 spaces. The evening 
uses require 35 spaces. Since HCW includes both daytime and evening uses, separate 
parking distributions were developed based on parking occupancy counts and published 
information. The separation of these uses reflects the actual usage of these spaces 
experienced on-site. 

4. Assuming full occupancy of the Auburn School, a total of 49 spaces are required based 
on current approvals and is two (2) spaces more than would be required by code. 
While the school does not have a formal long-range plan, it recognizes the need to 
manage its parking demand to not exceed the spaces allotted for its use, and may 
require additional measures (such as buses, shuttles, staggered hours, etc.) in the future 
so as not to impact parking and traffic circulation within the property. 

5. Since none of the existing uses operate on Sunday, a church use of 456 seats could be 
accommodated on-site based on the parking supply of 114 spaces. It is noted that 
should this use be pursued, this would require further coordination with the existing 
churches and the use of additional parking management would be necessary to ensure 
that adequate parking is provided. 

O:\Projects\450l-5000\476a Dulles Tech Park\Documents\Reports\Dulles Tech Park Parking Analysis (Submlssin I2.7.l0).doc 

19 

(139)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

(140)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
INFORMATION - 1 
 
 
Martha Washington Library (Mount Vernon District) and Thomas Jefferson Library 
(Mason District) Receive Awards of Excellence from the National Association of 
Industrial and Office Properties  
 
 
The National Association of Industrial and Office Properties (NAIOP), Northern Virginia 
Chapter, selected the recently completed Martha Washington Library for the 2010 
Award of Excellence for Best Building, Institutional Facility Under $20 million and the 
Thomas Jefferson Library for the 2010 Award of Excellence for Best Building, 
Renovation Capital Improvement.  Representatives from the Department of Public 
Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) received the Awards of Excellence at the 
NAIOP ceremony on November 18, 2010.   
 
The 17,000 square-foot renovated and expanded Martha Washington Library, located at 
6614 Fort Hunt Road in Alexandria, was completed in July 2010 and has been well 
received by the community as shown in the significant increase in library patronage.  
The project team consisted of staff from DPWES (Planning and Design Division and 
Construction Management Division), the Library Administration, the design consultant 
(Ritter Architects), and the construction contractor (Harvey Cleary Builders).   
 
The Thomas Jefferson Library, located at 7415 Arlington Boulevard in Falls Church, 
was renovated and expanded to17,000 square feet to support increased demands of 
the community.  It was re-dedicated and opened to the public in June 2010.  The Library 
project team consisted of staff from DPWES (Planning and Design Division and 
Construction Management Division), the Library Administration, the design consultant 
(Hughes Group Architects), and the construction contractor (Falls Church Construction 
Company).   
 
Martha Washington and Thomas Jefferson Libraries were both designed as sustainable 
facilities using the Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) principles 
developed by the U.S. Green Building Council (USGBC).  Both facilities are currently 
under review by USGBC for Silver Certification or higher. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 

(141)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
None. 
 
 
STAFF:   
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Ronald N. Kirkpatrick, Deputy Director, DPWES 
 

(142)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
INFORMATION - 2 
 
 
Annual Status Report on the Board’s Second Four-Year Transportation Program  
 
 
On October 15, 2007, the Board of Supervisors approved their Second Four-Year 
Transportation Program for FY 2008 through FY 2011.  Supported by the $110 million 
Transportation Bond approved by voters in November 2007, the Second Four-Year Plan 
is multi-modal and includes projects for major roadways, pedestrian and spot 
improvements, and transit.  The Plan also includes innovative project design and 
delivery and programs designed to serve special populations.  In addition to the 2007 
Transportation Bond Projects, the Second Four-Year Plan also includes a number of 
projects funded through partnerships with State, Federal, and Regional agencies.  The 
Second Four-Year Transportation Plan is designed to enhance mobility, promote safety, 
and create choices for the commuting public.  The Plan seeks to follow an ambitious 
schedule to implement these projects and programs within a four-year timeframe. 
 
Enclosed is an annual status report on the Board’s Four-Year Transportation Program 
and other active transportation projects.  This report has been compiled by Fairfax 
County Department of Transportation (FCDOT) staff in consultation with their 
implementation partners in the Department of Public Works and Environmental Services 
(DPWES) and the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) Northern Virginia 
District. 
 
The information provided in the attached December 2010 report is an update to the 
September 2010 quarterly status report which was provided to the Board on October 
19, 2010.  The December 2010 report also includes the annual update of non-capital 
strategies and other transportation projects. 
 
Staff provides a status update every quarter for the Four-Year Program and an annual 
report in the winter on all active transportation projects.  The status reports are posted 
on the FCDOT website following the Board’s review. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1:  December 2010 Status Report on the Fairfax County Board of 
Supervisors’ Four-Year Transportation Program for FY 2008 through FY 2011 and 
Other Active Transportation Projects 
 

(143)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Katharine D. Ichter, Director, Fairfax County Department of Transportation (FCDOT) 
Ronald N. Kirkpatrick, Deputy Director, Capital Facilities, DPWES 
W. Todd Minnix, Chief, Transportation Design Division, FCDOT 
Eric Teitelman, Chief, Capital Projects and Operations Division, FCDOT 
Karyn L. Moreland, Chief, Capital Projects Section, FCDOT 
Brent Payne, Capital Projects Section, FCDOT 

(144)



Status Report 
on the 

Fairfax County Board ofSupervisors' 

Second Four-Year Transportation 


Program 

FY 2008 Through FY 2011 

Prepared by: 

Department ofTransportation 


Capital Projects and Operations Division 


s.",;"g F .. irfiU. C""nty 
(Dr 2S Y~d'" anti Mort 

December 2010 

(145)



December 2010 Status Report on the Board's Four-Year Transportation Program 
for FY2008 Through FY2011 

Summary of Highlights from January to December 2010 

Capital Program Highlights 
• 	 29 projects were completed in 2010. 7 projects were completed in the fourth quarter of 

2010: Sutton Road Walkway, Edgelea Road Walkway, and Cotts Neck Road Walkway 
(South Lakes Drive to Winterthur), Guinea Road/Falmead Road, Braddock 
RoadANakefield Chapel Road, Spring Hill Road (Rte. 7 to International D"ive) and South 
Kings Highway/Harrison Lane. 

• 	 10 projects are under construction: 1-495 Capttal Beltway HOT Lanes, 1-95 Fourth-Lane 
Widening, Woodrow Wilson Bridge (includes Route 1 and Telegraph Road 
interchanges), Fairfax County Parkway EPG, Fairfax County Pkwy/Fair Lakes 
Blvd/Monument Drive Interchange, Dulles Rail (Phase I), Florence Lane Walkway, 
Fairfax County Parkway/Sunrise Valley Drive, West Ox Road/Fairfax County Parkway 
and Braddock Road/Guinea Road. 

Innovative Project Design and Delivery 
• 	 Capital Beltway HOT Lanes PPTA - Construction of the Capital Beltway HOT Lanes 

Project continues to progress on time and on budget. Work is in full swing along the 
entire 14-mile project corridor, which runs from the Springfield Interchange to north of 
the Dulles Toll Road Interchange. Overall construction is approximately 55% complete, 
reaching major milestones in 2010. Braddock Road, Little River Turnpike, Gallows 
Road, Arlington Boulevard, Lee Highway, 1-66 EB and WB, Oak Street, Leesburg Pike 
and Chain Bridge Road interchanges all have at least one new bridge span completed 
and opened to traffic while work continues on building the second spans. By the end of 
2010, approximately 75% of new sound walls were installed. Major construction will 
continue to ramp-up in 2011 and IAOrk to build the new HOT Lanes in the center of the 
Beltway will start. The Beltway HOT Lanes and surrounding improvements are 
scheduled to be completed and operational in December 2012. For further information, 
www.VAmegaprojects.com 

• 	 Route 28 PPTA -In July 2009, funding was authorized for 30% design only for widening 
three segments of Route 28 to 8 lanes: SB Sterling Blvd to Dulles Toll Road, NB 
McLearen Road to Dulles Toll Road, and SB Dulles Toll Road to Route 50. Completion 
is anticipated in fall 2010. 

Dulles Rail 
• 	 Construction activities are underway along the entire 11-mile alignment of Phase 1 from 

the West Falls Church Metrorail Station, thrOlgh Tysons, and west to Wiehle Avenue in 
Reston. The ramp that connects southbound Route 123 to Route 7 is open to westbound 
Route 7 traffic only. This new pattern will be in effect for approximately three years. 
Along Route 7, mid-block left turns are being removed. The right lane of SB Route 123 
between Scotts Crossing Road and the 1-495 Capital Bettway Inner Loop is now closed, 
and will remain so for approximately two years. Construction is in progress in the Dulles 
International Airport Access Highway median. For further information, 
http://www.dullesmetro.com/ 

• 	 Due to the construction of the future Wiehle Metrorail Station Parking Garage, the 
Reston East Park and Ride lot will close in the spring of 2011. Staff has been actively 
working on a Reston East Relocation Plan to identify approximately 800 parking spaces 
in Reston and relocate the existing bus service. The Reston East Relocation Plan is 
being executed in two phases: The first phase occurred on November 29,2010 and 

Summary Page 1 

(146)

http:http://www.dullesmetro.com
http:www.VAmegaprojects.com


December 2010 Status Report on the Board's Four-Year Transportation Program 
for FY2008 Through FY2011 


Summary of Highlights from January to December 2010 


included shifting two bus routes and approximately 300 passengers to the Reston North 
Park and Ride; increasing bus service at the Reston South Park and Ride; and securing 
50 parking spaces for commuters at Baron Cameron Park. The second phase of the 
relocation plan will ocrur when the lot closes in March 2011 and indudes relocating 
approximately 500+ patrons and associated bus service to a new interim park and ride 
lot on the corner of Sunset Hills Road and Town Center Parkway. 

Special Programs Highlights 

Pedestrian Program 
• 	 Pedestrian Projects: The Board has directed FCDOT to lead the effort to improve 

pedestrian safety and rnobil~y, including constructing pedestrian improvements in high
priority areas of Fairfax County. In 2006 the Board endorsed a Ten-Year Funding Goal 
of $60 million for new pedestrian projects. Through FY 2012, the Board has designated 
$58 million in federal, state and county funding to construct high-priority pedestrian 
improvement projects. Major walkway projects and pedestrian intersection projects are 
complete along Route 7, Route 50, Route 123 and Route 236, and bus stop 
improvements are complete at priority stops identified in the Bus Stop Safety Study. In 
2010, eight new intersection projects and eight new walkway projects were completed. 
Additionally, over 150 pedestrian projects and over 100 bus stop projects are currently 
under design. Other improvements in support of pedestrian safety have included 
upgrading all signalized crosswalks in Fairfax County to LED countdown signals. 

• 	 1-495 HOT Lanes Pedestrian Projects: Pedestrian and bicycle facilities are being 
constructed on all of the Beltway bridge crossings in the 1-495 HOT Lanes Project. 
These new facilities will remove some of the worst barriers to pedestrian and bicycle 
movement in Fairfax County, since most of the existing bridges have no pedestrian 
facilities. The Board designated additional CMAQ fundil1g which along with VDOT's 
Enhancement funding will complete missing pedestrian facilities beyond the limits and 
original scope of the 1-495 HOT Lanes Project. 

• 	 StreetSmart: Fairfax County participated in the Spring 2010 and Fall 2010 StreetS mart 
pedestrian safety and awareness campaign conducted by MWCOG for regionally 
coordinated pedestrian safety education and police enforcement. FCDOT staff worked 
with regional partners in developing updated media concepts for focusing attention on 
the deadly consequences of pedestrians' and drivers' actions, portrayed in new 
television, radio and print advertising. As part of the StreetSmart campaign FCDOT staff 
installed pedestrian safety posters at over 200 bus shelters throughout the County, and 
installed over 500 pedestrian safety bus cards in all Fairfax Connector buses. 

• 	 Pedestrian Lighting: In coordination with DFWES, FCDOT continues to implement 
priority roadway lighting as a relatively inexpensive component of the Pedestrian 
Program. Initial project locations include Metro station areas, and priority lighting 
improvements including Columbia Pike in Culmore and Ox Road at George Mason 
University. 

• 	 Yield to Pedestrians Program: The "Yield to Pedestrians in Crosswalks $100 - $500 
Violation Fine" Signs Program is administered by FCDOT. Currently FCDOT has 
installed and maintains over 1,800 of these signs at 455 intersections in the County. 

Summary Page 2 

(147)



December 2010 Status Report on the Board's Four-Year Transportation Program 
for FY2008 Through FY2011 

Summary of Highlights from January to December 2010 

Bicycle Program 
• 	 On-Road Bike Lane Initiative: This is a cooperative program between FCDOT and 

VDOT. Our 201 0 program was reduced significantly due to the budget constraints and 
cut-backs in the VDOT summer repaving schedule, the program that enables us to 
retrofit many of the secondary roadways with bike lanes and wider shoulders. In 2010, 
one mile of bike lanes were added on Wakefield Chapel Road between Braddock Road 
and Pulley Court. Design continues on Gallows Road Phase II, a County funded project 
that will extend the bike lanes from the W&OD to Old Courthouse Road, with 
construction anticipated in mid 2011. FCDOT Staff is currently working with VDOT on 
developing new bike lane projects as part of the 2011 summer repaving program. 
Specific routes will be finalized in early 2011. 

• 	 Increase and Enhance Bicycle Parking: FCDOT continues to improve bicycle parking 
countywide. Installation of 150 bicycle racks (purchased in late 2009) will be completed 
in early 2011 including sites at the Government Center, County owned park and ride 
lots, and VRE stations. Additionally, bids were solicited in late 2010 for the purchase of 
bicycle lockers to be installed at the Massey-Judicial Center and park and ride locations 
in Reston. Staff is currently exploring opportuntties to implement Bikestations© or 
bikeports at locations including Reston Town Center Transit Center, Metro Stations, 
Tysons Corner, and Stringfellow Road Park and Ride Lot. These facilities will provide 
safe, enclosed, secure parking for bicycles. 

• 	 Silver Line Metrorail Station Bicycle Improvements: Bicycle staff is coordinating with 
WMATA and MWAA on finalizing bicycle facilities and amenities at the new SHver Line 
Stations in Tysons and Reston. Concepts for an enclosed, secure bicycle parking facility 
and retail center are currently being evaluated for the new Wiehle Avenue Station. 

• 	 Bike the Sites Map: FCDOT was awarded a transportation enhancement grant for 
FY2010 to complete a bicycle map that highlights a route along historic Civil War sites in 
Fairfax County. This allocation will also fund the installation ofwayfinding signage and 
interpretive markers along the bicycle route. Federal approval to initiate this work was 
received in December. An RFP will be issued in January 2011 for cartographic and 
design services to complete this map. 

• 	 Bicycle Master Plan Study: Approved in 2010 by the Board of Supervisors, Phase I 
(Greater Tysons Area) is anticipated to be completed in February 2011. Phase II, 
encompassing the rest of Fairfax County, will begin in Mardl2011 with completion 
estimated in 18 months. 

• 	 Bicycle Route Signage: Staff is currently preparing sign plans for several bike routes 
countywide. Routes include three locations in the Dranesville District, the Fairfax County 
Parkway, and the GMU-Fairfax City-Vienna Metro Station Bike Route. 

• 	 County Bicycle Parking Policy and Guidelines: Staff is completing work on the 
development of the County bicycle parking standards. This document will provide 
guidance to both the development community and governmental agencies responsible 
for the design, installation and maintenance of bicycle racks and facilities. The 
guidelines also provide bicycle parking ratio based on land uses in order to calculate the 
number of racks required. 

Summary Page 3 

(148)



December 2010 Status Report on the Board's Four-Year Transportation Program 
for FY2008 Through FY2011 


Summary of Highlights from January to December 2010 


• 	 Plan Review and Technical Sl4lPort: Bicycle staff has assisted DPZ with rezoning, 
special exception, and special permit applications relative to bicycle design elements. 
Staff has assisted private sector applicants with choosing the proper equipment and 
placement of bicycle racks at commercial and retail sites Countywide. Staff continues to 
process and coordinate traiVbike lane/sidewalk waivers with DPWES (as part of 
FCDOr's support to the Trails and Sidewalks Committee. 

• 	 Bobann Drive Bikeway: Design and engineering was initiated in late 2010 for the 
construction of the Bobann Drive Bikeway, approximately one mile of paved shared use 
path connecting Centreville to the Stringfellow Road Park and Ride and the trail network 
leading to Fair Lakes. This link will also provide a necessary connection as part of the 
"Bike the Sites" historic sites bicycle map. 

• 	 Bike Sharing/TIGER II Grant Application: As part of the 2010 regional TIGER II Grant 
Application process, Fairfax County requested funding for 16 bike sharing stations with 
100 bicycles as well as funding for the Reston Town Center Transit Center Bikestation©. 
Unfortunately, the regional grant was not approved. 

Transportation Planning 
• 	 In 2010, 4 major Comprehensive Plan amendments were completed for activity centers: 

Springfield, Tysons, Annandale and Bailey's Crossroads. 

Tysons Corner Planning Studies 
• 	 The Tysons Corner Comprehensive Plan Amendment was approved by the BOS on 

June 22, 2010. By 2050, the plan envisions Tysons as home to up to 100,000 residents 
and 200,000 jobs Because the plan was designed to take advantage of the 4 new Metro 
stations coming to Tysons Corner in 2013, 75% of future growth will be within a half mile 
of these stations. 

• 	 Tysons Corner will be transformed into a walkable, green, urban center based on the 
plan approved by the BOS and the associated Zoning Ordinance for Tysons. The Board 
also adopted 20 follow-on motions to guide implementation of the plan These follow-on 
motions included direction to conduct several studies, noted below, that have been or 
soon will be initiated. 

• 	 The Tysons Circulator Study will examine in detail how the conceptual circulator system 
contained in the plan could be implemented. An RFP was issued in December 2010 and 
the study will commence in early 2011. 

• 	 The Dulles Toll Road (DTR) Ramps Study will look at new ramp connections between 
the DTR and Tysons that will help move traffic in and out of Tysons Corner. Staff is 
currently developing the RFP for an operational study, which will be followed by a study 
of preliminary design. 

• 	 The Grid of Streets study will look at how Tysons can be transformed into a walkable 
urban center through redevelopment of land and a corresponding grid of streets that 
would offer alternative streets for travel within Tysons. A planning level study is complete 
and further study of operations and prelininary design is planned for early 2011, 
following initiation of the Ramps Study. 

• 	 A public meeting was held Dec. 15 on financing Tysons transportation improvements. 
Staff activity and stakeholder discussions continue. 

Summary Page 4 

(149)



December 2010 Status Report on the Board's Four-Year Transportation Program 
for FY2008 Through FY2011 

Summary of Highlights from January to December 2010 

Traffic Operations 
• 	 Traffic Operations has analyzed and/or responded to approximately 120 citizens' 


concerns regarding traffic operations and signal timings through Fairfax County. 

• 	 In late 2009, the Board endorsed a new County code restricting the parking of 

commercial vehicles on public roads in residential areas and requiring taxicabs and 
limousines to be registered in Virginia. This new code became effective in early 2010. 
The County initiated an online, mail and in-person awareness campaign to reach out to 
commercial vehicle operators and taxicab and limousine owners. Since the policy was 
implemented, there has been a significant decrease in the number of complaints 
regarding these vehicles. 

• 	 A major accomplishment was the approval of multi-way stop signs at the intersection of 
Trap Road &Gelding Lane. After 3 unsuccessful attempts to gain VDOT approval, 
Traffic Operations conducted their own detailed analysis and re-submitted the request to 
VDOT for their reconsideration. Upon a review of our findings, VDOT reversed their 
earlier decision and supported the requested signage. 

• 	 In response to concerns from citizens along Wolf Trap Run Road, FCDOT successfully 
developed a conceptual plan to improve the right turn turning radius from Wolf Trap Run 
Road onto Route 7. 

Traffic Calming Program 
• 	 The traffic calming team has accepted responsibility for aU phases of the traffic calming 

program. County staff now oversees projects from the initial qualification to overseeing 
the construction related activities associated with installation. These activities include 
permit application development, contractor interactions, and inspection of the work. 

• 	 All traffic calming devices that have been installed since the'inception of the program are 
now identified in a newly created GIS file, which is updated as the traffic calming devices 
are installed. 

• 	 In coordination with Board offices, FCDOT made changes to the traffic calming program, 
increasing the upper limit of the volume threshold eligibility requirements for project 
qualifications. 

• 	 Twenty-nine (29) traffic calming projects were initiated for study. 
• 	 Ten (10) projects were approved by the Board for installation. Five (5) sites have been 

completed. 
• 	 To ensure that the $200 Fine for Speeding and Watch for Children signs are installed as 

quickly as possible, FCDOT staff are completing the field work to identify sign locations 
and create work. orders for VDOT installation. While this has created additional work load 
for FCDOT staff, this work is typically done in conjunction with other field reviews and 
staff time associated with this process change has not been impacted. With FCDOT staff 
completing the VOOT work. orders, we have been able to streamline and reduce the 
overall time required for sign installation. 

Signage, Community Parking District (CPO) and Residential Permit Parking District 
(RPPD) Programs 

• 	 The County has increased fines for violations from $40 to $75. 
• 	 In 2010, there were seven (7) public hearings for new or expanded CPOs, and three (3) 

public hearings for new or expanded RPPDs. 

Summary Page 5 

(150)



December 2010 Status Report on the Board's Four-Year Transportation Program 
for FY2008 Through FY2011 

Summary of Highlights from January to December 2010 

• 	 The County developed oountry-wide and district-specific maps of existing CPDs and 
RPPDs, and made this information available online for citizens. 

• 	 The RPPD program was expanded in 2010 to indude townhouses abutting a public 
street. RPPD also successfully secured Tax Administration approval to validate DTA 
vehicle registration prior to issuing a parking permit, as well as initiated the use of an 
online RPPD application form to allow citizens the opportunity to apply for permits 24 
hours a day, 7 days a week. 

• 	 The County successfully completed the installation of new FCDOT stickers with updated 
contact information on over 7,000 Fairfax County-installed signs, as well as initiated a 
cumulative historical tracking system of all incidents involving Fairfax County signs. 

Bus Stop Safety and Access (Bus Stop Improvement Program) 
• 	 Fairfax County places a priority on providing safe access to efficient transportation 

options induding pedeslrian amenities and transit service. A comprehensive inventory 
and study of all bus stops in Fairfax County identified undesirable bus stop conditions for 
priority action. The Board has identified $2.5 million from the general fund and $7.75 
million in the 2007 Transportation Bond for improvements to the priority stops identified 
in the study. 

• 	 102 sites have been completed since implementing the bus stop improvement program. 
There are currently 20 sites in project development, 116 in design, 21 in land acquisition 
and 10 under construction. 

Bus Shelter Advertising Program 
• 	 FCDOT is engaged in a public/private partnership to aid in the improvement of bus 

stops, which is expected to raise revenues through the sale of advertising space on bus 
shelters. The contractor will sell advertising space to subsidize construction, 
maintenance, and operation of bus shelters, and will share a percentage of the surplus 
revenues with the County. The contract was awarded in July 2010. 

Fleet Expansion and Replacement of Older Buses with Cleaner Buses 
• 	 Fairfax Connector is committed to improving its fleet of passenger vehicles. Fairfax 

Connector has added 107 new transit vehicles to date with "Clean Diesel" buses, which 
are low-floor and more easily accessible than the older vehides. 

• 	 Twenty-four older buses have been re-built so that additional service life can be realized. 
• 	 Fairfax Connector received 31 "Clean Diesel" buses in 2009. The buses received 

included the EMP system, which classifies them as Mini-Hybrids. Fairfax Connector 
anticipates buying an additional 16 to 18 of these buses in 201012011 as expansion 
buses to be utilized in support of TDP and Dulles Rail. 

Transit Development Plan (TOP) Activities 
• 	 FCDOT staff provided final recommendations including implementation plan in early 

2010. 
• 	 Consultant staff completed work on several ancillary tasks to review Fairfax Connector 

public information materials and methods of presentation and transmission. 
• 	 Consultant staff began work on preparing appendix to include resu~s of ancillary tasks, 

including review of public information materials and media and review of Fairfax 
Connector business model. 

Summary Page 6 

(151)



December 2010 Status Report on the Board's Four-Year Transportation Program 
for FY2008 Through FY2011 


Summary of Highlights from January to December 2010 


• 	 FCDOT has implemented several high priority service changes recommended by the 
TDP, including: creating a new Route 159 serving the Richmond Highway corridor in the 
peak periods; modifying the schedule and alignment of Route 574; modifying the 
schedule and alignment of the RIBS routes in Reston; and creating additional service on 
Routes 621, 622, 623 and 644. 

Transit Studies 
• 	 In 2010, the Board funded and directed staff to conduct a Countywide Transit Network 

Study in order to plan a long-term efficient, hig/t-quality transit system for the County's 
growing population and employment. This study will use the Enhanced Public 
Transportation Corridors (EPTCs) currently identified in the Fairfax County 
Comprehensive Plan as potential future mass transit corridors as the basis for 
developing a connected Countywide Transit Network. A scope of work was drafted and 
presented to the Board of Supervisors Transportation Committee in late 2010. A 
Request for Proposals (RFP) will be advertised in early 2011 and it is anticipated that a 
consultant will be on board in the Spring. 

SPOT Transportation (Special Populations Transportation) 
• 	 Seniors On-The-Go! and TaxiAccess are two user-side subsidy taxicab programs 

managed by FCDOT's Special Populations Transportation programs (SPOT). 
• 	 From October 1 st to December 15th 

, the Seniors On-the-Go! registered 30 new 
participants, for a cumulative total of 5,064 registrants since the program's inception in 
2001.701 coupon booklets were sold during this period with a street value of $ 23,133. 

• 	 TaxiAccess registered 14 new participants in the same time period, for a cumulative total 
of 579 registrants since the program's inception in 2007. 176 coupon booklets were 
sold, with a street value of $ 5,808. 

• 	 The SPOT staff also continued distribution of free Senior SmarTrip cards to older adults 
for use on the local fixed route transit system (bus and rail). Since the beginning of the 
distribution, Senior SmarTrip cards have been distributed free to over 573 seniors. 

Transportation Demand Management (TOM) and Mixed-Use Development 
• 	 The County has integrated Transportation Demand Management (TDM) strategies into 

the land devebpment process and is working to formalize this program. TDM proffers 
promote alternatives to single occupant vehicle trips. These proffers contain 
commitments to provide TDM services, goals for percentage trip reduction, and 
remedies or penalties for non-attainment of proffered goals. The TDM proffer 
coordinator is negotiating proffers and monitoring implementation and performance of 
existing proffers. 

• 	 A consultant study on integrating TDM into the land use and approval process is near 
completion: data collection, research and draft reports have been completed, and 
recommendations for TDM and parking in transit areas were presented to the PC and 
BOS transportation committees in November. Application of the study recommendations 
will lead to more effective TDM strategies and formalized arrangements for TDM 
proffers. 

• 	 Preliminary findings from the TDM study were used to inform staff recommendations for 
the TDM and Parking sections of the draft Comprehensive Plan text prepared for the 
Tyson's Corner Committee of the Planning Commission. 

Summary Page 7 

(152)



December 2010 Status Report on the Board's Four-Year Transportation Program 
for FY2008 Through FY2011 


Summary of Highlights from January to December 2010 


Telework and Outreach 
• 	 The Fairfax County government telework program currently has 1,348 employee 


participants, and continues to encourage teleworking countywide. 

• 	 The Fairfax County Employer Services Program (FCESP) partners with major 

employers, developers and multi-family complexes to promote and encourage 
alternative commute options. To date, 209 Fairfax County employers have implemented 
a Level 3 or 4 transportation benefits program, and another 197 employers have 
implemented a Level 1 or 2 program. Level 1 and 2 programs may include commuter 
surveys and/or supplying data for a commuter/employee density plot, distributing transit 
information, implementing alternati\.€ work schedules, or hosting an on-site 
transportation fair. Level 3 and 4 programs may include shuttles to/from transit stations, 
implementing formal telework programs, offering transit subsidies, providing free or 
premium parking to carpools and van pools, or implementing a comprehensive bike/walk 
program. 

• 	 The FCESP is also supporting the Congestion Mitigation Program for Dulles Rail and 
HOT Lanes construction by coordinating employer and community outreach with 
regional partners, including VDRPT, VDOT, DATA and TyTran. 

Safety, Traffic Flow, Signals, and Congestion Management 
• 	 VDOT optimized 404 signals located in Fairfax County this year. The traffic signal 

optimization effort resulted in total annual savings of $19 million based on reductions in 
delay, stops and fuel consumption. A breakdown of savings by roadway network is as 
follows: 

o 	 Route 28 and 29 Network (67 signals in the Centerville area) - total annual 
savings of $6 million. 

o 	 Reston Area Network (103 signals in the Reston area) - total annual savings of 
$3.5 million. 

o 	 Route 50 West Network (76 signals on Lee Jackson Memorial Highway, West Ox 
Road, Stringfellow Road, Centreville Road, and adjacent corridors in the 
Centreville and Chantilly areas) - total annual savings of $7 million. 

o 	 Tysons Corner Network (44 signals in the Tysons Corner area) - total annual 
savings of $2.5 million. 

• 	 In an effort to alleviate traffic congestion during holiday season, VDOT developed and 
implemented special holiday timing plans near six major shopping malls (114 signals) in 
Fairfax County. The holiday timing plans were in effect from Thanksgiving Day 
(November 25, 2010) to New Year's Day (January 1, 2011). 

• 	 VDOT actively participated in the implementation of the Traffic Management Plan (TMP) 
for the Capital Beltway HOT Lanes and other Northern Virginia Megaprojects to reduce 
congestion during construction. Efforts include the proviSion of Safety Service Patrollers 
to assist motorists and law enforcement/emergency personnel with inCident 
management, continued public outreach in the provision of real-time traffic information, 
the provision of transit options and subsidies, and proactive management of incidents 
within construction work zones by VDOT Operations Center. 

Summary Page 8 

(153)



December 2010 Status Report on the Board's Four-Year Transportation Program 
for FY2008 Through FY2011 

Summary of Highlights from January to December 2010 

• 	 In conjunction with a planned repaving project, a "road diet" was implemented on a 
2-mile section of Lawyers Road east of Reston Parkway. The street was remarked 
from two lanes in each direction to one lane and a bicycle lane in each direction, 
separated by a center turning lane. The change has significantly improved safety. 
Minor pavement marking changes were implemented on four other roadways in Fairfax 
County as well. 

• 	 In conjunction with repaving projects, VDOT made minor modifications to pavement 
markings in many locations throughout Fairfax County. The changes are intended to 
improve traffic safety and operations, and include features such as new left-turn lanes, 
improved delineation ofexisting turn bays, and upgrades to meet current marking 
standards. The most significant changes were implemented on Route 1. 

• 	 Bike lanes were installed on Wakefield Chapel Road between Braddock Road and 
Route 236. The markings were installed both to promote alternative travel modes and to 
help reduce traffic speeds on Wakefield Chapel by narrowing the travel lanes. The 
marking changes were completed in conjunction with the 1-495 HOT Lanes project. 

• 	 VDOT has studied intersections for signals, signage, marking and traffic control devices 
and recommended improvements at various locations. 

Incident Management 
• 	 Comprehensive evacuation plans: VDOT Northern Region Operations is 

collaborating with VDEM, the recipient of a UASI Grant of approximately $1 .5M, to 
investigate emergency evacuation within the National Capital Region transportation 
network (Interstates and arterials). Two projects are underway. One project is aimed at 
developing an evacuation transportation plan (identification of traffic control points, 
resource needs, staging areas, etc.). The other project employs traffic simulation to 
estimate evacuation times from various locations within the National Capital Region. 

• 	 Pre-Disaster Recovery Task Force: Fairfax County has received funding from the 
Department of Homeland Security's Urban Areas Security Initiative (UASI), to prepare a 
Pre-Disaster Recovery Planning project. FCDOT is working as part of the leadership 
team, along with other county agencies and community partners. The final project will 
provide a template for future, long-term regionalized disaster recovery planning and a 
single reference for guiding policy and action during this long-term recovery. In 
summary, the recovery plan will: (1) provide County leaders with goals, priorities, and 
action to accelerate and streamline Fairfax County's recovery to full functionality; (2) 
solidify the Office of Emergency Management's strategy for handling disasters at all four 
phases, as outlined in the Emergency Operations Plan (EOP); and (3) the Plan will 
support the County's regional partners (NCR) recovery efforts after a regional disaster. 

Other Projects 
• 	 AF to RW Third Track Reconstruction Project: VDRPT, VRE, and CSX, working with 

Amtrak and the Federal Railroad Administration, identified six projects to increase 
passenger rail capacity and reliability between Richmond and Washington, D.C. Five of 
the six projects are complete, and the final project is in progress. This project will 
construct seven miles of third main line track north of the Franconia-Springfield VRE 
station and add Signal system components. Construction is expected to be complete by 
late 2010. 

Summary Page 9 

(154)



Completed Projects List 

December 2010 

Rt Project Description District Completion Date 

0001 Richmond Highway Public Transp. Initiative (Phase 1) MV, LE Oct-07 

0007 Leesburg Pike/Glen Carlyn Road MA Apr-10 

0007 Leesburg Pike/Magarity Road DR,PR Apr-10 

0007 Leesburg Pike/Dranesville Road DR Apr-10 

0007 Leesburg Pike @ Magarity Road DR, PR Nov-08 

0028 Route 28 @ Frying Pan Road PPTA HM,SU Dec-09 

0028 Route 28 @Willard Road PPTA SU Dec-09 

0028 Route 28 @ New Braddock Road SU Sep-09 

0050 Route 50 Pedestrian Bridge MA Jun-09 

0050 Lee Jackson Highway Walkway SP Apr-10 

0050 Arlington Boulevard/Olin Drive MA Apr-10 

0123 Route 123 @ Waverly Way DR Aug-10 

0123 Dolley Madison Boulevard @ Ingleside Avenue DR Dec-09 

0123 Dolley Madison Boulevard/Great Falls StreetlLewinsvilie Ro DR Apr-10 

0193 Georgetown Pike Trail DR Jul-10 

0193 Georgetown PikelWalker Road DR Dec-09 

0193 Georgetown Pike Stone Rubble Masonry Signs DR Jul-10 

0236 Route 236 @ Braddock Road WB MA Nov-09 

0236 Route 236 @ Braddock Road EB MA Nov-09 

0236 Route 236 from Lake Drive to Pickett Road MA, BR, PR Jun-08 

0236 Route 236 @ Beauregard Street MA Jan-09 

0236 Little River Turnpike/Backlick Road MA Apr-10 

0244 Columbia Pike Walkway MA May-09 

0608 West Ox Road from Penderbrook Drive to Ox Trail SU,PR Jul-08 

0608 West Ox Road @ Monroe Street HM Apr-08 

0613 South Van Dorn Sidewalk LE Apr-09 

0620 Braddock Road @ Route 236 MA Sep-08 

0620 Braddock Road at Thomas Jefferson HSS& T MA Jun-09 

0620 Braddock Road @ Route 123 SP Jun-09 

0620 Braddock RoadlWakefield Chapel Road BR Nov-10 

0630 Quander Road Wa Ikway MV Aug-09 

0633 South Kings Highway @ Harrison Lane LE Aug-10 

0643 Burke Centre Parkway at Roberts Parkway BR Jul-10 

0651 Guinea Road @ Falmead Road BR Sep-10 

0653 Roberts Road Walkway BR Apr-10 

(155)



Rt Project Description District Completion Date 

0657 Centreville Road from West Ox Road to Frying Pan Road HM,SU Jun-10 

0657 Centreville Road Trail at Dulles Toll Road HM,DR Feb-08 

0662 Stone Road from Route 29 to Awbrey Patent Drive SU Apr-08 

0668 McLearen Road Walkway HM Apr-10 

0674 Hunter Mill Road Walkway PR Aug-09 

0676 Clarks Crossing Road Walkway HM Jul-09 

0681 Walker Road Trail DR Jul-10 

0684 Spring Hill Road from Route 7 to International Drive PR, HM Aug-10 

0693 Westmoreland On-Road Bike Lanes DR Aug-08 

0694 Lewinsville Road/Balls Hill Road DR Apr-i0 

0696 Wolftrap Road Walkway PR Apr-io 

0701 Sutton Road Walkway PR Oct-io 

0783 Edgelea Road Walkway PR Oct-1o 

0824 Tuttle Road Trail SP Dec-09 

1332 Huntington Avenue @ Fenwick Drive MV Aug-08 

1723 Jefferson Avenue Walkway PR Apr-1o 

1898 Beverly Road @ Fleetwood Road DR Aug-09 

3664 Lido Place Walkway PR Aug-09 

4701 Colts Neck Road Walkway (South Lakes Drive to Winterthu HM Oct-lO 

4720 Soapstone Drive Walkway (Sweetbay Lane to Glade Drive) HM Jul-09 

7702 Tall Timbers Drive SP Oct-07 

XXX)( Huntington Metro Parking Expansion MV Aug-08 

XXX)( Burke Centre VRE Parking Expansion BR Nov-08 

XXX)( West Falls Church Bus Canopy DR Jan-1o 

XXX)( West Ox Bus Operations Center SP Oct-08 

(156)



FenOT Staff 
CL Caijun Luo 
CWS Charlie Strunk 
DPWES = Dept. ofPublic Works & Env. Services 
EAI = Beth Jannetta 
GM = Guy Mullinax 
JYR = Jane Rosenbaum 
KLM Karyn Moreland 
KPR = Kinnari Radadiya 
SAN Seyed Nabavi 
SLC = Smitha Chellappa 
SSS = Sung Shin 
TB Tad Borkowski 
WPH Bill Harrell 

Status 
Bid Ad 
Complete 
Construction* 
Design 
Inactive 
On Going 
On Hold 
Project Initiation 
ROW Land Acquisition 
Study 
Terminated 
Utilities Utility Relocation 

* Construction phase begins when design and ROW are 
complete, and may include pre-advertisement activities, 
bid advertisement, and contract award. 

Fundin2- Source 
ARRA = American Recovery & Reinvestment Act of2009 
C & I = Commercial and Industrial Tax 
CMAQ Congestion Mitigation & Air Quality 
County Bonds = Fairfax County 4-Year Transportation Plan 
GCRP = Governor's Congestion ReliefProgram 
HSIP = Highway Safety Improvement Program (j()rmerly HES) 
NVTC = Northern Virginia Transportation Commission 
NVTD Bonds Northern Virginia Transportation District Bonds 
OPN Funds = Open Container Program 
Primary Primary 6-Year Program 
RSTP = Regional Surface Transportation Program 
Secondary Secondary 6-Year Program 
TAC Spot Transportation Advisory Commission Spots 
TIIFIWMATA Transit Investment & Infrastructure Fund 
VNDIA Virginia National Defense Industrial Authority 

Other 
CIM = Community Information Meeting 
COG Council ofGovernments 
CTB Commonwealth Transportation Board 
DTR Dulles Toll Road 
FHWA Federal Highway Administration 
FY Fiscal Year 
MOA = Memorandum ofAgreement 
NIA Not Available, or Not Applicable 
NIR Not Required 
NTP = Notice to Proceed 
PPTA = Public-Private Transportation Act 
RFP = Requestfor Proposal 
VDOT = Virginia Department ofTransportation 

(157)



Oecember 2010 Status Report on the Board's Four-Year Transportation Program for 
FY 2008 Thru FY 2011 


3 

6 

6 

,FiJ=SCh,dul, c, Concern 

Status 

fnterstate & Primaf'/ Road Projecfs (listed l1umencaily by route number) 

BR, MA. 1-495, Capitai Beltway HOT Lanes. (PPTA Protect!: 
PR, DR Install:.:! HOV1HOT lanes each direction from 

Springfield Interchange to the Dulles Tol! Road 

PRo SP 1-66 from Capital Beltway to Route 50: Pavement 
rehabihtation 

HM, PR, 1-6& from .-495 Capital Beltway to Route 15 in 
SP. SU Haymarket: 1-66 Multi-modal Transportabon and 

Environmental Study 

PR Vienna Metro Enhanced Transit AC«SSi (1-66 
BuslHOV Rampt: Construe! bus ramp to increase 
accessibility to Vienna MelIorail Station for transit 
vehicles 

lE. MV 1·9$ from Newington Interchange to Prince William 
County Line: Construct a fourth lane in both directions 

LE, MV 1·95 Woodrow 'Nilson Bridge & Interchanges: 
Design> righl-ot-way acquisition, environmental 
mitigation and conslJ'uction of new drawtmdge (bascule) 
span over the Potomac River including reconstruction 
of 1.5 miles of the Capital Beltway (1-9511-495) and 4 
interchanges,2 in VA and 2 in MD 

LE:, MA 1~9S/395/495 Interchange Mod;fk;;ations Phase Viti 
(Mixrng Bowl): Construct MOV/HOT cQf1neclions 
between '·9511"39511-495 

LE. MV, 1·9511495 HOT Lanes: Add one reverSible HOV/HOT 
MA lane from the Pentagon to Dumfries Road, and e:.tend 

2 HOv/HOT lanes sooth to Massapooax; Construel 
new Park and Ride lois, nnprove elostlng bus access 

LE. MV Richmond Highway Public Transportation 'nmaUve 
(Phase 2); RGute 1 (Richmond HW;) corridor 
improvements from ~ol1 Belvoir to the Huntington 
Metro Stanon, to support enhanced aRT bus !iervice 
including pedestrian access improvements, bus 
sheHers and Sidewalks 

DR 

PR 

Route 1 @ Towlston Road: Add a left; turf! lane from 
NB To\'Aston Road jo we Route 7 (Leesburg Ptke) 

Route 29@Gallow' Road: Widen Route 29 to 6 
lanes from 1~495 to Merrilee Drive, and ¥oriden Gallows 
Road 10 6 lanes from Gatehouse Road to PrOVidence 
Forest Drive 

SP, SU, Route 29 from Shirley Gate Road to Old Centreville 
BR Road: VViden to:3 lanes on NB Roule 29 from legato 

Road to Shirley Gate Road 

SP_ BR Route 29 from Stevenson Street to Holly Avenue: 
Construct segments of a new shared-use path and 
provide connection to exilHtng trail on the ~sl SIde of 
Route 29 

MA Arlington Boulevard @Graham Rood: Install a 4-1001 
WIde raised median on Graham Road 

VDOT 

VDOT 

VDGT 

VDOT 

VOOT 

I VDOT, MDSHA, 
FHWA 

VOOI 

VDor 

COUNTY 

COUNTY 

VDoT 

COUNTY 

COUNTY 

COUNTY 

$54.500 

$4.000 

$4.4QO 

$0750 

$7.:;00 

$0.750 

$23.000 

$1.654 397 ~ ..._Ap_,._0_5.. _j.~_........-+__t_'-l 

$70000 

520.300 

$17.079 

$122.411 

R 
~U~~·Mar.08 

C May-O' 

Jun-09 o 
R NIA 

t 
-~'-r---;-,-~
Dec-12 t 
Dec-H) © 

NfA 

u ~F-eb~1r+--;Nc;o-V-:-1"'2--!-"-.""-.-
c 

TBD Jun-13 

~ NIA "7NCC1AC""+-" .._-_.. 

$2.444.000 0 Sep·96 © 
R ©

'u - _..,·......·_--+--©"'-....I 
C+--2~0~0~1-+·....-c2~O~I~2-~~t

$128.085 

$498.000 o TBD ' TBD 

'Rr-----rSD ..1..--;To;B;;o;DC--+--....~ 
r.IU70I"-"T~~B~D~----~T~B~D-+-..---..~ 

IC TBD TBD'-

$28574 0 Mar-OO TSD 

"II f-~,--..,·.. +~·'T'BC7"D-+ -~

fuf- NIA NIA --;:;y;:
f-C~~T=BD~ ..+..·-~TrIB=-D-f- .. -- 

$132810 0 Feb-a. Dec-O? © 

~~:~7:~·····~....-~©~-'-4 

D Nov--{)6 

50p-11 

~ $3410 

~ U NIA NfA NIA 

+8Q to Jul 
11 

R Jan-11 

~ c ~~~···-=D.-C-l=-2+-"= 

Summary Chart Page 1 


(158)



December 2010 Status Report on the Board's Four-Year Transportation Program for 
FY 2008 Thru FY 2011 


I 

9 

9 

10 

10 

11 

11 

12 

13 

13 

14 

14 

Statu, Key; I:' ~, Scllodute, ~=Behind A Sm,. P,ovious , <t I Concern 

PR 

OR 

MA 

HM 

MV 

HM 

SR 

SP,MV, 
LE 

Phase Kev: O=DesIQn; R=Rjght~of-Way ACQtJiSltiofl; U"-'Utility Relocation; C:IIIConstruction{includes pre-ad, bid ~d,"~f'ld comract award} 

Proiect Description 

Route 123 @ Jerrnantown Road: Conslruci right turn 
lane from SB Route 123 onto WB Jermantown Road 

Georgetown Pike/Swinks Mill Road: Install flashing 
beacon warning signal 

Lead AQenc';l 

COUNTY 

VDOT 

A~in I 
All OtherTotal Project BOS's 4~Yr 

Cost Pc:lc::.n""-~,--,-F.::un:::d:.:''-I j 
(S in Millions} Q. Start Date

"."' ~ 00
o Noy·l0 Dec·11 

~" ~'~:~""':. NOI/,11 

~f~TBO TBD 

C Jan-12No v-12 

D May-l0 TBo 

TBO Teo 

Teo I 
2011 

u Teo 

20t1 
-

Secondary Road Projects (listed alphabeticaliy by project name) 

Braddock Road@BaCklickROad:lnstalladditionaIICOUNTY$O.500$0 500 ~~~ __Mar~OS 
second left turn lane on W'B Braddock Road ~ - , 

R TeD_I TeD ____ 

i ~~f---~:~'-~= 

TBD 

Centreville Road Trail@DullesToI1Road(Phaseil):COUNTY $0,250 ~~ $0.250 0 Aug-DB Aug-10 © 
Install pedestrian improvements and traffic signal ~ '-R- r~ NJA-- .•~-N!A N/A 
modifications to cross Centreville Road at the DuUes 
ToU Road Interchange ~ -U ~~···~~NJA~-~~ 

"// ~~iOto _10 ----~ 

Cinder Bed Road @ N.wingtDn Road: Intersecbon 

Improvements 

Cohs Neck Road from South Lakes Drive to Hunters 
Woods Shopping Center: Conslruct sidewalk on west 

side of Colts Nee,", Road 

Danbury Forest DriveiBraddoek RoadfWakefield 
Chapel Road Intersection Study: Study feasibility of 
intersection improvements 

Fairfax County Parkway (EPG): Construcl4~ane 
divided, limited access highway ""thin 6-1ane ROW 
from Rolling RoadfFranconfa,Springfield Parkway to 
Fullerton Road, including 4 Interchanges 

COUNTY 

COUNTY 

COUNTY 

FHWA 

// Jan·l1 May·11 
$5.000 

5177.450 ~ $t77 450 : ~M_'_'-_OO~F__'+__b_·04_.__l--~_©:::'v~ 

~ ~ No,-08J ul.'2i, 
SP. SU Fairfa" CDunty Parkway I fair Lakes- Bl)ulevam I 

Monument Ortve Interchange: Construct interchange 
and intersection improvements from 1·66 to Roule 50 

VDOT $69.660 ~ $89.726 

~ 
o Oct-01 Jun-10 © 
, ~---.-''',-;-;;--I---=--
R Sop-OS i Dec,1 0 © 

SP 

HM 

Faimx County P.rt<way from Route 29 to Sraddoe$( 
Road: Add S8 auxitiary lane 

Fox Mit! Road/Monroe Street: Install right tum lane on 
WB Fox Mill Road and add pedestrian improvements 

MV, SP Gambrill RoadlPohiek Road: Install right turn lane on 
sa Gambrill Road 

SR 

PR 

Guinea ROlId @ Falmead Road: E)(tend sidewalk 

sooth on Falmead Road to Guinea Road; install 
missing trail segment on Guinea Road; Pedestrian and i 
drainage improvements 

Hunter Mill Road/Mystic Meadow Way: Reconfigure 

intersection ""th roundabout and new 
pedeSlTlanlbicycle facifities 

COUNTY $1000 

COUNTY $0.850 ~ $0.850 

~ 
COUNTY $0.500 ~ $O,SUO 

~ 
COUNTY 

COUNTY $0.800 ~ $0.800 

~ 

tI M.,·07 : '~""De-:-C---';:;Qc-1C---©=•• 

C May,10 

o Nov-10 

Ii Apr·12 

u TeO I 
c Ap,·13 I 

D Mar-10 

OCI-13--+--:-t>--1 

feb·ll 

Dec-12 
TBD"-l-----I 

Jun-11 

R -----reo ----cT~a~D~+~""---I 

u TBD Teo 

u TBO : TaD 
f-cc+--:-Jan_=---l13+-cs:--CeP- jco3-41----""~ 

Summary Chart Page 2 


(159)



December 2010 Status Report on the Board's Four-Year Transportation Program for 
FY 2008 Thru FY 2011 


15 

15 

16 

16 

17 

17 

18 

18 

19 

19 

20 

20 

21 

21 

Statu. Key, P ,Report;F!hSchedu,e ~, 
Phase Key: D=Design, R=RlghHlf,Way AcquisItion, U=Utility RelocatIon: C=Construcboniindudes pte-ad, bj{j ad, and contract award) 

su lee Road Culvert: Extend existing drainage structWE' 

and ~den pavement from 500' S 01 culvert to Pen/ose 
Place 

MV Lorton Road/Fumace Road from Silllerbtook Road 
to Route 12.1: Widen tl) 4 lane dIvided secUon 

including on-road bike lanes, shared use path. low 
impact development practices, budge crossings and 
wde median in laurel Hill area 

OR Old Dominton Drive @ Spring Hill Road: E)(!end 
shoulder and relocate/modIfy ditch 

DR Okt Dominion Drive @Towbton Road: Exlend 
sh.oulder and relocate/modify ditch 

SU Poplar T1ft Road ftom Braddock Ridge Orive to 
Sequoia Farms Drive: Widen to 4 lanes 

MV Saratoga Park-N-Ride Facility: Develop park-n-ride 
facility 

MV SHverbtook Road @Hooes Road: Intersection 
Improvemenls to conligure [urn lanes on we 
Sdverbfook. Road appr.oach 

PR, HM Spring Hill Road from Route 7 to Intema1ional Drive; 
Widen 10 4 lanes 

SU. SP Stringfellow Road from ~out& 50 to Fai..- Lakes 
Boulevard: Widen to 4 lanes 

LE Telegraph Road from South Van Oem Streetto 
SOQtf\ Kings Hwy; Widen to 4 lanes and add 
Ipedestrian improvements 

PR, HM Tysons Priority Access Improvement Projects: 
Sites 1-7 & 9: Construct IllIssing links in the pedestrian 
eU(~ulation s~tems at eIght locations In Tysons Comer 

OR Walker Road: Install road diet features and access 
lanes at business distoc! jn1ersecti.ons south ot 
GeorgetoW!'l Plke 

OR 

8R 

Vltestmoreland Street@Haycock Road: Install right 
turn lane and concrete sidewalk along the west side of 
Westmoreland Street from Haycock Road to Tempte 
Rodef Shalom 

Zion Drive; Improve the horizontal curve at Zioll 
Baptist Church 

Amtin 
Tolal Project BOS's 4·Yr All Other 

End Date 

Cost Plan Funds QI 

lead Anencv f--=='---{':-$-=-'n-'M""I"m'-on-'-'-I-==--1i. Start Oate Status 

VDOT $4.541 

COUNTY 540000 

COUNTY $0050 

COUNTY $1500 

COUNTY $6500 

VOCT $3000 

COUNTY SO.350 

COUNTY $10900 

VDOT 554.692 

VDOT $10500 

VOCT $3370 

COUNTY $0400 

COUNTY $0.8eo 

COUNTY 5tooO 

~ $0.350 

~ 

o Juo-l0 

R Dec-12 

U Z013 

C 2014 

o TBD 

TBD 

2013 

2014 

TBD 

TSD 

..................

R c----;T"'B"'D:--+-.T"'e"o-r---i 

u TaO 

C TBD 

D Aug-07 

R .-. N/A 
----

U N/A 

C ~lo 
Feb-f1 

TBD 

Teo 

_to 
Jan-11 

NfA 
--N~IA~l-~--1 

Aug-C_l-~' -+---11----1 

~ '''- ::.~~~-::'::::: ~ 
~ C ·De~Oa =:2~ 

$37.000 546000 D Jul·04 I Dec..i)9 i 
R Apr-10 I Jun·l1 ~ 

$0.230 

51000 

$10.000 

$1300 

$0.400 

U Jul·09 Jun-

C Jul-12 

o SeJr09 

R T80 

U TBD 

C T8D 

o Mar-04 

~1--·Dec-06 

U TBD 

C T80 

·R· TeO 

Dec-13 

TBo 

T80 

2013 

Dec-DB 

Dec-10 

TBD 

TBO 

May-Uto 
Aug-l1 

TBD 

f-;U~t-~T..B"O;--'-~T"B"D·--

C NO\l-l1 Apr-12 

$0.880 D Nov·CJa 0&4-H to 
TBD 

~ -_+>10 O«-Hto 
TBD TBD 

Summary Chart Page 3 


(160)



22 

23 

24 

25 

25 

December 2010 Status Report on the Board's Four-Year Transportation Program for 

FY 2008 Thru FY 2011 


$1.000BR, SP George Mason University Transit Center: ConstfUcl COUNTY TBD TBD 
transit center with up to 10 bus bays and amenities 
such as shelters and lighted kiosks .... ~~ 

5",1\1. Key: "",- , "'=On Sched"'e;'~=B.hind .J\. Since Previo", ReportJll=Schedule ' '1:,., IConee" 

Phase Key: D=Oesj n; R=RI ht·of-Way Acquisltlc/"i, U~UtiHtv Relocation; C=Coostruction(includes pre-ad, bid ad, and contract award) 

Amlin 
Total ProjEct BOS's 4·YI' AU Other.i1 

f--"Co:::'!:'_-L,---:,p",la""_l-..:.F.!u,,nd::;':--j ~ 
.~ ~ 

0. 0 " Pr(fect OescriDtion Lead Aoencv I ($ in Millions) if Start Date End Date Status 
Transit Projects (listed alphabetically by project name) 

22 DR. PR. 

HM 


DR, HM Fairfax Conneetor - Herndon Bus Garage Facility COUNTY $6000 
Rehab {Phase 2): Rehabilitation and repair to upgrade 
the existing bus 'la/age-

Northern Virginia Community C;C;.:;;'Ie=g::.:C;r'=",=n=-srt'·--+--;:C;;O;-;U;:;NTYTV-t--$"'~.5"'-;-'-+-$",:'0;;;0°0-l'~W7777h..D~"""T~B;-;D~-+"""T~B;-;O~+---I 
Center: Construel transit center WIth up to <4 bus bays 

BR23 
~ 

and amenities such as shelters and lighted klos'KS Y'/h R TBD TBD 

10~c-~~c-~~~---
COUNTY $L182 $1000MA Seven Comers Tran.titTransfer Center: Construct 24 

tJansit transfer center at the Seven Comers Shopping 

Center; Improvements to existing bus stops 


Stringfellow Road Bus Transfer Facility: Provide 3 COUNTY $1.500su $\.500 
additional bus bays (tolal of 6) and.it Iransit store kiosk 

COUNTY $4.000SU Str1nt1eltow Road Park & Ride Lot Expansion: $4 000 
Construct an additio .... al 300 spaces mHth of the 

exisllng 387 space facility 


WMATA $2.000 52.000PR Vienna Metror.'1 Stain::ase: Add new staircase from 
platform to mezzanine at Vienna Metro Station 

58.17037 $'21.980 $8,057.75 ,,'" '''''',',...... 

Summary Chart Page 4 

(161)

http:8,057.75


1-495 1-495, Oapital Beltway HOT Lanes (PPTA Project) 	 Construction 

Iinstatltwo HOV/HOT lanes in each direction from the Springfield Interchange to the Dulles District(s): MA 
Toll Road 

FCDOT Staff: 	 WPH 
1______________ .. __ r==---==r=='---------r----:------,-::--

Illllplementing Agency: l 
1 iProject cos

t l ~~~~~~ - Schedule IStatus---b
mI I ($ in Millions) Start End 

IAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) Design! 267.142 I I Apr-05 ..------- ~ 
..- I If--------------+-----------i1 

N/A I Land Acquisitionl 	 I 

!Type of Funding: 	 I Utility Reiocationl I Mar-DB 
I 	 1-------1----- . 

Private, Interstate, State 	 ~. constructi0"L 1387.255 . ..... i May-DB Dec-12
1

I m Totall -1654.397 I 1654.397
ActiVity Highlights: 	 __________ ___---"____------'L.m · 

IDesign-build project; Lane and ramp closures at night and during off peak travel times continue; 12 interchanges are under construction from 
ISpringfield Interchange bridges to just north of Dulles Toll Road overpasses; The Oak Street overpass opened to traffic in mid-July 2010, and the 
'1'.I.d.ylwood Road overpass is closed for construction for approximately 6 months; Detour route maps and construction activity details are posted at 
wvvw.virginiahotlanes.com or www.vamegaprojects.com 

1-66 1-66 from Capital Beltway to Route 50 	 Design 

!Pavement Rehabilitation 	 District(s): PR,SP 

FCDOT Staff: L======__~~: 
[imPlementing Agency: I ProjeciC()st' Project Schedule Status 

.mVDOT ]-93002 [m_ ($ in MiIIi;~;ding 
Start Eng 

[Amount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) I _m~~signl_ I Jun-09 Dec-10 

N/A N/AN/A 	 Ii La~d ACqUisit~~.ooo 
Utility Relocationl ~ 

constructionl 1 	
© 

.. . . 	 Total 70.000 70.000 
Activity Hlahhahts: 	 ---- - -.- ... 

Design/build project; Project was scoped in June 2009, but funding was not allocated until summer 2010; VDOT advertised the RFP in September 
2010; Notice to Proceed is anticipated in February 2011 ; This is a pavement rehabilitation project, with no added capacity; All work requiring lane 
IClosures is planned for night-time. 

CL 

I 

(162)

http:www.vamegaprojects.com
http:wvvw.virginiahotlanes.com


1-66 1-66 from 1495 Capital Beltway to Route 15 in Haymarket Study 

!l=66 Multimodal Transportation and Environmental Study (Study only) District(s): HM, PR, SP, SU 

FCDOT Staff: SSS 

Implementing Agency: [project costl Project Schedule Status 

I 
VDOT 54911 

____________________________ 
I 

i 
. Funding 

($ in Millions) I Start End 
!Amount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) [ ________________ Design' 20.300 [·--~TBDjun-13 

iType of Funding: 
I 

N/A ! Land Acquisition.

lUtility~:I~=ati~L 
I 

r 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A I 

N/A_~ 
Interstate Construction, 

Lnnnn Totall 20.300 
nj 

20.300 

N/A N/A I 

J___ 
Activltv Hiahliahts: 
! ------------------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------------------------

In June 2010, VDOT made significant changes to the 1-66 Multimodal Study; Project management was transferred from VDOT's Northern Virginia 
District office to Richmond; Following short-listing and interviews, a contract was anticipated to be signed in December 201 0; Schedule now 
anticipates completion of draft June 2012 with final report complete June 2013 

Vienna Metro Enhanced Transit Access (1-66 Bus/HOV Ramp) Design I 

Iconstruct bus ramp to increase accessibility to Vienna Metrorail Station for transit vehicles District(s): PR 

FCDOT Staff: 

Ilmplementing Agency:

l VDOT nnn] 81009 

IAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) 

~nn N/A 

IType of Funding: 

CMAQ, RSTP 

~cti"itv Highlights: 

Utility Rei 

Project Cost I Project 
Funding 

17.079 

Schedule 

Start End 
Nov-05 Dec-11 

N/A N/A 

N/A N/A 

2013 TBD 

Status I 
I 

ID 

31.382 

34.082 

'VDOT is designing a f1yover ramp from 1-66 EB HOV lane to/from Saintsbury Drive; A connection to the 1-66 EB ramp from EB Saintsbury Drive is 
~also being considered; Design PH is scheduled for Fall 2011 ; VDOT is preparing an Interchange Modification Report (IMR) to FHWA; Based on the 
!discussion among VDOT, FCDOT, WMATA on December 16,2010, the use of the proposed ramp is for Bus Only; HOVoption is not considered at 
Ithis point due to the potential delay to get FHWA approval. 

CL 

(163)



-------

1~95 1~95 from NeWington Interchange to Prince William County Line Construction 

Construct a fourth lane in both directions from Newington Interchange to Route 123 District(s): LE, MV 

FCDOT Staff: EAI 

Schedule Status,Implementing Agency: [project Cost Project .1.1 

I Funding
I - VDOT 57017 ,---- i 

.-j_.--i!in ~illions) j ----,Start End I 

in Board's 4~Year Plan: ($ in Millions) Designl 9.779 r L-0ct-OO JUn-02__ @j 
N/A . land Acquisitionl 0.551 I Dec-05 Dec-06: 

of Funding: 1-UtilitYRelocation) _ - __ I Dec-05 Dec-06 I 
Interstate Icon~tructi~;t- 112.080 ! Sep-uf Sep-11 ~ 

l .._____ Total, 122.411~1~~.411 
Activitv Hiahliahts: 

lone of VDOT's "mega-projects"; Construction is 72% complete; Four SB lanes from Fairfax County Pkwy to Route 1 was completed October 29, 

12010; Additional details found at www.vamegaprojects.com 


I 


, 
1-96, Woodrow Wilson Bridge and Interchanges Construction I 

'I'Design, ROW, env. mitigation, construction of new drawbridge over Potomac River incl. 
reconstruct 7.5 miles of Beltway (1-95/495) and 4 interchanges, two in VA and two in MD 

I 

District(s): 

FCDOT Staff: 

LE,MV 

CWS 

Ilmplementing Agency: iProject cost!,! Project 

I 
-. - ------- I Funding 

'.. 
VDOT, MDSHA, FHWA 11813..6,18138 ($' M'II' )

In I Ions 
rrn~~nt~n Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) I DeSign!.. 

! N/A r-and AcqujS!ti~~L I 
IType of Funding: IU~ility Relocati~nL __ I 

Start 

1'___ 
__ .__ 

Schedule 

End 
Sep-96 

IStatus I 
I I 
1 ' 

I 

• ©1
-hQJ 

._1 @I 

~. Interstate _ constructionl 1 I 2001 2012 I ~ I 

-
Activitv Hiahliahts: 

Totali 
' 

2444.0 I 
. 

2444.0 I 

IProject continues on-time and on-budget; Reconstruction of the Telegraph Road interchange is the final phase of the Woodrow Wilson Bridge 
project. Work includes widening a two-and-a-half mile section of the Capital Beltway extending the new thru and local lane configuration from the 
Ibridge, building new elevated ramps connecting the Beltway to Telegraph Road, Eisenhower Ave., Huntington Ave., and North Kings Highway and 
limprovements to Telegraph Road; Additional details f()und at \IV\IIIW.wilsgnbridge.c;om or \IV\IIIW.vamegaprojects.com 

(164)

http:IV\IIIW.vamegaprojects.com
http:www.vamegaprojects.com


I 

Construction 

ilmplementing Agency: 
1--------------------------------
! VDOT I 14682 

IAmount in Board's 4·Year Plan: ($ inMiliions) 

N/A 
~ -

Type of Funding: 

Interstate 

"'roJect costl Project Status 
Funding 

~~ --($ in """"nn",, 
~---D--es-i-g--1n 21 .192 1 ---,-~-----+-~-~~ Start Jun-97 

I © I 

Land Acquisition ~N~~~-----N-~----+I-N/Ai 
, I 

Utility Relocation N/A NfA j N/A 1n 

May-OS , ~ 
_I__~~ ! 

128.085 
Activiw Highlights: 
jDesign was completed as part of the Springfield Interchange project, but construction was deferred; Construction in progress as part of the 1-495 
iBeltway HOT Lanes project; 7 bridges under construction at the Springfield Interchange; Most steel and deck bridge structures were completed in 
12010; All bridge work for the Springfield Interchange is scheduled to be completed by the end of 2011; Additional details found at 
[www.virginiahotlanes.comor~... amegaprojects.com 

Status 

1·95/1·395 HOT Lanes 

Add one HOV/HOT lane (3 total) from Pentagon to Dumfries, extend 2 HOV/HOT lanes to District(s): 
Massaponax; Construct new Park and Ride lots, improve existing bus access 

FCDOT Staff: 

IProject Cost I Project 
! I Funding 

____-+1 ~ ($ in Millions) im 
Designl, 

Land Acquisition! 

Utility Relocationl 
--+-'--~ 

constructionl' 

Total, 498.000 498.000 

!Implementing Agency: 
I 

VDOT 

Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) 

N/A 

of Funding: 

Private 

Activitv Hiahliahts: 

Schedule 

... ~~~ ~g 

IjVDOT has placed the project on hold due to economic issues; Additional details found at www.virginiahotlanes.comorwwW.\lamegaprojectscom; 
Fairfax County has raised concerns about the project delay and has requested negotiation to resolve issues raised by Arlington 

I 
I 

(165)

www.virginiahotlanes.comorwwW.\lamegaprojectscom
http:amegaprojects.com
www.virginiahotlanes.comor


CL 

RichmondHwy Public Transportation Initiative (Phase 2) Design 

Route 1 corridor improvements from Fort Belvoir to Huntington Metro, to support enhanced District(s): LE, MV 
BRT bus service incl. pedestrian access improvements, bus shelters and sidewalks 

FCDOT Staff: 

!'mp'ementing Agency: 
----_.

COUNTY 
, 
iAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) I 

iPrOjec.t cost]...proje,ci n I 
I Funding I
I u_n ($ in Millions)n . : 

DeSignl uJ . 
Start 

Mar-06 

Schedule 

End 

TBO 

IUStatus I 
i 

u-l . 

I t, 

7.500 I Land Acquisitionl Jul-10 TBO! ~ 

iType of Funding:
I I~~.jilty Fielocatiorl . NfA NfA I N/A 

Federal, State, Local r~~~stru~::~ u-S4.50o-1 28.574] TBO TBO I 
Activity Highlights: 
[Phase 1 (five walkways and a REX bus stop shelterfis complete; Phase 2 includes intersection improvements at Frye Rd. and Kings Hwy, 9 
Iwalkways - 1.25 miles, and 6 additional intersections; Frye Road and Lukens Lane intersections were redesigned due to design exception denial; 
IPreparing to authorize Kings Hwy for construction; Posted willingness to hold a public hearing for 7 walkways and 5 intersections in July 2010; For 
ladditional details see DPWE:S report http://www.fairfaxcountY . .90-'''clPW(3s/construction£cap_quarter.htm 

Leesburg Pike @ Towlston Road Design 

a left turn lane from northbound Towlston Road to westbound Route 7 District(s): DR 

FCDOT Staff: KPR 

Implementing Agency: ,Project Costl Project Schedule IStatus I' 

I Funding
COUNTY tI ($ in Millions) Start End i 

[Amount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) I .. DeSignr I Nov-08 Mar-11 t, I 
~------------------------------- Il..and AC:quiSitlon.-· ... Oct-10 Jul-11 -... ~I 0.750 

" Jan-11 Sep-11 ".&.I.! 

IType of Funding: I Utility Relocation! TBO T80 1 

r- -------l 2007 County Bonds r constructionl! 'SepH+--- June-12 .. A I 
f _ Nov-11 Jul-12 .&.I.! 

I Total 0.750 0.750 
Acti'l.itv Hiahliahts: I 

i'ntermediate Design submitted for review Jan. 2011; Schedule revised to address preliminary plan comments 

l 
I 

"I "';' 

-----1 

(166)

http://www.fairfaxcountY


Widen Rt. 29 to 6 lanes from 1-495 to Merrllee urlve, ana Wlaen Ga.l1ows Koaa to 0 lanes District(s): 	 PR 
from Gatehouse Road to Providence Forest Drive 

FCDOT Staff: 	 SANt	 ~.... 

[Irnplementing Agency: 	 II Project Cost[' Project 'I Schedule iStatus; 
d" I 	 . 

1 	 'Ii un mg I 
I ($ in Millions) ! Start End .

IAmount;" B::'~;~4:yearplan:I(;:~~~:::~ 	
F 

:-- - DeS~i-g-lnl- 9.958 	 II Feb-04 Dec-07 I ©! 

23.000l .... I ,-~nd ACqUiSi~Oni 71.880 .. Jan-07 Oct-08! © 

[Type of Funding: ! Utility Relocation! May-DB Jun-11 I ~ 
Federal, State, Primary 6-Year tCOnsi~5~~lI32.810 	 Jun-13 _J-Mar-11l .., 

Activity Highlights: 

[PrOject costs are for the roadway, building demolition and waterline relocation projects; Utility relocations are in progress; 

8,2011 


0029 Route 29 from Shirley Gate Road to Old Centreville Road 	 Design 

[Widen to 3 lanes on NB Route 29 from Legato Road to Shirley Gate Road 	 District(s): BR, SP, SU 
I 

I 

I 

[Implementing Agency: 

: COUNTY 
~,---------. 

'IAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) 

, 4.000 

Type of Funding: 


2007 County Bonds 


Activity Hiahliahts: 

FCDOT Staff: 	 JYR 

Project Cost' 	 Project Schedule Status 
Funding 

c-------;:::-:--:-:':-:-;;----;:
($ in Millions) Start End· I 

Design 

constru~:;[ -4000 	

Dec-DB Mar-ll I "'~AI 
Mar-12 ~ 	 \) £.l 

Sep" 1 0 Apr"11: fl. ' 
May-11 Jan-12 I .~ 

Land Acquisitionl 

TSO TSD !Utility Relocationl 
i-_~I 

May-11 Jul-12 
May-12 JUI-13 I fl.i 

4.000 

Intermediate design distributed for review 11/29/10; Signal design submitted 12/16/10; Scope of the project is being revised to combine with Rte 
29/Shirley Gate Rd improvement project. 

(167)



0029 Route 29 from Stevenson Street to Holly Avenue Design I 

!Iconstruct segments of a new shared-use path and provide connection to existing trail on the District(s): BR, SP 
west (SB) side of Route 29 FCDOT Staff: JYR 
I 


Ilmplementing Agency: !,project cOS,',i'l Project I Schedule IStatus '" 

I I Funding ! I 

COU NTY 59094 , 
,--__" '_ I ___ ($in MiITIOi1S)" --- I Start End I II 

IAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) i De~ I Nov-06 TBD I 11;
i JUI-ll 1 , 

I N/A i Land Acquisitionl 1 Jan-11 Sep-11; I 

Irype of Funding: Ut~ty Relo~~tio~I___ ,.._' N/A I_N1A)N/A 

constructionl i ! Nov-11 Dec-12 I !Revenue Sharing 

Activity Highlights: L_ , ___uTOtalju-4,4001 3.4d 
Ipostingofwillingness notice to hold public hearing was completed June 26,2009; VDOT authorized land acquisition package on 10/27110 

I 

['0050 Arlington Boulevard @Graham Road DeSign! 

a 4 foot wide raised median on Graham Road District(s): MA 

FCDOT Staff: TB 

iln1~lementi~~AgenCY: Project Status 

COUNTYl
r 
IAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) Jun-11 iI:o 

N/A TBD TBD 

!Type of Funding: TBD TBD 

Oct-11 Dec-11 

0.750 0.750 
Activitv Hiahliahts: 

[part of the C&I Project Program endorsed by the BOS on October 19, 2009; Final design in progress 


20 ~f 

(168)



----

Route 123 @ Jermantown Road 

right turn lane from SB Route 123 onto westbound Jermantown Road District(s): PR 

FCDOT Staff: JYR 

StatusImplementing Agency: Project Cost Project I Schedule 
I Funding I 

COUNTY , ($ in Millions) . ~--+I---S-ta-rt------E-n-d--

IAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) DesignlmJ+ Nov-1 0 Dec-11 <i';)i·· 
I 

N/A I Land AcqUisitionl : I Apr-11 Nov-11 I 
Type of Funding: ~tility Relocation I I TBD TBD t-' 

C & I i CO~~:I_ 0900-1- 0.900 I __.... Nov-12 --IJOO.12 

Activitv Hiahliahts: 
C & I funding approved by BaS March 23, 2010; Survey complete; Intermediate design in progress 

0193 Georgetown Pike/Swinks Mill Road .D~~·i~i~J 
Iinstall flashing beacon warning signal District(s): DR 

FCDOT Staff: TB 

Schedule!Implementing Agency: 
I 

, I ($ in End 
VDOT 

N/A 

Designl 

I L..andAcquisitio--+nl----~ 

! Utility Relocationl 
I--- ,. . ............ ----+.---
. Construction! 

lAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions)
! 

TBD 

TBD 

IType of Funding: 

. C & I 

TBD TBD 

2011 2011 
I 

Total: 
ActivilM':'i<,)hlig hts: 
IPart of the C&I Project Program endorsed by the BaS on October 19, 2009; Flasher will be located within existing VDOT right of way; Construction 
lanticipated in early 2011 

I 

(169)



__ 

....------~--

0620 Braddock Road @ Backlick Road On Hold 

Iinstall dual left turn lane on WB Braddock Road District(s): MA 

FCDOT Staff: KPR 

:Implementing Agency: --; 
l ! 

• COUNTY u1 
IAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) ! 

I 0.500 

r Designl 

I Land Acquisition! 

Project Cost Project 

~~~~~~F_u~n_d_ing+' 
($ in Millions) i 

1 

Start 
Mar-OB 

TBD 

Schedule 

End 
TBD 

TBD 

Status 

f-iitmty Relocatlonl 

Construction 
-----1 

TBD 

TBD 

TBD 

Activitv Hiahliahts: 
Total 0.500 0.500 

iPre-final plans submitted in April 2010; Project on hold; Preliminary analysis of possible roundabout is underway by county staff 

0657 Centreville Road Trail at Dulles Toll Road (Phase II) Design I 
I 

fnstallpedestrian improvements and traffic signal modifications to cross Centreville Road at District(s): HM 
Ithe Dulles Toll Road Interchange 

FCDOT Staff: JYR
L:-:==-==-=============;__ 
[implementing Agency: !Project Cost Project Schedule fStatusI 

I _I I.... Funding , 
, COUNTY I ,"" I ($ in Millions) Start _--=E:.:cn=d____-+-__ 
[Amount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) 1 Design! Aug-OB Aug-10 
, .~ 

-I 

Land ACqUisitiO~"- N/A • N/A 
, ~----+-.,,- u____ -----1 -____ 

[Type of Funding: IUtility Relocationl NJA nL N/A 
I

Construction- Dec-10 Mar-11I TAC Spot, C&I 
, Jan-11 May-11 

- --- ,,,,,u--Totall 0.250 0.250l- -
Activitv Hiahliahts: - ....~----.... 1 .... --

IPhase I, construct pedestrian walkway under Dulles Toll Road, completed Feb. 2008; Phase II, VDOT permit received Sep. 2010; Forwarded 
!preliminary construction package to DPWES for construction Dec. 2010 

(170)



l0637 Cinder Bed Road @ Newington Road DeSig~ 
Intersection Improvements, including relocating intersection 450 to the north. reconstruction District(s): MV 
lof Cinder Bed Road, sidewalk. and culvert at long Branch Creek 

FCDOT Staff: TB 

ilmplementing Agency: Project Cost 
Funding--------... ------ uf ____un_no. ----.--------

($ in Millions) Start: End
jAmount InBOard'S~?~~;,an: ($1;;Miiiions)I kand-ACqU~:::j --- ,:~:I :r ~!I!I . 5.000 

I Jul-11 Mar-12 I 

:Type of Funding: Utility Reiocationi L TB"- I ..~.i
I 

2007 County Bonds Construction Dec-11 A' 
May-12 Aug-13 ' 

Total 5.000 5.000EActivity Highlights: --
!Intermediate design in progress; Design exception submitted to VDoT 718/10, awaiting response 

Co,lts Neck Road from South Lakes Drive to Hunters Woods Shopping Center Construction I 
-r=======================~=~=====::::i]----------------_______! 

'I'Construct sidewalk on west side of Colts Neck Roadl District(s): HM. MA 

i FCDOT Staff: KPR 

llmplementing Agency: I I Project Cost Proj~ct Schedule I Status i 
COUNTY ' l Funding . I 

IAmol.lntinBoard'S 4.Year Plan: ($ in MilliOns)i _ --DeSign) ($ in Millions) i ~U~~O~ UU1 D~~O r-.. -_I 

N/A lI La~d Acquisltionl .. ---- i Mar-06 
1 

Sep-()6 I@ I 
--- --------- _'. _.--- .1 l- I 

Type of Funding: Utility Reiocationj L NfA I N/ANfA I'I 

TAC Spot construc.t. i. o..n." " , Jan-11 Apr~11 AI_ Feb-11 May-11 I 

Total 0.366 0.366 
Activitv Hiahliahts: 

IVDOTPerml1 received; Preparing construction package 

, 

(171)



... StUdyjI 3806 DanburyF~rest-Dr/Braddock RdlWakefield Chapel Rd Study 
I 

,Study Feasibility of Intersection Improvements and Realignment (Funded for Study only) District(s): 	 BR 

FCDOT Staff: 	 EAI 
L 

[Implementing Agency: !Project Cost 	 project.. ... ).... Schedule 
FundingI 	 COUNTY , ($ In Millions) ..I -  DeSi9l1r- 02~--,'" 	 ....----"'T"'B~D-······· ~ IAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) 

I N/A 	 , Land ACqUisitiOnjl 	 ~I N/A 

Utility Relocation	 .... N/A N/Al'rype ,,(FUnding: c & ,- 

Construction 
1m l i 

Total! 0.200 0.200 i 
I 	 ... JActivitv Hiahliahts: 

IPartof the C&I Project Program endorsed by the BOS on October 19. 2009; Community meeting held on January 27,2010; Consultant selected and 
NTP issued on August 27,2010; CIM being scheduled for Fall 2010 

7100 Fairfax County Parkway (EPG) 

Construct 4-lane divided. limited access highway within 6-lane ROW from Rolling District(s): LE, MV, SP 
Road/Franconia-Springfield Parkway to Fullerton Road, including 4 interchanges 

FCDOT Staff: 	 TB 

!Implementing Agency: 
I 

FHWA 

'Amount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) 

N/A 

of Funding: 

Federal, State. RSTP 

Activitv Hiahliahts: 

IProject Cost Project 
Funding 

I ($ in Millions) 

Designl 

I 

Start 
Mar-DO 

Schedule Status 

Land Acquisition"! 
..._... ------jl'----- 

Utili~Relocationj_____ 

Construction! 

.Totalt 177.450 177.45 

Nov-DB ~ 

IProject will be completed in four phases; Phase 3 and 4 construction in progress; Fullerton Road was opened to traffic November 2010; 1-95 SB exit 
Ito parkway opened 12/28/10; Phase 1 & 2 complete and open to traffic in Sept. 2010; Phase 4 completion December 2011; Phase 3 completion 
!2012 

(172)



7100 Fairfax County Parkway I Fair "'.akes Parkw~y I Monument Drive Interchange Construction I 
1 

Iconstruct interchange and intersection improvements from 1-66 to Route 50 District(s): SP, SU 

1 FCDOT Staff: JYR 
l. 

Ilrllplementing Agency~ -_... iProject Cost Project Schedule ---r-Status I 
I • I; Funding I 
t. . . VDOT I t ($ in Millions) Start t u--End --l1U 

IAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) I i Design! 8.905 Oct-01 I Jun-10 . 
, , II © 

N/A I Land Acquisition! 2.585 r--Sep-05 
I. 

!Type of Funding: h.itility Relocatio'r1! I © 
I RSTP,ARRA I Construction) 58.170 ; ~ r---- u I ..-----"----... 

L Total: 69.660 89.726 J"'n 

partially funded by ARRA; "Pardon Our Dust" meeting held October 27, 2010; Daytime pile-driving expected Jan. 8-9 at Rte. 50/FFX County 
Pkwy interchange 

I' 7.100-F~1rfa~-county Parkw~YfrOm Route 29t~8raddock ROCId Project Initiati;;~II' 
L_-,===================:c-=========;-______________---..J. 

!Add SB auxiliary lane J District(s): SP 

L--. ... FCDOT Staff: SSS 

Ilmplementing Agency: , [Project Cost' Project I Schedule IStatus 

: COUNTY I I Funding I I 
~ I. ($ in Millions) 'Start End I 
rAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) i I'" ....-.... DeSig-.nil TBD T.B.D. . ' 
; ill 1 j 
. 1.000 I !i.and Acquisitionr--" I" TBD i "--TBD--- 1-·······1

Foot Funding: j [LJiiiiiyRe.Oc.9 TBD I TBDt-: 
I 2007 County Bonds I I constructlonl TBD . TBD . 1 

1.000 1.000TO!all
Activitv Hiahliahts: 

IFairfax County is administering the project; Design proposal approved; Schedule to be developed upon completion of survey work 


(173)



___ 

- --

[~~65~ Fu Mill Road/Monroe Street Project Initiation 

right turn lane on WB Fox Mill Road, and add pedestrian improvements District(s): 

FCDOT Staff: 

HM 

TB 

[Implementing Agency: froject Cost Project Schedule -rtatus : 
I······ 

I COUNTY 
:

I 
~___m 

, Funding 
Millions)

__-+__~.. Start End. 
IAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) I Design Nov-10 Feb-13 
I I 

N/A I Land Acquisitionl Apr-12 Dec-12 
i 

of Funding: Utility Relocationl TBD TBD 

constructionl Apr-13I Dec-13 

Totali 0.850 0.850 __.L...-_---J 

Activity Highlights: l_m .1.1--------

iPart of theC&1 Project Program endorsed by the BOS on October 19, 2009; Survey complete; Preliminary design in progress 

Design 

[Install right turn lane on SB Gambrill Road District(s): MV,SP 

I FCDOT Staff: SSS 

Status! 
Funding 

Implementing Agency: Project Cost Project Schedule 

L 
($ in Millions) Start 

Amount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) Design! Mar-10 Jun-11 ~I 
Land Acquisitio~r--N/A 

\--......_ ... _j 
of Funding: Utility Relocationl 

Constructionl --- 
'-__________________....J 

Totall 0.500 0.500 
Activitv Hiahliahts: 

Ipart of the Project Program endorsed by the on October 19, 2009; Intermediate design comments received; Pre-final design in progress 


I 

(174)



I! 0651 Guinea Road @Falmead Road Completei 
1 

___________ 1 

sidewalk south on Falmead Rd to Guinea Rd; Install missing trail segment on Guinea District(s): BR 
Pedestrian and drainage improvements 

FCDOT Staff: KPR 
r===========~----~-----

jlmplementing Agency: p.roject Cost Proj~ct Schedule I Status!. 
I I. Funding. . 1 

..I ....... COUNTY _ 
 I'· ($ in Millions) i Start End ! 

IAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) r--m Designl iJun-05 Sep-09 !---I 

LandAcqUiSitionil···N/A ~ N/A N/AN/A ' 
.... 

I 

I . 
Type of Funding: ~Utility.. Relocat~o~l N/A n_m~_..~.IAm+N/A 

TAC Spot cconstru;::a~Ln 0.150 0.150 I sep~10 .© IJul-10 

Activity Highlights: 

~6'T4 Hunter Mill Road/Mystic Meadow Way 

Reconfigure intersection with roundabout and new pedestrian/bicycle facilities District(s): PR 

[Implementing Agency: ~ 

I COUNTY I 

IAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) I 

~p.~~:g, I
N/A 

I C&I I 

Activity Highlights: 

FCDOT Staff: SSS 

I Project Cost· - Project Schedule IStatus
l- .... Funding 
: ($ in Millions) .==J 

i 

..Start . End 

De~~~nr_____ 
Land Acquisition! 

Utility Relocation 
, 

Aug-10 Nov-12 

Sep-12 

TBD 

i:J 

Construction Sep-13 

Total,
! 

0.800 0.800 

iPart of the C&I Project Program endorsed by the BOS on October 19, 2009; NTP for design issued August 30, 2010; Survey is complete; 
IGeotechnical analysis in progress; Design in progress 

I 

(175)



lee Road Culvert D~;i9~ I 
drainage structure and widen pavement from 500' S of culvert to District(s): SU 

FCDOT Staff: KPR 

Ilmplementing Agency: I Project Cost Project IStatus 
I 	 I F d" 
. VDOT I 	 un '"g 

I

i , 

IAmount in Board's 4-Year PI~lI-":--($ in Millions) I ~...••.0 	 J~~~O_!. .••---~~~_ n. .-.-- ..Osign-
m 	 j~n-1_ 

In n___ NIA _La_ndA~_~~_lsl~.<>n 	 Dec-12 r 2013 I .' 

ITYpe of Fund::: I. Proffers. RSTP IUt~:~=:f--	 :~::ml ~:';'-+ ~••. 
Totali 4'541 2.294 

~---rActivity Highlights: un_uu ._____ _ _____----:-_____________---,-_,,-_______ 

Part of the C&I Project Program endorsed by the BOS on October 19, 2009; PFI was held December 8, 2010; Proffer and ROW ded ication 
[,information is being collected and reviewed; May post willingness instead of PH for ROW; Pre-ad conference will be scheduled in late 2013 

0642 lortonRoad/Furnace Road from Silverbrook Road to Route 123 
1 

,Widen to 4 lane divided section including on-road bike lanes, shared use path, low imP.act I District(s): MV 
Idevelopment practices, bridge crossings and wide median in Laurel Hill area ___~ FCDOT Staff: SAN 

~mplementing Agency: 	 IProject C-ost Project Schedule Status I 
I Funding

I 	 COUNTY 
I ($ in Millions) Start End !__=lu 

IAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in MiliiOns)l C DeSigi= Feb-08 	 ;~~~~~: ~ 11' 
Land Acquisi.t.-.ion-- ---	 'Oec-10 AUq-.11 ~~II ... ___ 20.000 	 : __ ___ 	 Mar-11 Nov-11 I----~ 
Utility Relocation! Jan-11 Sep-11' 11

I i TBD TBD I
'Type of Funding: 	 I 

u0eH12007 County Bonds, C&I Constructioni	 Jul-13 111, Dec-12 

Total 40.000 20.000IActivitv Hiahliahts: 
eotechnical report approved by VDOT 12/9/10; Plats under review; 3 design waivers approved; 1 waiver still under review; Pre-final design in 

progress 

(176)



-- -

0738 Old Dominion Drive@ Spring Hill Road 	 Design I 
IEx:tend shoulder and relocate/modify ditch 

Ilmplementing Agency: 

COUNTY 

Amount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) 

I N/A 
I -----
IType of Funding: 

C&I 

Activitv Hiahliahts: 

District(s): DR 


FCDOT Staff: TB 

.-
! Project Cost Project Schedule Status 
I, Funding 

.____ m!_ ($ in Millio-n-s'--)---=----+-L-----§~ 
Designl I May-10 TBD 

~-~~---+---=----+--~ 
Land Acquisitio_nl TSO ISO 

Utility Relocation! 
-----------  , 

ConstructionI 

TBD 

TBD 

TBD 

TBD 

Totall 
I 

0.050 0,050 

Part of the C&I Project Program endorsed by the BOS on October 19, 2009; Simple striping project was not approved by VDOT; Project being 
considered for inclusion with HOT Lanes Project; Coordination with VDOT ongoing 

Old Dominion Drive @ Towlston Road ~n Hold I 

Extend shoulder and relocate/modify ditch 	 District(s): DR 

FCDOT Staff: TBJ 
!lmPlementing Agency: 

I COUNTY I 

I"mount inBoard's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions I I 
N/A I 

IT~fFun~C&lm .j 
Activitv Hiahliahts: 
[Part of the C&1 Project Program endorsed by the BOS on October 19, 2009; Project on Coordinating with VDOT and Supervisor's office to 
Idetermine scope, level of interest/need 

IProject Cost Project 
I Funding 

Design 

Land Acquisition 
------1-1- 

Utility Relocation 

Construction! 
-

($ in 

Totall 1.500 0.050 

Start 
TBD 

TBD 

Schedule 

End 
TBD 

TBD 

Status 

i 

-----1 

(177)



~~~1~~PJar Tree Road from Braddock Ridge Drive to Sequoia Farms Drive 	 ROW 

lWiden to 4 lanes District(s): 

FCDOT Staff: 

Implementing Agency: Project Cost Project Schedule 
----------------- Funding
COUNTY 

End 
in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in 

-,-- ,-- ---_.__." 

Nov-10 

Oct-105.500 

May-11of Funding: 

Jan-122007 Bonds 

Activltv Hiahliahts: 

($ in Millions) 

Design 

Land Acquisition 

Utility Relocation 

Construction 

Totali 6.500 
I 

5.500 

... I Start [ 
I May-O? 
}--------

L
Mar-10 

Dec-10 

Feb-11 

Speed study will be completed after completion of construction; VDOT street acceptance processes and composite plat are in progress; Pool 
demolition in progress; VDOT perm it received 12/14/10; Utility relocation authorized 12/14/10 

SU 

KPR 

Status! 
! 

I 
© I 

© 
~ 

7900 	 Saratoga Park~N-Ride Facility Design 

!6evelop park-n-ride facility. District(s): MV 
I 1 

FCDOT Staff: TB 

StatusImplementing Agency: 
-_... 

VDOT 

Amount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) 

N/A 	

End 

Land Acquisitio 
---- I 
Utility Relocation 

constructionl' 

Total 

2.700 

Project Cost Project 
Funding 

($ in Millions) 

0.300 

3.000 3.000 

Schedule 

N/A 

!Type of Funding: 

CMAQ 

Activitv Hiahliahts: 
meeting held on 12/01/10 

i; 

(178)



SUverbrookRoad@HooesRoad Design 

ilntorc",,,t,nn improvements to configure turn lanes on the westbound approach of Silverbrook District(s): MV 

FCDOT Staff: JYR 

il~Ple~enting Agency: I

I COUNTY 'Ii 
Amount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) i 

i N/A "-1 
ITypeof Funding: 

n 

IProject Cost :~~~~~l Schedule 

($ in MiIliOnS)Start-=:.l-
Design Aug-O? I 

La~d AcqUisitionl
n 

N/A 

Utili'ty Relocati-(m, N/A 

End 
~~~~~~ 

N/A 

N/A 

status] 

I 
~ fl.l 

TAC Spot 

Activitv Hiahliahts: 

I 
1 

r--const,uctionj 

........ .._...._.. _-ro~l 0.350 0.350 Feb-l1 

Aug-11 fl.! 

[Schedule revised to add pedestrian crossing to project at request of community; Preliminary construction package being prepared 

I 
I 
i 

Spring Hill Road from Route 7 to International Drive 

to 4 lanes 	 District(s): PR, HM 

FCDOT Staff: JYR ......- ......
Project Cost Project StatusImplementing Agency: I 

FundingI COUNTY 
------------ ----+----IAITl~~nt inBoard's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) I- Designl 0.950 

($ in nlllll' ....nc:' 

f.-- 
1 N/A , h':~~d-~~~~i~itionl •. 3.650 

!Typeot Funding: I l Utility Relocation 

i Secondary 6-Year . 6.300Construction 

10.900 10.900 
Activitv Hiahliahts: 
Construction substantially completed August 2010; Addressing concrete median and illegal left and U-turn issues; Median to be extended beyond fire 
station; Construction of median to start Spring 2011 

Total 

(179)



1 

.Stringfellow Road from .Route SO to F;8irLakes Boulevard 

to 4 lanes District(s): SU,SP 

FeDOT Staff: JYR 

rlmPlementing Agency: ni 
, VDOT I 
iAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) 

i 37.000 

I 
I 
!Type of Funding: 

2004 & 2007 Bonds, Revenue Sharing, 

Total! 54.692 46.000 
Activitv Hiahliahts: 


IROWacquisition and utility relocation is in progress 


,-
0611 Telegraph Road from South Van Dorn Street to South Kings Highway -----D~~ig~] 


IWiden to 4 lanes and add pedestrian improvements 

Implementing Agency: 

VDOT 

iAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) 
I 

I 
t~~~ 

N/A 

IType of Funding: 

C&I 

Activitv Hiahliahts; 

.~==~~====~----~~~~------------- LE 
District(s): 

FCDOT Staff: JYR 

Project Cost. Project Schedule Status 
Funding 

($in·M~-illi-on-s-) Stem 
Design! 1.500 

Land Acquisitionl 1.000 
~~~~ -r 

Utility Relocationl 
i 

co~struction.. I· 

8.000 

Total 10.500 10.000 

iVDOT is administering the project; PH held September 23,2010; Coordination with FCPA and environmental agencies is ongoing 

. i 

l 

(180)



------------------------

-----------

-----

I~><i Tysons Priority Access ImprovementlProjects: Sites 1-7 & 9 ROW I 
missing links in the pedestrian circulation systems at eight locations in Tysons District(s): PR, HM 

FCDOT Staff: EAI 

[ImPlementing Agency: Project Cost Schedule IStatus I 

. VDOT ....__ _+ Start~_ ....~ End 
jAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) Designl 

I N/A 

ITYPe of Funding:
I 

Federal 

Activitv Hiahliahts: 

IProject consists of eight locations for pedestrian improvements (approximately 2,700 linear feet of sidewalks); VDOT/FCDOT project team is seeking 
iROW dedication from impacted property owners to stay within the federal grant agreement specifications and the funding allocation; Once ROW 
!dedications are completed, will proceed to construction under Special Advertisement & Award Process (SAAP) contracts 

rI 0681 Walker Road Design I 

road diet features and access lanes at business district intersections south of 
"Df"n,QTnU/n Pike 

J Project Cost Project 
Funding 

'Implementing Agency: 

COUNTY : 
($ in Millions) 

Amount inB()ard's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) I Design' 
I .... i 
I N/A Land Acquisition 

of Funding: Utility Relocation 

constructionr 
I

Totall DADO OAOO 
Activitv Highlights: 

~~~~~~~~~~~-

District(s): DR 

FCDOT Staff: TB 

Schedule Status 

Start 

Jul-10 


TBD 


TBD 


Nov-11 

Part of the C&I Project Program endorsed by the BOS on October 19, 2009; Intermediate design in progress; Continuing to meet with VDOT to 
address design and sight distance issues 

(181)



---------------------- ---------------------------------------------------------------------

r-o-693 Westmoreland Street @ Haycock Road Design I 
--------------------_._._._._._._._._._._._

Install right turn lane and concrete sidewalk along the west side of Westmoreland Street from Dlstrlct(s): DR 
Haycock Road to Temple Rodef Shalom 

FCDOT Staff: TB 

Ilmplementing Agency: 

, 

Amount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) 


0.230 

Actlvitv Hiahliahts: 
!Combined 2007 Bond walkway project with new C&I roadway improvement project; Project on Awaiting comments from FCPS due to 
iimpacts on Haycock Elementary school parking lot 

Project Cost· 

Design 

Land Acquisition, 
- -~----~~----~---

Utility Relocation 

Construction 

Total! 0.880 0.880 , .............. -~~~ 

Dec-11 
TBD 

Schedule 

End 
Oct-11 
TBD 

0et-11 
TBD 
TBD 

TBD 

Status I 

...~J 
b.1 
b. 

...-- -- .. ....-.---.. ---.-....- ...- ..-.-...- ._..._._...... _.. .~.-~--

0654 Zion Drive~------------------_................... -------------------------------

'1lmprove the horizontal curve at Zion Baptist Church 

'Implementing AgeIlCY: ----------------..........., 

COUNTY 

[Amount In Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ In Millions) 
i 

Final design submitted for review 12/21/10; Land acquisition in progress 

1.000 

Type of Funding: 

2007 County Bonds 

Activitv Hiahliahts: 

Design 

District(s): BR 

FCDOT Staff: TB 

Project Cost Project 

Designl
f----.----+! 

Land Acquisition! 

._---- ---

Construction 

! Funding 

r------
Utility Relocati~on. 

Total 1.000 1.000 

Schedule 

:J~~+-s~~~o 
Mar-11 

Jul-10 Mar-11 

TBD 

Mar-12 

Status 

0fb. 

(182)



Dulles Rail (Phase 1) , 	 Construction 
~-------------------

Ilmprovements from West Falls Church Station to Wtehle Avenue 	 District(s): DR, PR, HM 

FCDOT Staff: SAN 

IlmPlementing Agency: rProject Cost - Project 
_ MWAA 
i ! 

IAmo"n' in Board's 4-:~:r Plan: ($ I"Mlmons) I 
___ _ 

f=;::q~=:1 

Funding 
($ in Millions) 

- -

Type of Funding: 

Federal, State, Local, Tax District, MWAA 

- --------- - i 
Utility Relocation: 

i 
Construction 

Activitv Hiahliahts: 
Totall 2590,000 

Schedule 

Start End 
Jun-10 

Nov-DB 

Feb-OB Jan-10 

Route 7 service roads will be closed; Construction includes night work along roads leading to Route 7 and ramp closings at the Route 7/DTR 
interchange; Retaining walls are being built near Pike 7 Plaza; Construction of foundations for the stations have started; The right lane of SB Rte, 123 
lis closed from Scotts Crossing to 1-495 for approx, 2 years; For further information, http://www.dullesmetro.com 
I 

XXXX Fairfax Connector - Herndon Bus Garage Facility Rehab (Phase 2) 	 Construction 

Rehabilitation and repair to upgrade the existing bus garage 	 District(s): DR, HM 

--------------------, 

Implementing Agency: 

COUNTY ---------1I 

Amount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) i 

6.000 

Type of Funding: 

County Bonds 

FCDOT Staff: EAI 

Project Cost Project Schedule 
Funding 

Desig 

Land Acquisition N/A 

Utility Relocation N/A 


Constructiorll 
 Mar-OB 


Total I 6,000 6,000 


Start 
N/A 

Activity Highlights: 

Work includes pavement reinforcement, new bus wash bay, new oil separator, additional entry/exit gate, updated plumbing and electrical systems; 

new offices, storage area, and training rooms 


(183)

http:http://www.dullesmetro.com


----

I 

- . 

I XXXX George Mason University Transit Center Project Initiation I 


BR, SP IConstruct transit center with up to 10 bus bays and amenities such as shelters and lighted District(s): 
Ikiosks SANI FCDOT Staff: 
I 

StatusImplementing Agency: rProject Cost Project I Schedule 
Funding

COUNTY 
($ in Millions) 

- --- - - ----- -- -- - --- I i Start End I ! 
Amount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) ! Design I TBD TBD 

I! 
1.000 Land Acquisition TBD TBD 

I 
----- --------------- ---- --- ------ - --- ---- I 

i 
-

Type of Funding: Utility Relocation TBD TBD I 
!i 

i 2007 County Bonds Construction! TBD TBD 
I I i 

Total 1.000 1.000 
Activitv Hiahliahts: 
Icounty and GMU continue discussions on how to proceed with the project; 3 possible locations on campus identified 

XXXX Northern Virginia Community College Transit Center Project Initiation I 

]Construct transit center with up to 4 bus bays and amenities such as shelters and lighted District(s): BR 
Ikiosks 
I FCDOT Staff: CL 
, 

Implementing Agency: 

COUNTY 

Amount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) 

1.000 

Type of Funding: 

2007 County Bonds 

IProject Cost Project 
I Funding
I 

($ in Millions)I 
Design 

Land Acquisition: 

Utility Relocation 

Construction 

1.511 1.511Total 
Activitv Hiahlights: 
[FCDOT continues to work with NVCC to select transit center location on campus 

Schedule 

Start 
TBD 

TBD 

! 
I 
I 
! 

End 
TBD 

TBD 
i 

TBD TBD 
I 

TBD TBD 
i 

Status: 

I 
I 
I 
I 

! 

07 !" 

(184)



I XXXX Seven Comers Transit Transfer Center 	 Constructionj 
Construct transit transfer center at the Seven Corners Shopping Center; Improvements to District(s): MA 
existing bus stops 

l FCDOT Staff: TB 

IlmPlementing Agency: I Project Cost Project ;-- Schedule I Status 

I COUNTY I 

IAmouniinBoarc:i;s 4:-Vear-Plan: ($ in Millions) ! 


: 
I 

1.000 


IType of Funding: CMAQ 

Activitv Hiahliahts: 

!County permit received June 2010; VDOT permit received 10/12/10; Awaiting VDOT approval of construction bid package; Utility relocation work has 

I
Ibeen completed 

._---_..__.._-------------------_._.__. __.... _-_ .. _-- . 

~ Stringfellow Road Bus Tn 

IProvide 3 additional bus bays (total of 6), and a transit store kiosk. 	 District(s): SU 

FCDOT Staff: JYR 

I;Implementing Agency: 	 Project Cost Project ' Schedule Status 
, 	 I Funding 

COUNTY I $' M' I' ) I• ( In II Ions Start End 

:Amount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) I Design Apr-08 i TBD I ~ ! 


I I 	 I . 

: 1.500 I Land Acquisition! _____ TBD I TBD __~'__--, 

iType of Funding: ! Utility Relocationr-. TBD TBD II' 

I 2007 County Bonds ! Constructionl 	 TBD TBD, I 
I , 
, 	 __ ! I 

Totall 1.500 1.500 

Activitv Hiahliahts. I 


I Funding 

Design 

Land Acquisition, 
----  -.1 

Utility Relocationi 

Constructionl 
..L 

($ in Millions) 

Totali 1.182 1.510 

I 

i 
.J 

Start 
Jan-a? 

Oct-1U 

Feb-II 

End 
Oct-10 

Nov-II 
June-12 

© 

iProject combined with the Park and Ride Expansion; Site survey complete; Project management shifted to Fairfax County in June 2010; DPWES is 
!coordinating with FCDOT to determine detailed project scope; Contract negotiation in progress; Schedule to be developed upon NTP 

(;7 } f 	 .' 

(185)



------

I 

I XXXX Stringfellow Road Park & Ride Lot Expansion Project Initiation 

Construct an additional 300 spaces north of the existing 387 space facility District(s): SU 

FCDOT Staff: JYR 

lmPlementing Agency: ! Project Cost Proj~ct I Schedule 
!. . Fundmg I 

I ($ in Millions) Start End 
Designi Apr-08 TBD' i) I 

f----------t--'----  1 1 

! 4.000 Land Acquisition! TBD I TBD I .. 

r -I ----- ' 
IIType of Funding: I. Utility Relocation TBD TBD 

. 2007 County Bonds . Construction TBD TBD I [ 

Total 4.000 4.000 
Activitv Hiahliahts. 
Project combined with Bus Transfer Facility; Site survey complete; Project management shifted to Fairfax County in June 2010; DPWES is 
Icoordinating with FCDOT to determine detailed project scope; Contract negotiation in progress; Schedule to be developed upon NTP 

r' .--- .-. -.-.... - .-. ------------......................-................- ....- ..-..............- ..... -.-...........--.-.....- ..............- ...---..-.--.... - ..---- ...- .... - ..---.,,-.. ---...----....--...- ...... -.-.-"-..--,,. - ....... -.... .  ...... - ..... - .....- ... "..--. ----·-·----···---1 
IXXXX Vienna Metrorail Staircase 

new staircase from platform to mezzanine at Vienna Metro Station 

Ilmplementing Agency: 

I WMATA 

IAmount in Board's 4-Year Plan: ($ in Millions) 
I 

I 2.000 

IType of Funding: 

I 2007 County Bonds 

Actlvitv Hiahliahts: 

Design 

Land Acquisition 

Utility Relocation 

Construction 

Total 
' 

. 

Project Cost; Project 
Funding 

($ in Millions) 

Project Initiation I 

District(s): PR 

FCDOT Staff: KPR 

Schedule I Statu-s: 

Start 

Jun-09 


N/A 


I N/A
i 

.................Dee-lO .. 

Apr-11 

2.000 2.000 I 
.- I 

I I , 

End 
 I 

Oct· 1 0 

Feb-11 
 ~~I 
N/A I 
N/A 

I 

Aug-11 ~! 
I 

The MOU with WMATA was approved by the BOS on June 1,2009; WMATA Board approved the agreement in summer 2009; WMATA has issued 
limited NTP to start performing design; Dec 17, 2010 90% design documents submitted Dec. 2010; Final construction documents will be prepared in 
Feb. 2011; Construction will begin in spring 2011 and Final completion is estimated for August 2011 

20'11 

(186)



December 2010 Summary Chart for Pedestrian Bicycle Projects 
~~.~~--~ ........~...~~ ..~-----~ ~-~-----C-"""-~'-----, 

Status Key: © =Complete; ~=OnSchedule: [~=Behind Schedule;~ =Change Since Previous Report: rb =Schedule Concern: =Funding Concer 

Phase Key: D=Design; R=Right-of-Way Acquisition; U=Utility Relocation; C=Construction(includes pre-ad, bid ad, and contract award 

Project Description 
-~-~~-~~.---

0649 PR 'Annandale Road Walkway 

I 
instail 190 If concrete sidewalk along the 
east side of Annandale Road from Brice 

- Street to the FailS Church City line 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB033 

IAshbluru>n Avenue Walkway 

Instail 250 If concrete sidewalk and 
stream crossing along the west side of 
Ashburton Avenue at Cedar Run 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB022 

0617 MA Backlick Road Walkway (east side) 

0675 HM 

Install concrete sidewalk along the east 
side of Backlick Road opposite the 
Wilburdale community 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB025 

Install concrete sidewalk along the west 
side of Backlick Road from VVilburdale 
Drive to Braddock Road 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB024 

Install asphalt sidewalk and crosswalks 
on alternate sides of Beulah Road from 
Abbotsford Drive to Coral Crest lane 
and along Clarks Crossing Road 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB009 

Bicycle Pavement Marking Plan -
Soaostone Drive 

Prepare pavement marking and signage 
plan to include on-road bicycle facilities 

Feb-11 

N/A 

~ 
III... 
C 
III 

Soapstone Drive from the deadend to N/A 

_~_-.-l_.~~...~_-"-._~~__v~a.~I~Ie.....y~___D__n__-v_~e~,~ap~p~r_ox~im__ ~a_t~e~l~y~2_._6~5~L..~~~___ . ____L___~~_~__ ~~ __ ~_'__~~~_ _'_--L-t_~--_~J=u=n~.-1~1-+ .. s;~;L!.!:
County Proj#: ~~__~ ~~ 

Pedestrian Projects Summary Chart Page 1 


(187)



~~~---....~~~~~~--

: Status Key: © =Complete; t;=OnSchedule;" =Behind Schedule; ~ =Change Since Previous Report; rlJ =Schedule =Funding Concer 

Phase Key: D=Design; R=Right-of-Way Acquisition; U=Utility Relocation; C=Construction(includes pre-ad. bid ad. and contract award 

0620 BR 

0620 BR 

0620 BR 

Project Description 

Racks and Lockers· Countywide 

Purchase and install 150 inverted "un 
bicycle racks and 60 bicycle lockers at 
locations throughout Fairfax County 

County Proj#: 

Braddock Road/Guinea Road 

Add signalized pedestrian crosswalks. 
signage. striping. and modify signal 
operations 

County Proj#: PPTF01-01400 

Amtin 
Total BOS's ~. b!::!

•Project (:; ~ 

__~_.....L~c~os~t___l~ ~~I\)-'-..~S~ta~rt~Date End Date l~ 

COUNTY I Construction 0.150 

-Braddock Road/Rolling Road COUNTY Terminated 

Add signalized pedestrian crosswalks. 
sidewalk. signage. striping. and modify 
signal operations 

County Proj#: PPTF01-01900 

i 

BraddOCk RoadlWakefield Chapel Road 

Add signalized pedestrian crosswalks. 
! signage. striping. and modify Signal 

operations 

County Proj#: PPTF01-01500 

COUNTY Complete I 0.150 N/A 

0643! BR !Burke Center Parkway Walkway 

6493 BR 

3547 DR 

Add sidewalk from Pond Spice lane to 
Terra Centre Elementary School 

County Proj#: PPTF01·02100 

Burke Commons Road Walkway 

Add sidewalk from Merridith Circle to 
Roberts Parkway along north side 

County Proj#: PPTF01-02200 

Chain Bridge Road/Tennyson Drive 

Add signalized pedestrian crosswalks. 
signage. striping. and modify Signal 
operations 

~ 

~ 

TBD 

N/A 

-
C Nov-11 

Pedestrian Projects Summary Chart Page 2 

(188)



Status Key: © =Complete; i,=OnSchedule; ~ =Behind Schedule; =Change Since Previous Report; ~l::l =Schedule Concem; =Funding Concer 


Phase Key: D=Design; R=Right-of-Way Acquisition; U=Utility Relocation; C=Construction(inciudes pre-ad, bid ad, and contract award 


Z:;a 
r: 0
3 c
IT .... 
II> '" ... 

0007 

0244 

Project Description 
Lead 

Agency 

Neck Road Walkway (South lakes 
to Winterthur Lanel 

COUNTY Complete 

Install concrete sidewalk along the east 
side of Colts Neck Road from South 
Lakes Drive to Winterthur Lane 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB010 

MA iColumbia Pike Interchange (Rte. 7 Ped. 

I
initl 

Install sidewalk along both ramps from 
.. Columbia Pike to Leesburg Pike and 

along the service Road from Seminary 
Road to Leesburg Pike. 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB050 

Design 

-..--..~~-.--- ..------..-.......--.~~~-.--.. -_..... 

Columbia Pike Walkway COUNTY i ROW 
I 

Install concrete sidewalk along the south , i 

MA 

side of Columbia Pike from Downing , 
Street to Lincolnia Road 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB026 

Sep-09 © 
N/A 

O.BOO 

R May-11 

u 

C May-12 

I-----~r-

0.430 ! 0.430 • D. May-OB Apr-11 ~ 

R Aug-10 Apr-11 ~ll. 

U TBD TBD 

C May-11 Nov-11 

0244 

0244 

, 

0244 

........ 


MAColumbia Pike Walkway 

Install concrete sidewalk along the south 
side of Columbia Pike from Gallows 
Road to the Annandale Methodist Church 

MA 'Columbia Pike Walkway 

! 

Install concrete sidewalk along the north 
side of Columbia Pike from Maple Court 
to Blair Road 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB027 • 

COUNTY 

• 

Design 

ROW 

0.190 0.190 

0.200 Mar-11 ~ll.i 

-~ .-.~~...-~-+.......,.:--~~----! 
Feb-11 0'tll. 

Columbia Pike Walkway Phase II ~DPl ~'.Ol
0.902 0.500 D Nov-OS Jan-11 

600 LF of 8-foot wide walkway along R Jun-02 Nov-06 
south side from entrance to Holmes Run 
Stream Valley Park to Powell Lane; 

Feb-11install bus shelter on Columbia Pike at -10 

Powell Lane 

MA 

County Proj#: 2600SG-07002 
-~--~---~ ..__.. ........_  -_. ~~~-,--:-

PR iCourthouse Road Walkway I COUNTY 

Install 410 If aspha It sidewalk along the 
north side of Courthouse Road from 
Chain Bridge Road to Oakton Plantation 
Lane 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB034 

ROW 

Jan-11 Sep-11 

© 
TBD ft 
TBD 

TBD 

Pedestrian Projects Summary Chart Page 3 

0673 

(189)



____ 

0123 

1 

....L.______ .L _______ .:..••...• 

i 
COUNTY I 

COUNTY • 

Road Bicycle Route COUNTY 

Install asphalt sidewalk along the south 
side of Fox Mill Road from Fairfax 

Design 

ROW 

Design 

0,250 I N/A 

0.525 I N/A 

U TBD 

c TBD 

.",,-<)8 T -Nov., 0 r'>ill.. 
Mar-10 ©. 

I--...L...  ... ...
N/A ' iU 

f-+--~-- ... +-.~-- t---: 
C June-11 • .d' 

------.~ 

-~.. ~.~--... -~..•... ......._--- ......-~....- ..- ...~..- ... 


Status Key: © =Complete; ~]=OnSchedule; ~ =Behind Schedule;.d =Change Since Previous Report; =Schedule Concern; =Funding Concer 

Phase Key: 

Z ' c ;0
3 g
r::r'"til II)... Project Description 

00071M.1\' Culmore Shopping Centerto Church 
Street tRia. 7 Ped. Initl 

Install 1600' of sidewalk along the 
frontage of several shopping centers 
north of Columbia Pike, 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB049 

DR 

PR 

2248 1 MA 

0007. MA 

~._~__~__ 


DOlleYMadison Boulevard/Churchill Road 

j Add signalized pedestrian crosswalks, 
signage, striping, and modify signal 

County Proj#: PPTF01-02400 

Edgelea Road Walkway 

Install asphalt sidewalk along the east 
side of Edgelea Road from Oleander 
Avenue to Courthouse Road 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB035 

Road Walkway 

Add sidewalk from Braddock Road 10 

Old Columbia Pike along south side 


County Proj#: PPTF01·03000 

,First Christian Church of Falls Church 
(Rte. 7 Ped. Initl 


6' asphalt walkway across church 

property and adding a bus pad to the
I 

I,.,t;~ b",:::~p,,~ 4YP201~B~3 

Add "bike route" signage from Elm 
Street to Chain Bridge Road 

County Proj#: 

Mill Road Walkway 

County Parkway to Mill Heights 

County Proj#: 

Pedestrian Projects Summary Chart Page 4 

(190)



Status Key: © =Complete; IIJ=OnSchedule; '\I' =Behind "";lI"~IUI" 

Phase Key: D=Design; R=Right-of-Way Acquisition; U=Ulility Relocation; C=Construclion(inciudes pre-ad, bid ad, and contract award 

0644 LE 

0193 DR 

Project Description 

~~ftM'ft;~ Road Walkway (north side) 

Install asphalt sidewalk along the north 
side of Franconia Road from Governor's 
Hill Drive to Telegraph Road 

county Proj#: 4YP201-PB041 

I,,~.ft,.ftfti~ Road Walkway (south side) 

Install concrete sidewalk along south 
of Franconia Road from Governor'S 

Drive to Telegraph Road 

County Proj#: 

Tysons Corner area to the W&OD Trail; 
W&OD Trail to Dunn Loring Metro 
Station: Dunn Loring Metro Station to 
Merrifield CBC 

County Proj#: 

[Georgetown Pike Walkway (Phase II) 

Construct 1,000 LF walkway from 
Utterback Store Road (Krop Property) 10 
Falls Manor Court 

County Proj#:ilV00200-W202B 

Pike/Balls Hill Road 

Add signalized pedestrian crosswalks, 
signage, striping, and modify signal 
operations 

County Proj#: PPTF01-02500 

Drive Walkway 

Install concrete sidewalk along the north 
side of Glade Drive from Colts Neck 
Road to Shire Court 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB012 

DPWES 

DPWES 

Overall 
Status 

I Total 
Project 

Cost 

Amtin 
BOS's 
4-Yr 
Plan Start Date 

N/A 

TBD 

~~-TBD 

~~i 

End Date 

N/A 

TBD 

Jul-11 

March -11 

March -11 

TBD 

Sept-11 

VI........ 
c: 
III 

~~ 

~~ 

.,:•...., 0007 MA iGorham Street to S. Fourteenth Street 
(Rte. 7 Ped. Inltl 

COUNTY Design 0.250 

Install 2 srnaller segments of walkways 
that total 500 feet 

! 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB051 

Pedestrian Projects Summary Chart Page 5 

~ 

OOO71"'--~'-"--'--'---''''-- -...----....,-----...-.,-.-.-...-----, ... -~.--

0.250 I D' Jun-10 Dec-11 

Oct-11 


TBD 


Aug-12 


(191)



I~~~~~:~:-~t-r-:-----r-~~---~-----'---

~==:~==~~==:==:=~===:~ 

COUNTY 

COUNTY 

N/A 

N/A 

TBD 

Jun-11 Dec-11 

Design I 0.003 N/A Aug-11 

Dec·11 May-12 

Design -N~-I Jan-~~~a_n~~~1_--L___ 

I 
R I Nov-09 Aug-10 

ur--NjA-t~'N~ I 

Leesb-u~rg-P-ik~elCC)lvin~nR-o-a-d- ~C-O-U-N-T~Y" ~'Des;gn--ro:eOTNIA I DR '-~---O-Nct/-A10" 

.... .... ..... ..~~... ... .. - .. ..--~- ~~ ~ ~ ~ ~- -~-~ 

Status Key: ©=Complete; .!;J=OnSchedule; ~ =Behind Schedule; Il. =Change Since Previous Report; RJ =Schedule 

Phase Key: D=Design; R=Right-of-Way Acquisition; U=Utility Relocation; C=Construction(includes pre-ad. 

I [ I ~ II 

~ .~__~ _.~_~roje~_~escrip~o~._ ~_~ 

HM: 0674 

SP6945 

; 1816 DR 

0645 su 

DR.HM 

DR0007 

Falls Street/Haycock Road 

signalized pedestrian crosswalks. 
striping. and modify signal 

County Proj#: PPTF01-02600 

Mill Road/Sunrise Valley Drive 

Add signalized pedestrian crosswalks, 

signage. striping. and modify signal 

operations 


County Proj#: 

Hunter Village Drive Walkway 

Add pedestrian improvements from Old 
Keene Mill Road to Painted Daisy Drive 

County Proj#: PPTF01·03200 

Road - Calder Road Bicycle Route 

Add "bike route" signage on Kurtz Rd. 
from Dolley Madison Blvd to Calder 
Road and on Calder Rd. from Kurtz Rd. 

Brawner Street. 

County Proj#: 

Lees Comer Road Trail 

Add traH from Lee Jackson Highway 
Bokel Drive along west side 

County Proj#: PPTF01-03300 

Leesburg Pike/Baron Cameron 
Avenue/SDrinavale Road 
Add signalized pedestrian crosswalks. 
signage, striping, and modify signal 
operations 

County Proj#: PPTF01-01600 

Add signalized pedestrian crosswalks, 

signage, striping. and modify signal 

operations 


County Proj#: PPTF01-01800 

I Lead I Overall 

AgenC:~..l..~~~tu!>..l_Cost 
Design 0.250I COUNTY 

I 

COUNTY Project 0.150 

COUNTY Design 0.800 

rcI~ Fe~b-~11~JUl1~1- I~ 

Jun-11 

I 

Mar-12 

r::~~-:-::-:--+~-:N-:-I:-::A--+--
' 

U TBC:D:··-j··--~=T=B-:::-D····----+-·-·I 

Pedestrian Projects Summary Chart Page 6 

(192)



Status Key: © =Complete; <!;;,=OnSchedule; ~ =Behind Schedule; Il =Change Since Previous Report; RJ =Schedule Concern; =Funding Concer 

Phase Key: D=Design; R=Right-of-Way Acquisition; U=Utility Relocation; C=Construction(indudes pre-ad, bid ad, and contract award 

~ g : ~ : m:-J ,Lead overall: P~~::~t ;.~;: I [ I ~~ II 

0" r; , i;' I 
~~=-_---,______ ~~~~~t~~-,,--___ 

OOOil-------oR- 'Leesburg Pike/Lewinsville Road 

Add signalized pedestrian crosswalks, 

signage, striping, and modify signal 
operations 

County Proj#: PPTF01-02700 

0007 MA Leesburg Pike/Patrick Henry Drive 

Add signalized pedestrian crosswalks, 
signage, striping, and modify signal 
operations 

County Proj#: PPTFO 1-01700 i 

c 
~~,~~,,~~tu~ ~C_~S~Pla~~_~ Start~a~n~~e_ ~VI 

I ,lAIDI-SeP--l~ _ 
,,--_,__,_-+___ -1 

COUNTY 

Design 01500 

Design ! 0.500 

i 

N/A D i Jun-07 ' Jan-11 : r;;;A~ . . . I 
R,~-~---"~I 'r;;;AFeb-10 Dec-l0 

! • -+ ~ 
U I N/A N/A!:'~,'-----r-'--'-' 
-t-- --------+~ 

L~~b-11_L May-II _L~ 

COUNTY Design0694 DR 0.300 N/A Dec-IIRoad Walkway Phase I t> 

0694 DR 

0694 DR 

~ar"' •.",,~ Road Median 

Install a pedestrian safety median on 
Lewinsville Road at Spring Hill 
Elementary School 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB003 

Construct walkway along north side from 
Windy Hill Road to Scotts Run Road 

County Proj#: 

walkway along south side 
Snow Meadow Lane to Elsinore 

County Proj#: PPTF01-03500 i 

Lewinsville Road Walkway Phase III 

Construct walkway along south side 
from Altamira Court to Wood hurst 
Boulevard Drive 

County Proj#: PPTF01-03400 

l 
'---"-----'--"-'-"

• 0613 MALincolnia Road Walkway 

" I, Install concrete sidewalk along the north 
side of Lincolnia Road from Deming 

I Avenue to North Chambliss Street 

i 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB030 

COUNTY I Design Jun-08 Feb-12 ---i-M! 

Apr-11 Dec-11 11 
TBD TB~_+j 

Sep-12 , Ili 

COUNTY "-ieSf-~'~Utilities I 0.050 I 0.050 

. I 

Pedestrian Projects Summary Chart Page 7 

(193)



=Behind ;-'rJ,,,nlll.. · 

-~.. --~~..---------~.. -----------..-------..- --.--..~-.-- - -~---.--~-.-

=Change Since Previous Report; H:.l =Schedule Concern; $ =Funding Concer Status Key: © =Complete; .$;)=OnSchedule; ~ 

Phase Key: D=Design; R=Right-of-Way Acquisition; U=Utility Relocation; C=Construction(includes pre-ad, bid ad, and contract award 

~~ 2T .~ I . T"" I~~~:I~I · ~ 
.t ~ ~g. _L___~ Project D~~'!t~o~_ ___l~~an~y ~:;:~ IP~~:~~ ~i:';l~_s~~Date~d DatJ_~ 

2244 MA 

0235 MV 

0241 LE 

0769 PR 

0623 MV 

.-~ 

Montrose Street Walkway 

Install and upgrade concrete sidewalk 
along the west side of Montrose Street 
from Braddock Road to Grafton Street 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB031 

MtVemon Highway Walkway 

Add sidewalk from Richmond Highway 
(Rte 1) to retail north of Sunny View 
Drive along west side 

County Proj#: PPTF01-03900 

North Kings Highway Median 

Add median from Fort Drive to North 
Metro Entrance 

County Proj#: RSP101-00900 

concrete sidewalk along the south 
of Oak Street from Sandburg Street 

of Morgan Lane 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB038 

Dominion Drivel Whittier Avenue 

Add signalized pedestrian crosswalks on 
all four legs 

County Proj#: PPTF01-04000 

Mill Road Walkway 

Add 1 50 If sidewalk from F alkstone Lane 
to McNair Drive 

County Proj#: PPTF01-04100 

-·--··r·--r;-··--··-··------·--------; XXXX BR Pohick Stream Valley Trail 

• 

Install asphalt trail aiong Pohick Stream 
Valley from Burke Centre VRE to Burke 
Village 

I 
County Proj#: 4YP201-PB001 

-------~-.-

COUNTY . Construction 

~.-~'--

COUNTY Design 

COUNTY On Hold 

COUNTY i DeSign 

FCPA Design 

May-08 Nov-10 

Sep-10 

TBD TBD 

Jan-11 May-11 

TBD 

Mar-12 

I 0.090 Jun-08 TBD 

TBD TBD 

TBD TBD 

TBD TBD 

Pedestrian Projects Summary Chart Page 8 

(194)



Status Key: =Complete; ~=OnSchedule; ~ =Behind Schedule; b. =Ch;ng;Sinc;Pr;~i~~s Report: Ri =Schedule Con~;r~; $ ~Fundi~g- co~~~l 
Phase Key: D=Design; R=Right-of-Way Acquisition; U=Utility Relocation; C=Construction(includes pre-ad, bid ad, and contract award : 

2833 

0699 

DR 

PR 

Stllilet Walkway 

Construct walkway from Orland Street to 
Overbrook Street 

County Proj#: 

iprosperity Avenue/Hilltop Drive 

I Pedestrian Improvements 

County Proj#: PPTF01-04200 , 

COUNTY 

_, ___~.._~_____~___~L_____...__ _ 

IRaymond Avenue Walkway COUNTY 

ROW 

Design 

0,080 N/A 

c 

~:;'~J~~:~] ~i 
1--,"BD-f _TB~ 

HM 

I 
Reston Avenue Walkway 

, Install asphalt sidewalk along the west 
side of Reston Avenue from Southington 
Lane to Shaker Drive 

COUNTY 

MA-lRiO Drive to Glenmore Drive (Rte, 7 Ped, 
Inill 

Install 2 segments of walkway, one on 
the east side and one on the west side, 
from the south side of Rio Drive to 
Glenmore Drive, Curb and gutter will be 

: added for most of the 1800' section, 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB048 I 

DR~iver BendROad-Beach Mill Road BiCYClelC6UNTY 
Route 
Add "Share the Road" and "Bike Route" 
signs on River Bend Road from Old 
Dominion Drive to Beach Mill Road and 
on Beach Mill Road from River Bend to 

: the County Line : 

County Proj#: 

BR, SP RoadiBurke Road COUNTY 

Add signalized pedestrian crosswalks, 
signage, striping, and modify signal 
operations 

County Proj#: PPTF01-02000 

ROW 

Design 

i C I Dec-11 I Apr-12 ' ~I 

0,110 0110 f D I Dec-07 Jun-10 

0,150 N/A 

Construct walkway along east side from 
Churchill Road to Capital View Drive 

County Proj#: PPTF01-03800 

0602 

0007 

Pedestrian Projects Summary Chart Page 9 

0638 

(195)



0050 

0007 

1.10 N/A 

I 0.225 

! 01000 
U TBD 

I 
C Jul-12 

0.220 0.220 

0.060 0060 ~+.i,~iM~~aY-08 -. Mar-1-.1. :-~-
~-1O IM"-~~_I 'tAl 

. • U i N/A • N/A . . 

--- -.-~-...-- - ...--~.- ..---
Status Key: © =Complete; ~=OnSchedule; ~ =Behind Schedule; Il. =Change Since Previous Report; ~b =Schedule Concern; 

Phase Key: D=Design; R=Right-of-Way Acquisition; U=Utility Relocation; C=Construction(inciudes pre-ad, bid ad, and contract award 

~ ?t ~ 	 I I . Total :~!: 
~ s ~ 1 Lead • Overall IProject 4-Yr 

~ 11\ 5,' .....___~~ct~~~criJ>~~n_ ___ ~gem:y~._ StatlJ~ Cost Plan 

==~===~~=~=~~~===~:=~=~~=
Drive 

Construct a wide median for pedestrian 
refuge on Rte 50 at the intersection with 
Patrick Henry Dr. 

County Proj#: 

Row Stl'get (Rte. 7 Ped_ Init)MA0007 I 
Install a 400' segment of walkway and 
curb on the east side of Rte. 7 on the 
north side of Row Street. 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB047 

MA Saven Comers to Juniper Lane (Rte. 7 
Pad. Init) 

3 intersection improvements at Seven 
Corners. Thorne Rd and Seven Corners 
Center. Mostly handicap ramps and 
modifications to existing signals to 
accommodate ped crossings. 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB052 

0600 ' MV, SP Silvarbrook Road Walkway 

Install 650 If asphalt sidewalk along the I 
. 	north side of Silverbrook Road from 

Silverthorn Road to Bayberry Ridge Road 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB020 

Install 820 If asphalt sidewalk along the 
north side of Silverbrook Road from 
Southrun Road to Monacan Road 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB018 

. ~:~"V,,,, 0"" 10 ",m'" G,,," 

County Proj#: PPTF01-04300 

Hill Road Walkway 

Install asphalt sidewalk along the east 
side of Spring Hill Road from Old 
Dominion Drive to Pettit Court 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB004 

COUNTY! Design 

--~.. 
COUNTY Design 

COUNTY ROW 

! COUNTY I ROW 

._i__~~L~~1 1m l m~Jul-11 

u ••• ':0,..--T~:t'... .. 
C Dec-11 i Jul-12 

! 
. -  ~ 

·,...,,....-:···,..--:;·-'-C-::-l·-=-T ....-:-:----='-c--,.--:-::-·--:-:-~·l ~ 
May-11 ~Il. 

~Il.! 

~ 

TBD 

Jul-11 

Apr-11 

TBD 

Nov-11 
------i 

Pedestrian Projects Summary Chart Page 10 

0684 

I 

(196)



- -- -

~--~---~". """~"---"."~.-"-~"-"- .-----.-.".~--- -~---"~-" "--~"""."."" ""-~" -""~-"------~c---" 

Status Key: © =Complete;.t: =OnSchedule;" =Behind Schedule; /j. "'Change Since Previous Report; f:/] =Schedule Concern; =Funding Concer 

Phase Key: D=Design: R=Right-of-Way Acquisition; U=Utility Relocation; C=Construction(includes pre-ad. bid ad. and contract award 

~ill;.tl23 c: ~ 
0"' ,... :::!. 

!!: 1\1 tl I 


---------~ 

Hills Road Walkway 

County Proj#; 

0701 PR iSutton Road Walkway 

Road at Marywood Road 

I 

0640 
 SP Sydenstricker Road Walkway 

side of Sydenstricker Road from 
Briarcliff Drive to Galgale Drive 

0.800 0.800 Sep-080611 LE iTelegraPh Road Walkway 

Project Description 
-~----

Install concrete sidewalk along the north 
side of Sunset Hills Road from the 
W&OD Trail to Michael Faraday Court 

Install concrete sidewalk along Sutton 

County Proj#; 4YP201-PB039 

Install asphalt sidewalk along the north 

County Proj#: 4YP201-PB021 

COUNTY Complete 

COUNTY ROW 

COUNTY I ROW 

I
Install asphalt sidewalk along east side 


I of Telegraph Road from South Kings 
 ~A;; _~:::l~ Highway to Lee District Park .... TBDj_iL.L ~,~.--
. C I Nov-11 . Jan-13 /j.~L_~c_o~nty Proj#; 4YP201-PB023 [ ,I J 

"""--~.....-
7541 DR iTurner Avenue Walkway 

Install concrete sidewalk along the east 

side of Turner Avenue from 

Williamsburg Pond Court to Haycock 

Road 


County Proj#: 4YP201-PB005 

Street Walkway 

Install concrete sidewalk along the east 

side of Tyler Street from Columbia Pike 

10 Lake Street 


County Proj#: 4YP201-PB032 

[ 0693 T--oR-- ~estmoreland Street @ Old Chesterbrook 
Road 
Add crosswalks and median islands at 

I Old Chesterbrook Road (McLean High 
School) 

County Proj#: PPTF01-04400 

I 

----""" 
COUNTY I ROW 0.050 0 Dec-08 

Nov-11 

TBD 

TBD 

JUI-12 

Pedestrian Projects Summary Chart Page 11 

(197)



_ _ 

Inslall concrete sidewalk along Ihe east 
side of Westmoreland Street from Chain 
Bridge Road to Dillon Avenue 

Counly Proj#; 4YP201-PB006 
_____~~__"""~J-__~"""'___ _ 

Status Key: ©=Complele; 1/',) =OnSchedule; ~ =Behind =Change Since Previous Report: Rl =Schedule Concern: =Funding Concer 


Phase Key: D=Design: R=Right-of-Way Acquisition: U=Utility Relocalion: C=Conslruclion(inciudes pre-ad, bid ad, and conlract award 


0693 DR !WestmorelandStreetWalkway COUNTY I Utilities 0.150 0.150 101 Oct-08 Nov-10 i~, 

Inslall concrele sidewalk along Ihe west DDeeC 1-9 Ij 1 I·u; c_-00'- ~JaUng'_-~1101 ©"=1,,!I,side of Westmoreland Street from 

Temple Rodef Shalom 10 Chesterbrook 

Presbyterian Church 


===:;====~=====c_o~.u:..n:_I_y==p=ro=j#_=:=4=Y=P=2=01=-=P=B=00=8~~ _______ l. _ ~~~a~___~~~ __[j 
0828 Wiehle Avenue Walkway Phase II COUNTY I,.o.si90 .. 0350 NfA I01 A"lO. -,IAPf-1i ~ml ~!,' 

Add sidewalk along east side from , R ' TBD 'TBO ' 
Cheslnut Grove Square to North Shore ~'I • " 
D'i~ li'~iaD~ Ta" I J 

C JUn-11--+,-- Feb-12 fl." i,"'i

County Proj#: PPTF01-04500 _. 

Pedestrian Projects Summary Chart Page 12 

(198)



Annual Update on Other Transportation Projects NOT Included in the BOS 4·Year Transportation Program 
December 2010 

Status Key: @.Complete,oI:>.on Schedule; ~ -Behind "',I\.,.h , Since Pm,""us p. ' I:h. a, I Concern -. -- Phase Key: O=Oestgf1; R=R~ht-of-Way AcquisitIO(l; U:;;UtilitY. Relocation; C=ConstfUI..1iOn(mcludes pre-ad, bid ad, and co~~~~~~awal'd) 

~ Total Project Available 


~ ~ 	 ';! Imphtmenting Cost Funding p' t St tNt cu 
~ ~ 	 .; Agency rOJec a us 0 es :: 

Z Q Pro'ecl Description ($ on MilliOnS) 	 it Start Date End Date Status-m-
Interstate & Pnmary Road Projects (listed numencally by roule number) 

1-66 Spot Improvements (Inside the Beltway): Langman D TBD TBD 
acceleration/deceleration lanes at three locations between VDOT Spot 1 (Arlington Co.) scheduled R TBD TBD 

1-66 DR 	 interchanges; Spots 1 and 3 are in Arlington County, Spot 2 IS (78826) $33,536 $3.400 On Hold for FY13 advertisement: Spots 2 

!Tom Sycamore StreeU Washington Blvd. to Dulles Airport and 3 nol scheduled u TBD TBD 

Access Road 'Nhich crosses into Fairfax County) c rBO TBO 


o Dec.09 '" 

, ,. ~<""f",!'\i!'\n meeting held December R 
1-66 PR 1.66@ Nutley Street. Improve honzonlal alignment 01 ramp VDOT $0619 $0627 I r :;;;;;~:".o I t II b '--t-----lf-----+--

from W8 1-66 to Nutiey Street ,nacIve 	 ""vv"", pre Im1nary mee Ing WI e r 
scheduled to present plans to FHWA I-ut-----If-----+--

c 2011 

o Aug-l0 Jun·" ., 

HSIP project by VDOT; R 
1-66 SU 1-66@ Route 28: Extend SB Route 28 left tum lanes onto EB 1- VDOT $1 383 $1.383 Project Initiation Seoping August 11, I-t-----I,-----+--

66, access Improvements 2010 Design underway U 

r+----~------~-
c Jun·12 

o TBD TBD $ 
1.95 NB Directional Off·Ramp to NB Fairfax County 	 . R TBD 1BD $ 

1·95 SP 	 p~. . F Cvt 1•• t 06'1 t f E t 166 VDOT $88.000 $4.200 On Hold InsuffiCient funds to start PE phase
al1\way, rom ~I <...>V 0 . ml as was 0 XI 	 U TeO 160 $ 

C TBD TBD $ 
Phase 1 ($20 million) Provides p.m 0 Feb·09 May-l1 ~, 

Ft. Belvoir Direct Access Ramps into Ft. Belvoir North Area access to HOV S8 1-95 General R Jan~11 Sep-11 
1-95 SP (Ph•••s 1 & 2): Conslruct direct aceess ramps from 1-95 into US Army $50.000 $24.000 Design purpose lanes, Phase 2 ($30 million) 

the north area of Fort Betvoir (EPG) ProVides a m. N8 HOV access into U Jan~ 11 Sep-11 

EPG Site 	 c Sep.l1 Dec-12 

Funded for design only; Federal 0 Nov-09 Oec~11 '-\ 
Richmond Hwy from Old Mill RdiMulligan Rd to Fx County CO TYI runding may be available for R 

0001 MV Pkwy: Widen to.61.nes, including Sldewalkltrail, and ""de F~,zA $3.000 53.000 Design construction; Design Issues being 1-1---__+_______1-__ 
median for transit (PE only) discussed; FHWA managing project U 

ihru NEPA process i-C+--T-B-D--t--T-B-D--f--

o JUI-99 ~ to 11 
Turn lane alt being .ncorporated TBD 

. 	 Into deSign, Environmental R ~~, A T Maf-.1.;! 10 A 
0007 DR Route 7 from Roiling Holly to Reston Avenue: Wden to 6 VDOT $36 637 $36 7420 . D I =-= to BD TBD U

HM lanes (52327) . . sign ocument approva pending 
deSign alternatIVe; ROWIO begin u Jun-11 Jul-12 
upon Env. Doc. approval ~ 10 Aj>F-44 to 

c JUI-12 Dec-14 11 
D Jul-99 TBD 

0007 	 ~~', Leesburg Pike from Reston Avenue to TYCD Road: Wden to VDOT $7.755 $0000 Inactive Not funded in the VDOT6-Year R TBD TBD 

PR 6 lanes (PE Only) Program U TBD TBD 


C TBD TBD 

o Nov-09 tl 

Route 28 Spot Improvements: Three locatjons along the . Funded for deSign only; PriOrity 1 is. R N/A N/A 

0028 5U R ute 2Sd 'd r~ d 1 t VDOT $1075 $1075 DeSign 5B Route 28 between Sterling Blvd 


o com orl en rle orlmprovernen 	 and DuUesTollRoad u N/A NtA 

___ 	 C NJA NIA 

Other Prolects Page 

(199)

http:Complete,oI:>.on


Annual Update on Other Transportation Projects NOT Included in the BOS 4-YearTransportation Program 
December 2010 

Ji li "ll g~ ~'" ~z C 

0029 SP 

0029 PR 

0050 SU 

0050 MA 

0193 DR 

0267 DR 

0267 DR 

0603 DR 

0611 LE 

Status Key: Rt ;~=on .1\. Since Previous n· .. 
I Concern 

Phase Key; D!::DeSlgI'l; R;R hl.af-Way AcquiSibon, U"Utiiity RelOcation; C;aConstruction(inCludes preMad, b~d ad, and conlract award) 
Total Project AvaHabte 

Imprementing Cost Funding " Agency 
Projecl Slalus Notes .... 

Pro·eel Description "'($ in Millions) "

D 

Route 29 Bridge Replacement over Little Rocky Run: ~u~~j~g for 4~lane replacement ~njy; R 
Replace bridge including approaches, from Pick.~ck Road to VDOT $R238 $9.047 Design ~relir:::n~ry.Field ins~ection held In 

Union Mill Road Nov~09 fOf 6-lana bridge section U 

C 

D 

Route 29 Walkway: Provide 10-ft asphalt trail on the south On Hold due to overiap with \/DOT R 
side of Rt. 29 between Shreve Road and Fairview Park Drive 

COUNTY $0.250 $0<250 On Hold 
1-495 HOT Lanes project U 

C 

0 

Route 50 From Route 28 to Potand Road (Loudoun Co) : 
VDOT 

Design/Build contract execution R 
V\liden to 6 lanes from Route 28 to Poland Road in Loudoun 

(68757) 
$74861 $74.861 Design due Mar. 201 L Technical proposal 

County ( Dulles Loop) under rev iew u 

c 

0 

Route 50 at PatriCk Henry Drive: Improve I upgrade street R 

Hghting at the intersection 
VDOT $0800 $0800 Design Final design In progress 

U 

C 
-------

0 
Bid-ad be sent to VDOT 

Geor9Btown Pike Scenic punoff: Install historic marker pulloff contract office Dec.10, Scope being R 
and parking area at Langley Fork 

VDOT $0.550 $0.375 Design 
reduced; Construction to begin in 

U 
Spnng'11 

c 

D 

Dulles Toll Road@JFalrfax County Parl<way S6: Safety 
DeSign underway; Projected R 

improvement from SB Fairfax County Parkway right tum lane VDOT $0<655 $0.642 Design 
construcion bid date fall 2011

into EB Dulles Toll Road. U 

C 

0 

Duties Tott Road@JFairfax County Parkway NB: Safety DeSign underway; Projected R 
improvement from we Dulles Toll Road to NB Parkway right VDOT $0.713 $0.698 Design construction bid date SCheduled 
turn lane for tall 2011 u 

c 

Secondary Road Projects (listed numerically by route number) 

0 

Beach Min Road Bridge: Repair/replace bridge OvEtt Nichols 
Design underway; deSIgn build R 

Branch 
VDOT $1279 $1279 DeSign procurement design exception 

submittal u 

c 

D 

Telegraph Road from Beulah Street to Leaf Road: Widen to FHWANDOT 
$27.5590. 

Part of the Mulligan Road project. R 
$38.350 sign 95% plans distributed for review4 lanes. part of the MuWgan Road project (11012) 

Dec 2009; ROW began Sep 2010 u 

C 

Slart Date End Date Status 

Nov-09 ~, 

2013 

Sep-07 TBD .t 

TBD TBD 

TBD TBD 

Sej:Hl+ to Maf-OO to 
IMl2006 2011 

2011 TBD t:. 
2011 2014 t:. 
~to 

2014 t:.2011 

May-10 "" 

Jan-10 © 
NIA NIA NIA 

NIA N/A NIA 

Mar-11 Jun-l1 

2009 ~) 

2011 

2009 ~) 

2011 

Nov-09 Jun-12 \:;l 

Jul-12 Jun-13 

Jul-13 

Qee-Q4-lo 
Jun-10 1MOct-08 

Sep-10 Apr-11 ") 
TBD TBD 

~to 
2012 t:.MaY-11 

Other Prolects Page 2 


(200)



Annual Update on Other Transportation Projects NOT Included in the BaS 4-YearTransportation Program 
December 2010 

!l:~ ;; 
~ § !0:,. 

0613 MA 

0619 MV 

0620 BR 

SR.0620 
SP 

0620 SU 

BR0638 
SP 

0638 MV 

0650 MA 

0651 BR 

0657 SU 

Status Key: ©;;:Co~te;~ -Of) SChedule; ~ -Behind .A_~k 'Since Pre";.us ReP<lrt:f/J.SCl1edu., '1:- Concem 

Phase Key; D::;:DesfQo; R~RQht-of-Way Acquisition; U=UUrty Relocation: C=Construction(includes pre.a,d, bid ad, and contract award) 
Total Project Avallabie 

Implementing Cast Funding Project Status Noles 
.. 

Agency ~ 
Pro'ect Descrlotion 

.r:
1$ i"Millwns) Q. 

0 

Sleepy Hollow Road bndge over Tnpps Run Creek repair: Seoping meeting held on 
R 

Repair and paint steel ,replace expansion joints and overlay VDOT $1.180 $1200 Design September 08, 2010: Plans are 
deck 90% com pleted u 

C 

0 
Mulligan Road from Route 1 to Telegraph Road: 99% plan phase 2 dislr ibuted in RConstructfwiden to' 4 lanes and extend from Route 1 to FHWA Construction 1 
Telegraph Rd (Woodlawn Road replacement & Old Mill Road (77404) 

$30000 $29.100 
Design 

Nov. 2010; land acquisition in 
progress U 

ExtensiOn} 
C 

0 

Braddock Road @ Raven.worth Road: Add dual left turn 
HSIP project managed by VDOT: Pre- R 

VOOT $0.895 $0895 Design seoping meeting held on August 11, 
lane E8 BraddoCk. Road to NB Ravensworth Road 

2010. Des.ign underway U 

C 

0 
Braddock Road@ Rle, 123: Interim improvements (adding 

Interim 'Intersection Improvements
left tum lanes to Route 123, adding through lane and left turn R 

COUNTY $3.000 $3000 Design Identified with Route 1231Braddock 
lane to Roanoke River Road. and extending tum lanes at 

Road Interchange study. U 
BraddoCk road and Route 123) 

C 

0 

Braddock Rd at Union Mill Road: Construct addilional dual 
Scoplng meeting held October 13. R 

EB and ~ left tum lanes on Braddock Rd. into Union Mill Rd" VDOT $0.940 $0.000 Design 
eliminate permissive left tum movement, and reduce accidents 

2010. Design underway U 

c 

0 
Funding removed from VDOT 

Roiling Road from Old Keene Mill Road to Hunter Village VDOT Secondary 6-year program; PH R 

Drive/Fairfax County Parkway: IMden to 4 lanes (5559) 
$27.900 $0.000 Inactive 

held 6112108: BOS endorsement u 
7121/08 

c 

0 

Rolling Road from Fullerton Street to Delong Drive: WIden 
Funding for design only. Survey R 

COUNTY $1.300 $1.300 Design complete, Preliminary design
to 4 lanes 

underway 
U 

C 

Per discussion w,lh VDOT. 0 

resuomitting design waivers for 25 R 

Annandale Road @Kerns Road: Intersection improvements COUNTY $0283 $0.283 Design MPH advisory speed; 
Coordinating w,th HOT Lanes U 

project 
C 

0 

RFunding allocated in VDOT FY1 1
Guinea Road CulVert: Replace culvert over Long Branch voor $3.217 $0.743 Project Initiation 

6-year program U 

C 

0 
Consultant are revising plan to reflect 

Walney Road Bridge: Bridge Rehabilitation over FlatHck VDOT 
$7.000 $3.876 Design 

reduced 'Mdth of shared use path R 

BranCh (PE only) (82214) 30% plans V¥ill be oul tor review and U 
then PH 

C 

---------
----- ,--- 

Start Date End Date "Stalu,,_ 

Oct -10 Jan-11 Q 

Jul-ll Mar·12 

Mar-07 Dec·l0 Q 
Sep·l0 Feb-l1 ~ 

TBD 2012 

Aug-10 Aug -11 ~ 

Aug-11 Jul-12 

Aug-12 Dec-12 

May-10 Jul-12 ~) 

Jan·12 Sep-12 

TBD TBD 

Nov-12 Jan-14 

Feb-10 ", 

Ocl-11 

Nov-87 Jun-09 Q 
TBD TBD 

TBD TBD 

Sep-10 Feb-13 00) 

.J 
M&t--G7to J!;l...W 10 

~)D. •Mar-09 ADr-l1 

Apr-l0 Aug-10 -g 
NfA NfA 

~to ~to D.Jun-11 Jan-12 

Jul-10 TBD iJ 
l-

Jan-OS TBD ~ 

TBD TBD 

N/A N/A 

TBD TBD 

Other Prejects Page 3 


(201)



Annual Update on Other Transportation Projects NOT Included in the BOS 4-Year Transportation Program 
December 2010 

.;~ 

Jo E 
II: ~ 

2 

0658 SU 

DR
0676 

HM 

0676 
DR 
HM 

0681 DR 

0690 DR 

0702 
DR 
HM 

0789 LE 

SU
7100 HM 

7100 HM 

Status Key' 0:L ."'=On'" . ,~="" ,~, 11=", ~ Since PreYiOtls Q", ,rl', l Concern 

Pnase Key; D;;:Design; R=Rght-of·Way AcqUiSItion; U=Utility Relocation, C-=Coflstruction{iI1Cludes pre-ad, bid ad, and contract award) 
Total Project Available~ 

Implementing Cost Funding 
Project Status Notes 

.. 
Agency '".. 

Pro'eet Description ($ in Millions) 
.r; 
a. 

0 
Oraft feasibility report has been 

Compton Road Bridge: Bridge Rehabilitation over Little Rocky VDOT 
$2396 $0000 

reviewed, FeDOr comments R 
Inactive

Run (82215) returned; Funding removed from U 
VOOT 6-year program 

C 

0 

lowlston Road Bridge: Replace Bridge over Rocky Run (PE VDOT 
$1525 $0000 

Funding removed from Secondary 6 R 
Inactiveonly) (76247) year program U 

c 

0 

Trap Road (Wolf Trap Pedestrian Bridge): install pedestnan FHWA 
$2.242 $0 764 On Hold 

70% plans are under review. Fully R 

bridge over Dulles Toll Road (72695) funded project U 

c 

0 

Walker Road Bridge: Replace Bridge over Piney Run 
VDOT 

$2.750 $2.750 
R 

Design Design underway (84363) U 

C 

0 

Old Chesterbrook Road Bridge: Superstructure replacement VDOT Design underway: Advertisement R 

over Pimmit Run (86904) 
$0.000 $0.000 Design 

scheduled for Summer 2011 u 

c 

0 

Beulah Road Bridge: Bridge Rehabilitation over Wotf Trap VDOT 
$0500 $0.500 Design 

DeSign underway: advertisement R 
Run (82213) scheduled for Fall 2011 u 

c 

0 

Loisdale Road @loisdale Court: Shift median to realign left R 

turn lanes and signall,.lpgrade 
VDOT $0 464 $0.439 Design Oesign in progress 

U 

C 

0 
NTP for construction issued onFairfax County Parkway at West Ox Road: Extend light tum 
August 30, 2010; Construction 75 % R

lane on SB Fairfax: County Parkw-ay; Add dual left tum ianes on COUNTY $1.000 $1.000 Construction 
NB Fairfax County Parkway complete; Cold weather preventing 

completiOn until Spring 2011 U 

C 

0 

Fairfax County Parkway 0 Sunrise Valley Drive: Install Construction 75% complete; R 

COUNTY $1160 $1160 Construction Completion delayed until Spring 2011 additional left tum lane on NB Fairfax County Parkway 
due to lIIeather U 

c 
--- ---~ ----

Start Date End Date Status 

Jan-DB NIA 

NIA NIA 

NIA NIA 

NIA NIA 

Jul-09 TBD 

TBO TBO 

NfA NfA 

TBD TBD 

Aug-09 © 
NfA N/A 

NIA NIA 

TBD TBO 

Nov-09 Nov·11 iv 
Dec-11 Feb-13 

Mar·13 

Jul·09 2011 JI., 

Dec-OS Jan-l0 ~ 

Sep·11 

Jan-OS TBD ..~ 
TBD TBD 

N/A NfA 

Dec-l1 TBD 

Nov-09 TBD ~ 

N/A NIA 

TBO TBO 

TBO Nov-l1 

May-07 
Jaf+.-W to ©t:.Feb·10 

Nov-De Apr-09 Q 

May-10 Apr-1 i L 

Sep·OS Aug·Oe © 
Oct-OJ Dec-OS © 
TBD TSD 

Nov-09 
Nov-10 to "'tt:.Aor-11 

Other Projects Page 4 


(202)



Annual Update on Other Transportation Projects NOT Included in the BOS 4-Year Transportation Program 
December 2010 

r" 

.!! ~ II~t 
~o:i 

7900 LE 

7900 lE 

8460 SU 

XXXX PR 

0672 HM 

0675 HM 

0675 HM 

0675 HM 

0675 HM 

SUltu. Key: PI 1-, -v" SChedul.: ~=Behind ""h<><1,,· A=C:h'~" Since Previous RonM , ICnnr.,. $.""nrlinq Concern 

Phase Key: O:::Destgn; R!I\Ri9ht~of·Way AcquiSitIOn; U:=UUtty Relocation: C=ConstruC1ion includes pre-ad, bid a<t and ron!:act ~_~~__ 
Total Project Available 

implementing Cost Fundrng .. 
Project Status Notes .. 

Agency .. 
Pro'ect Descrioiion '"($ in Millions) Q. 

0 

VDOT completed interim 
R 

Franeonia~Springfield Parkway 11-95 SOV Ramps: Construct VDOT 
$115901 $11600 Inactive 

improvements at Bonnlemlll 
ramps to access 1~95 to and from the west (PE Only) (52512) intersection in response to BOS U 

conditions 
c 

0 

Franconia-Springfield Parkway @ Neum an Street Recommended as part of BOS R 
Interchange: Construct diamond interchange on F~S Parkway VDOT $0000 $0.000 Inactive endorsement of Ihe SOV Ramps 
at Neuman Street prOject u 

c 

0 
Stonecroft Boulevard Widening: 'Mden Stonecroft Boulevard 

Construction agreement approved R 
to 6 lanes from Conference Center Drive to Westfields Oeveloper! 
Boulevard (County responsible for 800-" section in front of the COUNTY 

$0650 $0650 Construction at 10119/10 BOS meeting, 

Sully DIstrict Govt Center) 
Construction to start Spring 2011 u 

c 

0 
Plans approved by OPWES and 

Eskridge Road ExtenSion: Extend Eskridge Road from bondad; ROW PH held Sap. 2010; R 
Merrifield Town Center (developer project) to Wiliams Drive 

COUNTY $3.000 $3000 Utilities 
Utility relocation design In U 
progress 

C 

Pre-final deSign plans distributed for 
0 

Vale RoadIFlint Hilt Road: Add signalized pedestrian 
review in Oct 2010; Addressed major R 

COUNTY $0020 $0.020 Design utility conflict issues. Finat plans to be
crosswalks, s!gnage, striping, and modify signal operations 

submitted to VDOT for their approval; u 
Land acquisition complete 

C 
-----

0 

Plaza Americ. Proffer As",ement (PA02S): Proffer Scope revised to 8-ft asph.tt trail; R 
contribution for pedestrian enhancements: Sunset Hills Road COUNTY $0.230 $0.230 Design Rel,lised alignment to avoid fiber-optic 
from Reston Center to Town Center Parkway line relocation; Schedule adjusted U 

C 

0 

Ptaza Americ. Proffer Agreement (PA050): Proffer 
Altemate designs investigated, but R 

contributfor! for pedestrian enhancements: Sunset Hills Road COUNTY $0.195 $0195 Terminated 
not feasible: Project was termmated 

Connectfon to the W&OO Trail U 

C 

0 

Plaza Americ. Proffer Agreement (PA060J): Proffer Developer may provide bus stop R 
oontributlon for public transportation enhancements: E8 Sunset COUNTY $0030 $0030 On Hold improvement. Land acquisitIon 
HlIfs Road at Target unsuccessful u 

C 

0 

Plaza Americ. Proffer Agreement (PA0600): Proffer Land acquisition unsuccessful; R 
contribu1ion for pub~c transportation enhancements: \NB COUNTY $0,030 $0030 Terminated Bus stop pad proposed wilh 
Sunset Hills Road at W&OD Trail Sunset Hills Walkway projeel U 

C 
-----

Start Date End Date Status 

Aug-02 Nov-03 

TBD TBD 

TBD TBD 

TBD TBD 

NIA NIA 

NIA NIA 

N/A NIA 

N/A NIA 

Aug-OS Mar-06 © 
Apr-07 Jan-09 © 
Jun-08 Dec-08 

TBD TBD 

Oel-OB Dec-09 © 
Dec-09 Sep-10 © 
Jan-11 TBD 

TBD TBD 

Oct-09 Mar-11 '1' 
Sep-10 Dec-10 © 
Jan-11 Jun-11 

Jun-11 Sep-11 

Nov-03 May-11 /;) 

080-10 Apr-11 ~ 

May-11 Sep-11 

Nov-03 Apr-OB © 
TBO TBO 

TBO TBD 

FetJ..04 Oct-05 © 
Oct-05 TBO 

TBD TBD 

TBO TBD 

Ocl-04 Jan-OS © 
TBD TBD 

TBD TBD 

Other Projecls Page 5 


(203)



Annual Update on Other Transportation Projects NOT Included in the BOS 4-Year Transportation Program 
December 2010 

i .~ 
'" is 

0675 HM 

4720 HM 

0242 MV 

XXXX LE 

XXXX HM 

Status Key: ©=Complete;~=On Schedule; ~=Behind Schedule;!J.=Change Since Previous Repor1;RJ=Schedule Concem;$=Funding Concern 

Phase Key: D=Design: R=Right-of-Way Acquisition; U=UUity Relocation: C=Constructlon{includes pre-ad, bid ad, and contract award) 
Total Project Available 

Implementing Cost Funding 
Project Status Notes ::Agency 

.t:
Pro·ect Descriotion ($ in Millions) a. 

0 

Final design complete; Design 
R 

Beulah Road Trail: Install 10-foot wide trail (Section 0) COUNTY $0.165 $0.165 Design 
waiver approved by VDOT; VDOT 
authorized adv for construction U 

12/16/10 
c 

D 

Soapstone Drive Walkway: Install walkway along east side 
Design is in progress; Citizen R 

from South Lakes Drive to Snakeden Stream Valley COUNTY $1.500 $1.500 Design meeting held on 10/12/10; Utility 
designation com plete U 

c 

Other Projects (listed alphabetically by project name) 

D 

Mason Neck Trait 2A: Construct 1500 feet of trail along east R 

side of Gunston Road tram Pohick Bay Drive to Gunston Hall COUNTY $0.310 $0.310 Construction 
NTP for construction of Segment 

Plantation 2A given 11/29/10 u 

c 

D 

Springfield CSC Commuter Parking: Construct interim 
FCDOT purchased former Circuit R 

surface lot (270 spaces) on former Circuit City site FCDOT $30.000 $10750 Design City site on 3/19/10; Interim 
surface lot open December 2010 U 

c 

D 
Rezoning approved June 2010; 

Wiehle Avenue Park and Ride Garage: Construct 2300 
Site plan under review. Temporary R

Parking spaces, 10 bus bays, and 42 Kiss and Ride spaces at MWAA $90.000 $90.0000 sign 
the Wiehle Avenue Metrorail Station parking site approved by BOS u 

Dec. 2010 
C 

Start Date End Date Status 

Sep-09 Sep-l0 © 
N/A N/A 

N/A N/A 

JII<w....W to May-1-1- to 
l:J.Jan-II Jut-II 

Jul-08 Jun-12 ~ 

Nov-II Jun-12 

Jul-12 Jul-13 

Aug-13 May-14 

Apr-06 Aug-09 © 
Feb-09 Aug-09 © 

May-Wto JII<w....W to 
"'l:J.Nov-l0 Feb-II 

Mar-l0 Oct-l0 © 
Oct-09 Mar-l0 © 
TBD TBD 

Oct-l0 Dec-l0 © 
Mar-l0 May-II ~ 

Oct-IO Sep-Il '"Dec-l0 Jun-12 i:> 

Apr-II Sep-13 

Other Projects Page 6 
 (204)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
INFORMATION – 3 
 
 
Contract Award – Sequoia Section 2, Pond 1 (Sully District) 
 
 
Four sealed bids were received and opened on December 7, 2010, for the construction 
of the Sequoia Section 2, Pond 1, Project CU8001, Cub Run Pro Rata Share Projects, 
Fund 316, Pro Rata Share Drainage Construction.  This contract award will provide for 
the retrofit of an existing 1.8 acre stormwater management facility and consists of outlet 
structure replacement, sediment forebay/micro-pool installation, storm drain outfall 
stabilization, and selective upland and wetland planting.  Project benefits include 
improved facility efficiency, treatment of a 92-acre drainage area including 21 acres of 
impervious surfaces, and water quality benefits.  This project is included in the 
FY 2011 - FY 2015 Adopted Capital Improvement Program (with Future Fiscal Years to 
2020).   
 
The lowest responsive and responsible bidder is Avon Corporation.  The firm’s bid of 
$429,764.17 is $25,687.21 or 6% lower than the Engineer’s Estimate of $455,451.38.  
The second lowest bid of $489,124.75 is $59,360.58 or 13.8% above the low bid.  The 
highest bid of $651,006.00 is $221,241.83 or 51.5% above the low bid. 
 
Avon Corporation has satisfactorily completed several County projects and is 
considered a responsible contractor.  The Department of Tax Administration has verified 
that Avon Corporation has the appropriate Fairfax County Business, Professional and 
Occupational License.  Avon Corporation is a small business firm.  
 
This bid may be withdrawn after February 18, 2011.  
 
 
Unless otherwise directed by the Board of Supervisors, the Department of Public Works 
and Environmental Services will proceed to award this contract to Avon Corporation in 
the amount of $429,764.17. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding in the amount of $550,889 is necessary to award this contract and fund the 
associated contingency and other project costs including design, testing, contract 
administration, and inspection.  Funding is currently available in Project CU8001, Cub 
Run Pro Rata Share Projects, Fund 316, Pro Rata Share Drainage Construction to 
award this contract. 
 

(205)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 – Order of Bidders 
Attachment 2 – Vicinity Map 
 
 
STAFF: 
Robert A. Stalzer, Deputy County Executive 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES)  
Ronald N. Kirkpatrick, Deputy Director, DPWES, Capital Facilities 
 
 

(206)



 ATTACHMENT 1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS COUNTY OF FAIRFAX 
& ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES       VIRGINIA 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
 
DATE OF BID OPENING: December 07, 2010 
NO AWARD OF CONTRACT YET MADE 
 

SEQUOIA SECTION 2, POND 1 
CONTRACT NO. 10316078 

PROJECT NO. CU8001-CU012 
 

ORDER OF BIDDERS 
 
 

1. Avon Corporation. ............................................................................... $429,764.17 
5241-A Rolling Road 

 Springfield, VA 22151 
 
2. Angler Environmental............... .......................................................... $489,124.75 
 12881 Randolph Ridge Lane 
           Manassas, VA 20109 
 
3. Environmental Quality Resources, L.L.C. ........................................... $589,250.23 
 1405 Benson Court, Suite C 
           Arbutus, MD 21227 
 
4. Anchor Construction Corporation................ ....................................... $651,006.00 

2254 25th Place, NE 
           Washington D.C., 20018 
 
 
ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE ............................................................................. $455,451.38 
 
Contract Time:  120 Calendar Days 
 
 
 

(207)



 

Attachment No. 2 

SEQUOIA SECTION 2, POND 1 

CONTRACT NO. CN10316078, PROJECT NO. CU8001-CU012 

SULLY DISTRICT                        TAX MAP NO. 54-1 

PROJECT 

LOCATION 

(208)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
11:45 a.m. 
 
 
Matters Presented by Board Members 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(209)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

(210)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
12:40 p.m. 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 
 
 
(a) Discussion or consideration of personnel matters pursuant to Virginia Code  
 § 2.2-3711(A) (1). 
 
(b) Discussion or consideration of the acquisition of real property for a public purpose, 

or of the disposition of publicly held real property, where discussion in an open 
meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of 
the public body, pursuant to Virginia Code § 2.2-3711(A) (3). 

 
(c) Consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants 

pertaining to actual or probable litigation, and consultation with legal counsel 
regarding specific legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice by such 
counsel pursuant to Virginia Code § 2.2-3711(A) (7). 

  
 

1. Andrew Chiles, et al. v. Melvin M. Dunn, Jr., et al., Case 
No. CL-2009-007555 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Mount Vernon District) 

 
2. Virginia Department of Labor and Industry v. Fairfax County Fire and 

Rescue Department and Its Successors, Inspection No. 314841099 
(Springfield District) 

 
3. Application of Columbia Gas of Virginia, Inc., PUE-2010-00017 (Va. State 

Corp. Comm’n) (Dranesville, Hunter Mill, and Sully Districts) 
 
4. Xuli Zhang v. Police S. Regan and Police PEC M. Green, Mason Station, 

Fairfax County Police Department, C.A. No. 1:10-cv-1329 (E.D.Va.) 
 

5. Craig J. Blakeley and Kathleen M. McDermott v. Board of Supervisors of 
Fairfax County, Virginia, Case No. CL-2010-0005765 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) 
(Mason District) 

 
 6. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Ruben Perez 

and Sonia M. Montecinos, Case No. CL-2010-0001725 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) 
(Mason District) 

 

(211)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
Page 2 
 

  

7. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Leonel A. 
Romero and Nora E. Martinez, Case No. CL-2009-0012157 (Fx. Co. Cir. 
Ct.) (Braddock District) 

 
8. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Nasir Ahmad 

and Wosai Ahmadi, Case No. CL-2010-0000725 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Mason 
District) 

 
9. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Reynaldo C. 

Medrano and Carla Munoz-Lopez, Case No. CL-2006-0010659 (Fx. Co. 
Cir. Ct.) (Mason District) 

 
10. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Santos E. 

Martinez, Case No. CL-2010-0012138 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Lee District) 
 
11. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Mounir Badawy, 

Case No. CL-2010-0010675 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Dranesville District) 
 
12. Michael R. Congleton, Property Maintenance Code Official for Fairfax 

County, Virginia v. Aminullah A. Arsala, Case No. CL-2010-0014719 (Fx. 
Co. Cir. Ct.) (Mason District) 

 
13. Michael R. Congleton, Property Maintenance Code Official for Fairfax 

County, Virginia v. Laird Graham Minor, Case No. CL-2010-0012137 (Fx. 
Co. Cir. Ct.) (Providence District) 

 
14. Michael R. Congleton, Property Maintenance Code Official for Fairfax 

County, Virginia v. Michel Vallet, Case No. CL-2010-0011361 (Fx. Co. Cir. 
Ct.) (Dranesville District) 

 
15. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Idalia Cruz and 

Nelzar Gallo, Case No. CL-2010-0014776 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Hunter Mill 
District) 

 
16. Michael R. Congleton, Property Maintenance Code Official for Fairfax 

County, Virginia v. George W. Garber and Mary L. Garber, Case 
No. CL-2010-0015516 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Hunter Mill District) 

 
17. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Jorge A. 

Mondino and Marta M. Mondino, Case No. CL-2010-0017077 (Fx. Co. Cir. 
Ct.) (Dranesville District) 

(212)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
Page 3 
 

  

18. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Nelson Adams 
and Juana Adams, Case No. CL-2010-0014239 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Mount 
Vernon District) 

 
19. Mark J. Stadsklev and Susan M. K. Stadsklev v. Board of Zoning Appeals 

of Fairfax County, Virginia, Case No. CL-2009-0015290; Eileen M. 
McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Mark J. Stadsklev and 
Susan M. K. Stadsklev, Case No. CL-2009-0015289 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) 
(Dranesville District) 

 
20. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Rosa E. 

Martinez, Case No. CL-2010-0011285 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Mason District) 
 

21. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Eric D. Smith, 
Kevin D. Smith, and Michelle C. Smith, Case No. CL-2010-0014667 (Fx. Co. 
Cir. Ct.) (Hunter Mill District) 

 
22. Michael R. Congleton, Property Maintenance Code Official for Fairfax 

County, Virginia v. Steven Nagy and Rosario Nagy, Case 
No. CL-2010-0017883 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Providence District) 

 
23. Michael R. Congleton, Property Maintenance Code Official for Fairfax 

County, Virginia v. Jorge Alberto Broide, Case No. CL-2010-0017885 (Fx. 
Co. Cir. Ct.) (Providence District) 

 
24. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. KF Bailey's 

Crossroads, LLC, Case No. CL-2011-0000048 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Mason 
District) 

 
25. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. JMM, LLC, 

T/A Lake Anne Market, Case No. CL-2011-0000051 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) 
(Hunter Mill District) 

 
26. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Daniel P. Sachs, 

Case No. CL-2011-0000050 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Dranesville District) 
 
27. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Doan-Tran T. 

Luong, Case No. CL-2011-0000049 (Providence District) 
 
28. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Reynaldo C. 

Medrano and Carla Munoz-Lopez, Case No. CL-2011-0000217 (Fx. Co. Cir. 
Ct.) (Mason District) 

(213)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
Page 4 
 

  

 
29. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Manuel Martinez, 

Case No. CL-2011-0000216 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Mason District) 
 
30. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Lawrence G. Rich 

and Vanessa C. Rich, Case No. CL-2011-0000231 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) 
(Providence District) 

 
31. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Dennis N. Brill, 

Case No. CL-2011-0000268 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Lee District) 
 
32. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. 4005 Hummer 

Road, LLC, Case No. CL-2011-0000354 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Mason District) 
 
33. Eileen M. McLane, Fairfax County Zoning Administrator v. Sandra E. 

Bermudez, Case Nos. 10-0023194 and 10-0023195 (Fx. Co. Gen. Dist. Ct.) 
(Mount Vernon District) 

 
34. Michael R. Congleton, Property Maintenance Code Official for Fairfax 

County, Virginia v. Doris Harwitz, Trustee of the Florence Harwitz Trust, 
Case Nos. 10-0025984 and 10-0025985 (Fx. Co. Gen. Dist. Ct.) (Dranesville 
District) 

 
35. Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia v. Monarch Equities, LLC, 

Case No. CL-2010-0002565 (Fx. Co. Cir. Ct.) (Dranesville District) 
 
 
 

(214)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
3:00 p.m. 
 
 
Annual Meeting of the Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority annual meeting. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority hold 
its annual meeting in accordance with the Bylaws for the Authority; appoint officers; 
approve the minutes of the January 26, 2010 meeting; and approve the financial 
statements.   
 
 
TIMING: 
Immediate.  The Bylaws of the Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority require the annual 
meeting to coincide with the time for the last regular meeting of the Board of 
Supervisors set in January. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
According to the Bylaws of the Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority, the regular annual 
meeting of the Authority shall coincide with the time for the last regular meeting of the 
Board of Supervisors set in January.  The proposed agenda of the Authority meeting is 
included as Attachment I.  The Bylaws further require a review and approval of the 
minutes of the previous year’s meeting (Attachment II) and that officers of the authority 
be appointed to serve for a one-year term. 
 
During FY 2010, the I-95 Energy/Resource Recovery Facility (E/RRF) processed 
1,015,405 tons of municipal solid waste.  Service Agreement tons totaled 966,703 tons, 
3.9% above the Guaranteed Annual Tonnage (GAT) of 930,750 tons required by the 
Service Agreement with Covanta Fairfax, Inc. (CFI), operator of the facility.  County 
waste delivered to the facility totaled 757,494 tons.  This was below the GAT level but 
additional waste from the District of Columbia and Prince William County accounted for 
the remaining tons. 
 
The June 2010 stack and ash tests documented emissions from the E/RRF that were 
well below regulatory and permit limits established by the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) and the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality.  The independent 

(215)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
engineering firm of Dvirka and Bartilucci confirmed in its report of December 2010 that 
“CFI has complied with the requirements of the Service Agreement, as amended and 
has complied with the Facility’s various environmental permit and regulatory 
obligations.”  Covanta Fairfax continues to be certified as a Virginia Environmental 
Excellence Enterprise Program (E3) enterprise.  
 
Covanta is current in paying the construction bonds, and these bonds will be paid off in 
February 2011.  The Service Agreement continues into 2016; however a purchase 
option and a long-term extension of the Service Agreement are being considered.  
Other financial information is contained in the Financial Statements (Attachment Ill).   
 
The project that allows the facility to use reclaimed water from the Noman M. Cole, Jr. 
Pollution Control Plant is progressing well, with implementation scheduled by early 
2012.  This project will benefit Fairfax County by using reclaimed water for industrial 
purposes instead of potable water, and will help reduce the nutrient load being 
discharged to the Chesapeake Bay. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment I – Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority Meeting Agenda, January 25, 2011 
Attachment II – Minutes of the January 26, 2010, Solid Waste Authority Meeting 
Attachment lll – Financial Statements and Supplemental Information 
 
 
STAFF: 
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Joyce M. Doughty, Director, Division of Solid Waste Disposal and Resource Recovery 

(216)



Attachment I 
 
 

FAIRFAX COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 
 

Annual Meeting Agenda 
 

January 25, 2011 
 
 

1. Call-to-Order 
 
2. Appointment of Officers. 
 
 Chairman  - Sharon Bulova, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 Vice-Chairman  - Penelope A. Gross, Vice Chairman, Board of  
    Supervisors 
 
 Secretary  - Nancy Vehrs, Clerk to the Fairfax County Board of  
    Supervisors 
 
 Treasurer  - Victor Garcia, Director, Department of Finance 
 
 Attorney  - David P. Bobzien, County Attorney 
 
 Executive Director  - Anthony H. Griffin, County Executive 
 
 Authority Representative - Joyce M. Doughty, Director, Division of Solid  
    Waste Disposal and Resource Recovery 
 
3. Approval of the minutes from the January 26, 2010, meeting. 
 
4. Approval of the financial statements for the Authority. 
  
5. Discussion of the I-95 Energy/Resource Recovery Facility Agreement. 
 
6. Adjournment. 
 
 

(217)



Attachment II 

MINUTES OF T H E ADJOURNED ANNUAL M E E T I N G OF T H E 
SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

January 26, 2010 

At the Adjourned Annual Meeting of the Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority held in 

accordance with Article III , Section I , of the bylaws, in the Board Auditorium of the Government 

Center in Fairfax, Virginia, on Tuesday, January 26, 2010, at 4:13 p.m., there were present: 

MEMBERS OF T H E BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND O F F I C E R S : 

Chairman Sharon Bulova, presiding 

Vice-Chairman Penelope A. Gross, of Mason District 

Supervisor John C. Cook, of Braddock District 

Supervisor John W. Foust, of Dranesville District 

Supervisor Michael R. Frey, of Sully District 

Supervisor Catherine M. Hudgins, of Hunter Mill District 

Supervisor Gerald W. Hyland, of Mount Vernon District 

Supervisor Jeffrey C. McKay, of Lee District 

Supervisor Patrick S. Herrity, of Springfield District 

Supervisor Linda Q. Smyth, of Providence District 

Anthony H. Griffin, County Executive; Authority Executive Director 

David P. Bobzien, County Attorney, Authority Attorney 

Nancy Vehrs, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors; Authority Secretary 

Victor Garcia, Director, Department of Finance, Treasurer 

(218)



Meeting Minutes 
The Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority 

January 26, 2010 

Joyce Doughty, Director, Division of Solid Waste Disposal and Resource 
Recovery, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES), 
Authority Representative. 

Supervisor Gross moved that the Board appoint the following officers and officials to the 

Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority: 

O F F I C E R S 

Sharon Bulova 
Chairman, Fairfax County 
Board of Supervisors 

Penelope Gross 
Vice-Chairman, Fairfax County 
Board of Supervisors 

Nancy Vehrs 
Clerk to the Fairfax County 
Board of Supervisors 

Victor Garcia 
Director, Office of Finance 

David P. Bobzien 
County Attorney 

Anthony H. Griffin 
County Executive 

Joyce M. Doughty 
Director, Division of Solid Waste 
Disposal and Resource Recovery, 
DPWES 

- Chairman 

- Vice-Chairman 

Secretary 

Treasurer 

- Attorney 

Executive Director 

Authority Representative 

Supervisor Foust seconded the motion and it carried by unanimous vote. 

-2-

(219)



Meeting Minutes 
The Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority 

January 26, 2010 

Supervisor Gross moved approval of the minutes from the February 23, 2009, and 

December 7, 2009, meetings of the Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority. Supervisor Foust 

seconded the motion. 

Following a query to Ms. Doughty regarding spot market waste, the question was called 

on the motion and it carried by unanimous vote. 

Supervisor Gross moved approval of the financial statements and supplemental 

information as identified as Attachment IV to the Board Agenda Item dated January 26, 2010. 

Supervisor McKay seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous vote. 

Supervisor Gross moved to adjourn the Annual Meeting of the Fairfax County Solid 

Waste Authority. Supervisor Smyth seconded the motion and it carried by unanimous vote. 

At 4:16 p.m., the Annual Meeting of the Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority was adjourned. 

-3-

(220)



Meeting Minutes 
The Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority 

January 26, 2010 

// 

The foregoing minutes record the actions taken by the Fairfax County Solid Waste 

Authority at its meeting held on Tuesday, January 26, 2010, and reflects matters discussed by the 

Authority. Audio recordings or videotapes of all proceedings are available in the Office of the 

Clerk to the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia. 

// 

Respectfully submitted, 

Secretary 
Solid Waste Authority 

(221)



Attachment III 

FAIRFAX COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

Financial Statements and Supplemental Information 

June 30,2010 and 2009 

(222)



F A I R F A X COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

Table of Contents 

Page 

Statements of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 1 

Notes to Financial Statements 2 

Supplemental Information: 

Schedule of Changes in Assets - By Bond Fund 
for the year ended June 30,2010 , 5 

Schedule of Changes in Assets - By Bond Fund 
for the year ended June 30,2009 6 

Notes to Supplemental Information 7 

(223)



F A I R F A X COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

Statements of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 

June 30, 2010 and 2009 

2010 2009 
Assets: 

Investments (note 3) $ 31,630,071 $ 30,248,672 

Liabilities: 
Liability under reimbursement agreement $ 31,630,071 $ 30,248,672 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

1 

(224)



F A I R F A X COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2010 and 2009 

1. Organization 

The Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority (the Authority) was formed by resolution of the Board of 
Supervisors of the County of Fairfax, Virginia (the County), on July 27, 1987. The Authority's board 
consists of the County's Board of Supervisors. Therefore, the Authority is considered a blended 
component unit of the County. 

The Authority was formed for the purpose of constructing and overseeing the operations of a 
resource recovery facility (the Facility) in Lorton, Virginia, on a site that was purchased in July 2002 
by the County from the United States. Prior thereto, legal title to the site was vested in the United 
States to the benefit of the District of Columbia; the site was leased by the District to the County, and 
the County assigned the leased site to the Authority. The Assignment of Site Lease to the Authority, 
dated as of February 1, 1988, has not been amended, terminated, rescinded, or revoked, and remains 
in full force and effect in accordance with its terms. 

The construction of the Facility was partially financed by $237,180,000 and $14,900,000 of Series 
1988A tax-exempt and Series 1988B taxable industrial revenue bonds, respectively, issued by the 
Fairfax County Economic Development Authority (EDA) during 1988. The Series 1988B Bonds 
were retired in February 1996. The Authority invests all bond proceeds through a trust account with a 
major bank. The Authority is responsible for making all investment decisions and authorizing all 
disbursements from the trust. 

On February 1, 1988, an Installment Sales Agreement between the EDA and the Authority was 
executed whereby the Facility and the bond proceeds were sold to the Authority. Concurrent with this 
Installment Sales Agreement, the Authority entered into a Conditional Sale Agreement whereby the 
Facility, the bond proceeds and the Authority's leasehold interest in the site were sold to Covanta 
Fairfax, Inc. Under a related service agreement, Covanta designed, constructed, and operates the 
Facility. The Facility was completed and began commercial operations in June 1990. The County and 
the Authority have agreed to provide guaranteed minimum annual amounts of waste and annual 
tipping fees to the Facility. Under the terms of the Conditional Sale Agreement, debt service on the 
bonds is to be paid by Covanta through the Authority solely from solid waste system revenues 
generated by the Facility. The bonds are not general obligations of the Authority, the County, or the 
EDA. 

During the year ended June 30, 1995, the EDA sold, at the request of the Authority for the benefit of 
the Facility, a call option on the Series 1988A Bonds to a financial institution for $10,250,000. The 
option, which was exercised in November 1998, required the EDA to issue new bonds to the 
institution at certain agreed-upon interest rates. The proceeds of the new Series 1998A Resource 
Recovery Revenue Refunding Bonds together with certain proceeds remaining from the 
Series 1988A Bonds and certain other available funds were used to refund the remaining outstanding 
Series 1988A Bonds in February 1999. The refunding bonds, which have a total principal amount of 
$195,505,000 and a final payment due date of February 1, 2011, are also not general obligations of 
the Authority, the County or the EDA. 

2 

(225)



F A I R F A X COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2010 and 2009 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

a. Basis of Presentation 

The financial statements of the Authority are presented in accordance with accounting 
principles applicable to fiduciary funds - agency funds of governmental units in the United 
States of America. 

b. Basis of Accounting 

The accounts of the Authority are presented under the accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
accrual basis of accounting, as it relates to agency funds, additions to assets are recognized 
when susceptible to accrual and measurable. 

c. Investments 

The Authority invests primarily in discounted notes and money market securities with 
maturities of less than one year from the date of purchase. Investments are reported at either 
fair value or amortized cost, which approximates fair value. Changes in fair value are reported 
as additions or deletions to carrying values and liability under reimbursement agreement. 

d. Liability under Reimbursement Agreement 

Liability under reimbursement agreement reflects the Authority's obligation as agent under the 
terms of the agreements with Covanta. Under the agreements that govern the Authority, the 
Authority is responsible for collecting payments from Covanta, in amounts sufficient to meet 
annual debt service and related administrative costs. The Authority is responsible under the 
agreements to manage the excess proceeds of the bond issues and disburse the proceeds and 
related earnings for solid waste purposes, debt service, and related administrative costs. 

3. Investments 

The Authority's investment policy is outlined in the trust indenture. The trust indenture allows the 
Authority to invest in direct obligations of the U.S. Government or agencies thereof; direct 
obligations of U.S. Government-sponsored enterprises; direct obligations of any state or agency; 
instrumentality or unit of any state of the United States; negotiable certificates of deposit; 
commercial paper; money market funds; and repurchase agreements (the underlining collateral must 
have a market value of at least 102 percent of the cost of the repurchase agreement) with member 
banks of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or bond dealers reporting to and trading with the 
Federal Reserve Bank. Per the trust indenture, the Authority's investments are limited to U.S. dollar 
denominated instruments; however, concentration of credit risk is not addressed. 

3 

(226)



FAIRFAX COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2010 and 2009 

The Authority rninirnizes the risk that its portfolio will realize a loss due to changes in market'interest 
rates by structuring the investment portfolio so that sufficient securities mature to meet cash 
requirements for debt service payments and administrative expenses, thereby avoiding the need to 
sell securities on the open market prior to maturity. 

The Authority's investments, as of June 30,2010 and 2009, are summarized below at fair value: 

Investments at: 
June 30,2010 June 30,2009 

U.S. Treasury money market funds $ 0 10,657,786 
Money Market Mutual Fund 1,750,679 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) 

notes maturing July 30, 2010 4,100,391 0 
Federal National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) 

notes maturing July 30,2010 23,717,081 0 
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLBank) notes 

maturing July 20, 2010 and July 31,2009, respectively 2,061,920 19,590,886 
Total investments $ 31,630,071 30,248,672 Total investments 

The Authority minimizes the risk of loss due to the failure of an issuer or other counterparty to an 
investment to fulfill its obligations by pre-qualifying financial institutions, broker-dealers, 
intermediaries, and advisers with which the Authority does business. In addition, the Authority 
limits its investments to the safest types of securities and diversifies its investment portfolio so that 
potential losses on individual securities will be minimized. Also, new investments are not made in 
securities that are listed on Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (Moody's) Watchlist or Standard & 
Poor's, Inc. (S&P) Credit Watch with a negative rating. The trust indenture specifies that investments 
in U.S. Government-sponsored enterprise securities must have the highest possible credit ratings 
from Moody's and S&P of Aaa and AAA respectively. As of June 30, 2010, the U.S. Government-
sponsored enterprise securities in the Authority's investment portfolio have these required credit 
ratings. 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a counterparty, the Authority will 
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
an outside party. All of the investments purchased by the Authority are insured or registered, or 
securities held by the Authority or its agent in the Authority's name. 

4 

(227)



F A I R F A X COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

Supplemental Schedule of Changes in Assets - By Bond Fund 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 

Assets at July 1, 2009 

Additions: 

Investment income 

Payments from Covanta, Fairfax Inc. 

Total additions 

Deductions: 

Professional fees 

Debt service payments: 

Principal 

Interest 

Total deductions 

Transfers (net) 

Increase (Decrease) in assets 

Assets at June 30,2010 

See notes to supplemental information. 

Series 1988B 
Bonds 

Excess 
Money 

Sub-Account 
1,865,715 

1,238 

1,238 

117,983 

117,983 

(116,745) 
$ 1,748,970 

FCEDA 
Bond 

Interest 
Account 
l;505,556 

5,364 
3,164,071 
3,169,435 

3,613,335 
3,613,335 

(443,900) 
1,061,656 

Series 1998A 
Refunding Bonds 

FCEDA 
Bond 

Principal 
Account 

7,283,334 

12,101 
19,359,475 

19,371,576 

17,480,000 

17,480,000 
81,136 

1,972,712 
9,256,046 

Debt 
Service 
Reserve 

Fund 
19,594,067 

50,468 

50,468 

(81,136) 
(30,668) 

19,563,399 

Total 
30,248,672 

69,171 
22,523,546 
22,592,717 

117,983 

17,480,000 
3,613,335 

21,211,318 

1,381,399 
31,630,071 

5 

(228)



F A I R F A X COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

Supplemental Schedule of Changes in Assets - By Bond Fund 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 

Assets at July 1, 2008 

Additions: 

Investment income 

Payments from Covanta, Fairfax Inc. 

Total additions 

Deductions: 

Professional fees 

Debt service payments: 

Principal 

Interest 

Total deductions 

Transfers (net) 

Increase (Decrease) in assets 

Assets at June 30, 2009 

See notes to supplemental information. 

Series 1988B 
Bonds 

Excess 
Money 

Sub-Account 
1,962,010 

15,722 

15,722 

112,017 

112,017 

(96,295) 

1,865,715 

FCEDA 
Bond 

Interest 
Account 
1,939,115 

17,009 
4,184,310 
4,201,319 

4,634,878 
4,634,878 

(433,559) 
1,505,556 

Series 1998A 
Refunding Bonds 

FCEDA 
Bond 

Principal 
Account 

7,064,259 

178,284 
16,406,659 
16,584,943 

16,885,000 

16,885,000 
519,132 
219,075 

7,283,334 

Debt 
Service 
Reserve 

Fund 
19,758,534 

354,665 

354,665 

(519,132) 
(164,467) 

19,594,067 

Total 
30,723,918 

565,680 
20,590,969 
21,156,649 

112,017 

16,885,000 
4,634,878 

21,631,895 

(475,246) 
30,248,672 

6 

(229)



F A I R F A X COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

Notes to Supplemental Information 

June 30, 2010 and 2009 

1. Description of Supplemental Schedules - Bond Funds 

The following is a description of the bond funds under the Series 1988B Bond and the Series 1998A 
Refunding Bond indentures: 

• FCEDA Bond Interest Account - This account was established for the Series 1998A 
Refunding Bonds, and amounts are deposited directly into it to pay interest on these bonds. 

• FCEDA Bond Principal Account - This account was established for the Series 1998A 
Refunding Bonds, and amounts are deposited directly into it to pay principal on these bonds. 

• Debt Service Reserve Fund - This fund is maintained to ensure that adequate amounts are 
available to pay bond principal and interest on the Series 1998A Refunding Bonds. In the event 
of default on any required principal or interest payment, a draw is made against the debt 
service reserve fund. 

• Excess Money Sub-Account - This fund accounts for bond proceeds in excess of those which 
were needed to construct the facility. These excess funds are left on deposit in the 
Series 1988B Bonds Excess Money Sub-Account to fund any environmental control systems 
required under the Clean Air Act, and/or future facility or solid waste projects. 

2. Schedule of Bonds Outstanding 

As of June 30, 2010, the outstanding principal and interest amounts of the Series 1998A Resource 
Recovery Revenue Refunding Bonds were $41,755,000 and $2,547,056 respectively. These 
outstanding amounts, due in Fiscal Year 2011, represent the final payments on the Series 1998A 
Resource Recovery Revenue Refunding Bonds. The debt service reserve of $19.6M will be applied 
against the final principal payment due on February 1, 2011. The due dates are as follows: 

Principal Interest 
Due Date Amount Amount Total 

8/1/2010 0 1,273,528 1,273,528 

2/1/2011 41,755,000 1,273,528 43,028,528 
Total $ 41,755,000 $ 2,547,056 $ 44,302,056 

The payment of bond principal and interest amounts is the responsibility of Covanta. 

7 

(230)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
3:30 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on SE 2010-MA-020 (Higher Horizons Day Care Center, Inc.) to Permit a 
Child Care Center and Nursery School with a Maximum Enrollment of 48 Students and 
Waivers and Modifications in a CRD, Located on approximately 13,160 Square Feet Zoned 
C-7, CRD, HC and SC, Mason District 
 
The application property is located at 6201 Leesburg Pike, Tax Map 51-3 ((23)) Cpt. and 
C1pt. 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
On Thursday, January 13, 2011, the Planning Commission voted unanimously 
(Commissioner Murphy not present for the votes) to recommend the following actions to the 
Board of Supervisors: 

 
 Approval of SE 2010-MA-020, subject to the Development Conditions dated 

December 29, 2010, modified as follows: 
 

o Revise Condition 5 to read, “The total maximum daily enrollment is limited to 
48 students between the ages of 6 weeks and 3 years old.” 

 
o Revise Condition 6 to read, “The maximum number of staff on site shall not 

exceed 12 at any one time.” 
 

o Revise Condition 7 to read, “The hours of operation shall be limited to 7:30 am 
to 5:00 p.m.” 

 
o Revise Condition 9 to read, “Parking areas shall not be used for recreational 

purposes.” 
 

o Add a new Development Condition to read, “Prior to the issuance of a non-
RUP, the applicant shall provide a parking tabulation to ensure adequate 
parking on site.” 

 
 Modification of the transitional screening yard and barrier requirements along the 

north, south, and east boundary lines in favor of that shown on the SE Plat. 
 

 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Verbatim  
Staff Report previously furnished and available online at 
http://ldsnet.fairfaxcounty.gov/ldsnet/ldsdwf/4337609.PDF 

(231)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
STAFF: 
Barbara Berlin, Director, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
William O’Donnell, Staff Coordinator, Zoning Evaluation Division, DPZ 
 

(232)



 

Planning Commission Meeting 
January 13, 2011 
Verbatim Excerpt 
 
 
SE 2010-MA-020 – HIGHER HORIZONS DAY CARE CENTER, INC. 
 
After the Close of the Public Hearing 
 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Close the public hearing; recognize Commissioner Hall. 
 
Commissioner Hall:  Okay.  We got the buttons working.  Mr. Chairman, I move that the Planning 
Commission recommend - - oh boy, hold on.  Right.  I have - - okay.  Thank you.   
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Suspended motion. 
 
Commissioner Hall:  Okay.   
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All right. 
 
Commissioner Hall:  I don't know if I trust you after that 2009 and 2010.  Okay.  Let me start again.  I 
MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF  
SE 2010-MA-020, SUBJECT TO THE DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH 
THOSE DATED DECEMBER 29, 2010, and as modified - -AND AS MODIFIED HERE.  Okay.  
Condition Number 5 - - CONDITION NUMBER 5 WILL BE REPLACED WITH "THE TOTAL 
MAXIMUM DAILY ENROLLMENT IS LIMITED TO 48 - - between the ages - - THE 
STUDENTS BETWEEN THE AGES OF SIX WEEKS AND THREE YEARS OLD."  CONDITION 
NUMBER 6 SHALL NOW READ: "THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF STAFF SHALL NOT 
EXCEED 12 AT ANY ONE TIME ON SITE."  Okay.  CONDITION NUMBER 7, THE WORD 
"NORMAL" IS DELETED AND NOW READS: "THE HOURS OF OPERATION SHALL BE 
LIMITED TO 7:30 A.M. to 5,000 - - 5,000 - - TO 5:00 P.M."  And last but not least, CONDITION 
NUMBER 9 WILL NOW READ: "PARKING AREAS SHALL NOT BE USED FOR 
RECREATIONAL PURPOSES."  IN ADDITION, WE WILL ADD A NEW DEVELOPMENT 
CONDITION, WHICH READS: "PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF A NON-RUP, THE 
APPLICANT SHALL PROVIDE A PARKING TABULATION TO ENSURE ADEQUATE 
PARKING ON SITE." 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Okay.  The motion's been moved.  Is there a second? 
 
Commissioner de la Fe:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner de la Fe.  Any discussion on that motion?   
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Question, Mr. Chairman, for clarification.   
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Mr. Lawrence? 
 

(233)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 2 
January 13, 2011 
SE 2010-MA-020 
 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  The condition that says, we're only going to have so many staff on site at 
any one time, how will that be enforced?  Will there be sign-in sheets?  How will we know? 
 
Commissioner Hall:  I would believe that it would be like any other condition that it's called - - they 
would have time-in sheets or time cards, or it's like any other condition that we have.   
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Any other discussion on the motion? 
 
William O'Donnell, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Zoning: Commissioner 
Hall, I can kind of speak to that.  If it becomes a problem - - 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Mr. O'Donnell. 
 
Mr. O'Donnell:  I'm sorry.  This is William O'Donnell.  If it is a problem, Zoning Enforcement has 
the ability to - - you know - - use that condition as a means to enforce, either if it's a parking problem 
or whatever the problem is.  So. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Okay.  Any more discussion on the motion?  All those in favor of 
recommending approval of SE 2010-MA-020, subject to the development conditions consistent with 
those found in the staff report and as modified by Commissioner Hall, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.  Commissioner Hall. 
 
Commissioner Hall:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I MOVE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE MODIFICATION OF THE TRANSITIONAL SCREENING 
YARD AND BARRIER REQUIREMENTS ALONG THE NORTH, SOUTH, AND EAST 
BOUNDARY LINES, IN FAVOR OF THAT SHOWN ON THE SE PLAT. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner de la Fe.  Any discussion of that motion?  All 
those in favor of recommending a modification of the transitional screening yard and barrier 
requirements along the north, south, and east boundary lines, in favor of that shown on the SE Plat, 
please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.   
 

(234)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 3 
January 13, 2011 
SE 2010-MA-020 
 
 
Commissioner Hall:  Mr. Chairman, thank you very much, staff, Will - - hang in there.  And I 
appreciate the work that the applicant and you'll be bringing extra services to people who need it in 
their neighborhood, which I think is a real plus.  So, I thank you all.  And now I'm going to say, good 
night, and I'm going to take my throat and leave.  Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Thank you, Ms. Hall.  Mr. Lawrence, before we go to - - 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Just a quick question for Transportation staff.  Is there a statement 
somewhere on our Web site about who owns our roads?  
 
Alan Kessler, Fairfax County Department of Transportation:  My name is Alan Kessler with the 
Fairfax County Department of Transportation.  I do not know exactly, basically it might be on the 
VDOT Web site.   
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Could I ask that we - -? 
 
Mr. Kessler:  That's the first place I would look. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Could I ask that we take a look at that?  I think there are a number of 
people in the County who don't - - why would they know that we don't control our own roads?  That 
the State controls them instead, except for maybe a couple hundred miles.  Could we look into that?  
And maybe is there a way to publicize that by saying on the Web site, "We don't control the roads, 
the State does."  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Sure.  Okay.  Thank you. 
 
// 
 
(The motions carried unanimously with Commissioner Murphy not present for the votes.) 
 
KAD 
 

(235)



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

(236)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
3:30 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on PCA 2005-PR-041 (Eskridge (E & A) LLC) to Amend the Proffers, 
Conceptual and Final Development Plans for RZ 2005-PR-041 Previously Approved for 
Mixed Use Development to Permit Proffer and Site Modifications with an Overall Floor Area 
Ratio of 1.18, Located on Approximately 7.42 Acres Zoned PDC and HC, Providence 
District 
 
The application property is located on the south side of Lee Highway, east of Eskridge Road 
and west of the terminus of Strawberry Lane, Tax Map 49-3 ((1)) 80E pt., 81A, 82A and 
82B. 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
On Thursday, January 13, 2011, the Planning Commission voted unanimously (Commis-
sioners Hall and Murphy not present for the votes) to recommend the following actions to 
the Board of Supervisors: 
 

 Approval of PCA 2005-PR-041, subject to the execution of proffers consistent with 
those dated January 10, 2011; 

 
 Approval of CDPA 2005-PR-041, subject to the Development Conditions dated 

December 29, 2010; 
 

 Modification of the private street limitations of Sect. 11-302 of the Fairfax County 
Zoning Ordinance; 

 
 Modification of the transitional screening requirement and waiver of the barrier 

requirements to the south, east, and internal to the site, in favor of the treatments 
depicted on the CDPA/FDPA; 

 
 Waiver of the 4-foot peripheral parking lot landscaping requirement north of parcel G, 

west of parcels C and E, and along the southern and eastern property lines; 
 

 Waiver of the service drive along the Lee Highway frontage; 
 

 Direct the Director of DPWES to approve modification of the parking geometric 
standards to allow for 75-degree angled parking spaces within parking structures; 

 
 Approval of a modification to allow residential as a secondary use consisting of up to 

76% of the principal uses in the PDC District, pursuant to Sect. 6-206 of the Fairfax 
County Zoning Ordinance; 

 

(237)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 

 Modification of Par. 3 of Sect. 18-201 of the Zoning Ordinance which would require 
the provision of further interparcel access in addition to that indicated on the 
CDPA/FDPA; 

 
 Modification of Par. 4 of Sect. 17-201 of the Zoning Ordinance for dedication and 

construction of widening for existing roads, existing roads on new alignments, and 
proposed roads along Lee Highway, as indicated in the Comprehensive Plan or as 
required by the Director, to that shown on the CDPA/FDPA and as proffered; 

 
 Modification of the materials for the proposed trail along Lee Highway shown in the 

Comprehensive Plan Trails Map to that shown on the CDPA/FDPA; 
 

 Direct the Director of DPWES to approve a modification of the Public Facilities 
Manual (PFM) and Par. 12 of Sect. 11-102 of the Zoning Ordinance to allow for the 
projection, by no more than 4% of the stall area, of structural columns into parking 
stalls in parking structures; and 

 
 Direct the Director of DPWES to waive the PFM on-site stormwater detention 

requirements, in favor of providing stormwater management off-site in the Merrifield 
Town Center vault. 

 
The Commission voted 9-1 (Commissioner Harsel opposed; Commissioners Hall and 
Murphy not present for the votes) to recommend the following actions to the Board of 
Supervisors: 
 

 Modification of the loading space requirements for multi-family dwelling units and 
office space in favor of that depicted on the CDPA/FDPA; and 

 
 Approval of the waiver to locate underground facilities for all residential development, 

subject to Waiver # 0561-WPFM-002-3. 
 
The Planning Commission voted unanimously (Commissioners Hall and Murphy not present 
for the vote) to approve FDPA 2005-PR-041, subject to the Development Conditions dated 
January 10, 2011. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Verbatim  
Staff Report previously furnished and available online at 
http://ldsnet.fairfaxcounty.gov/ldsnet/ldsdwf/4337857.PDF 
 
STAFF: 
Barbara Berlin, Director, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
William O’Donnell, Staff Coordinator, Zoning Evaluation Division, DPZ 

(238)



 

Planning Commission Meeting 
January 13, 2011 
Verbatim Excerpt 
 
 
PCA 2005-PR-041 – ESKRIDGE (E & A) LLC 
FDPA 2005-PR-041 – ESKRIDGE (E & A) LLC 
 
After the Close of the Public Hearing 
 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Close the public hearing; recognize Commissioner Lawrence for action on 
the case. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVE OF PCA 
2005-PR-041, SUBJECT TO THE EXECUTION OF PROFFERS CONSISTENT WITH THOSE 
DATED JANUARY 10TH, 2011. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  Any discussion on that motion?  All 
those in favor of recommending approval of PCA 2005-PR-041, subject to the execution of proffers 
consistent with those found - - or those dated January 10th, 2010, (sic) please say aye. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe: 2011. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Oh, yes, 2011. Good catch.  
 
Commissioner Hart:  Mr. Chairman, I thought with the correction being made before it goes to the 
Board about what went wrong with the printing – 
 
William O'Donnell, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Transportation: Yes. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence: Left it as a friendly amendment. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Let the record clarify without objection that that typo will be taken care of in 
the proffers; and it’s 2011, not 2010.  Okay, Mr. Lawrence.  
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND 
THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVE OF CDPA 2005-PR-041, SUBJECT TO THE 
DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS DATED DECEMBER 29TH, 2010. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Second. 
 

(239)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 2 
January 13, 2011 
PCA/FDPA 2005-PR-041 
 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  Any discussion on that motion?  All 
those in favor of recommending approval of CDPA 2005-PR-041, subject to the development 
conditions dated December 29th, 2010, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All those opposed?  That motion carries.  Commissioner Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I move - - I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVE 
OF FDPA 2005-PR-041, SUBJECT TO THE DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS NOW DATED 
JANUARY 10TH, 2011. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  Any discussion of the motion?  All 
those in favor of - - of approving FDPA 2005-PR-041, subject to the development conditions dated 
January 10, 2011, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.  Commissioner Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION OF THE PRIVATE 
STREET LIMITATIONS OF SECTION 11-302 OF THE FAIRFAX COUNTY ZONING 
ORDINANCE. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  Any discussion on that motion?  All 
those in favor of recommending to the Board approval of a modification of the private street 
limitations of Section 11-302 of the Fairfax County Zoning Ordinance, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.  Commissioner Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION OF THE LOADING 
SPACE REQUIREMENTS FOR MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING UNITS AND OFFICE SPACE, IN 
FAVOR OF THAT DEPICTED ON THE CDPA/FDPA. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Second. 

(240)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 3 
January 13, 2011 
PCA/FDPA 2005-PR-041 
 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  All those in favor of recommending 
to the Board of Supervisors approval of a modification of the loading space requirements for multi-
family dwelling units and office space, in favor of that depicted on the CDPA/FDPA, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Commissioner Harsel:  No.  
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Commissioner Harsel votes “no.” 
 
Commissioner Harsel: That’s right.  These loading spaces, I’m voting “no.”  
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Okay, Commissioner Lawrence.  Thank you, Commissioner Harsel. 
Commissioner Lawrence.  
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I’ve reached “four.”  Everyone, look out.  I MOVE THAT THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL 
OF A MODIFICATION OF THE TRANSITIONAL SCREENING AND A WAIVER OF THE 
BARRIER REQUIREMENTS TO THE SOUTH, EAST, AND INTERNAL TO THE SITE, IN 
FAVOR OF THE TREATMENTS DEPICTED ON THE CDPA/FDPA. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  All those - - Any discussion?  All 
those in favor of recommending to the Board of Supervisors approval of a modification of the 
transitional screening and a waiver of the barrier requirements on the south, east, and internal to the 
site, in favor of the treatments depicted on the CDPA/FDPA, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.  Commissioner Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A WAIVER OF THE FOUR-FOOT 
PERIPHERAL PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENT NORTH OF PARCEL G, 
WEST OF PARCEL C AND E, AND ALONG THE SOUTHERLY AND EASTERLY PROPERTY 
LINES. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  All those - - Any discussion?  All 
those in favor of the motion to recommend the Board of Supervisors approval of a waiver of  

(241)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 4 
January 13, 2011 
PCA/FDPA 2005-PR-041 
 
 
the four-foot peripheral parking lot landscaping requirement north of parcel G, west of parcel C and 
E, and along the southerly and easterly property lines, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.  Commissioner Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND 
THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVE THE WAIVER TO LOCATE 
UNDERGROUND FACILITIES FOR ALL RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT, SUBJECT TO 
WAIVER NUMBER 0561-WPFM-002-3. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  Any discussion?  All those in favor of 
recommending the Board of Supervisors’ approval of the waiver to locate underground facilities for 
all residential development, subject to Waiver Number 0561-WPFM-002-3, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Commissioner Harsel:  No.  
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  The motion carries.  Commissioner Harsel votes "no."  
Commissioner Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A WAIVER OF THE SERVICE DRIVE 
ALONG THE LEE HIGHWAY FRONTAGE. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  Any discussion of that motion?  All 
those in favor of recommending approval of a waiver of the service drive along the Lee Highway 
frontage, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.  Commissioner Lawrence.   
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TO DIRECT THE DIRECTOR OF DPWES TO APPROVE A 
MODIFICATION OF THE PARKING GEOMETRIC STANDARDS TO ALLOW FOR 75-
DEGREE ANGLED PARKING SPACES WITHIN PARKING STRUCTURES. 

(242)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 5 
January 13, 2011 
PCA/FDPA 2005-PR-041 
 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  Any discussion of that motion?  All 
those in favor of recommending approval of a modification of the parking geometric standards to 
allow for 75-degree angled parking spaces within parking structures, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.  Commissioner Lawrence.   
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION TO ALLOW 
RESIDENTIAL AS A SECONDARY USE CONSISTING OF UP TO 76 PERCENT OF THE 
PRINCIPAL USES IN THE PDC DISTRICT, PURSUANT TO SECTION 6-206 OF THE 
FAIRFAX COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  Any discussion of that motion?  All 
those in favor of recommending approval to the Board of Supervisors of a modification to allow 
residential as a secondary use consisting of up to 76 percent of the principal uses in the PDC District, 
pursuant to Section 6-206 of the Fairfax County Zoning Ordinance, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.  Commissioner Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION OF PARAGRAPH 3 OF 
SECTION 18-201 OF THE FAIRFAX COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, WHICH WOULD 
REQUIRE THE PROVISIONS OF FURTHER INTERPARCEL ACCESS IN ADDITION TO 
THAT INDICATED ON THE CDPA/FDPA. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  Any discussion on that motion?  All 
those in favor of recommending to the Board of Supervisors approval of a modification of Paragraph 
3 of Section 18-201 of the Fairfax County Zoning Ordinance, which would require the provision of 
further interparcel access in addition to that indicated on the CDPA/FDPA, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 

(243)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 6 
January 13, 2011 
PCA/FDPA 2005-PR-041 
 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.  Commissioner Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION OF PARAGRAPH 4 OF 
SECTION 17-201 OF THE FAIRFAX COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE FOR DEDICATION 
AND CONSTRUCTION OF WIDENING FOR EXISTING ROADS, EXISTING ROADS ON NEW 
ALIGNMENTS, AND PROPOSED ROADS ALONG LEE HIGHWAY, AS INDICATED IN THE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OR AS REQUIRED BY THE DIRECTOR TO THAT SHOWN ON 
THE CDPA/FDPA AND AS PROFFERED. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  All those approve - - all those - - Any 
discussion?  All those in favor of approval of the motion as articulated by Commissioner Lawrence, 
please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All those opposed?  That motion carries.  Commissioner Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION OF THE MATERIALS 
FOR THE PROPOSED TRAIL ALONG LEE HIGHWAY SHOWN IN THE COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN TRAILS MAP TO THAT SHOWN ON THE CDPA/FDPA. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  Any discussion of that motion?  All 
those in favor of recommending to the Board of Supervisors approval of a modification of the 
materials for the proposed trail along Lee Highway shown in the Comprehensive Plan Trails Map to 
that shown on the CDPA/FDPA, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.  Commissioner Lawrence.  Two more.  
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TO DIRECT THE DIRECTOR OF DPWES TO APPROVE A 
MODIFICATION OF THE PFM AND PARAGRAPH 12 OF SECTION 11-102 OF THE FAIRFAX 
COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE TO ALLOW FOR THE PROJECTION BY NO MORE THAN 
FOUR PERCENT OF THE STALL AREA, OF STRUCTURAL COLUMNS INTO PARKING 
STALLS IN PARKING STRUCTURES. 
 

(244)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 7 
January 13, 2011 
PCA/FDPA 2005-PR-041 
 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  Any discussion of that motion?  All 
those in favor of the motion as articulated by Commissioner Lawrence, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.  And finally, Commissioner Lawrence. 
 
Commissioners: No, no, no…  
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  No? Three more? 
 
Commissioner de la Fe:  Three more. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Oh, just one more on our sheet.  But, let’s give it a whirl.  Let’s get this one. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  Mr. Chairman, there are two more staff recommendations after this. 
 
Mr. O’Donnell:  On the staff report, those are actually relevant to the Special Exception Amendment 
that was applicable to the Luther Jackson, which is not a part of this application and should not have 
been on the cover of the staff report.  I apologize. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Okay, finally, Mr. Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  I’m going to get you.  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DIRECT THE DIRECTOR OF DPWES 
TO WAIVE THE PFM ON-SITE STORMWATER DETENTION REQUIREMENTS, IN FAVOR 
OF PROVIDING STORMWATER MANAGEMENT OFF-SITE IN THE MERRIFIELD TOWN 
CENTER VAULT. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant:  And I thoroughly second.  I really do. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Sargeant.  Any discussion of that motion?  All 
those in favor of recommending to the Board of Supervisors that they direct the Department of 
DPWES (sic) to waive the PFM on-site stormwater detention requirements, in favor of providing 
stormwater management off-site - - off- site in the Merrifield Town Center Vault, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 

(245)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 8 
January 13, 2011 
PCA/FDPA 2005-PR-041 
 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.  Commissioner Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I’d like to thank the applicant.  We have 
obviously a continuing saga, but one which gets more exciting every time I have anything to do with 
it.  It’s really something.  I’d like to thank staff.  Mr. O’Donnell has been his usual unflappable and 
professional self.  And I expect that Ms. Lewis probably already knows that Reynaldo scored a hat 
trick for Real Madrid against del Real. Uh huh, she already knew it.  A complete professional, I must 
say.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Yes, and just very quickly, I just want to note that we just had a lot of 
motions.  This is redevelopment of an existing area, and I think we’re going to see a lot more of this.  
We’re going to see more cases like this where we have, you know, complicated situations that are 
very technical issues that we’re going to be dealing with. So, welcome to our redevelopment world.  
No, I’m not looking at you, Commissioner de la Fe. 
 
Commissioner Hart:  Mr. Chairman? 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: Yes, Mr. Hart. 
 
Commissioner Hart:  It’s redevelopment of redevelopment.  When I first came to Fairfax County, 
when I got out of school, I lived at Circle Towers for about a year.  This was then a drive-in movie 
theater, if you can remember back to that.  So, it’s that redevelopment that’s redeveloped. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn: There we go. 
 
// 
 
(The first through fourth motions carried unanimously with Commissioners Hall and Murphy not 
present for the votes.) 
 
(The fifth motion carried by a vote of 9-1 with Commissioner Harsel opposed; Commissioners Hall 
and Murphy not present for the vote.) 
 
(The sixth and seventh motions carried unanimously with Commissioners Hall and Murphy not 
present for the votes.) 
 
(The eighth motion carried by a vote of 9-1 with Commissioner Harsel opposed; Commissioners Hall 
and Murphy not present for the vote.) 
 
(The ninth through sixteenth motions carried unanimously with Commissioners Hall and Murphy not 
present for the votes.) 
 
JN 

(246)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
3:30 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on SEA 81-L-057-02 (McDonald’s Corporation) to Amend SE 81-L-057 
Previously Approved for a Fast Food Restaurant with Drive-Thru Facilities to Permit 
Modifications and Waivers in a CRD and Modifications to the Site Development and 
Development Conditions, Located on Approximately. 1.57 Acres Zoned C-8, CRD and HC, 
Lee District 
 
The application property is located at 7608 and 7614 Richmond Highway, Tax Map 92-4 
((2)) 3 and 4. 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
On Thursday, January 13, 2011, the Planning Commission voted 8-0-2 (Commissioners 
de la Fe and Hall abstaining; Commissioners Murphy and Sargeant not present for the 
votes) to recommend the following actions to the Board of Supervisors: 

 
 Approval of SEA 81-L-057-02, subject to the Development Conditions dated 
 January 13, 2011; 
 
 Modification of the Richmond Highway Corridor Area Streetscape Elements to that 

shown on the SEA Plat; and 
 

 Direct the Director of the Department of Public Works & Environmental Services to 
permit a deviation from the tree preservation target percentage in favor of the 
proposed landscaping shown on the SEA Plat. 

 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Verbatim  
Staff Report previously furnished and available online at 
http://ldsnet.fairfaxcounty.gov/ldsnet/ldsdwf/4335677.PDF 
 
 
STAFF: 
Barbara Berlin, Director, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
Brenda Cho, Staff Coordinator, Zoning Evaluation Division, DPZ 
 

(247)



 

Planning Commission Meeting 
January 13, 2011 
Verbatim Excerpt 
 
 
SEA 81-L-057-02 – McDONALD'S CORPORATION  
 
Decision Only During Commission Matters 
(Public Hearing held on December 9, 2010) 
 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Tonight I have one decision only from a 
public hearing that we held on December 9, 2010.  It's SEA 81-L-057-02.  Again, on December 9, 
2010 we held a public hearing for the application located at 7608 and 7614 Richmond Highway.  
This application would allow the applicant, McDonald's, to tear down an existing outdated restaurant 
and build a newer model on the site.  This application enjoys the support of staff and the Lee 
[District] Land Use Committee.  Therefore, Mr. Chairman, I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF SEA 81-L-057-02, SUBJECT TO THE 
DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS NOW DATED JANUARY 13, 2011. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Lawrence.  Any discussion on that motion?   
 
Commissioner Hall:  Mr. Chairman? 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Yes, Ms. Hall. 
 
Commissioner Hall:  Hi.  I'm sorry I was not present for the public hearing on the 9th of December.  
However, I was being rescued off of Keystone because the winds had kicked up to 70 miles per hour.  
So, I wasn't here. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Okay. 
 
Commissioner Hall:  Thanks. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All right.  Thank you.  Any other discussion on this motion? 
 
Commissioner Flanagan:  Oh yes.  Mr. Chairman, I'd like to also be listed as seconding that motion.  
This McDonald's happens to be across the street from Mount Vernon District and it's a tremendous 
improvement to the community. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Okay.  Without objection, Mr. Flanagan is recorded as seconding the motion 
as well. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  He has another chance. 
 
 

(248)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 2 
January 13, 2011 
SEA 81-L-057-02 
 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Any more discussion?  All those in favor of recommending the Board of 
Supervisors approve SEA 81-L-057-02, subject to development conditions consistent with those 
dated January 13, 2011, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?   
 
Commissioner Hall:  Abstain. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  That motion carries.   
 
Commissioner de la Fe:  I abstain. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Abstentions by Commissioners de la Fe and Hall, not present for the public 
hearing. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  Mr. Chairman? 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Yes, Commissioner Migliaccio. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  I also MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND 
THAT THE RICHMOND HIGHWAY CORRIDOR AREA STREETSCAPE ELEMENTS BE 
MODIFIED TO THAT SHOWN ON THE SEA PLAT. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Flanagan.  Any discussion of that motion?  All 
those in favor of the motion as articulated by Commissioner Migliaccio, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries.   
 
Commissioners Hall and de la Fe:  Abstain. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  And one more. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Same abstentions.  And Commissioner Migliaccio. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  Thank you.  I MOVE THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DIRECT THE DIRECTOR OF DPWES 
TO PERMIT A DEVIATION FROM THE TREE PRESERVATION TARGET PERCENTAGE, IN 
IN FAVOR OF THE PROPOSED LANDSCAPING SHOWN ON THE SEA PLAT. 

(249)



 

Planning Commission Meeting                                                                                               Page 3 
January 13, 2011 
SEA 81-L-057-02 
 
 
 
Commissioner Flanagan:  Second. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Seconded by Commissioner Flanagan.  Any discussion of that motion?  All 
those in favor of the motion as articulated by Commissioner Migliaccio, please say aye. 
 
Commissioners:  Aye. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  All opposed?  That motion carries as well.  Any more? 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
 
Vice Chairman Alcorn:  Okay.  Thank you. 
 
// 
 
(The motions carried unanimously with votes of 8-0-2 with Commissioners de la Fe and Hall 
abstaining; Commissioners Murphy and Sargeant not present for the votes.) 
 
KAD 
 
 

(250)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
3:30 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on SE 2010-LE-017 (Iskalo CBR LLC) to Permit a Regional Non-Rail Transit 
Facility (Bus Maintenance Facility) Driveway for Uses in an I-District and Uses in a 
Floodplain, Located on Approximately 17.37 Acres Zoned I-6 and R-1, Lee District 
 
The application property is located at 7901, 7909, 7915 and 7828 Cinder Bed Road, Tax 
Map 99-2 ((3)) 1, 2, 3A and 3B. 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Commission public hearing was held on Thursday, January 13, 2011.  The 
Commission deferred its decision to Wednesday, January 19, 2011.  The Commission’s 
recommendation will be forwarded to the Board of Supervisors subsequent to that date. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Verbatim  
Staff Report previously furnished and available online at 
http://ldsnet.fairfaxcounty.gov/ldsnet/ldsdwf/4337803.PDF 
 
 
STAFF: 
Barbara Berlin, Director, Zoning Evaluation Division, Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ) 
St. Clair Williams, Staff Coordinator, Zoning Evaluation Division, DPZ 
 

(251)



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

(252)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
4:00 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing for Fairfax County’s Purchase of One Million Gallon Per Day of Capacity 
at Loudoun Water’s Broad Run Water Reclamation Facility 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Public hearing on Fairfax County’s purchase of one million gallon per day (MGD) of 
capacity at Loudoun Water’s Broad Run Water Reclamation Facility (BRWRF) to meet 
Fairfax County’s growing need for additional wastewater conveyance and treatment 
capacity in the northern portion of the County.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board authorize the Chairman to execute a 
purchase agreement for one MGD of capacity at Loudoun Water’s BRWRF substantially 
in the form of the Draft Agreement in Attachment 1. 
 
 
TIMING: 
The Board authorized advertisement on December 7, 2010. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Loudoun County Sanitation Authority, doing business as Loudoun Water, recently 
completed the construction of the BRWRF to meet its growing wastewater treatment 
needs.  During the planning and design stages of BRWRF, Fairfax County requested 
that provisions be made to accommodate up to 6 MGD of Fairfax’s future needs for 
wastewater treatment in the northern portion of the County.  The Broad Run facility was 
designed and constructed for a capacity of 11 MGD, with provisions to expand to 22 
MGD.  
 
Fairfax County’s growing need for additional treatment capacity to serve the northern 
portion of the County, which includes the redevelopment of the Tysons Corner area, has 
created a need for additional treatment and conveyance capacity.  The County’s flow 
projection for the 2040 build-out condition in the northern portion of the County is 46 
MGD.  This portion of the County is primarily served by the District of Columbia Water 
and Sewer Authority’s Blue Plains treatment plant.  Provisions have been made to 
transfer some of the future flows from this portion of the County to the County’s Noman 
Cole treatment plant.  Also, discussions are underway to purchase additional capacity at 
the Blue Plains treatment plant.  It is recommended that the County purchase 1 MGD of 

(253)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
capacity at the Broad Run facility and re-evaluate the need for additional capacity at this 
facility pending the discussions on additional capacity purchase at the Blue Plains 
treatment plant. 
 
The County’s capacity allocation at Blue Plains is currently 31 MGD.  The County’s 
rolling 12-month average flow is 29.5 MGD.  It is anticipated that the County will reach 
or exceed its capacity allocation at Blue Plains within the next 5 years, depending on 
the rate of development /redevelopment.  This projected growth necessitates the 
acquisition of additional treatment capacity. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The County will pay approximately $20.9 million to $21.0 million, pending accrual of 
interest, to Loudoun Water.  Funding for the purchase of this capacity has been 
included in the Sewer Fund’s financial planning efforts and is budgeted for FY 2011. 
 

Under a separate Board Item, the County Executive will be recommending the sale of 2 
MGD of Fairfax County’s unused capacity at the Upper Occoquan Sewage Authority’s 
Treatment Plant to Prince William County.  A portion of the proceeds from the sale of 
capacity at UOSA can be used towards the purchase of capacity at BRWRF. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1: Form of Broad Run Water Reclamation Facility Capacity Agreement 
between the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County and the Loudoun County Sanitation 
Authority 
 
 
STAFF:   
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Randy W. Bartlett, Deputy Director, DPWES 

(254)



ATTACHMENT 1 

BROAD R I M WATER RECLAMATION F A C I L I T Y 
CAPACITY AGREEMENT 

October 25,2010 Draft 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this 7th day of December, 2010, by and between the 

COUNTY OF FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA ("Fairfax"); and the LOUDOUN COUNTY 

SANITATION AUTHORITY, doing business as Loudoun Water, a body politic and corporate 

("LCSA"). 

R E C I T A L S 

R-l. LCSA is responsible to provide public water and sewer service to service areas in 

Loudoun County, Virginia, under the provisions of the Virginia Water and Waste Authorities 

Act (the "Act") and as provided in its Charter and its Rates, Rules and Regulations as may be in 

effect from time-to-time. 

R-2. The Broad Run Water Reclamation Facility ("BRWRF") is owned by LCSA to 

treat wastewater in LCSA's service areas and other areas outside Loudoun County as provided 

for in the Act and the Loudoun County Sanitation Authority Charter. The BRWRF was 

substantially completed and put in operation May 2, 2008, and meets treatment standards and 

pollutant limits as are defined in its current Virginia Pollution Discharge Elimination Standards 

("VPDES") discharge permit. 

R-3 LCSA delivers sewage flows from portions of the LCSA sewer system to the 

Potomac Interceptor Sewer (the "PI") owned and operated by the District of Columbia Water and 

Sewer Authority ("DCWASA") for transmission to the Blue Plains Advanced Wastewater 

Treatment Plant (the "Blue Plains"); collectively the "Pi/Blue Plains System", pursuant to the 

(255)



1998 Amendment to Agreement No. DCF-A-2351 between LCSA, the Mayor ofthe District of 

Columbia (the "District") and DCWASA, dated November 4,1998. 

R-4 LCSA's assured annual average wastewater treatment capacity in the PI/Blue 

Plains System is 13.8 million gallons per day ("mgd") with a corresponding peak wastewater 

transmission and treatment capacity of 31.9 mgd at the metered point of connection to the 

PI/Blue Plains System (the LCSA PI/Blue Plains Capacity). 

R-5 As the volume of wastewater from LCSA's service area approaches LCSA's 

assured annual capacity in the PI/Blue Plains System, or as LCSA chooses, LCSA will offload a 

portion of its wastewater by diverting it to the BRWRF. 

R-6. Fairfax is the public body responsible for providing public sewer service within 

Fairfax County, Virginia, by means of the Fairfax County Integrated Sewer System (the "Fairfax 

Sewer System"). 

R-7. Fairfax delivers sewage flows from portions of the Fairfax Sewer System to the 

PI/Blue Plains System pursuant to the following Agreement with DCWASA: "Blue Plains 

Intermunicipal Agreement of 1985 between District of Columbia, Fairfax County, Virginia, 

Montgomery County, Maryland, Prince George's County, Maryland, Washington Suburban 

Sanitary Commission developed by Blue Plains Chief Administrative Officers Committee, Blue 

Plains Regional Committee, Blue Plains Technical Committee with assistance from Metropolitan 

Washington Council of Governments, September 1985" (Intermunicipal Agreement). 

R-8 Under the Intermunicipal Agreement Fairfax's annual average wastewater 

treatment capacity in the PI/Blue Plains System is 31.0 mgd with a corresponding peak 

wastewater transmission and treatment capacity of 81.1 mgd (the "Fairfax PI/Blue Plains 

Capacity"). 

2 

(256)



R-9 Fairfax and LCSA agree that the purpose of this Agreement is that LCSA will 

retain its LCSA PI/Blue Plains Capacity but will allow Fairfax to use a portion of the LCSA 

PI/Blue Plains Capacity by purchasing capacity rights at the BRWRF all as provided herein. 

R-10. Fairfax hereby seeks to purchase from LCSA capacity rights to an annual average 

wastewater transmission and treatment capacity of 1.0 mgd and a corresponding peak wastewater 

transmission and treatment capacity of 2.5 mgd at the BRWRF (the "Fairfax Capacity at 

BRWRF)". The Fairfax Capacity at BRWRF will be provided by LCSA to serve any portion of 

the Fairfax Service Area lying within Fairfax County's Blue Plains Service Area. 

R - l l . Since both Fairfax and LCSA convey a portion of their respective wastewater 

flows to the PI/Blue Plains System and share the Potomac Interceptor, and because of the cost 

and complexity involved in transporting wastewater from the Fairfax Sewer System directly to 

the BRWRF, Fairfax and LCSA agree that LCSA will offload (or divert) from the PI/Blue Plains 

System and treat up to 1.0 mgd of additional LCSA wastewater at the BRWRF which will result 

in reducing its corresponding flow in the PI/Blue Plains System by up to 1.0 mgd average flow 

with a corresponding peak wastewater transmission and treatment capacity of 2.5 mgd. In 

exchange, Fairfax will increase its flow to the PI/Blue Plains System by the same amount. The 

volume of the exchange in capacity (anywhere from 0.0 mgd to 1.0 mgd) will be elected 

annually by Fairfax all as provided hereafter. 

AGREEMENT 

1. LCSA to Offload and Treat. LCSA has constructed a conveyance system from 

the Russell Branch Interceptor to the influent wastewater pumping station at the BRWRF. This, 

and other future conveyance systems, will permit LCSA to offload LCSA wastewater from the 

PI/Blue Plains System to the BRWRF. A portion of LCSA wastewater, up to the Fairfax 

3 

(257)



Capacity at BRWRF will be selected annually by Fairfax to be redirected from the PI/Blue Plains 

System and conveyed and treated at BRWRF (the Assigned Fairfax Flow). This will represent 

the portion of LCSA PI/Blue Plains Capacity that Fairfax may use to send additional flow to the 

PI/Blue Plains System. Accordingly, Fairfax may use the Assigned Fairfax Flow in order to 

convey an Annual Average Transmission and Treatment Capacity up to 32.0 mgd and a 

corresponding peak wastewater transmission and treatment capacity up to 83.6 mgd to the 

PI/Blue Plains System all upon the terms and conditions all as provided hereafter. The parties 

agree that LCSA will treat the Assigned Fairfax Flow at the BRWRF. LCSA wastewater will 

continue to be delivered and treated in the PI/Blue Plains System up to the LCSA PI/Blue Plains 

Capacity less the Assigned Fairfax Flow. .Flow reports submitted to DCWASA by LCSA and 

Fairfax will be modified to reflect this adjustment of the flows. Sample calculations are: 

Adjusted Capacities 

Assigned Fairfax Flow LCSA Fairfax 

Average Peak Average Peak 

0.00 mgd 13.8 mgd and 31.9 mgd 31.0 mgd and 81.1 mgd 

0.60 mgd 13.2 mgd and 30.4 mgd 31.6 mgd and 82.6 mgd 

1.0 mgd 12.8 mgd and 29.4 mgd 32.0 mgd and 83,6 mgd 

Note: LCSA and Fairfax Adjusted Capacities shown refer to the annual average and 

peak wastewater transmission and treatment capacity respectively. 

4 

(258)



2. Fairfax Capacity at BRWRF and Assigned Fairfax Flow. The BRWRF is 

currently in service and LCSA acknowledges that it has sufficient capacity in the BRWRF to 

accommodate the Fairfax Capacity at BRWRF. The Fairfax Capacity at BRWRF may not 

change without formal amendment to this Agreement. At its sole discretion, Fairfax may elect 

annually to designate the Assigned Fairfax Flow to be treated at the BRWRF as described in 

Paragraph 1 up to the purchased Fairfax Capacity at BRWRF. Fairfax may decrease the 

Assigned Fairfax Flow by no more than 30% annually. A change in the Assigned Fairfax Flow 

shall be identified in writing no later than May 31 for the following immediate fiscal year 

utilized by Fairfax (July 1 to June 30) (the Fairfax Fiscal Year). 

3. Capacity and Treatment Costs LCSA agrees to deliver the Assigned Fairfax 

Flow to the BRWRF and Fairfax agrees to pay LCSA capital costs for the Fairfax Capacity at 

BRWRF and annual operating costs for the conveyance, pumping, and treatment ofthe Assigned 

Fairfax Flow all as provided hereafter. 

a. Capital Costs. Fairfax shall pay LCSA for the purchase of the Fairfax 

Capacity at BRWRF of 1.0 mgd and corresponding peak wastewater transmission and 

treatment capacity of 2.5 mgd in the BRWRF conveyance, pumping and treatment 

system. Capital costs include the cost of the Junction Box at Russell Branch, Gravity 

Conveyance, Influent Wastewater Pumping Station, and the BRWRF; all as shown in 

Exhibit A. These facilities were constructed in five contracts, Contracts 1 to 5, and each 

agreement is described below: 

• Contract 1, dated May 28, 2004, for "Master Site and Liquids Treatment 

Facilities"; 

5 

(259)



• Contract 2 and 3, dated June 8, 2004, for "Biological Treatment and 

Membrane Facility" and the "Solids Treatment Facility"; 

• Contract 4, dated January 3,2005, for "Operations Complex", and; 

• Contract 5, dated April 5,2005, for "Broad Run Influent Sewage PS". 

Capital costs will be shared such that the unit cost of conveyance, pumping and 

treatment capacity provided will be the same for both Fairfax and LCSA. The calculation 

is: 

Total Capacity of BRWRF (1) 11,000,000 gallons 
Total Capital Cost (2) $ 230,365,234 
Total Unit Cost per Gallon (3)$ 20,942,294 
Purchased Fairfax Capacity at BRWRF (4) 1,000,000 gallons 

Total Capital Cost of Capacity for Fairfax (5) $ 20,942,294 = $(3) x (4) 

Total Capital Cost for this construction program includes the following 

components: (1) as of October 1, 2010 total construction costs paid by LCSA for 

BRWRF Contracts 1 to 5, inclusive for the construction of the initial 11.0 mgd capacity 

under the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality's Certificate to Operate, minus 

any grants received by LCSA from third parties, including but not limited to, the 

Commonwealth of Virginia under the Water Quality Improvement Fund; (2) total 

consulting costs for design engineering (including preliminary design, in-stream 

monitoring, and pilot program), surveying, construction administration and related 

services; (3) legal fees; (4) LCSA staff costs specifically charged to Contracts 1 to 5, 

inclusive; (5) interest expense; and (6) land costs, miscellaneous equipment, support 

systems, and furniture purchased by LCSA to fully equip the BRWRF to treat the 

permitted flow of 11.0 mgd. 

6 

(260)



Fairfax shall pay the sum of $20,942,294, which represents full compensation to 

LCSA for the capital costs associated with 1 mgd of capacity at the Broad Run WRF and 

corresponding peak wastewater treatment capacity of 2.5 mgd in the Broad Run WRF 

conveyance, pumping and treatment system. Fairfax will reimburse LCSA a minimum of 

60 percent ofthe Fairfax portion ofthe Total Capital Cost within 45 days of submission 

of an invoice to Fairfax for these costs. 

I f full compensation is not initially made, the remainder of the Fairfax Total 

Capital Cost will be reimbursed to LCSA by June 30, 2012. Interest expense on the 

remainder of the Fairfax Total Capital Cost will accrue at the rate equal to the then 

current average earning yield on LCSA's investment portfolio. Notwithstanding the 

above stated intent regarding payment, future obligations of Fairfax under this Paragraph 

3(a) and the other provisions of this Agreement are subject to annual appropriation of 

funds by the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County, Virginia. 

b. Operating Cost. Fairfax agrees to pay LCSA the proportionate cost for 

the Assigned Fairfax Flow treated hereunder at the wholesale rate to be determined 

annually at the conclusion ofthe previous Fairfax Fiscal Year by LCSA in accordance 

with the LCSA Rates, Rules and Regulations, and the Act. Such wholesale rates shall 

include actual costs incurred by LCSA for the treatment ofthe Assigned Fairfax Flow in 

order to meet the VPDES permit, together with the proportionate operation and 

maintenance costs of that portion ofthe conveyance and pumping components associated 

with the Assigned Fairfax Flow, where applicable, including normal and customary 

repair and upgrade of that system, rights-of-way and access roads associated with each 

facility which handles, pumps, or treats the Assigned Fairfax Flow. Operation and 

7 

(261)



maintenance costs include parts and materials, labor and benefits of LCSA employees 

and shall include the proportionate share of consultant's or contractor's fees to direct or 

perform the functions here described to administer the applicable regulations, and to 

provide the operating services called for under this Agreement, including their costs of 

overhead. Operation and maintenance costs shall be reconciled by LCSA annually. 

c. Billing. Payment. LCSA shall bill and Fairfax promptly shall pay for the 

Assigned Fairfax Flow quarterly based on the operations and maintenance cost per mgd 

from the immediate prior fiscal year. At the conclusion of the Fairfax Fiscal Year, LCSA 

will compare the four quarterly payments made by Fairfax for the Fairfax Fiscal Year 

with the actual costs for that year. Thereafter, Fairfax will be charged, or reimbursed, for 

the differential cost. Fairfax's proportion of BRWRF operation and maintenance costs 

shall be its annualized Assigned Fairfax Flow divided by total LCSA wastewater treated 

by the BRWRF for the Fairfax Fiscal Year. 

4. Conveyance. Pumping and Treatment System Upgrades. Fairfax will be 

financially responsible for its proportionate share of the conveyance, pumping and treatment 

system upgrades that are considered over and above normal and customary operation and 

maintenance repairs and equipment replacements that are financed through user fees. LCSA will 

notify Fairfax of such upgrades and their estimated costs at the final planning stages and prior to 

construction of the upgrades so Fairfax can plan for its share of the costs of these upgrades. 

Fairfax will reimburse LCSA on a cash basis for upgrades within 90 days of substantial 

completion of the upgrade. Should LCSA finance the upgrade over a multiple-year period, 

LCSA will afford Fairfax the choice of participating in said financing, paying a one-time 

8 

(262)



payment, or using its own financing in a payment schedule mutually acceptable to LCSA and 

Fairfax. 

5. Capital. Operation and Maintenance Responsibilities for the PI/Blue Plains 

System. 

a. Both Fairfax and LCSA will continue to be responsible to DCWASA for all of 

their proportionate costs, including capital, operation, maintenance, etc., as outlined in their 

respective agreements with DCWASA. The Fairfax Capacity at BRWRF and Assigned Fairfax 

Flow wil l not have any impact on financial responsibilities of LCSA and Fairfax to DCWASA. 

b. Under the Assigned Fairfax Flow provisions identified in this Agreement, Fairfax 

will reduce its actual flow by the Assigned Fairfax Flow quantities in its regular reporting to 

DCWASA, and LCSA will increase its reported actual flow to DCWASA by the Assigned 

Fairfax Flow. 

c. LCSA agrees to cooperate with Fairfax to cause DCWASA to formally 

acknowledge this arrangement and consent to the reduction in LCSA flow which results for the 

benefit of Fairfax. The parties acknowledge, however, that the burden of DCWASA's 

acknowledgement and consent to this Agreement rests solely upon Fairfax. LCSA agrees to 

cooperate with DCWASA and Fairfax and to coordinate to achieve flow reporting credit to 

.Fairfax. LCSA will then credit flows actually offloaded and treated on behalf of Fairfax in its 

quarterly reporting to DCWASA as noted in paragraph 5b above. 

6. Capacity Allocation. Limits. I f LCSA has additional capacity available at 

BRWRF over and above the 1.0 mgd provided to Fairfax in this Agreement, Fairfax shall have 

the right of first refusal to acquire said additional capacity on terms as may be agreed. LCSA 

9 

(263)



shall advise in writing to Fairfax upon request by any entity as to the availability of additional 

transmission and treatment capacity. 

7. Pretreatment. Fairfax and LCSA currently have pretreatment agreements with 

DCWASA. These agreements will not need to be revised since the same quality of wastewater 

will continue to flow to the PI/Blue Plains System. Since under the Assigned Fairfax Flow 

provisions identified in the Agreement, there will be no Fairfax wastewater directly going to the 

BRWRF, there is no need for a pretreatment agreement between Fairfax and LCSA for the 

purposes of this Agreement. I f Fairfax determines that it will actually transfer Fairfax flow to 

the LCSA sewer system for treatment at BRWRF, Fairfax and LCSA will develop an appropriate 

pretreatment program agreement. 

8. Amendments. This agreement may be amended or terminated at any time 

by mutual agreement of the parties hereto and subject to any required accounting and/or 

reimbursement of accounts that may be due at such time. 

9. Effective Date. This agreement shall be effective as of the date the last 

necessary party signs it. 

10. Fairfax Covenant. Fairfax covenants that it will not do anything regarding or 

relating to this agreement which would cause LCSA to be in violation of its VPDES Permit, or 

which would be a violation or cause LCSA to be in violation of any applicable laws, ordinances 

or regulations' currently including the Dulles Area Watershed Regulation, the Regulation for 

Nutrient Enriched Waters and Dischargers within the Chesapeake Bay Watershed, the Virginia 

Water Quality Management Planning Regulation, or any applicable permits or any agreement 

with or for the benefit of LCSA's bond holders. 

10 

(264)



11. LCSA Covenant. LCSA Covenants that it will not do anything regarding or 

relating to this agreement which would cause Fairfax to exceed its Fairfax PI/Blue Plains 

capacity (as adjusted by this Agreement) as a result of LCSA's exceedance of its LCSA PI/Blue 

Plains Capacity less the Assigned Fairfax Flow in the PI/Blue Plains System. In the event it is 

determined that Fairfax is in violation of its new capacities due to LCSA's flow capacity 

exceedances, LCSA agrees to take corrective actions to immediately bring Fairfax into 

compliance with its flow capacities. In addition, LCSA agrees to be responsible for any charges, 

penalties, etc, including but not limited to financial penalties as a result of such violation by 

Fairfax. 

12. No Third Parties. No parties other than the parties executing this agreement are to 

be regarded as beneficiaries and none other shall have any rights or benefits under this 

agreement. 

13. Miscellaneous Provisions: 

a. No Partnership. It is not the purpose or intention of this Agreement to 

create, and this Agreement shall not be construed as creating, a joint venture, partnership, 

or other relationship whereby either party hereto would be liable for the omissions, 

commissions, or performance of the other party hereto. 

11 

(265)



b. Waiver, The failure of either party to this agreement to insist on the 

performance of any of the terms and conditions of this agreement, or the waiver of any 

breach of any of the terms and conditions of this agreement, shall not be construed as 

thereafter waiving any such terms and conditions, but the same shall continue and remain 

in full force and effect as i f no such forbearance or waiver had occurred. 

o. Ktitire Agreement: Amendment. This Agreement, including the recitals, 

which are incorporated by this reference, contains the entire agreement between the 

parties hereto with respect to the subject of this Agreement. No change or modification 

of this agreement shall be valid unless the same is an amendment, in writing, signed by 

both parties hereto. 

d. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in 

accordance with the laws ofthe Commonwealth of Virginia. 

e. SeverabiUtv. The invalidity of any portion of this Agreement will not and 

shall not be deemed to affect the validity of any other provision. In the event that any 

provision of this agreement is held to be invalid, the parties agree that the remaining 

provisions shall be deemed to be in full force and effect as i f they had been executed by 

both parties subsequent to the expungement ofthe invalid provision. 

f. Further Assurances. The parties hereto shall execute and deliver such 

further instruments and do further acts and things as may be required to carry out the 

intent and purposes of this agreement as may be reasonably requested by either party 

hereto. 

12 

(266)



g. Headings. The descriptive headings in this Agreement are inserted for 

convenience only and do not constitute a part of this Agreement. 

h. Counterparts. This agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of 

which shall constitute one and the same mstrument. 

i . Assignment. The parties hereto may not assign its rights under this 

Agreement to any person, entity, or other governmental or quasi-governmental body 

without the prior written consent of the parties, which may withhold their consent for any 

reason at their sole discretion. 

j . Notice. Al l notices or requests shall be in writing and shall be given by 

hand delivery or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as 

follows: 

(1) I f to Fairfax to: 

Department of Public Works and Environmental Services 
12055 Government Center Parkway, Suite 659 
Fairfax, Virginia 22035 
ATTN: Director 

With a copy to: 

Office ofthe County Attorney 
12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 549 
Fairfax, Virginia 22035 
ATTN: County Attorney 

Or such persons and places as Fairfax may specify by notice. The 
date ofthe notice or request shall be the date of receipt, i f delivered 
by hand, or the postmarked date thereof 

(2) I f to LCSA: 

LCSA 
Post Office Box 4000 
44865 Loudoun Water Way 
Ashburn, Virginia 20146 
ATTN: General Manager 

13 

(267)



With a copy to: 

McGuireWoods, LLP 
1750 Tysons Boulevard, Suite 1800 
McLean, VA 22102-4215 
ATTN: Jonathan P. Rak, Esq. 

Or such persons or places as LCSA may specify by notice. The 
date ofthe notice or request shall be the date of receipt, i f delivered 
by hand, or the postmarked date thereof. 

14 

(268)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been signed by Fairfax and LCSA. 

COUNTY OF FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA 

By: 
Name: 
Title: 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
COUNTY OF FAIRFAX, to-wit: 

I , the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid, do hereby 
certify that , whose name 
as ; of Fairfax County is signed to the 
foregoing Agreement, personally acknowledged the same before me in my aforesaid jurisdiction. 

GIVEN under my hand and seal this day of , 2008. 

Notary Public 

My commission expires: 

LCSA 

By: 
Name: Dale C. Hammes, P.E. 
Title: General Manager 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
COUNTY OF LOUDOUN, to-wit: 

I , the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid, do hereby 
certify that , whose name 
as of Loudoun County Sanitation 
Authority is signed to the foregoing Agreement, personally acknowledged the same before me in 
my aforesaid jurisdiction. 

GIVEN under my hand and seal this day of , 2008. 

Notary Public 

My commission expires: 

15 

(269)



Map Depicting Conveyance, Pumping, 
and Treatment System Components 

(270)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
4:00 p.m. 
 
 
Public Hearing on the Sale of Two Million Gallons Per Day of Fairfax County’s Unused 
Capacity at The Upper Occoquan Sewage Authority’s Treatment Plant to Prince William 
County 
 
 
ISSUE: 
Public hearing on the sale of two million gallons per day (MGD) of Fairfax County’s 
unused capacity at the Upper Occoquan Sewage Authority’s (UOSA) treatment plant to 
Prince William County.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
The County Executive recommends that the Board authorize the Chairman to execute 
the attached capacity sales agreement (Attachment 1) for two MGD of Fairfax County’s 
capacity at UOSA to Prince William County after the public hearing.  
 
 
TIMING: 
On December 7, 2010, the Board authorized advertisement of a public hearing to be 
held on January 25, 2011. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Upper Occoquan Sewage Authority (UOSA) owns and operates a wastewater 
treatment plant that receives wastewater from its four member jurisdictions of Fairfax 
and Prince William Counties and Cities of Manassas and Manassas Park. The 
treatment plant has a total capacity of 54 MGD.  Fairfax County’s allocated capacity at 
the plant, as adjusted by the 2007 sales of 2 MGD to Prince William County and 1 MGD 
to the City of Manassas, is 24.5999 MGD.  The County’s updated flow projection for the 
build-out condition in the portion of the County served by UOSA is 22 MGD.  Currently, 
the County’s highest 30 consecutive day average daily flow is 12.845 MGD.  The 
County’s current available flow capacity for future growth is 11.7549 MGD (24.5999 – 
12.8450 = 11.7549 MGD).  After the sale of two MGD, our remaining capacity for future 
growth will be 9.7549 MGD.  Staff believes this remaining capacity will be sufficient to 
meet Fairfax County’s future growth needs in the UOSA service area of the County, 
which is depicted on Attachment 2.  Selling the excess capacity at this time recovers  
Fairfax County’s cost of constructing the capacity that is being sold and avoids paying 
for the up-coming upgrades at the plant for the sold capacity.   
 

(271)



Board Agenda Item 
January 25, 2011 
 
 
A public hearing is required in order to execute the capacity sales agreement between 
Fairfax County and Prince William County.  Staff requests that the Board authorize the 
Chairman to execute the capacity sales agreement after the public hearing. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The County will receive $39,807,586.  The sales price per 1 MGD of capacity at UOSA 
is $19,903,793.  The proceeds from the sale of this capacity will go into the County’s 
Integrated Sewer Fund to fund future capacity expansions, to pay down the outstanding 
debt service on UOSA bonds, or to fund other future capacity-related projects.   
 
Under a separate Board Item, the County Executive will be recommending the purchase 
of 1 MGD of treatment capacity at Loudoun County’s Broad Run Water Reclamation 
Facility (BRWRF).  A portion of the proceeds from the sale of capacity at UOSA can be 
used towards the purchase of capacity at BRWRF. 
 
 
ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS: 
Attachment 1: Form of Wastewater Capacity Sale and Purchase Agreement between 
the Board of Supervisors of Fairfax County and The Board of County Supervisors of 
Prince William County (with Attachments A-D) 
Attachment 2:  Map of UOSA Service Area in Fairfax County 
 
 
STAFF:   
James W. Patteson, Director, Department of Public Works and Environmental Services (DPWES) 
Randy W. Bartlett, Deputy Director, DPWES 
 

(272)



 

 

Draft dated 1/4/2011 
 
 
 

WASTEWATER CAPACITY SALE 
AND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 
between 

 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FAIRFAX COUNTY 

 
and 

 
THE BOARD OF COUNTY SUPERVISORS OF PRINCE 

WILLIAM COUNTY 
 
 
 
 
 
 

oooo 
 
 
 
 

Dated __________ ___, 2011 

(273)

rstew5
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



 1

 
Wastewater Capacity Sale and Purchase Agreement 

 
THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the ________ day of ____________, 2011, by and between the 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA, a body politic and 

corporate, hereinafter referred to as "Fairfax" and the BOARD OF COUNTY SUPERVISORS 

OF PRINCE WILLIAM COUNTY, VIRGINIA, a body politic and corporate, hereinafter 

referred to as "Prince William" (collectively referred to as the "Parties"). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, Fairfax, Prince William, the City of Manassas, and the City of Manassas Park (with 

such Political Subdivisions being collectively referred to as the "Participants") have entered into 

a UOSA Service Agreement which provides for the delivery and treatment of wastewater at the 

UOSA Millard H. Robbins, Jr. Regional Water Reclamation Plant ("UOSA Plant"); and 

 

WHEREAS, the UOSA Service Agreement provides, among other things, for the wastewater 

delivery and treatment capacity allocable to each respective Participant; and 

 

WHEREAS, Fairfax has contracted with UOSA pursuant to the UOSA Service Agreement for 

27.5999 million gallons per day of wastewater delivery and treatment capacity in the UOSA 

System; and 

 

WHEREAS, Fairfax has determined that it has an available and unused wastewater Capacity 

Allocation in the UOSA Delivery System and the UOSA Plant that can be made available and 

used by the Participants using such facilities to meet the wastewater service area flow demands 

of such respective Participants; and 

 

WHEREAS, Fairfax wants to offer its available unused wastewater delivery and treatment 

capacity to Prince William to assist Prince William in meeting the wastewater capacity needs of 

its respective service area; and 

 

(274)



 2

WHEREAS, the Parties realize the economic benefit of utilizing existing available wastewater 

treatment capacity to meet the wastewater treatment capacity requirements of the respective 

Participants’ wastewater service areas to defer the construction of new wastewater treatment 

capacity; and  

 

WHEREAS, Prince William desires to secure a portion of the available unused wastewater 

delivery and treatment capacity that is currently allocated to Fairfax and which is an obligation 

of Fairfax with respect to the funding or payment of such capacity to UOSA; and 

 

WHEREAS, Fairfax has the authority to enter into an agreement to sell a portion of the available 

unused wastewater delivery and treatment capacity to Prince William; and  

 

WHEREAS, Prince William has the authority to enter into an agreement to purchase from 

Fairfax a portion of its available unused wastewater delivery and treatment capacity offered by 

Fairfax; and  

 

WHEREAS, UOSA has advised the parties that it will approve a reallocation of capacity 

consistent with Section 2.2 herein; and 

 

WHEREAS, in 2007, the Parties entered into a Wastewater Capacity Sale and Purchase 

Agreement whereby Fairfax sold 2 MGD (the “2007 Purchased Capacity”) of its available 

unused wastewater and treatment capacity to Prince William (the "2007 Capacity Agreement"); 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the terms of this Agreement, except as to price, are substantially consistent with the 

terms of the 2007 Capacity Agreement, which UOSA approved in 2007; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the aforementioned premises, and of the mutual 

benefits to be derived therefrom, and of the respective undertakings, promises, and covenants of 

the Parties hereto as hereinafter contained, and that the above recitals are true and correct and 

(275)



 3

incorporated herein by reference, the Parties hereto mutually covenant, undertake, promise, and 

agree as follows: 

 

ARTICLE I 

SHORT TITLE AND DEFINITIONS 

 

SECTION 1.1  SHORT TITLE.  This Agreement between Fairfax and Prince William 

shall be referred to as the "2011 Capacity Agreement" or this "Agreement". 

 

SECTION 1.2  DEFINITIONS.  The terms in this Section, for all purposes of this 2011 

Capacity Agreement and any amendments or other changes thereto, shall have the following 

meanings: 

1. "Act" means the Virginia Water and Waste Authorities Act (§ 15.2-5100, et seq., Code of 

Virginia of 1950, as amended, and as it may be amended from time to time). 

2. "Adjusted Capacity Allocation Percentage" means the Capacity Allocation Percentage 

adjusted for purposes of this Agreement to recognize the sale and purchase of the 

Purchased Capacity. 

3. "Capacity" means the total capacity permitted by DEQ in the Certificate to Operate for the 

UOSA Plant expressed as the highest average of any 30 consecutive day flow. 

4. "Capacity Allocation" means the allocation of Capacity in the UOSA Plant to which each 

Participant has the exclusive use and entitlement pursuant to the UOSA Service 

Agreement. 

5. "Capacity Allocation Percentage" means the Capacity Allocation expressed on a 

percentage basis that is calculated using a Participant’s respective Capacity Allocation as 

the numerator and the Capacity as the denominator. 

6. "Capital Cost per Gallon of UOSA Capacity" means the acquisition price paid by Prince 

William for the purchase of one gallon of the Capacity Allocation from Fairfax, calculated 

as prescribed in Section 2.4 and Attachment B of this Agreement. 

7. "DEQ" means the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality and / or the State Water 

Control Board or any other agency or agencies of the Commonwealth of Virginia or the 

United States that may succeed to their duties. 

(276)



 4

8. "Excess Flow" means the amount of wastewater flow delivered by Prince William to 

UOSA as metered at the Point of Delivery by UOSA that is greater than the sum of (a) the 

Prince William Capacity Allocation, plus (b) the Purchased Capacity, as determined by the 

highest average of any 30 consecutive day flow ending during the month. 

9. "Fairfax Capacity Allocation" means the Capacity Allocation to which Fairfax is entitled 

under the UOSA Service Agreement. 

10. "Fiscal Year" means the twelve consecutive months beginning July 1st and ending June 

30th. 

11. "Force Majeure" includes, but is not limited to, acts of God, strikes, lockouts, or other 

industrial disturbances, acts of any public enemy, wars, blockades, riots, acts of armed 

forces, epidemics, delays by carriers, inability to obtain materials or rights-of-way on 

reasonable terms, acts or failures to act by public authorities not under the control of any 

party to this Agreement, or acts or failures to act by regulatory authorities. 

12. "Meters" means any device for measuring the flow of wastewater delivered to the UOSA 

System by the Participants. 

13. "MGD" means millions of gallons per day. 

14. "Occoquan Policy" means the DEQ State Water Control Board’s Policy for Waste 

Treatment and Water Quality Management in the Occoquan Water shed, dated July 26, 

1971, as the same has been or may be revised from time to time. 

15. "Participants" means the parties having a Capacity Allocation in the UOSA System in 

accordance with the UOSA Service Agreement, which parties include Fairfax County, 

Prince William County, the City of Manassas, the City of Manassas Park, and any other 

unit of local government which may be added in the future due to amendment, restatement, 

or modification of the UOSA Service Agreement. 

16. "Permitted UOSA Plant Capacity" or "Plant Capacity" means the then current capacity 

permitted by DEQ pursuant to the issuance of a Certificate to Operate. 

17. "Points of Delivery" means the location of the connections made by the Participants at any 

point along the UOSA Delivery System for the Participants’ delivery of wastewater to 

UOSA for treatment and disposal. 

18. "Purchased Capacity" means the 2011 Purchased Capacity and the 2007 Purchased 

Capacity. “2011 Purchased Capacity” means the amount of Fairfax Capacity Allocation (2 

(277)



 5

MGD) that is purchased by Prince William in accordance with this Agreement.  "2007 

Purchased Capacity" means the amount of Fairfax Capacity Allocation (2 MGD) that was 

purchased by Prince William in accordance with the 2007 Capacity Agreement. 

19. "System Capacity" means the Capacity at the UOSA Plant and the Participants’ implied 

capacity in the UOSA Delivery System necessary to deliver wastewater from the Point of 

Delivery to the UOSA Plant. 

20. "Transfer Date" means the date that the 2011 Purchased Capacity is sold and made 

available by Fairfax and purchased by and transferred to Prince William for its exclusive 

use. 

21. "UOSA" means the Upper Occoquan Sewage Authority, a public body politic and 

corporate duly created pursuant to the Act by the Councils of the Cities (then Towns) of 

Manassas and Manassas Park and the Boards of Supervisors of Fairfax and Prince William 

Counties and a certificate of Incorporation issued by the State of Corporation Commission 

of Virginia on April 1, 1971, as may be amended, restated, or modified from time to time. 

22. "UOSA Bonds" means notes, bonds, bond anticipation notes or other debt obligations of 

UOSA whether now outstanding or to be issued in the future. 

23. "UOSA Delivery System" means the regional delivery system of trunk or interceptor 

sewers now existing or to be expanded, constructed or modified, owned, operated and 

managed by UOSA for the transmission of wastewater from the respective Participant’s 

sewer sheds or service areas to the UOSA Plant including, but are not limited to, power 

supplies, pumping facilities, force mains, flow metering and measuring devices, storage 

facilities, and other related utility plant that is necessary to convey wastewater.  Such 

facilities are in addition to the facilities that comprise the UOSA Plant that is owned, 

operated, or managed by UOSA. 

24. "UOSA Existing Bonds" means the outstanding principal amount of the Regional Sewer 

System Bonds, Series 1995A Bonds, Regional Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bonds, 

Series 1995B Bonds, Regional Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 

Bonds, Regional Sewer System Refunding Bonds, Series 2004 Bonds, Regional Sewer 

System Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 Bonds, Regional Sewer System Refunding Bonds, 

Series 2007A Bonds, Regional Sewer System Bonds, Series 2007B Bonds, and any other 

(278)



 6

notes, bonds, bond anticipation notes or other debt obligations of UOSA issued prior to the 

Transfer Date, and any bonds issued to refund any of the bonds included in this definition. 

25. "UOSA Existing Bonds Component" means the outstanding principal amount of the UOSA 

Existing Bonds that is allocable to the Capacity Allocation that is sold by Fairfax to Prince 

William. 

26. "UOSA Liability" means the amount of existing and future UOSA Bonds and other related 

financial obligations for which the Participants are responsible for payment in accordance 

with the Capacity Allocation Percentage as referenced in the UOSA Service Agreement.   

27. "UOSA Plant" means UOSA’s Millard H. Robbins, Jr. Regional Water Reclamation Plant, 

now existing or as it may be expanded, constructed, re-rated or modified that is owned, 

operated or managed by UOSA, including administration buildings, plant offices, 

laboratory building, retention and ballast basins, power supplies, and necessary 

appurtenances and equipment, for the treatment of wastewater and the utilization and / or 

disposal of residuals and by-products in conformance with the requirements of the 

Occoquan Policy and DEQ. 

28. "UOSA Service Agreement" means the UOSA Service Agreement dated as of the 15th day 

of May, 1972, as amended, restated, or modified from time to time, which, among other 

things, contractually obligates UOSA to provide wastewater delivery and treatment 

capacity and service to the Participants.  A copy of the version of the UOSA Service 

Agreement in effect as of the date of this Agreement is included in Attachment A for 

reference. 

29. "UOSA System" means the combination of the UOSA Plant and the UOSA Delivery 

System. 

 

ARTICLE II 

SALE OF CAPACITY 

 

SECTION 2.1  CAPACITY ALLOCATION TRANSFER. Fairfax agrees to sell and 

Prince William agrees to purchase 2.0 MGD of the Fairfax Capacity Allocation with respect to 

the expansion of the UOSA Plant from 27.0 to 54.0 MGD, including the associated UOSA 

Delivery System.  As between these parties, and subject to Section 2.7, the purchase of 2.0 MGD 

(279)



 7

of the Fairfax Capacity Allocation is considered as being permanent in nature and, as between 

these Parties, Prince William assumes all future responsibility for the UOSA Liability, except for 

the liability associated with the UOSA Existing Bonds Component, as it relates to the acquisition 

of 2011 Purchased Capacity, as of and subsequent to the Transfer Date.  As between these 

Parties, Fairfax will be relieved of all UOSA Liability, except for the liability associated with the 

UOSA Existing Bonds Component, with respect to the sale of the 2011 Purchased Capacity as of 

and subsequent to the Transfer Date.  As of the Transfer Date, the Parties will request UOSA to 

bill in accordance with the Adjusted Capacity Allocation Percentages as if the Capacity 

Allocations had been correspondingly revised in accordance with the UOSA Service Agreement.  

The Parties agree that for the 2.0 MGD of Capacity Allocation that is transferred from Fairfax to 

Prince William as of the Transfer Date, the Adjusted Capacity Allocation Percentage will be 

calculated as follows: 

 

A. For Fairfax’s share of the total Permitted UOSA Plant Capacity: 

 (Fairfax Capacity Allocation [27.5999 MGD] minus the Purchased Capacity / Permitted 

UOSA Plant Capacity [54.0 MGD]) 

B. For Prince William’s share of the total Permitted UOSA Plant Capacity: 

 (Prince William Capacity Allocation [15.7971 MGD] plus the Purchased Capacity / 

Permitted UOSA Plant Capacity [54 MGD]) 

 

With respect to the cost apportionment of the UOSA Liability exclusive of the liability 

associated with the UOSA Existing Bonds Component, the Parties agree that the purchase and 

sale of the 2011 Purchased Capacity will only affect the charges for the facilities that are 

currently installed and in place and which correspond to the UOSA Service Agreement.  The 

parties hereto acknowledge that the purchase and sale of the 2011 Purchased Capacity will not 

affect the Capacity Allocations or Capacity Allocation Percentages under the UOSA Service 

Agreement. 

 

SECTION 2.2  NOTIFICATION OF TRANSFER.  Execution of this Agreement will 

serve as notification by Fairfax and Prince William to UOSA of the intent to sell a portion of the 

Fairfax Capacity Allocation to Prince William.  Upon execution of this Agreement, the Parties 

(280)



 8

will provide a copy of this Agreement to UOSA and request, pursuant to Section 5.4 of the 

UOSA Service Agreement that UOSA approve the reallocation of capacity set forth herein.  

Pursuant to Section 5.4 of the UOSA Service Agreement, the Parties will further request UOSA 

to change the UOSA Plant capacity allocations on its books and records for billing purposes and 

bill in accordance with the transfer of capacity set forth in this Agreement.  However, the Parties 

acknowledge that this Agreement does not in any way alter the Parties’ underlying obligations 

under the Service Agreement.  The Parties affirm that this Agreement is not an assignment or 

novation of the UOSA Service Agreement and does not reduce, change or modify either Party's 

obligations under the UOSA Service Agreement.  

 

SECTION 2.3  TRANSFER DATE.  The Transfer Date for the 2011 Purchased Capacity 

shall occur on the first day of the calendar year quarter (January 1st, April 1st, July 1st, or October 

1st) subsequent to the execution of this Agreement by all Parties.  

 

SECTION 2.4  ACQUISITION PRICE OF 2011 PURCHASED CAPACITY AND 

PAYMENT.  The acquisition price to be paid by Prince William for the purchase of 2011 

Purchased Capacity will be based on all costs incurred by Fairfax with respect to the expansion 

of the UOSA Plant from 27.0 MGD to 54.0 MGD.  The price per gallon of such UOSA Plant 

component of the UOSA System Capacity is calculated to be $ 15.765 per gallon.  The 

determination of per unit cost of the UOSA Plant component of the total UOSA System Capacity 

is shown on Attachment B, which is made a part of this Agreement.  The price per gallon of the 

Delivery System component of such UOSA System Capacity is calculated to be $ 4.139 per 

gallon.  The determination of the unit cost of the Delivery System component of the UOSA 

System Capacity is shown on Attachment B, which is made a part of this Agreement.  Based on 

the foregoing, the acquisition price for the 2011 Purchased Capacity, which includes the sum of 

the UOSA Plant component and the Delivery System component of the expanded UOSA System 

Capacity from 27 MGD to 54 MGD and other UOSA System needs supported by the 2007B 

Series Bonds, to be paid by Prince William is $39,807,586 as calculated in Attachment C, which 

may be further adjusted as provided in this section. 

 

(281)



 9

The payment for the 2011 Purchased Capacity by Prince William will be due in total prior to the 

Transfer Date, except as maybe adjusted within this section. 

 

Fairfax reserves the right to seek a change in the UOSA Service Agreement which reflects the 

sale of capacity set forth in this Agreement. 

 

Fairfax has the option pursuant to Section 6.4 (g) of the UOSA Service Agreement to prepay in 

full to the UOSA Trustee an amount that will fully fund the outstanding principal, if necessary 

the interest and financing costs, of the UOSA Bonds associated with the 2011 Purchased 

Capacity.  The prepayment of the UOSA Bonds must meet the requirements of Section 6.4(g) of 

the UOSA Service Agreement and will result in no change in the payment of the outstanding 

UOSA Bonds for the remaining Participants of the UOSA Service Agreement. 

 

As between these parties, subject to Section 2.2, after the prepayment of the UOSA Existing 

Bonds allocable to the 2011 Purchased Capacity by Fairfax derived from the proceeds of the sale 

of the 2011 Purchased Capacity, Fairfax will no longer have any future obligation to pay that 

portion of the principal amount of such UOSA Bonds associated with the 2011 Purchased 

Capacity.  In no event will Prince William incur a debt repayment obligation associated with the 

UOSA Existing Bonds Component. 

 

To the extent that UOSA does not adjust the Capacity Allocation and Capacity Allocation 

Percentage for billing purposes following the sale of the 2011 Purchased Capacity as presented 

in the current UOSA Service Agreement, then Prince William agrees that it will be responsible 

for all future costs and charges invoiced by UOSA to Fairfax pursuant to §§ 6.1(b) and (c) and 

6.3 and 6.4 of the UOSA Service Agreement, as may be amended from time to time, that are 

allocable to the 2011 Purchased Capacity.  Specifically, Fairfax will charge Prince William for, 

and Prince William agrees to pay, all costs allocated and invoiced to Fairfax by UOSA for the 

2011 Purchased Capacity.  The amount to be charged by Fairfax to Prince William will be based 

on the following formula: 

(282)



 10

 

Capacity Costs multiplied by (Purchased Capacity / Current Fairfax Capacity Allocation) 

 

Whereby: 

Capacity Costs - refers to all costs invoiced by UOSA to Fairfax pursuant to 

§§6.1(b) and (c) and §§ 6.3 and 6.4 of the UOSA Service Agreement, as may be 

amended from time to time, that are based on the Capacity Allocation Percentage 

as referenced in the UOSA Service Agreement; 

 

Purchased Capacity - equates to 4.0 MGD which is the amount of Capacity 

Allocation sold by Fairfax to Prince William in 2007 and under this Agreement; 

and 

 

Current Fairfax Capacity Allocation – shall equal the Capacity Allocation that is 

used by UOSA for the billing of obligations as set forth in §§ 6.1(b) and (c) and 

§§6.3 and 6.4 the UOSA Service Agreement, as may be amended from time to 

time.  As of the date of this Agreement, the Current Fairfax Capacity Allocation is 

27.5999 MGD. This capacity figure does not take into account the sale of 2.0 

MGD in 2007 to Prince William and 1.0 MGD to the City of Manassas or the sale 

of 2.0 MGD contemplated by this Agreement. 

 

Unless and until an amendment to the UOSA Service Agreement is executed which recognizes 

the sale of the Purchased Capacity, based on the cost allocation formula shown above, Prince 

William will be responsible for 14.4928% (4.0 MGD / 27.5999 MGD) of all future costs 

associated with the issuance of additional bonds that are allocable to such capacity, the payment 

of the Cost of Replacements and Necessary Improvements (sometimes referred to and invoiced 

by UOSA as "reserve maintenance"), and any other costs that are invoiced by UOSA to Fairfax 

based on the Current Fairfax Capacity Allocation.  Until a change in the invoicing of costs by 

UOSA based on the Capacity Allocation occurs which recognizes the sale of Capacity Allocation 

to Prince William, Fairfax will bill Prince William quarterly for all such future costs invoiced by 

UOSA to Fairfax that are attributable to the 2011 Purchased Capacity.  This billing provision 

(283)



 11

will be in effect until the Purchased Capacity by Prince William is reflected in the quarterly 

billing for capacity by UOSA to Prince William. 

 

Prince William agrees that, subsequent to the Transfer Date, it will be liable for all future costs 

invoiced by UOSA that are attributable to the 2011 Purchased Capacity and agrees to pay Fairfax 

for such costs.  Fairfax will invoice Prince William within 30 days after receipt of the quarterly 

UOSA invoice for such costs attributable to the 2011 Purchased Capacity.  To the extent that 

Prince William does not compensate Fairfax for the future costs invoiced to Fairfax for the 2011 

Purchased Capacity, then Fairfax shall have the right to impose reasonable penalties and fees for 

the late payment of any unpaid balance. 

 

SECTION 2.5  OPERATING COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH CAPACITY 

ALLOCATION.  All costs associated with operating the UOSA System as defined in the UOSA 

Service Agreement (includes cost of operation and maintenance, including indirect costs of 

administration and overhead, all as determined by UOSA), which are referred to in this 

Agreement as the Operating Costs, shall be the responsibility of the Participants based on 

metered wastewater flow measured by metering at the Point of Delivery.  Accordingly, all 

Operating Costs corresponding to the wastewater flow associated with the 2011 Purchased 

Capacity will be measured by metering at the Point of Delivery by UOSA and will be billed 

directly by UOSA to Prince William.  In no event will Fairfax be responsible for the payment of 

any Operating Costs associated with the 2011 Purchased Capacity. 

 

SECTION 2.6  COMPLIANCE WITH UOSA SERVICE AGREEMENT.  Subject to 

Section 2.2, with respect to the 2011 Purchased Capacity acquired by Prince William and 

transferred by Fairfax, Prince William agrees to be in compliance with all its responsibilities as 

provided for in the UOSA Service Agreement as it relates to the operation and financing of the 

UOSA System.  These compliance provisions include, but are not limited to, the payment of the 

allocated debt service payments on the UOSA Bonds, payment of rates for service, delivery of 

wastewater flows in accordance with the capacity and strength limits, and any other requirements 

as defined in the UOSA Service Agreement.  It is acknowledged by the Parties that any default 

by Prince William with respect to the UOSA Service Agreement relating to the 2011 Purchased 

(284)



 12

Capacity shall be, as between Fairfax and Prince William, the sole obligation and responsibility 

of Prince William.  Fairfax retains all legal rights and remedies against Prince William to recover 

any and all monies Fairfax is obligated to pay to UOSA as a result of such default.   

 

SECTION 2.7.  REPURCHASE OPTION.  Fairfax shall have the right of first refusal to 

repurchase the Purchased Capacity if Prince William decides to sell it for any reason in the 

future.  The pricing methodology used in this Agreement to determine the acquisition price will 

be used to determine the repurchase price. 

 

 

ARTICLE III 

EXCESS FLOWS 

 

SECTION 3.1  EXCESS FLOW ABOVE CAPACITY ALLOCATION.  As a condition 

of this Agreement and in order to meet the service area wastewater requirements, Prince William 

has agreed to purchase a portion of the Fairfax County Allocation for its specific use as discussed 

in Article II and has agreed not to utilize any additional amount of Fairfax Capacity Allocation 

on a temporary basis.  Prince William and Fairfax recognize that in order to maintain equity and 

to provide fair compensation among the Participants, any Participant that has an Excess Flow 

occurrence, as defined in the UOSA Service Agreement, should compensate the Participant(s) 

that has(have) the available and unused Capacity Allocation which is effectively being used to 

meet Excess Flow demands. 

 

Any Excess Flow occurrence shall result in an additional charge to the Party that uses in excess 

of its respective Capacity Allocation as set forth in § 3.2.  For purposes of determining Excess 

Flow, Prince William’s Capacity Allocation shall include its Capacity Allocation and Purchased 

Capacity.   

 

SECTION 3.2.  PAYMENT FOR EXCESS FLOW.  To the extent that for any month, as 

determined by the highest average of any 30 consecutive day flow ending during the calendar 

month, the Prince William flow exceeds its then existing Capacity Allocation including the 

(285)



 13

Purchased Capacity, as defined in § 3.1 of this Agreement, Fairfax may charge, and Prince 

William agrees to pay Fairfax, an amount equal to the Fairfax pro rata share of the amount to be 

calculated in accordance with § 3.3; provided, however, that Fairfax agrees not to impose 

charges under this section for any period that UOSA imposes charges pursuant to § 6.6 of the 

UOSA Service Agreement payable to Fairfax for Prince William Excess Flow.  Fairfax will rely 

on UOSA data to determine the Prince William flows.  Additional charges imposed by Fairfax, 

and paid by Prince William, in accordance with this section do not purchase any capacity for 

Prince William in addition to the amounts purchased under this Agreement or the 2007 Capacity 

Agreement, nor do they condone such Excess Flows. 

 

SECTION 3.3  CALCULATION OF PAYMENT FOR EXCESS FLOW.  To the extent 

that for any month, as determined by the highest average of any 30 consecutive day flow ending 

during the calendar month, the Prince William flows exceed its Capacity Allocation plus the 

Purchased Capacity, as defined in § 3.1 of this Agreement, the payment for Excess Flow shall be 

calculated by multiplying the cost per MGD, based on UOSA’s total annual Debt Service and 

total Capacity (currently 54 MGD), by the amount of exceedance in MGD.  To the extent that 

other Participants also have available and unused Capacity Allocation, Fairfax would only bill 

Prince William under this Agreement for the Fairfax pro rata share of the Excess Flow payment.  

 

Fairfax will notify Prince William of the amount of the Excess Flow and will invoice Prince 

William for the Fairfax pro rata share of the additional charges required in connection with the 

Excess Flow. 

 

Attachment D outlines the methodology which UOSA and/or Fairfax would use to determine 

whether an exceedance occurred and to calculate applicable additional charges. 

(286)



 14

 

ARTICLE IV 

MODIFICATION OF UOSA SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 

SECTION 4.1  COMPLIANCE.  Both Fairfax and Prince William, as Participants to the 

UOSA Service Agreement, shall continue to adhere to all terms, conditions, covenants, and 

requirements as outlined in the UOSA Service Agreement that are applicable to such 

Participants.  While the Parties between themselves have altered their responsibilities for i) the 

change in the respective Capacity Allocation in the UOSA System for Fairfax and Prince 

William and the obligations associated with such changes in Capacity Allocation; and ii) the 

recognition of Excess Flows and the compensation to all Participants that provide the necessary 

Capacity Allocation to meet such Excess Flow conditions, nothing in this Agreement shall 

modify, change, or adjust the responsibilities of the specific Participants as it relates to the 

UOSA Service Agreement and the ability to meet the policies and intent as defined in the 

Occoquan Policy. 

 

SECTION 4.2  UOSA SERVICE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT.  Fairfax and Prince 

William agree to seek an amendment to the UOSA Service Agreement as it relates this 

Agreement, provided that any such amendment shall not change their respective obligations 

under the UOSA Service Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE V 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

SECTION 5.1  NO PARTNERSHIP.  It is not the purpose or the intention of this 

Agreement to create, and this Agreement shall not be construed as creating a joint venture, 

partnership, or other relationship whereby either Party hereto would be liable for the omissions, 

commissions, or performance of the other Party hereto. 

 

SECTION 5.2  WAIVER.  The failure of any Party to this Agreement to insist on the 

performance of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, or waiver of any breach of 

(287)



 15

any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, shall not be construed as thereafter waiving 

any such terms and conditions of this Agreement, or the waiver of any breach of any of the terms 

and conditions of this Agreement, shall continue and remain in full force and effect as if no such 

forbearance or waiver had occurred. 

 

SECTION 5.3  ENTIRE AGREEMENT; AMENDMENT.  This Agreement including the 

recitals, which are incorporated by this reference, contains the entire Agreement between the 

Parties regarding the purchase of 2011 Purchased Capacity by Prince William.  No change or 

modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless the same is an amendment, in writing, 

signed by the parties hereto. 

 

SECTION 5.4   GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

 

SECTION 5.5  SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity of any portion of this Agreement will 

not and shall not be deemed to affect the validity of any other provision.  In the event that any 

provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, the Parties agree that the remaining provisions 

shall be deemed to be in full force and effect as if they had been executed by all Parties 

subsequent to the expungement of the invalid provision. 

 

SECTION 5.6   FURTHER ASSURANCE.  The Parties hereto shall execute and deliver 

such further instruments and do further acts and things as may be required to carry out the intent 

and purposes of this Agreement as may be reasonably requested by any Party hereto. 

 

SECTION 5.7  HEADINGS.  The descriptive headings in this Agreement are inserted for 

convenience only and do not constitute a part of this Agreement. 

 

SECTION 5.8  COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, 

each of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

(288)



 16

SECTION 5.9   ASSIGNMENT.  Neither Fairfax nor Prince William may assign its rights 

under this Agreement to any person, entity, or other governmental or quasi-governmental body 

without the prior written consent of the other Party and UOSA. 

 

SECTION 5.10 FORCE MAJEURE.  With respect to the matters contemplated by this 

Agreement, neither party shall be liable or responsible to the other as a result of any injury to 

property or as a result of inability to provide capacity, which was caused by any Force Majeure 

event. 

 

SECTION 5.11 NOTICE.  All notices or requests shall be in writing and shall be given by 

hand delivery or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

 
If to Fairfax, to: 
 
Wastewater Planning and Monitoring Division 
12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 358 
Fairfax, Virginia 22035 
ATTN: Shahram Mohsenin, Director 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Office of the County Attorney 
12000 Government Parkway, Suite 549 
Fairfax, Virginia 22035 
ATTN: David P. Bobzien, County Attorney 
 

Or such persons and places as Fairfax may specify by notice.  The date of the notice or 

request shall be the date of receipt, if delivered by hand, or the postmarked date thereof. 

(289)



 17

 

If to Prince William County, to: 
 

1 County Complex Court 
Prince William, Virginia  22192 
ATTN:  County Executive 
 
With a copy to: 
 
4 County Complex Court 
PO Box 2266 
Woodbridge, Virginia 22195 
ATTN:  General Manager 
 
And  
 
McGuireWoods LLP 
1750 Tysons Boulevard 
Suite 1800 
McLean, Virginia 22102 
Attn: Stanley M. Franklin, Esquire 
 Mark M. Viani, Esquire 
 

Or such persons or places as Prince William may specify by notice.  The date of the 

notice or request shall be the date of receipt, if delivered by hand, or the postmarked date 

thereof. 

 

The use of electronic means of notification (e-mail) will not be considered as a method of 

providing notice for the purposes of this Agreement.  Any Party may, by notice in writing given 

to the other, designate any further or different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates 

or other communications shall be sent.  Any notice shall be deemed given on the date such notice 

is delivered by hand or three days after the date mailed.  Each Party to this Agreement shall have 

a continuing duty to promptly notify the other party of any change to any of this information. 

 

SECTION 5.12 EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Agreement shall become effective upon the 

last date of the parties executing this Agreement, as set forth here below. 

 

(290)



 18

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be restated, 

amended, and executed, and their seals to be affixed and attested by their duly authorized 

officers, all as of the date appearing next to their signatures. 

 

 

      BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
ATTEST:     FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 
 

 

      BY:       
Clerk             Chairman 
 

Date:      
 

 

      BOARD OF COUNTY SUPERVISORS OF 
ATTEST:     PRINCE WILLIAM COUNTY, VIRGINIA  
 

 

      BY:       
Clerk             Chairman 
 

Date:      
 
C:\Users\mmchug\Desktop\FX PW Agreement Jan 4 draft.DOC 

(291)



ATTACHMENT A 

RESTATED AND AMENDED RFRVICE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made as of the 15th day of May, 1972, and restated and 

amended herein, by and between the UPPER OCCOQUAN SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

(UOSA), a public body politic and corporate duly created pursuant to the Virginia Water 

and Waste Authorities Act, and the CITY OF MANASSAS and the CITY OF MANASSAS 

PARK, municipal corporations of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and the BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF FAIRFAX COUNTY and the BOARD OF COUNTY SUPERVISORS 

OF PRINCE WILLIAM COUNTY, acting for and on behalf of said counties and the sanitary 

districts thereof, which are located in whole or in part within the Service Area (hereinafter 

defined) (such four parties being called collectively the Political Subdivisions and 

individually a Political Subdivision), provides that: 

WHEREAS, the parties entered into a Service Agreement dated as of the 15th day 

of May, 1972 (the Service Agreement), providing for the treatment of sewage at a regional 

sewage treatment plant; and 

WHEREAS, the Service Agreement has been amended and restated from time to 

time; and 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to restate and amend their Service Agreement and to 

change the same as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

Definitions and Warranties 

Section 1.1. The following words as used in this Agreement shall have the following 

meanings: 
„ \ . September 25,2007 

(292)



"Act" shall mean the Virginia Water and Waste Authorities Act (§15.2-5100, etseq., 

Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended, and as it may be amended from time to time). 

"Authority" shall refer to any entity other than UOSA formed in accordance with the 

Act. 

"Auxiliary Facility" shall mean any sewage treatment facility other than the UOSA 

Plant and the UOSA Delivery System, which is 1) limited to the treatment and/or disposal 

of Industrial Wastewater, 2) sponsored by a Political Subdivision, and 3) to remain at all 

times under the exclusive operation and control of UOSA. 

"Auxiliary Facility Agreement" shall mean a written contract between UOSA and a 

sponsoring Political Subdivision(s) with respect to an Auxiliary Facility as set forth herein. 

"Auxiliary Facility Expense" shall mean all expenses, obligations, damages, costs 

of whatever nature, including charges by UOSA for indirect costs of administration and 

overhead, whether directly or indirectly relating to an Auxiliary Facility, its construction, 

operation, maintenance, de-mobilization and consequential cost, expenses, and damages. 

"Bonds" wherever used, shall include notes, bonds, bond anticipation notes or 

other debt obligations of UOSA whether now outstanding or to be issued in the future. 

"Cost" when used with respect to the UOSA Plant and the UOSA Delivery System, 

shall mean the purchase price of any sewage treatment system or the cost of acquiring all 

of the capital stock of the corporation owning such system and the amount to be paid to 

discharge all of its obligations in order to vest title to the system or any part thereof in 

UOSA, the Cost of Replacements and Necessary Improvements, the cost of all lands, 

properties, rights, easements, franchises and permits acquired, the cost of all machinery 

-2- September 25,2007 

(293)



and equipment, financing charges, interest prior to and during construction and for one 

year after completion of construction, any deposit to any Bond interest and sinking fund 

reserve account, cost of engineering and legal services, plans, specifications, surveys, 

estimates of costs and of revenues, other expenses necessary or incident to the 

determining of the feasibility or practicability of any such acquisition, improvements, or 

construction, administrative expenses, and such other expenses as may be necessary or 

incident to the financing herein authorized, to the acquisition, improvements, construction 

or expansion of the UOSA Plant and the UOSA Delivery System. Any obligation or 

expense incurred by UOSA in connection with any of the foregoing items of cost and any 

obligation or expense incurred by UOSA prior to the issuance of Bonds by UOSA for 

engineering studies and for estimates of cost and of revenues and for other technical or 

professional services which may be utilized in the acquisition, improvement or construction 

or expansion of such system, may be regarded as a part of the cost of such system. 

"Cost of Replacements and Necessary Improvements" when used with respect 

to the UOSA Plant and the UOSA Delivery System, shall mean the cost of acquiring, 

installing or constructing replacements and necessary improvements which do not increase 

the capacity or scope of the UOSA Plant and the UOSA Delivery System, and shall 

embrace the cost of all labor and materials, the cost of all lands, property, rights, 

easements, franchises and permits acquired which are deemed necessary for such 

acquisition, installation or construction, interest during any period of disuse during such 

acquisition, installation or construction, the cost of all machinery and equipment, financial 

charges, cost of engineering and legal expenses, plans, specifications, and such other 

expenses as may be necessary or incident to such acquisition, installation or construction. 

.3. September 25,2007 

(294)



"DEQ" shall mean the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality and/or the 

State Water Control Board or any other agency or agencies of the Commonwealth of 

Virginia or the United States, which may succeed to their duties. 

"Industrial Wastewater" shall mean any water which, during manufacturing, 

processing or assembling operations, comes into direct contact with or results directly from 

the processes of production or use of any raw material, intermediate product or finished 

product. As used herein, the word sewage shall include Industrial Wastewater. 

"Meters" shall mean any device for measuring the flow of sewage, 

"mgd" shall mean million gallons per day based on the highest average of any 30 

consecutive day flow. 

"Occoquan Policy" shall mean the DEQ State Water Control Board's Policy for 

Waste Treatment and Water Quality Management in the Occoquan Watershed, dated July 

26 ,1971, as the same has been or may be revised from time to time. 

"Points of Delivery" shall mean the location of the connections made by Political 

Subdivisions at any point along the UOSA Delivery System for the delivery of sewage to 

UOSA. Connections may be added or changed to other locations along the UOSA 

Delivery System only by agreement between UOSA and the Political Subdivisions making 

such connection. 

"Political Subdivisions" shall mean the Cities of Manassas and Manassas Park, 

as municipal corporations of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and the Counties of Fairfax 

and Prince William, as counties of the Commonwealth, as they now or may be hereafter 

constituted. 

.4. September 25,2007 

(295)



"Project" shall mean UOSA's advanced waste treatment system, consisting of the 

UOSA Delivery System, the UOSA Plant, and Auxiliary Facilities approved and undertaken 

at the discretion of UOSA pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, including any 

replacements, modifications, improvements or authorized expansions. 

"Reserves" shall mean (unless modified with the approval of all Political 

Subdivisions) all amounts held by UOSA as reserves which shall not exceed (1) an amount 

equal to the next year's estimated expenditures for operation and maintenance; (2) 

depreciation in a minimum amount required by law and the Trust Agreement; (3) funds 

necessary to pay principal (whether at maturity or by required sinking fund payment), 

premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as they become due and payable; and (4) a 

margin of safety for making debt service payments not to exceed the highest year's 

payments for principal (whether at maturity or by required sinking fund payment), premium, 

if any, and interest on the Bonds. 

"Septage Receiving Facility" shall mean that portion of the UOSA Plant, which 

accepts septage for treatment. 

"Service Area" shall mean that portion of the watershed of Occoquan Creek and its 

tributaries lying above the confluence of Occoquan Creek and Bull Run, save and except 

the Cedar Run Watershed and that portion of the Occoquan Creek Watershed in Prince 

William County lying generally to the south of the centerllne of Occoquan Creek, and being 

within the geographic boundaries of the Political Subdivisions. These geographic 

boundaries of the Service Area shall be determined more exactly from time to time by 

UOSA. 

-5- September 25,2007 

(296)



"Trust Agreement" shall mean, collectively, any resolution, trust agreement or 

indenture authorizing and securing Bonds to which UOSA is a party. 

"Trustee" shall mean the trustee designated in any Trust Agreement. 

"UOSA" shall mean the Upper Occoquan Sewage Authority, a public body politic 

and corporate duly created pursuantto the Act by the Councils of the Cities (then Towns) 

of Manassas and Manassas, Park and the Boards of Supervisors of Fairfax and Prince 

William Counties and by a certificate of Incorporation issued by the State Corporation 

Commission of Virginia on April 1,1971. 

"UOSA Delivery System" shall mean the regional delivery system of trunk or 

interceptor sewers now existing or to be expanded, constructed or modified, owned and/or 

operated by UOSA, Including power supplies, pumping facilities, force mains, flow 

measurement devices and retention basins, to transport sewage from Points of Delivery to 

the UOSA Plant, all as shown on Exhibit A attached hereto. 

"UOSA Plant" shall mean the advanced waste treatment plant now existing and as 

it may be expanded, constructed, or modified, owned and operated by UOSA, including 

administration buildings, plant offices, laboratory building, retention and ballast basins, 

power supplies and necessary appurtenances and equipment, forthe treatment of sewage 

and the utilization and/or disposal of residuals and by-products in conformance with 

requirements of the Occoquan Policy and DEQ. 

"VPDES Permit" shall mean the Virginia Pollution Discharge Elimination System 

permit or any permit of a different name which may hereafter authorize what is now 

permitted by a VPDES permit. 

-6- September 25,2007 

(297)



Section 1.2. UOSA and the Political Subdivisions each represent and warrant that 

they have full power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement. 

ARTICLE II 

Term of Agreement 

Section 2.1. This Agreement shall remain In full force and effect until December 31, 

2049, and thereafter as may be provided by concurrent resolution of the member Political 

Subdivisions, which are then parties thereto. This Agreement may not be terminated by or 

as to any party until December 31, 2012 and thereafter until all Bonds have been paid or 

provision made for their payment. 

Section 2.2. Subject to the limitation of Section 2.1, and the fulfillment of all 

conditions therein, any party to this Agreement may withdraw from UOSA and terminate all 

of its obligations underthls Agreement. No sponsoring Political Subdivision of an Auxiliary 

Facility may withdraw from UOSA so long as the Auxiliary Facility Agreement is in effect. 

No such termination shall become effective until three years after written notice thereof 

shall have been given to each of the other parties hereto. Withdrawal and termination by 

one Political Subdivision shall not terminate this Agreement as to any other Political 

Subdivision. 

ARTICLE III 

Financing, Construction and Operation of Facilities 

Section 3.1. UOSA is authorized and directed to proceed with the expansion of the 

capacity of the UOSA Plant to 54 mgd and sewerage system improvements identified as 

Phases I, II, and III of the CH2M HILL Preliminary Engineering Report, dated July 1987 

.7. September 25,2007 

(298)



(PER) that are part of the UOSA Delivery System, the CH2M HILL "Cub Run Gravity 

Delivery System Evaluation", dated March 2004, and the Hazen and Sawyer "Flat Branch 

Delivery System Study", dated May 2005, and such other improvements as are necessary 

or beneficial to expand the UOSA Plant and Delivery System to 54 mgd. 

Section 3.2. UOSA is authorized and directed to proceed with the expansion of the 

UOSA Flat Branch Delivery System from 54 mgd. to 64 mgd as identified in the Hazen and 

Sawyer "Flat Branch Delivery System Study", dated May 2005, and such other 

improvements as are necessary to make related Improvements to the UOSA Delivery 

System. 

Section 3.3. UOSA is authorized and directed to proceed with the construction, 

alterations and improvements required by DEQ to install nutrient reduction facilities and 

systems in the UOSA Plant and such other improvements as are necessary or beneficial to 

ensure compliance with DEQ regulations. 

Section 3.4 UOSA is authorized and directed to proceed with the construction, 

alterations and improvements referred to as "hydraulic improvements", which are only 

those improvements that are specifically identified in the CH2M HILL Technical 

Memorandum: "Basis for Hydraulic improvements to the UOSA Regional Water 

Reclamation Plant", dated July 13,2006, and such beneficial changes as are necessary to 

carry out the project identified therein and comply with regulatory requirements. 

Section 3.5. UOSA has acquired approximately 210 acres of additional land in 

anticipation of its future needs. Such acquisition cost and/or debt shall be charged to the 

Political Subdivisions as may be necessary as an item specified in Section 6.1(c). 

-8- September 25,2007 

(299)



Section 3.6. UOSA shall direct the Trustee to deposit any balance of construction 

funds remaining from any issue of Bonds after completion of the improvements for which 

such Bonds were issued in a separate account pursuant to the Trust Agreement. Such 

funds shall be used and credited by UOSA as set forth in Section 6.4 (h). 

Section 3.7. A Political Subdivision shall have the right to approve additional 

locations and capacity of sewer lines forming a part of the UOSA Delivery System, which 

are located within its boundaries and are not authorized by the expansion referenced in 

Section 3.1. UOSA shall not construct additional lines within a Political Subdivision without 

prior authorization of that Political Subdivision. 

Section 3.8. UOSA shall expand (as herein authorized), operate and maintain the 

UOSA Plant and the UOSA Delivery System in an efficient and economical manner, 

making all necessary and proper repairs, improvements, replacements and renewals, 

consistent with good business and operating practices for comparable facilities and in 

accordance with applicable standards of DEQ and the Occoquan Policy. 

ARTICLE IV 

Obligations of Political Subdivisions 

Section 4.1. The Political Subdivisions shall deliver to UOSA at Points of Delivery 

all sewage collected by them in the Service Area and, except as expressly permitted by this 

Agreement, shall not permit or provide forthe treatment of sewage collected by them in the 

Service Area In any other manner. The Political Subdivisions shall be responsible for 

delivering sewage collected by them in the Service Area to UOSA at Points of Delivery and 

-9. September 25, 2007 

(300)



for financing, construction, operation and maintenance of all facilities forthe collection and 

delivery of sewage to Points of Delivery. 

Section 4.2. The Political Subdivisions recognize that the capacity of the UOSA 

Plant will be regulated by DEQ and that allocations of UOSA Plant capacity will have to be 

made to avoid overloading. Each of the Political Subdivisions covenants and agrees not to 

exceed its UOSA Plant capacity as allocated from time to time, Each Political Subdivision 

has the primary responsibility forthe necessary actions to insure that its wastewater flows 

to the UOSA Plant remain within such Political Subdivision's allocated share of DEQ 

certified flow capacity for the UOSA Plant. 

Section 4.3. At such time as any Political Subdivision is advised by UOSA that its 

average flow for any consecutive thirty-day period during the past 48 months has reached 

95% of its allocated capacity in the UOSA Plant, such Political Subdivision shall temporarily 

terminate the issuance of permits which allow start of construction on projects in that 

portion of the UOSA Service Area in the Political Subdivision until UOSA Plant capacity is 

increased by reason of reallocation, arrangements are made for sewage from the Service 

Area in excess of its allocation to be treated outside the Occoquan Watershed, or It is 

advised by UOSA that it may deliver additional sewage to UOSA. 

Section 4.4. Each of the Political Subdivisions covenants and agrees to pay 

promptly, when due, charges of UOSA as determined pursuant to Article VI and billed to it 

from time to time; provided, however, that all such charges shall be payable solely from 

revenues received by each Political Subdivision (or transferee or Authority or other legal 

entity created thereby as described in Section 4.8) from the charges to be paid by the 

-10- September 25,2007 

(301)



users of its sewerage system and available to it for such purposes including availability 

fees, connection fees, service fees or any other fees, and other system revenues. 

Section 4.5. Each of the Political Subdivisions covenants and agrees to fix and 

collect (or cause to be fixed and collected) from the users of its sewerage system charges 

sufficient to make the payments required of it under this Agreement. UOSA will provide 

each Political Subdivision with information as to the minimum charge necessary for such 

Political Subdivision's required payments. 

Section 4.6. Each of the Political Subdivisions will endeavor to observe all 

applicable administrative and technical requirements contained in the Occoquan Policy or 

legally required by any authorized regulatory body, including UOSA. Upon receipt of a 

notice of violation by an authorized regulatory body, the Political Subdivision shall proceed 

to comply with such rules or regulations within a reasonable time considering the 

exigencies of the circumstances. 

Section 4.7. Each of the Political Subdivisions covenants and agrees (subject to 

provisions of its charter, if applicable) that it will not enter into any contract providing for 

sewage treatment with any party having sewage flows originating within the geographic 

boundaries of other Political Subdivisions that are members of UOSA without the prior 

approval of such other Political Subdivision; provided, however, that such right of approval 

shall not be construed to limit the power of DEQ to fulfill its function under the law. 

Section 4.8. (a) Each Political Subdivision agrees notto sell, transfer or dispose 

of its sewerage system unless: 

(i) Such transfer is to another governmental unit within the 

meaning of Section 141 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; 

-11- September 25,2007 

(302)



(i!) The transferee agrees to comply with the terms of this 

Agreement to the extent applicable to sewage delivered to UOSA; 

(iii) The transferee agrees to fix and collect rates and charges 

sufficient to satisfy the obligation of the transferring Political Subdivision under 

Section 4.5; 

(iv) The transferee agrees to make the payments to UOSA 

required to be made by the transferring Political Subdivision to the extent such 

payments are not made by the Political Subdivision; and 

(v) The sale, transfer or disposition is approved by UOSA. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no such sale, transfer or disposition will release the 

transferring Political Subdivision from any obligation or liability under this Agreement or 

affect any agreement or understanding between the Political Subdivision and the 

transferee. 

(b) In the event that a Political Subdivision creates or has created 

an Authority or other legal entity to act as Its agent, for the purposes of collecting sewage in 

the Service Area and/or for billing and collecting fees or charges to be paid by the users of 

a sewerage system located in the Service Area, such Political Subdivision shall not be 

relieved of its obligations under this Agreement. Such Political Subdivision shall require 

any Authority or other legal entity it creates to comply fully with this Agreement with respect 

to all sewage collected within the Service Area and shall nonetheless remain responsible 

for any noncompliance. The Political Subdivision shall cause such Authority or other entity 

to covenant and agree to fix and/or collect from the users of its sewerage system charges 

sufficient to make the payments required under this Agreement. A Political Subdivision 

-12- September 25,2007 

(303)



which creates or has created such an entity shall ensure that UOSA has the same rights as 

that Political Subdivision to enforce the setting and collecting of rates and the payment of 

charges to UOSA. To the extent that any such Authority or other legal entity agrees to 

charge, collect and pay all or any part of Political Subdivision's obligations to UOSA, such 

agreement shall supplement and not be in lieu of the Political Subdivision's covenant and 

agreement to charge, collect and pay UOSA as provided in this Agreement. 

Section 4.9. All parties hereto and any Authority or other entity described in Section 

4,8.(b) will pursue diligently the abatement of inflow and infiltration. 

Section 4.10. (a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary In this Agreement, 

UOSA may contract with a Political Subdivision(s) to undertake the operation and (with the 

agreement of UOSA and the sponsoring Political Subdivision(s)) ownership of an Auxiliary 

Facility sponsored by that Political Subdivision(s) pursuant to an Auxiliary Facility 

Agreement, when authorized and approved by unanimous consent of the UOSA Board, 

with all eight members present and voting, in its sole discretion after having confirmed by 

resolution that; 

(i) UOSA has determined that such alternative disposal of 

Industrial Wastewater to the Auxiliary Facility shall not violate the Occoquan Policy; 

and 

(ii) the Auxiliary Facility shall not be detrimental to UOSA, the 

water supply, the Project or the operation thereof. 

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, all 

Auxiliary Facility Expenses shall be the sole and full responsibility of the Political 

Subdivision(s) proposing and sponsoring such Auxiliary Facility. Any payment UOSA is 

-13- September 25,2007 

(304)



required to make as a consequence of its undertaking, ownership or operation of the 

Auxiliary Facility shall be conclusively deemed an expense chargeable to the sponsoring 

Political Subdivision(s) only and no other Political Subdivisions shall be responsible or 

required to reimburse UOSA for any expenses, obligations, damages, costs or liabilities 

whatsoever that are directly or indirectly associated with such Auxiliary Facility. 

(c) In addition to such other terms as the Board may decide upon, 

the Auxiliary Facility Agreement shall include, and if not there set out shall be deemed to 

include, the following provisions: 

(i) that any required VPDES permits shall be issued to UOSA 

and UOSA shall have all necessary authority to ensure compliance with such 

permits, relevant laws and regulations and the efficient operation and control of 

such Auxiliary Facility; 

(ii) that the Political Subdivision(s) which sponsors) an 

Auxiliary Facility shall have the sole and full responsibility for all Auxiliary Facility 

Expenses, and neither UOSA shall be caused a diminution of revenue, nor the other 

Political Subdivisions be burdened with any Auxiliary Facility Expenses; 

(iii) that the Political Subdivision(s) which sponsors(s) such 

Auxiliary Facility shall, to the full extent permitted by law, provide Indemnification to, 

and hold harmless, UOSA and the other Political Subdivisions for all such 

expenses, obligations, damages, costs and liabilities, including attorney fees, court 

costs and litigation expenses in anyway associated with claims or causes of actions 

arising out of the Auxiliary Facility or the enforcement of the hold harmless 

obligation and the right to indemnification; 

-14- September 25, 2007 

(305)



(iv) that UOSA, in addition to all other rights by law or contract, 

shall have the right to terminate the operations of the Auxiliary Facility, upon 

reasonable notice to the sponsoring Political Subdivision, If any of the requirements 

of this Agreement or the Auxiliary Facility Agreement are breached by the 

sponsoring Political Subdivision; 

(v) that the Political Subdivision(s) which sponsors) an Auxiliary 

Facility shall be responsible forfinancing, construction, operation and maintenance 

of all facilities for the collection and delivery of Industrial Wastewater to that 

Auxiliary Facility and forthe conveyance of the treated effluent to the VPDES permit 

approved point of discharge. 

(d) Any Political Subdivision, whether or not a party to an Auxiliary 

Facility Agreement, may sue to enforce the terms of such Auxiliary Facility Agreement. 

The party substantially prevailing in such litigation shall be awarded its reasonable 

attorneys fees and costs incurred with respect to the issues upon which it prevailed. 

( e ) Any Authority created by a Political Subdivision may be a party 

to any Auxiliary Facility Agreement to which the Political Subdivision is a party, with such 

rights, duties and obligations as the parties shall agree. In no event shall such an Auxiliary 

Facility Agreement be assignable without the written consent of UOSA and such 

assignment shall be only to another Political Subdivision. 

(f) Delivery of Industrial Wastewater by a Political Subdivision to an 

Auxiliary Facility pursuant to this Section shall be deemed delivery to UOSA as required in 

Section 4.1 herein. 

-15- September25,2007 

(306)



ARTICLE V 

Obligations of UOSA 

Section 5.1. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, UOSA shall accept and 

treat all sewage delivered by the Political Subdivisions at Points of Delivery up to their 

respective allocated (or reallocated per Section 5.4) UOSA Plant capacities. UOSA shall 

also accept and treat septage delivered to the Septage Receiving Facility in accordance 

with Section 5.7. UOSA shall be under no obligation to treat sewage at the UOSA Plant 

delivered by any Political Subdivision in excess of its allocated (or reallocated per Section 

5.4) UOSA Plant capacity. Subject to the other provisions of this Agreement, UOSA shall 

accept and treat Industrial Wastewater at any Auxiliary Facility in accordance with the 

terms of the respective Auxiliary Facility Agreement. 

Section 5.2. UOSA shall not request DEQ certification for any additional UOSA 

Plant capacity for a specific Political Subdivision unless so requested by the governing 

body of such Political Subdivision. Any increase in certified UOSA Plant capacity shall be 

subject to UOSA and the Political Subdivisions meeting all applicable requirements of the 

Occoquan Policy. Any increase In certified UOSA Plant capacity shall be allocated to and 

paid for by Political Subdivisions requesting such increases in certification (to include 

reimbursement to the other Political Subdivisions for any capital contributions previously 

made in excess of the revised percentage allocations). 

Section 5.3. Prior to DEQ issuing a Certificate to Operate the UOSA Plant at a 

capacity greater than 27 mgd, the capacity allocation was as follows: 

-16- September25,2007 

(307)



Fairfax County 9.9149 mgd 
Prince William County 8.6781 mgd 
City of Manassas 6.6813 mgd 
City of Manassas Park 1.7257 mgd 

27.0000 mgd 

Section 5.4. Any Political Subdivision may reallocate any portion of its allocated 

UOSA Plant capacity to any other Political Subdivision on such terms as may be mutually 

agreeable, subject to approval of UOSA. The Political Subdivisions shall give UOSA . 

written notice of any such transfer and UOSA shall change the UOSA Plant capacity 

allocations on its books and records. However, these reallocations shall not alter the 

obligations of each Political Subdivision as set forth in Sections 6.1(b) and (c)and Sections 

6.3 and 6.4. 

Section 5.5. At such time that DEQ issued a Certificate to Operate the UOSA Plant 

at a capacity greater than 27 mgd but less than 54 mgd, the allocation of the first 27 mgd 

was as set forth in Section 5.3 and the allocation of capacity above 27 mgd to 54 mgd was 

in the following percentages: 

Percentage of Additional Capacity 
Fairfax County 65.5% 
Prince William County 26.4% 
City of Manassas 3.7% 
City of Manassas Park 4.4% 

100.0% 

Section 5.6 As of January 3,2005, the date DEQ issued a Certificate to Operate 

the UOSA Plant at a capacity of 54 mgd, the allocation of capacity became as follows: 

-17- September25,2007 

(308)



Total Capacity 
Aliocation 

Percentage of 
Total Capacity 

Fairfax County 
Prince William County 
City of Manassas 
City of Manassas Park 

27.5999 mgd 
15.7971 mgd 
7.6893 mgd 
2.9137 mad 

54.0000 mgd 

51.1109% 
29.2539% 
14.2395% 

5.3957% 
100.0000% 

Section 5.7. UOSA may, with the consent of the appropriate Political Subdivision 

and in accordance with rates lawfully established by UOSA, contract with and license any 

person, corporation or association operating a septic tank cleaning or similar service forthe 

treatment of septage collected in a Political Subdivision. UOSA may also so contract with 

a Political Subdivision or an Authority which licenses septage haulers for the treatment of 

septage collected In a Poiiticai Subdivision and delivered to the septage Receiving Facility 

as long as such contract is in accordance with rates lawfully established by UOSA. All 

such septage shall be counted against the allocated UOSA Plant capacity of the 

appropriate Political Subdivision. Notwithstanding any provision In this Agreement to the 

contrary, UOSA shall allocate the costs of operating the Septage Receiving Facility in 

proportion to the amount of septage received from each Political Subdivision. All revenues 

derived from the use of the Septage Receiving Facility paid to UOSA from septage hauls 

originating in a Political Subdivision shall be deducted from that Political Subdivision's 

costs. 

Section 5.8. UOSA covenants and agrees that it will endeavor to observe all 

applicable administrative and technical requirements contained in the Occoquan Policy or 

legally required by any authorized regulatory body. Upon receipt of a notice of violation by 

-18- September25,2007 

(309)



any authorized regulatory body, UOSA shall proceed to comply with such rules and 

regulations within a reasonable time considering the exigencies of the circumstances. 

ARTICLE VI 

Rates and Charges 

Section 6.1. UOSA shall fix and determine from time to time charges forthe use of 

the UOSA Plant and UOSA Delivery System. Such charges shall be established by UOSA 

at such levels as may be necessary to provide funds, together with other available funds, 

sufficient at all time to pay: 

(a) the cost of operation and maintenance of 

(1) the UOSA Plant, including reasonable reserves for such 

purposes, and 

(2) the UOSA Delivery System, including reasonable reserves 

for such purposes; 

(b) the Cost of Replacements and Necessary Improvements of 

(1) the UOSA Plant, Including reasonable reserves for such 

purposes, and 

(2) the UOSA Delivery System, including reasonable reserves 

for such purposes; and 

(c) the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, the 

Cost of the UOSA Plant and UOSA Delivery System not paid with Bond proceeds, or any 

-19- September 25,2007 

(310)



other monies due under the Trust Agreement, as the same become due, and required 

reserves therefore on Bonds issued to finance the Cost of 

(1) the UOSA Plant, and 

(2) the UOSA Delivery System. 

Reserves accumulated by UOSA may be used to the extent permitted by the Trust 

Agreement to meet the reasonable Cost of Replacements and Necessary Improvements, 

which do not increase the capacity or scope of the UOSA Plant and UOSA Delivery 

System. The Political Subdivisions recognize that reserves may not be available at all 

times, and they may be billed forthe Cost of Replacements and Necessary Improvements 

as needed. 

Section 6.2. The total charges determined pursuantto Section 6.1(a) shall be paid 

by each Political Subdivision in proportion to the ratio, which its annual flow as metered 

through the Points of Delivery bears to the total annual flow received at the UOSA Plant. 

Indirect costs of administration and overhead shall be allocated on the same basis as 

Section 6.1(a) charges. 

Section 6.3. Priorto the time DEQ issued a Certificate to Operate the UOSA Plant 

at a capacity greater than 27 mgd, the total charges determined pursuant to Section 6.1 (b) 

were paid by each Political Subdivision in accordance with the following percentages: 

Fairfax County 30.83% 
Prince William County 33.03% 
City of Manassas 21.19% 
City of Manassas Park 14.95% 

At such time as DEQ issued or will issue in the future a Certificate to Operate the UOSA 

Plant at a capacity greater than 27 mgd, the total charges determined pursuant to Section 

.20- September 25,2007 

(311)



6.1(b) shall be paid by each Political Subdivision in proportion to the ratio its maximum 

capacity allocation bears to the total maximum capacity allocation of all Political 

Subdivisions. 

Section 6.4. The total charges determined pursuant to Section 6.1(c) shall be paid 

by each Political Subdivision in accordance with the following percentages: 

(a) For all charges due or incurred under 6.1 (c) forthe construction 

and expansion of the UOSA Plant and Delivery System up to 27 mgd: 

Fairfax County 30,83% 
Prince William County 33.03% 
City of Manassas 21.19% 
City of Manassas Park 14.95% 

(b) For all charges due or incurred under 6.1(c) for expanding the 

UOSA Plant and Delivery System from 27 mgd to 54 mgd: 

I II 
Plant Delivery System 

Expansion Expansion * 

Fairfax County 65.5% 51,1109% 
Prince William County 26.4% 29.2539% 
City of Manassas 3.7% 14.2395% 
City of Manassas Park 4.4% 5.3957% 

* Identified as Sewerage System Improvements Phases I, II and III in the CH2M HILL 

Preliminary Engineering Report dated July 1987 (PER), the CH2M HILL "Cub Run Gravity 

Delivery System Evaluation", dated March 2004, and the Hazen and Sawyer "Flat Branch 

Delivery System Study", dated May 2005, and related Costs. 

-21- September 25,2007 

(312)



(c ) For all charges due or incurred under 6.1.(c) for expanding the 

UOSA Flat Branch Delivery System from 54 mgd to 64 mgd: 

Prince William County 90% 
City of Manassas 10% 

The Flat Branch Delivery System costs for expanding from 54 mgd to 64 mgd shall be 

calculated as 9.3 percent of the total costs for the projects identified in the Hazen and 

Sawyer engineering analysis, dated July 12,2005. The remainder, or 90.7 percent, of the 

total costs identified in that analysis are associated with expanding the Flat Branch Delivery 

System from 27 mgd to 54 mgd and shall be charged based on the UOSA Delivery System 

percentage shown in Section 6.4. (b). 

(d) For all charges due or incurred under 6.1 (c) for incorporating 

nutrient reduction facilities and systems into the UOSA Plant authorized by Section 3.3: 

Fairfax County 45.5554% 
Prince William County 32.9576% 
City of Manassas 16.0913% 
City of Manassas Park 5.3957% 

(e) For all charges due or incurred under 6.1. (c) "Hydraulic 

Improvements" authorized by Section 3.4: 

Fairfax County 28.52% 
Prince William county 57.13% 
City of Manassas 12.44% 
City of Manassas Park 1.91 % 

Pursuantto the CH2M HILL Technical Memorandum: "Basis for Hydraulic Improvements 

to the UOSA Regional Water Reclamation Plant", dated July 13, 2006, the Section 3.4. 

Hydraulic Improvements are based on peak flows of 95 mgd from UOSA's Flat Branch 

Pump Station and peak flows of 68.5 from pump stations within Fairfax County, for a total 

.22- September 25, 2007 

(313)



peak flow of 163.5 mgd. The Political Subdivisions agree that should additional peak flows 

necessitate additional hydraulic capacity improvements beyond those identified In the 

Technical Memorandum, the cost of such additional hydraulic capacity improvements shall 

be borne by the Political Subdivision(s) which generates the necessity for such additional 

improvements, 

(f) All charges due or incurred under 6.1. (c) for any Cost of 

Replacements and Necessary Improvements (including repairs and renewals) for which 

Bonds are issued shall be paid by each Political Subdivision in proportion to the ratio its 

maximum capacity allocation bears to the total maximum capacity allocation, as set forth in 

the then current Certificate to Operate, of all the Political Subdivisions. 

(g) A Political Subdivision may pre-pay its debt service obligations 

so long as such pre-payment does not affect adversely the tax status of any Bonds. 

UOSA, at its option, may apply all or a portion of any such pre-payment and any earnings 

therefrom (1) to the subsequent debt service obligations of the pre-paying Political 

Subdivision as they become due, or (2) to effect a redemption of all or a portion of such 

Political Subdivision's share of outstanding Bonds. In the event of any such redemption, 

the pre-paying Political Subdivision's share of debt service obligations (with respect to the 

Bond issue of which the redeemed Bonds were a part) shall be reduced correspondingly by 

the amount of the redemption. 

(h) Subjecttothe provisions of the Trust Agreement, residualfunds 

from past or future Bond offerings shall be applied to authorized expansions or Costs of 

Replacements or Necessary Improvements and shall be credited toward each Political 

-23- Scptember25,2007 

(314)



Subdivision's obligation in proportion to the Political Subdivision's obligations in Article VI 

on the project or projects from which the funds are derived. 

Section 6.5. Should DEQ certify additional capacity in the UOSA Plant after a 

request from a Political Subdivision or Political Subdivisions upon approval by UOSA, the 

total charges for Section 6.1(c) shall be adjusted as outlined in Section 5.2. The charges 

determined pursuantto Section 6.1(c)forany additional UOSA Plant capacity added in the 

future shall be paid in accordance with the maximum capacity allocation specified by the 

amendment to this Agreement which authorize such additions, or as otherwise provided in 

such amendments. 

Section 6.6. The charges pursuant to Section 6.1(c) to be paid by a Political 

Subdivision shall be increased for each month the actual quantity of sewage from such 

Political Subdivision, as determined by the highest average of any 30 consecutive day flow 

ending during the calendar month, exceeds its UOSA Plant capacity allocation (or 

reallocation pursuant to Section 5.4 or Section 6.5). In such an event, a Political 

Subdivision shall pay additional charges ("Additional Charges") pursuantto Section 6.1(c) 

as if the UOSA Plant capacity had been available and allocated, provided that such 

Additional Charges shall not purchase any additional rights forthe use of the UOSA Plant 

by such Political Subdivision and in no way condones such excess flows. These Additional 

Charges shall be applied to the reimbursement, on a pro rata basis, to such other Political 

Subdivisions to the extent their highest average of any 30 consecutive day flow ending 

during that calendar month was less than their allocated capacity . To the extent the 

Additional Charges exceed such reimbursement, they shall be deposited in an escrow 

account to be used for the purposes of defraying the Cost of expansion, capital 

-24- September 25, 2007 

(315)



improvements or studies of future expansions of the UOSA Plant and UOSA Delivery 

System. Any reimbursements under this section shall not alter the Political Subdivision's 

obligation to pay its share of the charges required by Section 6.1. (c), 

Section 6.7. No Political Subdivision shall discharge sewage to UOSA which 

exceeds its allocated share (or reallocated share pursuant to Section 5.4 or Section 6.5) by 

weight or concentration of the total design capacity of the UOSA Plant or cause UOSA to 

exceed any lawful limitations Imposed upon its discharge. A Political Subdivision's 

allocated share of the total designed UOSA Plant loadings shall be the same percentage 

as its allocated percentage of total UOSA Plant design flow (mgd). At such time as any 

Political Subdivision is advised by UOSA that its pollutant discharge exceeds its allocated 

share of total designed UOSA Plant loadings, such Political Subdivision shall proceed to 

take such measures as may be necessary to bring its discharges into compliance and shall 

temporarily terminate the Issuance of permits which would result in any increase in the 

excessive loading in that portion of the UOSA Service Area in the Political Subdivision until 

its allocated share of total UOSA Plant loadings Is increased by reason of reallocation or it 

is advised by UOSA that it may deliver additional sewage to UOSA. During the period of 

noncompliance, UOSA may assess the Political Subdivision costs for the treatment of the 

excess loading. All monitoring costs during the noncomplying period shall be borne by the 

noncomplying Political Subdivision. 

Section 6.8. UOSA may present charges (including charges with respect to 

Auxiliary Facilities) based on budget estimates, subject to adjustment on the basis of an 

independent audit at the end of each fiscal year. All charges of UOSA shall be payable 

upon presentation, in the event any Political Subdivision shall fail to make payment In full 

-25- September 25,2007 

(316)



within 30 days after presentation, interest on such unpaid amounts shall accrue at the 

highest rate of interest payable by UOSA on any of the Bonds then outstanding until such 

amounts and interest thereon have been paid in full. UOSA may enforce payment by any 

remedy available at law or in equity. 

Section 6.9. UOSA shall provide Meters where necessary to determine and record 

on a continuing basis the quantities of sewage delivered by each Political Subdivision. 

Meters shall be tested by UOSA for accuracy not less than once every two years. At the 

request of any Political Subdivision, UOSA shall test any Meter for accuracy at any time; 

provided, however, that should such Meter prove to be accurate within a range of plus or 

minus 2%, the cost of the Meter test shall be borne by the requesting Political Subdivision. 

In the event any Meter shall fail to record correctly the flow of sewage for any period of 

time, UOSA shall estimate the amount of flow on the basis of prior experience. 

Section 6.10. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary: 

(a) Industrial Wastewater delivered to and treated at an Auxiliary Facility 

shall not be considered as flows to the UOSA Plant for the determination of allocated 

capacity in the UOSA Plant or as annual flows received at the UOSA Plant for the 

determination of rates and charges under Section 6.2; and 

(b) All Auxiliary Facility Expenses, which are the full responsibility of the 

Political Subdivision(s) proposing and sponsoring such Auxiliary Facility, shall be budgeted, 

presented and collected by UOSA from the sponsoring Political Subdivision separate from 

and in addition to the other charges established by this Article VI. 

-26- September 25,2007 

(317)



ARTICLE VII 

Miscellaneous 

Section 7.1. This Agreement restates and amends the prior Service Agreement. 

Section 7.2. It is recognized by the parties hereto that this Agreement constitutes 

an essential part of UOSA's financing plan and that this Agreement cannot be amended, 

modified, or otherwise altered in any manner that will impair or adversely affect the security 

afforded hereby for the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 

Bonds, except. as provided in the Trust Agreement. The obligations of the Political 

Subdivisions hereunder or the issuance of the Bonds shall not be deemed to constitute a 

pledge of the faith and credit of the Commonwealth or of any Political Subdivision thereof. 

The Bonds shall contain a statement on their face substantially to the effect that neither the 

faith and credit of the Commonwealth nor the faith and credit of any county, city or town of 

the Commonwealth are pledged to the payment of the principal of or the interest on such 

Bonds. The Issuance of the Bonds shall not directly or indirectly or contingently obligate 

the Commonwealth or any county, city or town of the Commonwealth to levy any taxes 

whatever therefor or to make any appropriations for their payment. 

Section 7.3. This Agreement can be modified or amended only with the consent of 

UOSA, the Political Subdivisions and the Trustee. 

Section 7.4. UOSA shall keep proper books and records in accordance with 

accepted accounting practices which shall be available for inspection at all reasonable 

times by the Political Subdivisions through their duly authorized agents. UOSA shall cause 

an annual audit of its books and records to be made by an independent certified public 

-27- September 25,2007 

(318)



accountant at the end of each fiscal year and a certified copy thereof to be filed promptly 

with the governing body of each of the Political Subdivisions. 

Section 7.5. The provision of sewer service to the screened area shown on the plat, 

dated April, 1981, attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof, by an entity other 

than UOSA shall not be considered a violation of this Agreement, such area being more 

particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at the southeast corner of the property located on Fairfax County 
Tax Map 68-1 ((1)) parcel 13, then running along the western right-of-way of 
Route 123 in a northerly direction approximately 1,900 feet to the centerline 
of Route 620-Braddock Road, then continuing along the western right-of-way 
line of Route 123 in a northeasterly direction approximately 2,600 feet to the 
northeast corner of property located at tax map No. 57-3 ((1)) parcel 7A; then 
following from said corner for approximately 1,400 feet in a northwesterly 
direction, then 600 feet in a southwesterly direction and 550 feet in a 
northerly direction to a corner common to George Mason University [tax map 
57-3 ((1)) parcel 7A] and Richlynn Development, Inc. (University Square 
Subdivision) then along the George Mason University property line as 
follows: for approximately 1,900 feet in a northwesterly direction, 
approximately 2,750 feet in a southwesterly direction to the northern right-of-
way line of Route 620-Braddock Road, then along said right-of-way line in a 
southeasterly direction for approximately 1,400 feet to the East Fork of 
Popes Head Creek; then across Braddock Road In a southeasterly direction 
along the property line of Hazel [tax map No. 68-1 ((1)) parcel 16] for 
approximately 2,000 feet; then in a southeasterly direction along the 
properties of Hazel and others for approximately 2,100 feet to the point of 
beginning, containing approximately 360 acres. 

At such time as the UOSA Delivery System is extended to serve the above-described area, 

such area shall be served by UOSA. 

Section 7.6. This Agreement shall be binding upon, inure to the benefit of and be 

enforceable by the parties hereto and their respective successors. 

-28- September25,2007 

(319)



Section 7.7. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid 

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect 

Section 7.8. This Agreement shall be executed in several counterparts, any of 

which shall be regarded for all purposes as one original, 

Section 7.9. This Agreement shall become effective upon the last date of the 

parties executing this Agreement, as set forth here below. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 

restated, amended and executed, and their seals to be affixed and attested by their duly 

authorized officers, all as of the date appearing next to their signatures. 

other provision hereof. 

UPPER OCCOQUAN SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

Date: 

(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

CITY OF MANASSAS 

BY: 

City Clerk Mayor 

Date: 

29 

(320)



Section 7.9. This Agreement shall become effective upon the last date of the 

parties executing this Agreement, as set forth here below. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 

restated, amended and executed, and their seals to be affixed and attested by their duly 

authorized officers, all as of the date appearing next to their signatures. 

UPPER OCCOQUAN SEWAGE AUTHORITY 

Dater „ . . . . BY:. 

(SEAL) CITY OF MANASSAS 
ATTEST: 

City Clerk ' ' / e u Mayor x 

Date: S^^tcJrfJpe^r £&f 2 . 0 0 ^ 

(SEAL) CITY OF MANASSAS PARK 
ATTEST: 

BY: 
City Clerk Mayor 

Date: 

29 

(321)



(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

CifTy Clerk " 

Data: / f - 2 . 0 ~ 0 l 

CITY OF MANASSAS PARK 

(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

BY: 

Clerk 

Date: 

(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

Chairman 

BOARD OF COUNTY SUPERVISORS OF 
PRINCE WILLIAM COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

Clerk 

Date: 

BY: 
Chairman 

30 

(322)



(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

CITY OF MANASSAS PARK 

City Clerk 

Date: 

(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

Date: 

(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

Clerk 

Date:. 

BY: 
Mayor 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
FAIRFAX COUNTY., VIRGINIA 

lairman 

BOARD OF COUNTY SUPERVISORS OF 
PRINCE WILLIAM COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

BY: 
Chairman 

30 

(323)



(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

CITY OF MANASSAS PARK 

City Clerk 

Date: 

BY: 
Mayor 

(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

Clerk 

Date: 

BY: 
Chairman 

(SEAL) 
ATTEST: 

Date 

• M '< 

BOARD OF COUNTY SUPERVI 
PRINCE VvllLUAM C O U N T S 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
COUNTY ATTORNEY 

DATE: tlfoAul. 

30 

(324)



(325)



EXHIBIT B 
06NOT5S AflEA t 0 3 6 8 W v a j 

3Y SEWAGE » j M » STiTlON 

(326)



ATTACHMENT B 
Determination of the Capital Cost per Gallon of UOSA Capacity 

Total Treatment Delivery 

Bond Funded Projects 

Series 1991 Bonds 
Project Cost 
BAN Retirement (Land Purchase) 
Issuance Cost 
Debt Service Reserve 

$ 67,238,640 
6,500,000 
2,343,582 
5,866,738 

$ 56,480,458 
6,500,000 
1,968,609 
4,928,060 

$ 10,758,182 

374,973 
938,678 

Total Series 1991 Bonds $ 81,948,960 $ 69,877,127 $ 12,071,833 

Series 1995A Bonds 
Project Cost 
BAN Retirement 
Issuance Cost 
Debt Service Reserve 

$ 260,000,000 

20,646,103 

$ 220,000,000 

17,469,779 

$ 40,000,000 

3,176,324 

Total Series 1991 Bonds 
Capacity in MGD 
Combined Total 1991 & 1995A Series 

$ 

$ 

280,646,103 

362,595,063 

$ 

$ 

237,469,779 
27 

307,346,906 

$ 

$ 

43,176,324 
27 

55,248,157 

Capacity Constructed 
Total of Cost for 1991 & 1995A Series 
Cost Per Million Gallons $ 13,429,447 $ 

27.0 

11,383,219 $ 

27.0 

2,046,228 

Series 2007B Bonds 1 

Project 54-Plant 
Reserve Maintenance 
Hydraulic Improvements 
Nutrient Cap 

Plant Total 

$ 25,910,980 
4,382,004 
1,075,888 
5,928,594 

$ 25,910,980 
4,382,004 
1,075,888 
5,928,594 

$ 
-

Series 2007B Bonds 1 

Project 54-Plant 
Reserve Maintenance 
Hydraulic Improvements 
Nutrient Cap 

Plant Total 37,297,466 37,297,466 -

Project 54 (Delivery Systems) 
Project 64 (Delivery Systems) 

Delivery System Total 
Total Series 2007B Bonds 

74,183,625 
8,233,909 

- 74,183,625 
8,233,909 

Project 54 (Delivery Systems) 
Project 64 (Delivery Systems) 

Delivery System Total 
Total Series 2007B Bonds $ 

82,417,534 
119,715,000 $ 37,297,466 $ 

82,417,534 
82,417,534 

Capacity in MGD 
Cost Per Million Gallons - 2007B Series $ 3,135,457 $ 

Various 
1,233,505 $ 

Various 
1,901,952 

Total of All Cost Components 
Cost Per Million Gallons $ 16,564,904 $ 12,616,723 $ 3,948,180 

Cost/MGD w/o expenses funded w/interest $ 16,564,904 

Interest Earning Spent on Project: 
Total $90,150,010 
Per MGD $3,338,889 $ 3,338,890 

84,992,936 
3,147,887 

5,157,073 
191,003 

Cost oer MGD $ 19,903,793 $ 15,764,610 $ 4,139,183 

See Attachment B-1 for Costing Details 

(327)



ATTACHMENT C 

Determination of the Acquisition Price of Purchased Canacity by Prince William 

Amount 

UOSA Plant Component: 
Capacity Allocation Acquired < « 7 ^ n 
Capital Cost per Gallon of Capacity Allocation *•15.764 6tu 
Total Cost of Acquired Capacity Allocation $31,529,220 

UOSA Delivery System Component: 
Capacity Allocation Acquired 2 f ^ , 
Capital Cost per Gallon of Capacity Allocation 

Total Cost of Acquired Capacity Allocation $8,278,366 

Total Acquisition Price of Acquired Capacity Allocation $39,807,586 

(328)



ATTACHMENT D 

, OCCOQUAN . 

7 

* AUTHORITY *J 

upper* occoquan sewage authomty 
14631 COMPTON ROAD, CENTREVILLE, VIRGINIA 20121-2506 (703) 830-2200 

Charles P. Boepple 
Executive Director 

Michael D. Reach 
Deputy Exeoutlve Director 

MEMORANDUM 

Subj ect: Implementation of Additional Charges Pursuant to Section 6.6 
of the UOSA Service Agreement 

Tot UOSA Board of Directors 

From: Charles P. Boepple AJ^&JU^ / & M f t * > & ~ 

Date: August 15,2007 

Section 6.6 of the UOSA Service Agreement provides for additional charges to be 
assessed for each month in which a Political Subdivision exceeds its allocated 
capacity. The examples below are intended to provide for the Board's 
consideration the methodology the staff proposes to utilize to A) determine whether 
an exceedance has occurred; and B) calculate the applicable additional charges. 

A. Exceedance Analysis 

UOSA's capacity allocations are based on thirty consecutive day average flows. 
Consistent with past monthly calculations and exceedance determinations, i f there 
are one or more days during a calendar month in which the average of the 
preceding thirty consecutive days of flow exceeds a Political Subdivision's 
allocation, that Political Subdivision wil l be deemed to have exceeded its capacity 
for that month, and Section 6.6 additional charges may be assessed. 

Exhibit 1 provides two sets of flow data for hypothetical Jurisdiction A with a 
capacity allocation of 10.650 mgd. The two sets of data each have a column 
containing the average flow for each individual day and a second column showing 
the thirty day consecutive or "rolling" averages for the preceding thirty day period. 

The first set of data depicts with yellow highlights the period (5/13/2007 -
5/24/2007) in which Jurisdiction A exceeded its capacity allocation, The highest 
thirty consecutive day average flow during the month of May was 10.869 mgd. 
Consequently, Jurisdiction A's additional charges for an exceedance in the month 
of May 2007 wil l be based on the difference between the actual highest 

FAIRFAX COUNTY / PRINCE WILLIAM COUNTY I CITY OF MANASSAS I CITY OF MANASSAS PARK 

(329)



consecutive thirty day flow for the month (10.869 mgd)minus the allocated thirty 
consecutive day average flow of 10.650 mgd, or 0,219 mgd, 

The second set of data also depicts with yellow highlights the P ^ 3 ^ ^ 
4/16/2007) in which Jurisdiction A exceeded its capacity allocation. However, 
th s exampk Illustrates that certain wet weather events using the above 
m h o l b g y may generate an exceedance determination for two subsequent 
months. In this set of data the rolling thirty day average began exceeding 0. 0 
mgd on March 30,2007 and reached a high thirty consecutive day average (11.013 
mgd) for 4 mon h of March on March 31,2007. Consequently, Jurisdiction A s 
S i o n a l charges for an exceedance in the month of March 2007 wi l l be based on 
he d S e n t between the actual highest consecutive thirty day flow for the mon* 
(11.013 mgd)minus the allocated thirty consecutive day average flow of 10.650 
mgd, or 0.363 mgd. 

Further, the 30 consecutive day averages continued to exceed the 10.650 mgd 
2cation taring the April 1, 2007 to April 16, 2007 time frame. The highest 
tTclTZl day average during April (11.141 mgd) occurred on April 2 
2007 Consequently Jurisdiction A's additional charges for an aooeto^m fl« 
month of April 2007 will be based on the difference between the actual highest 
ZlloUriyd,y flow for the month (11,141 mgd)minuS the allocated thirty 
consecutive day average flow of 10.650 mgd, or 0.491 mgd. 

Consequently, the above methodology for the second data set would generate an 

additional charge for a 0.363 mgd exceedance in March and a 0.491 mgd 

exceedance in April. 

There here are other methodologies that could be considered for purposes, of 

implementing Section 6.6 and these alternative methodologies could be explored i f 

the Board so desires. 

B. Calculation of Payment for Excess Flow 

Below are three examples of the determination of Excess Flow charges and 
credits. The first two examples correspond to the data sets discussed above. The 
methodology is based on calculating the cost per mgd based on UOSA s total 
SalDebYservloe. This cost per mgd is then multiplied by the amount of the 
x t e ^ e in mgd to yield an excess flow charge amount ^ * ^ £ * £ 

allocated as a credit to the jurisdictions with unused capacity. The billing tor the 
excesf flow and the associated credits to other jurisdictions would be noted on 
each jurisdiction's invoice during the quarterly billing cycle. 

(330)



Example 1 -(Dataset 1) 

Example 1 Assumptions: 

1. Jurisdiction A's Excess Flow for a thirty-day period equals 0.219 mgd. 

2. UOSA Debt Service Is equal to $24,465,792 (Total annual Debt Service In fiscal year of exceedance) 

The payment for Excess Flow should be determined as follows: 

1. Calculate Monthly Debt $24,465,792 / 12 months * $2,038,816 

2. Calculate cost per mgd $2,038,816 / 54 mgd = $37,756 

3. Calculate payment $37,756 X 0.219 = $8,269 (Cost X excess flow) 

4. Allocate credits to jurisdictions 
Unused % Unused Payment 

Jurisdictions Capacity Capacity Allocation 
Jurisdiction A 0.0 0.00% $0 
Jurisdiction B 1,0 71,43% $5,907 
Jurisdiction C 0.2 14,29% $1,181 
Jurisdiction D 0,2 14.29% $1,181 
UOSA Unallocated 

m Exceedances M 0.00 m 
Total 1,4 100.00% $8,269 

(331)



Example 2 - (Dataset 2) 

Example 2 Assumptions - March: 

1. Jurisdiction A's Excess Flow for March equals 0,363 mgd, 

2, UOSA Debt Service is equal to $24,465,792 (Total annual Debt Service In fiscal year of exceedance) 

The payment for Excess Flow should be determined as follows: 

1. Calculate Monthly Debt $24,465,792 / 12 months = $2,038,816 

2. Calculate cost per mgd $2,038,816 / 54 mgd = $37,756 

3. Calculate payment $37,756 X 0.363 = $13,705 (Cost X excess flow) 

4. Allocate credits to jurisdictions 

Example 2 Assumptions - April: 

1. Jurisdiction A's Excess Flow for April equals 0.491 mgd, 

2. UOSA Debt Service is equal to $24,465,792 (Total annual Debt Service in fiscal year of exceedance) 

The payment for Excess Flow should be determined as follows: 

1. Calculate Monthly Debt $24,465,792 / 12 months = $2,038,816 

2. Calculate cost per mgd $2,038,816 / 54 mgd = $37,756 

3, Calculate payment 

4. Allocate credits to jurisdictions 

$37,756 X 0.491 $18,538 (Cost X excess flow) 

March % March April % April 
Unused Unused Payment Unused Unused Payment 

Jurisdictions Capacity Capacity Allocation Capacity Capacity Allocation 
Jurisdiction A 0,0 0.00% $0 0.0 0.00% $0 
Jurisdiction B 1.1 78,57% $10,768 1.0 71.43% $13,242 
Jurisdiction C 0.1 7,14% $979 0.2 14,29% $2,648 
Jurisdiction D 0,2 14.29% $1,958 0.2 14,29% $2,648 
UOSA Unallocated M 0.00% |Q 0 0.00% $0 
Exceedances 
Total 1.4 100.00% $13,705 1.4 100.00% $18,538 

NOTE: I f the capacity exceedance had been larger than the sum of unused capacity 

from the jurisdictions that did not exceed their capacity, the proportional 

charge associated with the same would be deposited in an escrow account 

pursuantto Section 6.6 of the Service Agreement. 

(332)



Example 3 

Example 3 Assumptions - March: 

1, Jurisdiction A's Excess Flow for March equals 1.800 mgd, 

2. UOSA Debt Service Is equal to $24,465,792 (Total annual Debt Service In fiscal year of exceedance) 

The payment for Excess Flow should be determined as follows; 

1. Calculate Monthly Debt $24,465,792 / 12 months » $2,038,816 

2. Calculate cost per mgd $2,038,816 / 54 mgd = $37,756 

3. Calculate payment $37,756 X 1.800 = $67,961 (Cost X excess flow) 

4. Allocate credits to Jurisdictions 

Example 3 Assumptions - April: 

1. Jurisdiction A's Excess Flow for April equals 0.491 mgd. 

2, UOSA Debt Service Is equal to $24,465,792 (Total annual Debt Service in fiscal year of exceedance) 

The payment for Excess Flow should be determined as follows: 

1, Calculate Monthly Debt 

2, Calculate cost per mgd 

3, Calculate payment 

4, Allocate credits to jurisdictions 

$24,465,792 / 

$2,038,816 / 

$37,756 X 

12 months = $2,038,816 

54 mgd = $37,756 

0.491 = $18,538 (Cost X excess flow) 

March % March April % April 
Unused Unused Payment Unused Unused Payment 

Jurisdictions Capacity Capacity Allocation Capacity Capacity Allocation 
Jurisdiction A 0.0 0.00% $0 0.0 0,00% $0 
Jurisdiction B 1.1 61.11% $41,531 1.0 71.43% $13,242 
Jurisdiction C 0,1 5.56% $3,779 0.2 14.29% $2,648 
Jurisdiction D 0.2 11.11% $7,550 0,2 14,29% $2,648 
UOSA Unallocated 04 22.22% $15,101 0 0.00% m Exceedances 
Total 1.8 100.00% $67,961 1.4 100.00% $18,538 

NOTE: The assumptions for March were amended to create the scenario where 

Jurisdictions B, C and D did not have enough excess capacity to offset the 

Jurisdiction A exceedance. In this instance $15,101 would be deposited in 

an escrow account as a result of the 0.4 mgd unallocated exceedance. 

(333)



EXHIBIT 1 

Jurisdiction A 
1O.6S0 tngd Limit 

Day ADF 30-dRA 
4/1/2007 12.870 
4/2/2007 10.100 
4/3/2007 8.900 
4/4/2007 9.230 
4/5/2007 8.550 
4/6/2007 8.640 
4/7/2007 8.460 
4/8/2007 8.650 
4/9/2007 8.660 
4/10/2007 8.980 
4/11/2007 7.980 
4/12/2007 7.991 
4/13/2007 8.560 
4/14/2007 8.660 
4/15/2007 8.671 
4/16/2007 8.682 
4/17/2007 8.540 
4/18/2007 8.210 
4/19/2007 8.030 
4/20/2007 8.540 
4/21/2007 8.880 
4/22/2007 9.250 
4/23/2007 9.560 
4/24/2007 9.571 
4/25/2007 9.582 
4/26/2007 9.593 
4/27/2007 9.604 
4/28/2007 9.615 
4/29/2007 9.626 
4/30/2007 9.637 9.061 

5/1/2007 . 10.220 8.972 
5/2/2007 10.880 8.998 
5/3/2007 11.560 9.087 
5/4/2007 11.571 9.165 
5/5/2007 11.582 9.266 

5/6/2007 11.593 9,365 
5/7/2007 11.604 9,469 
5/8/2007 12.560 9,600 

5/9/2007 13.850 9.773 
5/10/2007 14,870 9.969 

5/11/2007 15.680 10.226 

5/12/2007 15,691 10.482 
5/13/2007 13.800 10.657 
5/14/2007 9.880 10.698 
5/15/2007 8.950 10.707 

5/16/2007 8.640 10.706 
5/17/2007 9.880 10.750 
5/18/2007 9.981 10,809 

5/19/2007 9.902 10.872 
5/20/2007 8.450 10.869 
5/21/2007 8.290 10,849 
5/22/2007 7.990 10.807 
5/23/2007 7.650 10.743 
5/24/2007 7.661 10,680 
5/25/2007 7.672 10,616 
5/26/2007 7.683 10.552 
5/27/2007 7,694 10,489 
5/28/2007 7.705 10.425 
5/29/2007 7.716 10,361 
5/30/2007 7.727 10,298 

5/31/2007 7.950 10.222 

Avg ADF 9,651 

Jurisdiction A 
10.650 mgd Limit 

Day ADF 30-d RA 

2/1/2007 8.750 
2/2/2007 8.010 
2/3/2007 8,021 
2/4/2007 8.032 
2/5/2007 8.043 
2/6/2007 8.054 
2/7/2007 8.065 
2/8/2007 8.076 
2/9/2007 8.087 
2/10/2007 8.098 
2/11/2007 8.109 
2/12/2007 8.120 
2/13/2007 8.131 
2/14/2007 9,220 
2/15/2007 9.231 
2/16/2007 9,242 
2/17/2007 9,253 
2/18/2007 9.264 
2/19/2007 9.275 
2/20/2007 14,650 
2/21/2007 13.550 
2/22/2007 12.880 
2/23/2007 11.990 
2/24/2007 11.550 
2/25/2007 10.990 
2/26/2007 11.00) 
2/27/2007 10.990 
2/28/2007 9.890 
3/1/2007 9,560 
3/2/2007 9.571 9.590 
3/3/2007 9,582 9.618 
3/4/2007 9.593 9.671 
3/5/2007 9,604 9,723 
3/6/2007 9,615 9.776 
3/7/2007 9.626 9.829 
3/8/2007 9.637 9,882 
3/9/2007 9,648 9.934 

3/10/2007 9,659 9,987 
3/11/2007 9.550 10,036 
3/12/2007 9.561 10.085 
3/13/2007 9,572 10.134 
3/14/2007 9.583 10,182 
3/15/2007 9,594 10,231 
3/16/2007 9.605 10.244 
3/17/2007 9.616 10.257 
3/18/2007 9.627 10.270 
3/19/2007 9,638 10.282 
3/20/2007 9,649 10.295 
3/21/2007 9.660 10.308 
3/22/2007 9.671 10.142 
3/23/2007 9,682 10.013 
3/24/2007 9,900 9.914 
3/25/2007 10.260 9.856 
3/26/2007 14.870 9.967 
3/27/2007 16.150 10.139 
3/28/2007 18.740 10,397 
3/29/2007 17.540 10.615 
3/30/2007 16.880 10.848 
3/31/2007 14.520 11,013 monthpeak 
4/1/2007 12.870 11,123 
4/2/2007 10.100 11.141 month and event peak 
4/3/2007 8.900 11.118 
4/4/2007 9,230 11.105 
4/5/2007 8.550 11.070 
4/6/2007 8.640 11.037 
4/7/2007 8,460 10.998 

(334)



4/8/2007 8.650 10.964 

4/9/2007 8.660 10931 

4/10/2007 8.980 10.912 
4/11/2007 7.980 10.859 

4/12/2007 7.991 10.807 
4/13/2007 8.560 10.772 
4/14/2007 8.660 10.741 
4/15fi007 8.671 10.710 

4/16/2007 8.682 10.679 
4/17/2007 7.89.0 10.621 
4/18/2007 8.210 10.574 
4/19/2007 8.030 10.520 
4/20/2007 8.540 10.482 
4/21/2007 8,880 10.456 
4/22/2007 9.250 10.441 
4/23/2007 9.560 10.430 
4/24/2007 9.571 10.407 
4/25/2007 9.582 10.231 
4/26/2007 9.593 10.012 
4/27/2007 9,604 9.708 
4/28/2007 9.615 9,444 
4/29/2007 9.626 9.202 
4/30/2007 9.637 9.039 

Avg ADF 9.884 

Key 
ADF Averege Daily Plow 

30-dRA 30-day Rolling Average 

(335)



LEE HWY.
RTE. 29

R
TE

. 28

BRADDOCK

RO
AD

B
U

L
L R

U
N

LEE HWY.
RTE. 29

POST OFFICE RD
.

RTE. 66

O
X

S
U

L
L

Y
 R

O
A

D

W
E

S
T

 O
X

 R
D

.

C
L

IF
T

O
N

 R
O

A
D

LAWYERS RD.

FO
X

 M
ILL R

D
.

COMPTON ROAD

RTE. 50

POPES HEAD

P
LE

A
S

A
N

T V
A

LLE
Y

 R
O

A
D

FA
IR

F
A

X
 C

O
U

N
TY

 P
K

W
Y

.

S
T

R
IN

G
F

E
LLO

W
 R

D
.

R
TE

. 2
8

WAPLES MILL

R
E

S
T

O
N

 P
K

W
Y

.

S
H

IR
LE

Y
 G

A
T

E

NEW BRADDOCK ROAD

O
X

VALE RD.

LEE JACKSON MEMORIAL HWY.

UPPER OCCOQUAN
SEWAGE AUTHORITY

TREATMENT AREA

Legend
SERVICE AREA

UPPER OCCOQUAN

1 inch equals 1.5 miles (336)

rstew5
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2


	1-25Agenda
	9 30 Presentations
	10 30 Presentation of Don Smith Award
	10 45 Presentation on the Tysons Partnership
	11 00 Report on General Assembly Activities
	11 15 Appointments
	11 15 Appointments-Attachment
	11 15 Items Presented by the County Executive
	Admin1
	Admin1-Attachments
	Admin2
	Admin2-Attachment I
	Admin3
	Admin4
	Admin4-Attachments
	Admin5
	Admin5-Attachments
	Admin6
	Admin6-Attachment 1
	Action1
	Action1-Attachments
	Action2
	Action2-Attachment 1
	Action3
	Action3-Attachment 1
	Action4
	Action4-Attachment 1
	Info1
	Info2
	Info2-Attachment 1
	Info3
	Info3-Attachments
	11 45 Matters Presented by Board Members
	12 40 Closed Session
	3 00 PH-Annual Meeting of the Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority
	3 00 PH-Annual Meeting of the Fairfax County Solid Waste Authority-Attachments
	3 30 PH-SE 2010-MA-020
	3 30 PH-PCA 2005-PR-041
	3 30 PH-SEA 81-L-057-02
	3 30 PH-SE 2010-LE-017 (def to 1-19)
	4 00 PH-Loudoun Water’s Broad Run Water Reclamation Facility
	4 00 PH-Loudoun Water’s Broad Run Water Reclamation Facility-Attachment 1
	4 00 PH-Upper Occoquan Sewage Authority’s Treatment Plant
	4 00 PH-Upper Occoquan Sewage Authority’s Treatment Plant-Attachments



